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ABOUT US

Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2289.HK) is
principally engaged in the pharmaceutical distribution business.
It mainly distributes western medicine, Chinese patent medicine
and healthcare products to downstream distributors and retail
terminals, as well as provides consultation service on
pharmaceutical products. Founded in 2000, over the past 22
years of rapid development, it has become one of the leading
pharmaceutical distributors in the Southern China region. The
Company adheres to the development strategy of —Intensive
Engagement in Guangdong Province and Extensive Coverage
across Surrounding Areas”, and has built logistics centres in
Shantou, Foshan, Zhuhai, Guangzhou and Huizhou, all
equipped with professional transportation teams, and has a
highly efficient delivery mechanism of delivering
pharmaceutical products three times per day for customers
within a radius of 10 kilometers, twice per day for customers
within a radius of 50 kilometers and once per day for those
within a radius of 250 kilometers. In addition, the Company has
a modern information system that covers the entire supply chain
for pharmaceutical distribution, including procurement, sales,
warehousing, transportation and delivery. Apart from that, the
Company operates its own B2B e-commerce platform
—Charmcy e-Medicine” (£]3% e g%), a platform for customers
to place orders online, make inquires and payment ,etc. In 2020,
the Company ranked top 40 among top 100 PRC wholesalers, in
respect of revenue generated from the principal business.
According to the Market Research Report of the Chinese
Pharmaceutical Industry (2017) ( BB 817 E 50 FL Rk
%) (2017)), in respect of sales scale, the Company ranked the
7th among the pharmaceutical distribution businesses in

Guangdong Province and the 2nd among private enterprises.

With the good reputation and high-quality service, in January
2021, the Group it was awarded the 2020 Most Promising
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Enterprise in The Pharmaceutical Business industry by the
Pharmaceutical Business Branch of the All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce. In March 2021, it was appraised as the
Best Logistics Center for Pharmaceutical Cold Chain Logistics
(Base) in 2020-2021 and the Medical cold chain logistics
services recommended enterprises in 2020-2021 by the
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Alliance and Yao lian quan. In
June 2021, it was awarded the —@Glden Ant” Innovation Award
of Chinese Logistics Industry from 2020 to 2021 issued by
China (Guangzhou) International Logistics Equipment and
Technology Exhibition Organising Committee and the title of
Contract Abiding and Credit Respecting Enterprise in
Guangdong Province (for 20 consecutive years from 2001 to
2020) by Guangdong Provincial Market Supervision
Administration. In July 2021, it was awarded the 2021 Annual
Pharmaceutical Logistics and Distribution Outstanding
Enterprise by the Yao Lian Quan. In September 2021, it was
awarded the 2020 Top 100 Pharmaceutical Enterprises in
China’s Pharmaceutical Industry issued by the China National
Federation of Industry and Commerce Pharmaceutical Industry
And Commerce Association. In October 2021, it won the Anti-
epidemic Positive Contribution Award issued by the Shantou
Pharmaceutical Industry Association. In December 2021, it won
the —@ld Award” for the 2020-2021 Medical Supply Chain--
Procurement - Top Ten Commercial Enterprises issued by the
Pharmaceutical Logistics Branch of the China Federation of
Logistics. it was awarded the AAA credit rating issued by the
China Enterprise Confederation and the China Entrepreneurs
Association. It has obtained the national standard of
—Phanaceutical Cold Chain Logistics Operation Specification”
issued by the National Logistics Standardisation Technical
Committee Cold Chain Logistics Branch Technical Committee
and the Pharmaceutical Logistics Branch of the China Logistics

and Procurement Federation.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

CORPORATE INFORMATION

* DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Yao Chuanglong (Chairman of the Board)
Zheng Yuyan

Lin Zhixiong™**

Non-executive Director

Li Weisheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Wan Chi Wai Anthony

Zhou Tao

Guan Jian (also known as Guan Suzhe)
* SUPERVISORS

Zhang Ling

Zheng Xiyue

Lin Zhijie

* COMPANY SECRETARY

Lin Zhixiong™**

* AUDIT COMMITTEE

Wan Chi Wai Anthony (Chairman)
Zhou Tao

Guan Jian

* NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Zhou Tao (Chairman)

Yao Chuanglong

Guan Jian

* REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Zhou Tao (Chairman)

Wan Chi Wai Anthony

Lin Zhixiong™"*

* RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Yao Chuanglong (Chairman)

Lin Zhixiong™"*

Wan Chi Wai Anthony

* STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Yao Chuanglong (Chairman)

Zheng Yuyan

Zhou Tao

* AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Zheng Yuyan

(Note)

Lin Zhixiong
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* AUDITOR

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership)

* LEGAL ADVISERS

Chungs Lawyers in association with DeHeng Law Offices (as to
Hong Kong laws)

Shu Jin Law Firm (as to PRC laws)

* REGISTERED OFFICE AND HEADQUARTERS

No. 235, Song Shan North Road, Longhu District, Shantou City,
Guangdong Province, PRC

* PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road
East,Wanchai, Hong Kong

* PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd. (Shantou Branch)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (Shantou
Branch)

* H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

* COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chmyy.com

* STOCK CODE

2289.HK

Note: With effect from 8 April 2022, Mr. Lin Zhixiong resigned
as the executive director, the company secretary and the chief
financial officer of the Company, he also ceased to be a member
of the remuneration committee, a member of the risk
management committee and an authorized representative; Ms.
Zheng Yuyan, an executive director of the Company, has been
appointed as a member of the remuneration committee and a
member of the risk management committee; Ms. Yao Jiexi and
Ms. Wong Wai Ling have been appointed as the joint company
secretaries of the Company; Ms. Yao Jiexi has been appointed as
the Authorised Representative.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the —Board”) of Directors (the
—Birectors”) of Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 2289.HK) (the -€ompany”), I hereby report the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its affiliates
(collectively referred to as —the Group” or -we” or —eur” or
—€Charmacy”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
—Reporting Period”).

Business Overview

Founded in 2000, the Company is mainly engaged in
pharmaceutical distribution business in the pharmaceutical
circulation industry, focusing on the non-bidding markets. It
mainly distributes western medicines, Chinese patent medicines,
health products and other products to downstream distributors
and retailers, comprising primarily pharmacies, outpatient
clinics and private hospitals, and provides pharmaceutical
products consulting services. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had distributed 13,501 categories of products,
representing an increase of 1,673 categories over the same
period of the previous year; the Group had 1,157 suppliers,
including 666 pharmaceutical manufacturers and 491
distributors, representing an increase of 15 suppliers over the

same period of the previous year.

Having earnestly run its business in the non-bidding markets for
22 years, the Group has accumulated rich experience in channel-
based distribution and retailer-based delivery, formed a sound
and reproducible operation mode, and developed into a leading
modern pharmaceutical supply chain service provider in South

China. Following the development strategy of —deepl tapping

-003-
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into the Guangdong market and expanding to the surrounding
regions”, the Company has established five modern logistics
centres in Shantou, Foshan, Zhuhai, Guangzhou and Huizhou,
and built professional transportation teams. In terms of
independent delivery, the Company has achieved the efficient
delivery mechanism of —Hree deliveries per day within a radius
of 10 km, two deliveries per day within 50 km, and one delivery
per day within 250 km”. Its business scope has fully covered
Guangdong and expanded to Fujian, Guangxi, Hainan and other
surrounding regions. The Group has a modern information
system with SAP at the core, which covers the entire
pharmaceutical distribution chain, including procurement, sales,
warehousing, transportation and delivery, realising the linkage
among all the Group’s logistics centres and warehouses, and
effectively elevating the integrated and intelligent management

of the Group’s logistics.

In June 2021, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary
Shenzhen Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (—Shenzhen
Charmacy”) was officially put into operation, pushing forward
the strategy of —deepl tapping into the Guangdong market and
expanding to the surrounding regions”. Taking advantage of its
leading position in the Guangdong market, the Company
accelerates the development of Shenzhen Charmacy. So far,
Shenzhen Charmacy has established cooperative relations with
more than 200 customers. With Shenzhen’s significant
advantage geographical , we expect that Shenzhen Charmacy’s
profit prospects will be optimistic. In addition, the Company
gives full play to the service capability for Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and makes use of the abundant
storage capacity of Charmacy Pharmaceutical (Guangzhou)
Pharmaceutical Sorting and Delivery Centre to proactively
develop the third-party pharmaceutical logistics business and

continuously improve profitability.

Performance

In the Reporting Period, both the recurrent outbreaks of the
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COVID-19 epidemic and the changes in the economic
environment exerted certain pressure on the Group’s operation.
Facing the challenges in the external environment, the Group
adopted a relatively conservative marketing strategy to improve
the operation quality, and controlled the supply to some
distributors, resulting in a decrease in the operating revenue. In
2021, the Group’s operating revenue decreased by 4.96% to
RMB3,793.62 million from RMB3,991.71 million in 2020.

In 2021, the Group’s gross profit decreased by 1.33% to
RMB237.22 million from RMB240.40 million in 2020; the
Company proactively adjusted its product structure, and its
gross profit margin increased by 0.23 percentage point to 6.02%
from 6.25% in 2020; the net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent company decreased by 42.91% to RMB23.15
million from RMB40.56 million in 2020.

Prospect

2021 is the opening year of the —4th Five-Year Plan” of the
People’s Republic of China. Looking back over the past year,
pharmaceutical industry policies have been intensively
introduced to facilitate the development of China’s
pharmaceutical industry to a higher quality. In addition, the
fluctuation of the COVID-19 pandemic over the globe has
deeply affected the development pattern of China’s

pharmaceutical industry.

Recently implemented policies have been bringing opportunities
to the pharmaceutical circulation industry, and facilitating the
industry to develop towards high quality, high standards and
strict regulation. Every participant in the industry has been
trying to find new opportunities. The deepening of the medical
insurance reform and the nation’s continuous investment in

health have been effectively driving residents’ medical and
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health consumptions, enhancing the market demand for
pharmaceutical products and services, and leading to a
substantial increase in the scale of the pharmaceutical market. In
addition, the reform of the centralized pharmaceuticals
procurement has been facilitating the pharmaceutical
manufacturers that previously relied on the bidding market to
make greater efforts to expand the pharmaceutical retail market,
and the non-bidding markets will have greater development
opportunities. Besides, people’s awareness of preventive and
health care has been heightened, and the demand for medical
and health care will continue to grow in the context of the
increased incidence of chronic diseases and other diseases, the
acceleration of population aging and the recent recurrent
outbreaks of COVID-19 epidemics. Meanwhile, the
pharmaceutical industry development room has been further
expanding as the nation gives emphasis to —pimoting the
development of a healthy China in an all-round way” and
implements the concept of health management throughout the
life cycle in all aspects of cities. On the whole, with the synergy
of policies and market, the pharmaceutical circulation industry
chain has been undergoing an accelerated integration pace, a
continuously improved concentration, and a further innovated

business model, manifesting the faster transformation from

resources-based competition to capabilities-based competition.

Looking forward, we will build a pharmaceutical retail network
covering Guangdong Province and surrounding regions by
always focusing on the non-bidding markets, strengthening risk
management, improving business quality, adhering to the market
strategy of —deepl tapping into the Guangdong market and
expanding to the surrounding regions”, and giving full play to
our accumulated advantages and experience in South China. We
will continuously consolidate and enhance our core
competitiveness, continuously elevate the overall operating
efficiency, and strive to increase sales revenues and profits by
continuing to seek higher-level IT-based management, logistics

centre construction and market network expansion, and further
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empowering the development of enterprises with the help of
digital transformation and e-commerce platforms. Moreover, we
will further improve the Group’s comprehensive strength with a
view to gaining more room for growth by multiple means
including proactively seeking long-term and in-depth strategic
cooperation with major pharmaceutical ~manufacturers,
expanding the third-party pharmaceutical logistics business, and
exploring the modes of cooperation with state-owned strategic

shareholders.

We will strive to become the most competitive service provider
in China’s pharmaceutical and health industry, achieve high-
quality development and bring better returns to our

shareholders.
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Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
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Shantou, China, 31 March 2022
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HA T FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE 12 A 31 HILEH
For the year ended 31 December
HH 2021 4 2020 4 2019 & 2018 4 2017 4
Items AR®TR | ARBTRX | AR¥TK | AR¥TxK | ARBTT
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
%‘%4&)\ 3,793,618 3,991,711 3,492,783 3,935,246 4,095,835
Operating revenue
A
848 32,981 54,742 55,045 63,655 59,857
Total profit
o) =) SEYNSINE Sihpe il bl
Net profit attributable to the 23,153 40,556 40,153 45,433 44,760
Shareholders of parent ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
company
HA R R ol
(AR A R¥ T
Basic and diluted earnings 0.21 0.38 0.37 0.42 0.41
per Share (expressed in
RMB per share)
R12A31H
As at 31 December
JRH 2021 4F 2020 4F 2019 £ 2018 4F 2017 4F
Items AR®ETR | ARBTR | AR¥Tx | AR¥Tx | AR¥BTx
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ey
A E 2,763,092 2,799,403 2,503,808 2,353,980 2,471,830
Total assets
4
@ﬁ{ﬁ ) 2,258,990 2,296,854 2,020,215 1,877,242 2,008,423
Total liabilities
i SR
504,102 502,54 483,593 476,73 463,40
Equity of Shareholders ’ 549 59 76,737 A07
SRR E
(AR THIT)
Net assets per Share 4.67 4.65 4.48 4.41 4.29
(as stated in RMB per
Share)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

2021 is the opening year of the —4th Five-Year Plan” of the
People’s Republic of China (-€hina” or the PRC”). Looking
back over the past year, pharmaceutical industry policies have
been intensively introduced to facilitate the development of
China’s pharmaceutical industry to a higher quality. In addition,
the fluctuation of the COVID-19 pandemic over the globe has
deeply affected the development pattern of China’s
pharmaceutical industry. With the launch and coordinated
linkage of new medical reform policies including the Healthy
China” initiative, -Internet + Healthcare”, increased adoption of
centralised procurement, and the introduction of medical
insurance payment fund, coupled with the strong empowerment
of cutting-edge technologies such as —ternet + drug
circulation” and big data, the ecological structure of the
pharmaceutical circulation industry will continue to be
reshaped. Meanwhile, under the environment of strict
supervision and policy encouragement, national and regional
pharmaceutical wholesale enterprises continue to expand the
market coverage through merger and acquisition, reorganisation,
strong alliances, etc., leading to the continuous increase of
market concentration in the pharmaceutical circulation industry.
Overall, China’s pharmaceutical circulation industry is
accelerating its transformation from an era of competition for

resources to competition for capacities.

Internet healthcare is booming and online prescription
drugs are fully liberalised

The pandemic has accelerated the process of economic and
social digitalisation. Internet healthcare has ushered with a rapid

development opportunity and increased the public awareness of
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internet healthcare, such as online medical consultation, internet
hospitals and online pharmacies. Along with the advancement of
cutting-edge technologies including cloud computing, big data,
and artificial intelligence (Al), and supported by favorable
policies constantly implemented by the country, the downstream
pharmaceutical retailers have a stronger expansion power in the
era of —ternet + Healthcare”. It is expected to welcome a wide
market space expansion. According to the statistics of the
Network Supervision Center of the Southern Medical Economic
Research Institute, in 2020, the online sales of drugs amounted
to RMB159.3 billion, representing an increase of RMBS59.1
billion or 59% compared to that in 2019. The absolute growth of

online sales was about 2.4 times of that of offline sales.

The Opinions on Supporting Efforts to Ensure Stability on Six
Fronts and Maintain Security in Six Areas and Further
Promoting the Reform of Simplification and Decentralisation*
( CBAIRES [888] T8RP0y TE k] 2ok
BRI LAEMER) ) issued by the General Office of the State
Council in April 2021 makes clear that the prescription drugs
not under the national special control can be sold online
provided that the source of the electronic prescription is

authentic and reliable.

In July 2021, the National Healthcare Security Administration
issued the Opinions of the National Healthcare Security
Administration on Optimising Convenience Services in the
Medical Insurance Field to actively promote the —dternet +
Medical Insurance Services” and achieve the integrated services
covering prescription circulation, online payment and
settlement, and medicine delivery to home by actively exploring
information sharing through the improvement of the agreement
management and the settlement process according to the service
characteristics, the principle of online and offline fairness, and
the policy for medical expense reimbursement by medical

insurance.
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Relying on a new generation of information and communication
networks, the gradual relaxation of restrictions on internet
healthcare and prescription pharmacy outflow can facilitate the
deep connection of supply and demand sides, leading to a closed
loop in the medical industry. It will significantly promote the
expansion of non-tendering market and the transformation and

upgrade of the pharmaceutical distribution industry.

Establishment of the security mechanism for —mtual aids in
outpatient services” has been proposed

According to the Guideline on Establishing and Improving a
General Support Mechanism for Covering Outpatient Medical
Bills under the Basic Medical Insurance for Urban Employees*
(T s d S e T T e A B 0 O ot 1 2 3L T2 O P B 1 1) i
BEHR) ) (the Guideline” ) issued by the General Office of
the State Council in April 2021, the system for attributing
medical insurance premiums to personal accounts shall be
reformed to effectively reduce the medical expenses borne by
the employees participating in medical insurance. According to
the Guideline, the method to attribute medical insurance
premiums to personal accounts shall be improved; all the basic
medical insurance premiums paid by the employers shall be
allocated to the pooling fund; the role of mutual aids in
outpatient services shall be enhanced, and for this purpose, the
outpatient expenses on frequently-occurring diseases and
common diseases shall be gradually included in the scope of
payment from the pooling fund, and the settlement and
dispensing of prescriptions shall be supported in designated
retail drugstores; and the scope of use of funds in personal
accounts shall be improved, under which the funds in personal
accounts may be used to pay the medical expenses borne by
individuals when the insured or their spouses, parents or
children seek medical treatment in designated medical
institutions, and may also be used to pay the expenses borne by
individuals when they purchase medicines, medical devices and

medical consumables at designated retail pharmacies.
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In the short run, a large number of designated pharmacies for
medical insurance will face a new round of industry reshuffle
due to the —mtual aids in outpatient services” policy. According
to the Statistical Bulletin on the Development of the National
Medical Security Undertakings in 2020, the personal accounts
of employee medical insurance had a total income of RMB658.7
billion and a total expenditure of RMB493.6 billion in 2020.
Among the expenditure, the expenses on purchasing medicines
at pharmacies was RMB207.6 billion, accounting for 42% of the
total expenditure. After the reform, personal accounts will have
the annual income of nearly RMB400 billion plus the
accumulated balance of RMB1,009.6 billion, which is enough to
meet the insured’s needs for purchasing medicines at

pharmacies

With the promulgation of the -dual-channel” policy,
pharmaceutical circulation has become more diverse and
market-oriented

In May 2021, the National Healthcare Security Administration
and the National Health Commission issued the Guiding
Opinion on Improving the Dual-channel Management
Mechanism of Drugs in the National Medical Insurance
Negotiations* ([ JiA 4 37 58 35 [ 2 B Ok AV o [ 808
TE | EHEEHI 4R SR L) ) (the —dual-channel”). For the
first time, the designated retail drugstores are nationally
included in the medical insurance pharmaceutical supply
guarantee scope, and are subject to the same payment policies as
those of medical institutions. The —dal-channel” policy is
expected to further promote the outflow of prescription
medicines, bring a large number of visitors and increase the
number of prescription medicines to retail pharmacies qualified
to take over the outflow of prescription medicines, and promote
the compliant and professional operation of pharmacies. This
shows that the supply guarantee of negotiated drugs is
diversified and the pharmaceutical distribution market is further

liberalised.
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With the introduction of the long-term prescription policy,
the pharmaceutical industry chain has been improving

In August 2021, the Bureau of Medical Administration of the
National Health Commission issued the Notice on Printing and
Distributing the Norms for Administration of Long-term
Prescriptions (for Trial Implementation) (the -Notice”), which
specifically makes clear to whom the long-term prescriptions
shall apply, the implementers such as medical institutions that
issue long-term prescriptions, and the main processes of
prescription and other aspects. According to the Notice, a long-
term prescription duration shall be generally within 4 weeks in
view of the patients’ diagnosis and treatment needs; a long-term
prescription duration for a patient in stable conditions may be
increased appropriately but shall not exceed 12 weeks in view of
the characteristics of chronic diseases. The promulgation of the
Notice not only responds to the urgent needs of patients with
chronic diseases, but also perfectly responds to the needs for
current and future prevention and control of infectious diseases.
The Notice not only points out the specific direction for the
development of long-term prescriptions, but also provides
opportunities for the development of internet-based remote
medical consultation and medical informatization. From another
perspective, as the long-term prescription policy is conducive to
improving the compliance of medicine use, medicines in the list
of basic medicines, varieties centrally purchased by the state and
medicines covered by medical insurance will benefit from this
market opportunity earlier and to a greater extent. The
promulgation of the Notice will definitely change the existing
chronic disease diagnosis and treatment and prescription
administration mode, and bring about changes in the whole
medical service chain, the pharmaceutical industry chain and the

technology development chain.
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During the 14th Five-Year Plan period, the pharmaceutical
distribution industry has been undergoing high-quality
development, reshaping the new pattern of competition in
pharmaceutical distribution

In October 2021, the Ministry of Commerce issued the Guiding
Opinions on Promoting the High-quality Development of the
Pharmaceutical Distribution Industry During the 14th Five-Year
Plan Period (the —Guiding Opinions”), which clarifies the
development direction of the pharmaceutical distribution
industry in the next five years and provides important guidance
for the whole industry to achieve high-quality development. The
Guiding Opinions clearly points out that the pharmaceutical
distribution industry is an important part of national medical and
health undertakings and health industry, and is also an important
industry related to people’s health and life. According to the
Guiding Opinions, the development of the pharmaceutical
distribution industry shall be linked with the general
requirements of the economic and social development plan and
the business development plan of the 14th Five-Year Plan of the
Chinese Communist Party and the state; the pharmaceutical
distribution industry shall be developed to be more digital, more
intelligent, more intensive and more international, so as to
improve the security of pharmaceutical supply, ensure the
quality and safety of pharmaceuticals and meet people’s health
needs. According to the Guiding Opinions, the overall
development goal is that by 2025, the pharmaceutical
distribution industry will meet people’s health needs in China’s
new development stage, and the modern pharmaceutical
distribution system will function better thanks to leading
innovation, technology empowerment, urban and rural coverage,
balanced layout, coordinated development, safety and

convenience.

Driven by the policies including the Fwo-Invoice System” and
the state’s centralised procurement, enterprises in the whole
pharmaceutical distribution industry are constantly exploring

innovative service concepts and service modes to provide
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differentiated value-added services according to customers’
different needs. Meanwhile, many enterprises actively explore
digital transformation, strengthen the upgrade and application of
intelligent and automated logistics technology and intelligent
equipment, and continuously enhance the cross-regional supply
chain and logistics coordination ability, and constantly explore
sub-warehouse construction and multi-warehouse operation, so
as to improve the operational efficiency and competitiveness of

the whole industry chain.

Business transformation of pharmaceutical companies and
distributors driven by the changes in the pharmaceutical
market to promote the development of non-tendering
market and third-party logistics business

In the —Contil on Medical Insurance Fee” policy led
downwards, centralised medicine procurement directly reduces
drug prices and narrows the profit margin across the whole
value chain of pharmaceutical products. The operating pressure
on pharmaceutical distribution force companies to transform
their business models. Furthermore, the change in the
medication of public medical organisations has further reduced
the profit of industrial enterprises in the pharmaceutical sector.
On the other hand, the advancement of the tiered diagnosis and
treatment system has come with the accelerated expansion of the
end market to county areas, expanding the share in the retail end

market.

Under the new industry environment, enterprises in the
pharmaceutical distribution industry which focus on the
business of public hospitals will transform and upgrade their
business model as they gradually shift their roles from
—dtribution” to —déVery” and have to face the competitions of
new third-party logistics service providers. Manufacturers that
fail to win the tenders in centralised procurement will turn to the
pharmaceutical retail market and increase the investment and
promotion in the retail market, pharmaceutical distributors with

a solid retailer base will be increasingly favoured by
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pharmaceutical companies to strengthen their advantage in

market expansion.

In the field of pharmaceutical logistics, cloud computing, big
data and Internet of Things (JFoT”) technology have been
widely used as support to promote the integration of resources
of upstream and downstream links of the supply chain, and
facilitate the integration of —dgistics, information flow and
capital flow” so as to establish a diversified and collaborative
pharmaceutical supply chain system. National and regional
pharmaceutical distribution companies are increasingly focused
on transforming into pharmaceutical supply chain solution
service providers, and gradually setting up a full-chain delivery
system from pharmaceutical manufacturers to patients through
self-operated logistics service providers or cooperation with
third-party social logistics service providers. Pharmaceutical
distribution enterprises are accelerating the expansion of third-
party logistics business, and they leverage the advantages of
their logistics network to provide pharmaceutical manufacturers
with nationwide and regional third-party pharmaceutical

logistics services with synergic storage effect.

Total national health expenditures are on a rise and retail
pharmacies continue to expand their shares in the end
market

Total national health expenditures are rising year after year,
accounting for 7.1% of the GDP in 2020. There is still big

growth potential.

According to the data of MENET, in 2020, the pharmaceutical
sales in the six major markets of the three major terminals
amounted to RMB1,643.7 billion, representing a decrease of
8.5% compared to that in 2019, of which, suffering the least
from the pandemic, the retail pharmacy stores recovered faster.
The retail pharmacy stores terminal recorded a growth rate of
3.2% in sales revenue with a market share of 26.3% in 2020,
representing an increase of 2.9 percentage points as compared to
that in 2019.
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Sales rebounded along with an increasing concentration
ratio in the pharmaceutical distribution enterprises and the
scale of sales has expanded steadily

The year of 2020 saw a steady growth of the sales of China’s
pharmaceutical distribution market, of which the sales of the
medicine retail market was RMBS511.9 billion, up by 10.1%
year-on-year, with an increase of 0.2 percentage points year-on-

year in the growth rate.

From the perspective of market share, the concentration of
pharmaceutical wholesale enterprises went up. In 2020, the top
100 pharmaceutical wholesale enterprises accounted for 73.7%
of the total national pharmaceutical market in the same period,
up 0.4 percentage points year-on-year. However, from the
perspective of sales growth, large pharmaceutical wholesale
enterprises slowed down. In 2020, the main business revenue of
the top 100 pharmaceutical wholesale enterprises grew by 2.5%
year-on-year, with the growth rate dropping by 12.2 percentage

points.

Health management throughout the life cycle has been
implemented to continuously promote the construction of a
healthy China

China's 14th Five-Year Plan proposes to exhaustively advance
the —Malthy China” initiative, put the protection of people’s
health in a strategic position for prioritised development, and

provide people with a full range of whole cycle health services.

Proceeding from the whole set of overall, wide-ranging and
social influential factors on health, the whole life cycle health
management performs continuous health management and
provides relevant services at different stages of the mankind
with a focus on their life cycle for the purpose of integrated
management over those factors. Under the pandemic, the society
attaches more and more importance to health, and the health
spending awareness of the residents gradually increases, more

and more pharmaceutical companies are exploring the whole
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life cycle management model of drugs. They leverage on new
technologies such as internet-based medical care and big data to
promote a medical service system that provides all the people
with a full package of medical solutions integrating prevention,
treatment, rehabilitation and health management, which helps
promote the pharmaceutical industry’s healthy development and

the volume expansion of the end market.

Sources of the above information: data of the Southern Medical
Economic Research Institute of the National Medical Products
Administration;, MENET; National Statistical Bulletin on the
Development of Health Industry in 2020 ( (2020 42 /[5 /74
1T HFE TR G2 ) ), Annual Report on China$
Pharmaceutical Distribution Industry (2020) ( (/4% 47 )i
1r # 7% J& # 7 ) (2020)); Statistical Bulletin on the
Development of National Medical Security Undertakings in

2020( (2020 G55 R T3 FREH AT A KD ).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our principal business is pharmaceutical distribution in the
PRC, with most of our operating revenue derived from
pharmaceutical distribution. We procure pharmaceutical
products from pharmaceutical manufacturers and distributor
suppliers and sell the products to distributor customers, retail
pharmacy stores, hospitals, clinics, health centres and others.

In 2021, we followed the operation target set, and continued to
explore Guangdong market in depth and gradually expand our
operation to surrounding areas, with a focus on developing the
business with retail end-customers. As at 31 December 2021,
our distribution network covered 12,625 customers, among
which 700 were distributors, 7,981 were retail pharmacy stores
and 3,944 were hospitals, clinics, health centres and others,
representing an increase of 1,710 in the number of customers,
including the increase of 53 distributors, 978 retail pharmacy
stores, and 679 hospitals, clinics, health centres and others

compared to last year.
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In order to meet the various needs of customers and enhance
customer adhesion, we strengthened cooperation with well-
known domestic and overseas manufacturers, and expanded the
variety and scale of first-level distribution products. We also
continued to optimise our product mix by introducing
marketable, high-quality products with high profit margin to
enrich our product categories. As at 31 December 2021, we had
a total of 1,157 suppliers, of which 666 were pharmaceutical
manufacturers and 491 were distributor suppliers, representing
an increase of 15 suppliers compared to the corresponding
period of last year. As at 31 December 2021, we had distributed
13,501 types of products, representing an increase of 1,673

types of products compared to last year.

ERBE

Number of products

PE BZE 12 A 31 HiLEE
Product Category for the year ended of 31 December
2021 5 2020 £
2021 2020
7%
4,82 4
Western medicines 826 300
s ) 5,088 4,497
Chinese patent medicines
DRAEZE i
247 172
Healthcare products
HoAth
Others 3,340 2,859
At
: 1 1 11,82
Total 3,50 ,828
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Official operation of the Shenzhen subsidiary will increase
the market share in Shenzhen

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary Shenzhen Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (-<Shenzhen Charmacy”) officially
started its operation in June 2021. It has established cooperative
relations with more than 200 customers. According to the
unaudited single-month statement, Shenzhen Charmacy has

achieved monthly profit in December 2021.
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As one of the most economically developed areas in China,
Shenzhen is an important part of our deployments in the South
China market because Shenzhen people have a high level of
consumption and a strong awareness of preventive healthcare.
According to the CMH data, there were more than 8,000
pharmacies in Shenzhen in 2019, of which 88.3% were chain
pharmacies, making Shenzhen the city with the largest number
of chain pharmacies in Guangdong Province. The Shenzhen
market is characterised by fierce competition and huge potential.
The Group’s deep market base and advantageous position in
Guangdong helps Shenzhen Charmacy rapidly expand its
business and achieve profitability.

Shenzhen Charmacy has entrusted the Company’s
pharmaceutical sorting and delivery center in Guangzhou to
carry out warehousing and delivery. This arrangement not only
meets the demand for delivery of —miltiple varieties, small
batches and high frequency” and the high-efficiency delivery
services of —débering three times a day within a radius of 10
km, delivering twice a day within 50 km and delivering once a
day within 250 km”, but also greatly saves the warehousing and

logistics cost in Shenzhen, which is conducive to the Group’s

strategy for thorough market tapping.

Shenzhen Charmacy will strive to increase the market share in
Shenzhen and increase the Group’s operating revenues and
profits by further refining and penetrating Shenzhen’s market
network, and actively providing Shenzhen customers with
product mixes in line with market needs and more thoughtful

and meticulous services.

Increasingly greater advantages of the pharmaceutical
sorting and delivery centre in Guangzhou based on the
service capacity of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area

As the province with the largest GDP in China, Guangdong

Province ranks first in medical consumption and has huge
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consumption potential. Charmacy (Guangzhou) Pharmaceutical
Sorting and Delivery Centre (-Guangzhou Centre”) is located
in Nansha District, Guangzhou City, and positioned as the
central warehouse for the Pearl River Delta. With a building
area of 38,489 square metres and a storage capacity of about
300,000 pieces of products, it can fully meet the storage needs
from its own medicine category and rapid increase in quantity,
and also meet the needs from the expansion of our Group’s
third-party logistics business. At present, our Group has been
smoothly expanding its third-party logistics business, and has
reached third-party logistics entrustment and cargo
transportation service cooperation with over 70 manufacturers,
commercial distributors and chain pharmacy customers in

Guangdong Province.

Guangzhou Centre is an important part of our Group’s
marketing strategy of —Intensive Engagement in Guangdong
Province and Extensive Coverage across Surrounding Areas”.
By building a leading regional logistics centre, our Group has
greatly improved the processing efficiency, enhanced
Guangzhou Centre’s capacity, and integrated medicine storage
and transportation resources to achieve multi-warehouse
collaboration. In terms of digitalisation, our Group has been
using new technologies and new platforms, and building a smart
medicine logistics system model to significantly improve the
integrated and intelligent management of our Group’s logistics
through the use of our Group’s existing SAP system, the
cooperation with leading international software vendors and
implementers, and the introduction of advanced logistics
solutions, including AS/RS (Automated Storage and Retrieval
System), WCS (Warehouse Control System) and PTL (Pick-to-
Light System).

Guangzhou Centre not only expands the terminal delivery
network by giving full play to the advantages of our Group’s
customers, products, management and services, but also

promotes the development of our Group’s third-party logistics

-021-



2/ DERERHBERDT

% cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

BT RRES, (EEAREEE =T
I E RS, SR A ) & 7]
AE 1o o AR B R APy i 2 A
& H [ DL R B 2 R 0 SR YR
izl B E M S AL 4H, H
At DU A8 Fh 0 R 2 3 1) v R
FEREEA,

R EE

FAMZERD TANEMRBESCLF RN ] 1
iy, SRR [EREE, MAR, &
TEIGH ) MASEEE, BXRFLL T3
BRI IR | R IR, BOh
Jo8 % [ T 4 {7 S fo L T 35385
JIIRAE T o

2021 4R, RHE [T EEm
bRz, S EEETGERE
SEHETEE . R 2022 4, EHTE
PN T, AERERMIN H 8L
Lt BT BT ARG B e
TR, TREEE e R e SE T ) TH
AT e R

Pt 25 o R S LR TN K B R
5 Ay 125 2 B A B A ke 3 ) 9% e A%
JR, BE R UEAT SR AT 1Y % e
. =S SCERRAHEE
TR ] B, DL TSR
#1 L T EEREE | R S ) B 4
B, — T SR SRR T R

-022-

business and enhances our Group’s profitability by providing
more professional and convenient third-party logistics services
for upstream suppliers and downstream customers. In addition,
with our Group’s mature operation mode, marketing team, and
distribution channels that have been deeply cultivated for many
years, our Group will gradually see a high-quality development
trend with Guangzhou Centre as the leader and the other four

logistics centres progressing together.

PROSPECTS

With the mission of creating a healthy, beautiful life firmly in
mind, we will uphold the business philosophy of operating
honestly, creating benefits for the others and the general public
and achieving win-win outcomes through cooperation. We
follow the development strategy of focusing on —tensive
Engagement in Guangdong Province and Extensive Coverage
across Surrounding Areas”, and commit ourselves to becoming
the most competitive health and medical service provider in

China.

2021 is the starting year of the 14th Five-Year Plan in China. It
will also mark a turn in the changing pharmaceutical market
landscape in the PRC. Looking ahead in 2022, the potential of
China’s medical and health industry is expected to be released
rapidly with the influence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
under the background of China’s huge population base, aging
population, technological innovation, deepening medical reform

and other aspects.

The pharmaceutical distribution industry will have new
development opportunities when China accelerates the
establishment of a dual circulation development pattern in
which domestic and foreign markets reinforce each other with
the domestic market as the mainstay. The in-depth promotion of
reform of medical care, medical insurance and pharmaceutical

industry has speeded up the implementation of the —Malthy
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China” initiative. The medical reform represented by the —Wo-
Invoice System” and centralised procurement in large quantities
leads to cost increase, profit decrease, and product structure
adjustment in distribution enterprises which cover the bidding
market and bring up opportunities to the third-party logistics
service under the advantages of higher market concentration and

greater product.

Pharmaceutical wholesale enterprises have been striving to
optimise their network structures and service capabilities, and
transitioning from previous horizontal expansion to vertical
sinking so as to further optimise their delivery service networks
in cities, towns and other areas. The medical reform which
focuses on the separation of medical care and pharmacy and the
hierarchical medical system squeezes the business scale of
bidding market, but brings up opportunities for retail and

primary diagnosis market.

In the long run, China’s economy has both tenacity and growth
potential, and the trend of steady progress will not change.
Moreover, the non-tendering market will progressively raise its
share alongside the advancement of the medical reform, the
government’s increasing inputs into healthcare, the acceleration
of ageing population and the enhancement of people’s health
awareness. This will contribute to the long-term growth of our

business.

In such context, we need to secure an edge in competition,
earnestly study, deeply understand, and conscientiously
implement the Guiding Opinions, positively grasp the policy
opportunities and seek market opportunities to constantly push
our market network development and improve our services,
enhance our fine management, and achieve a high quality

growth, so as to maintain a leading position in competition.

We adhere to the market strategy of —Indnsive Engagement

in Guangdong Province and Extensive Coverage across
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Surrounding Areas”, and build a pharmaceutical retail
terminal network with full coverage on Guangdong Province
and surrounding areas. We will strengthen risk management,
improve business quality, seize the opportunities arising from
the expansion of the primary medical market, further construct
the regional pharmaceutical distribution centres and constantly
expand and develop the distribution networks in all areas by
constantly expanding and refining the distribution networks that
permeate every region, optimising the network layout, and
expanding the pharmaceutical delivery coverages of
pharmaceutical retail terminals such as retail pharmacies and
various grassroots medical and health service institutions to
fully achieve a dense coverage of sales, service, and logistics

network in Guangdong and its surrounding areas.

We will actively develop feasible promotion measures for
—Imdrnet + Healthcare”, and empower services through e-
commerce platforms. We will grasp the opportunity arising
from gradual implementation of regulations including —Internet
+ Healthcare” and the hierarchical medical system in the
expansion of primary medical market, and constantly upgrade
and develop the functions and applications of e-commerce
platform. Combining  with  multi-dimensional and
comprehensive marketing and operation, we will speed up the
product transfer in supply chain with higher efficiency and
allow more clients to benefit from our excellent services and
suitable tools. We will actively promote standardised,
streamlined, and intelligent pharmaceutical delivery service and

constantly improve our service ability to achieve operation

result efficiently with a low cost.

We will search for long-term and deep strategic cooperation
with pharmaceutical producers. We will focus on
strengthening our cooperation with major prescription drug
manufacturers to capture more growth opportunities in non-
tendering market products, diversify our product portfolios and

cement the strength of our products. Using the pharmaceutical
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retail terminal network resources and supremacy of the Group,
we will provide upstream suppliers with across-the-board brand
promotions and product landing program design and support

service guarantee.

We will continue to strengthen the capacity building for
pharmaceutical logistics modernisation and actively expand
the third-party logistics business. We will actively explore the
application of smart logistics technology, integrate
transportation resources to enhance delivery service capabilities
and promote the coordinated development of regional integrated
logistics. Leveraging on our strong logistic and warehousing
capabilities, our warehousing and sorting scale will be
expanded, and multi-warehouse collaboration by integrating
pharmaceutical warehousing and transportation resources will
be attained. We will further unleash our advantages in
customers, products, management and services and expand the
terminal delivery network, so that the pharmaceutical logistics
network arrangement is more reasonable. At the same time, we
will actively expand the third-party pharmaceutical logistics
business to enhance storage utilisation rate, increase
transportation efficiency, leverage on our own logistics network
advantages to provide upstream suppliers and downstream
customers with professional and convenient warehousing,

logistics and cargo transportation, so as to enhance the Group’s

market competitiveness and profitability.

We will actively explore the mode of cooperation with
strategic state-owned shareholders, and further optimise our
Group’s shareholder structure and governance structure.
We will introduce new business development resources and
market influence to our Group, further strengthen our Group’s
soft power and competitiveness, and promote our Group’s better

and more sustainable development.

Looking ahead, we will continue to ride on the future growth

potential of the pharmaceutical non-tendering market, accelerate
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the duplication of the mature non-tendering pharmaceutical
market operation model, strive to elevate the operation
efficiency of our pharmaceutical supply chain, optimise the
portfolio of pharmaceutical products and customer service
experience, and reduce the cost of pharmaceutical distribution,

endeavouring to become the most competitive service provider

in the medical and healthcare industry in China.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

BERA Operating revenue
B=E 12 A 31 HiLEE

IEH For the year ended 31 December
Items 2021 6 ARHTFT 2020 ¢ NRHFT

2021 RMB’000 2020 RMB’000
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Hn3ER

2
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Operating revenue

BZEZ 12 A 31 HILEE

% FER For the year ended 31 December
Customer type 2021 £ NE¥FT 2020 F NEEFT

2021 RMB’000 2020 RMB’000
ﬁzﬁﬁﬁ 1,823,835 1,906,411
Distributors
i’%%}ﬁ 1,792,830 1,935,731
Retail pharmacy stores
Bt BT, e KA

146,3 120,06

Hospitals, clinics, health centres and others 399 ;069
EBEBEA 3,763,064 3,962,210

Revenue from principal business

2021 MR, AT FE B
AKER (D FEHEES: (D) F
R, K& Gi) BRi. 2. ik
i L F A E S . R 2021 4R
WM, I 96%M1 3B EHIAK A
vas s OREIE S = i g

-026-

During 2021, our revenue from principal business was derived
from product sales to (i) distributor customers; (ii) retail
pharmacy stores; and (iii) hospitals, clinics, health centres and
others. During 2021, over 96% of our revenue from principal
business was derived from distributor customers and retail

pharmacy stores.
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The operating revenue of our Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMB3,793.62 million, representing a
decrease of 4.96% as compared to that for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was mainly because : (i) during the year
ended 31 December 2021, due to the COVID-19 pandemic in
Guangdong Province, retail pharmacies were subject to
prevention and control measures such as restrictions on
customer flow and sales, adversely affecting the customer flow
and sales of pharmacies which dragged down our revenue; and
(il) in response to the economic environment, our Group
adopted a relatively conservative marketing strategy to improve
our quality of operations, and in order to ensure receipt of
payment for our sales, we adopted appropriate control measures
for some distributors during the year ended 31 December 2021,

which resulted in the decline in our operating revenue.

Operating cost, gross profit and gross profit margin

The operating cost of our Group decreased by 5.20% from
RMB3,751.31 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB3,556.40 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,

which was consistent with the decrease in the operating revenue.

The gross profit of our Group decreased by 1.33% from
RMB240.40 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB237.22 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
gross profit margin of our Group increased from 6.02% for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to 6.25% for the year ended 31
December 2021, primarily due to our Group’s active adjustment
of product mix by replacing part of products with low gross

profit margin with those with high gross profit margin.
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Selling expenses

The selling expenses of our Group increased by 20.27% from
RMB85.92 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB103.33 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
primarily because (i) fixed assets in the construction of
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Sorting and Distribution Center
were carried forward and fully automated logistics equipment
was fully used, resulting in an increase of depreciation expense
of RMBS&.01 million; (ii) terminal business was developed,
resulting in an increase of the corresponding market
maintenance cost of RMBS5.33 million; (iii) the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiaries Huizhou Charmacy Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Huizhou Charmacy”) and Shenzhen Charmacy
explored the regional terminal markets, resulting in an increase
of the staff cost of RMB4.09 million; and (iv) the increase of
gasoline price and the increase of customers in the Pearl River
Delta terminal market in 2021 led to the increase of distribution
routes, and the preferential policy for the road and bridge toll
relief was not enjoyed during the pandemic, resulting in an

increase of the transportation cost of RMB2.09 million.

Management expenses

The management expenses of the Group increased by 6.04%
from RMB45.76 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to RMB48.52 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
which was mainly due to the increase of RMB2.41 million in
employee compensation as a result of the deployment of
personnel to enrich Huizhou Charmacy and Shenzhen Charmacy
and the loss of entitlement to the preferential policy for the

payment of social insurance during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by 30.38% from
RMB32.43 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB42.29 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,

primarily because (i) with construction project of Guangzhou
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Pharmaceutical Sorting and Delivery Center carried forward as
fixed assets, after the capitalisation of loan interest came to an
end, the subsequent loan cost was recognised in current profit
and loss, resulting in an increase by RMB6.67 million in
financial expenses; and (ii) discounting of bills receivable
increased, resulting in an increase of RMB2.85 million in

discounting interest expense.

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group decreased by 30.73%
from RMB14.49 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to RMB9.83 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, and
the current income tax expenses were recognised and the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities were adjusted

according to the accounting standards.

Net profit

The net profit of the Group decreased by 42.91% from
RMB40.56 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
RMB23.15 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. In
particular, the net profit attributable to the shareholders of parent
company decreased by 42.91% from RMB40.56 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB23.15 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and bank deposits of the
Group amounted to RMB144.23 million, while the cash and
bank deposits amounted to RMBI113.77 million as at 31
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded net current assets of RMB79.30 million and

RMB&89.32 million, respectively. As at 31 December 2021, the
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current ratio (based on the calculation of current assets divided

by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.04 (2020: 1.04).

The bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021
were RMB786.69 million (short-term borrowings: RMB668.04
million, long-term borrowings: RMB118.65 million, including
long-term borrowings due within one year: RMB31.78 million).
All the bank borrowings bear fixed interest rates. The carrying
amount of the bank borrowings is presented in RMB, and is
approximate to the fair value. The Group did not use any
financial instruments for hedging purposes or did not have any
existing borrowings and/or other hedging instruments for

hedging net foreign currency investments.

Bill receivables, trade receivables and receivables financing

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bill receivables, trade
receivables and receivables financing amounted to RMB731.26
million, representing a decrease of RMB32.73 million,
decreased by 4.28% year-on-year, compared to those as at 31
December 2020. The decline was in line with the decline in

operating income.

Bills payables and trade payables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bills payables and trade
payables amounted to RMBI1,342.63 million, representing a
decrease of RMB165.81 million compared to those as at 31
December 2020, primarily due to the decrease in drug purchases
in 2021, the accounts payable and notes payable were decreased

accordingly.

Treasury policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management strategy in
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executing its treasury policy. Thus, a sound liquidity position
was able to be maintained throughout the period under review.
The Group continues to assess its customers’ credit and financial
positions so as to minimise credit risks. In order to control
liquidity risks, the Directors would closely monitor the liquidity
position of the Group to ensure that its assets, liabilities and
other flow structure committed by the Group would satisfy the

funding needs from time to time.

Foreign currency exchange risk

The transactions of the Group are denominated in RMB, and
most of the assets and all liabilities of the Group are
denominated in RMB. The foreign exchange risk that the Group
has to bear is extremely low. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group did not use any financial instruments for

hedging the foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had no bank

borrowings which bear interest at floating rate. (2020: Nil)

Capital management
Set out below are the Group’s gearing ratios as at 31 December

2021 and 31 December 2020, respectively:

2021412 A 31 H

20204612 H 31 H

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

BEAARR

Gearing ratio

56.03% 53.25%

af: B B L AR S R A5 55 AR
BRASEE A . A 795 1 AR S5 S AR K U
P M BEHEY; WERERET
TP A ERLARURE 2 AR

Note: Gearing ratio is equal to net liabilities divided by
aggregate capital as at the end of the period. Net liabilities
represent total borrowings deducted by cash and cash
equivalents; and aggregate capital is the sum of net liabilities

and total equity.
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Capital commitment
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s capital commitment

amounted to nil. (31 December 2020: Nil).

Employees’ information

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 837
employees (including executive Directors), representing a
decrease of 66 employees compared with the number of
employees as at 31 December 2020, mainly due to the use of
automated warehouse in the Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Sorting
and Delivery Centre, which improved the staff efficiency. The
total staff cost (including emoluments of directors and
supervisors) was RMB74.99 million, as compared to RMB68.49
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing an
increase of 9.49%. The emoluments were determined with
reference to market practice and the performance, qualification

and experience of individual employees.

The employees are entitled to bonus based on the results of the
Group and individual performance other than basic salaries.
Other staff benefits include other related insurances set up for
the employees employed by the Group in accordance with the
rules and regulations under Labor Law, Employment Contract
Law, Social Insurance Law of the PRC and the current

regulatory requirements of the PRC.

The salaries and benefits of the employees of the Group are kept
at a competitive level. The employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the

Group’s salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.

The Group focuses on the career development of its employees.
We provide the employees with internal training and the
opportunity of external training on a regular basis, to support
and encourage them to continuously study and to improve their

own integrated qualities and business capability.
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Significant investments held, acquisitions and disposals held

Apart from investments in subsidiaries, the Group has no
significant investment held, acquisition or disposal in the equity
interests of any other company for the year ended 31 December

2021.

Future plans related to material investments and capital
assets

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 2
December 2015, the Group had no other future plans related to

the material investments and capital assets.

Material acquisitions and disposals related to subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had no
material acquisitions and disposals related to subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group was granted a credit limit
of RMBI1,489.80 million by various banks, while the Group’s
utilised banking facilities totaled RMB1,139.21 million, which
were secured by (i) property, plant and equipment held by the
Group with a carrying amount of RMB272.48 million as at 31
December 2021; (ii) land use rights held by the Group with a
carrying amount of RMB131.15 million as at 31 December
2021; and (iii) the Group’s inventories with a carrying amount

of RMB350.00 million as at 31 December 2021.

Assets subject to restrictions on ownership or use
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s restricted monetary funds
amounted to RMB485.94 million, which served as deposit for

bank acceptance bills and borrowings; the Group’s restricted
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bills receivable amounted to RMB14.95 million, which were
restricted for being pledged to banks and for bill discounting;
the Group also pledged certain other assets totalling
RMB753.63 million as guarantee for the Group’s borrowings
(please refer to the pledge of assets on page 33 for details).
Assets subject to restrictions on ownership or use totaled

RMBI,254.52 million.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2020: Nil).
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=, BELEY  BIOGRAPHIES OF

EHANBER DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EHABH DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

IR E B B R The table below sets out the information of the Directors and the

supervisors of the Company (the Supervisors”):

"4 ZEHH e
Name Date of appointment Age

PITEF

Executive Directors

W AIHE

2000/3/6 52
Yao Chuanglong

B e

Zheng Yuyan 2015/5/25 47

P

(Note)

2015/5/25 52
Lin Zhixiong

FEHPITES

Non-executive Director

L

Li Weisheng 2017/6/10 57

BILFPITES
Independent Non-executive
Directors

FEE

Wan Chi Wai Anthony 2015/12/1 46

i

Zhou Tao 2015/12/1 38

py
s 2015/12/1 52
Guan Jian

BE

Supervisors

TR¥E

Zhang Ling 2015/5/25 49

LSS

2015/5/2 42
Zheng Xiyue 015/5/25

MG

Lin Zhijie 2017/9/5 38
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CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yao Chuanglong (Zk£I#E), aged 52, is our Chairman,
executive Director and Chief Executive Officer. He is
responsible for the overall management of the Group, strategic
planning and decision, formulation of annual business operation

plan of the Group.

Mr. Yao obtained a certificate in postgraduate class on civil
commercial law from China University of Political Science and
Law ("P 7% K£:) in March 2004. Mr. Yao completed a class
on selected on-job executive master of business administration
course (7EH T/ % #IEH 1+ (EMBA) ¥ 1% i1 fE W12 9F)
conducted by the Sino-Foreign Management Research Institute
of Sun Yat-sen University (71 Ll RERHAME BB 5T H140) in the
PRC in March 2004 and a course on -Advance Programme for
Development of Leadership in Pharmaceutical Industry” (&%
P SE SR 9% g = AUAHMEHE ) in Zhejiang University (WL K
£4) in the PRC in October 2007. Mr. Yao completed a course on
—Avanced Programme on Business Management for
Executives” (75 & T 7 & P 44 # #f 12 ¥E) in Tsinghua
University (7 ## K%%) in the PRC in July 2008 and a course on
—dlaote Strategic Positing for Executives” (4755 FFEE IS & {7 48
# PE) in Peking University (b 5T K#£:) in the PRC in
September 2013. In November 2015, Mr. Yao completed a
course on Internet Plus and Innovative E-commerce for
Executives (L. Hi48+82 5 7 W 5 £ 484 L) in Overseas
Education College of Shanghai Jiao Tong University ({52l
RELEFAINE 5LBr).

Mr. Yao joined the Group in March 2000 as a general manager
of the Company, overseeing the daily operation and formulation
of the strategic development of the Company. Mr. Yao has been
acting as the chairman of the Company since May 2015. He
currently serves as the executive Director and general manager
of Guangdong Charmary, Zhuhai Charmacy, Shenzhen

Charmacy and Huizhou Charmacy.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zheng Yuyan (3 %), aged 47, is our executive
Director,vice president, and Chief Marketing Officer.

In December 2008, Ms. Zheng obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree in the Postgraduate School of Renmin
University of China ("B A K2 FC4EFE) in the PRC. Ms
Zheng completed the —Taining Programme for Executives
Master of Business Administration Courses” (EMBA #RFEALH:
WHZHE) organised by Lingnan School of Sun Yat-sen University
(1L K 58 B 24 [5¢) in the PRC in August 2013.

She joined the Group in September 2003 and had served various
positions in the Group including procurement officer,
procurement director and sales director. Ms. Zheng was
promoted in August 2015 as the vice president of the Group.
She has been appointed as our Director since 25 May 2015. Ms.
Zheng is mainly responsible for the marketing and products
management of the Group, the arrangement and maintenance of
the sales network of the Group as well as planning and guidance
on the management of operating commodities of the Group. She
currently serves as the executive Director and general manager

of Guangzhou Charmacy.

Mr. Lin Zhixiong®™"® (#k L), aged 52, was our executive
Director, company secretary and Chief Financial Officer. He
was responsible for the financial management of the Group, He
joined the Group in March 2010 as the financial director of the
Group.

Mr. Lin graduated from Hunan Institute of Finance and
Economics (5 B§ A48 F) in the PRC with a bachelor degree
in economics studies, majoring in finance planning and statistics
in July 1992. He also completed a course of —dlaote Strategic
Positing for Executives” (45557 BIHE & 7488 H) organised
by Peking University (1t 51 K%%) in the PRC in November 2013
and obtained a postgraduate diploma on —Grporate Finance and

Investment Management” from the University of Hong Kong
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School of Professional and Continuing Education in May 2015.
And he obtained a postgraduate diploma in —tegrated and
Practicing Management” from the University of Hong Kong
School of Professional and Continuing Education in September
2017. Mr. Lin was an accountant accredited by the Ministry of
Finance in the PRC in May 1997.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lin worked in Shantou
International Trust Investment Limited (FIIFABIFREFEIREA
7)), a company engaging in financing and investment activities,
as an accounting and financial manager from July 1992 to
December 2001, responsible for financial management and
accounting, tax planning and financing. During January 2002 to
March 2010, he worked in Guangdong Deming Investment
Group Limited (% H{EH & 4L /A F]) (currently known as
Shantou Deming Packaging Group Limited (1l T]7 75 0H £, %
BFEEFEHGIRAT)), a company engaging in the production
and sales of tobacco, and held the position of financial director
and was responsible for the financial management and
financing and investment

accounting, tax planning,

management.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Weisheng (Z*f%/£), aged 57, has been our non-

executive Director since June 2017.

Mr. Li is a pharmacist-in-charge. In 1989, Mr. Li graduated from
Guangdong Pharmaceutical University (formerly known as
Guangdong Pharmaceutical Institute) with a bachelor’s degree

in medicine, majoring in preventive healthcare.

Mr. Li worked in Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Trading Co., Ltd.
(3 M B2 1 A IR A 7)) from July 1989 to November
2011, and was the deputy general manager of Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Baiyunshan Hong Kong Company Limited from
November 2011 to December 2015. He has been the general
manager and a director of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical

Baiyunshan Hong Kong Company Limited since December
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2015. He has also been a supervisor of Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Qi Xing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (M A= L7 EZEEH R
/v ® ) since July 2015, the chairman of Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Baiyunshan Macau Company Limited (/& &% [
1A PR /A F]) since January 2018, a director of
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Guang Hua Pharmacy Co., Ltd. ( &M
H =l #E R gE I A fR A 7)) since February 2018, a
supervisor of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical (Zhuhai Hengqin)
TCM Industry Co., Ltd. (FEZEBE (BRiF#EE) B giE E
R 72 &) since July 2019,and a supervisor of Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical (Zhuhai Hengqin) Industrial Park Co., Ltd. (&
8 (PRigREE) BgE 3[R R A A]) since September 2019.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony (7% %), aged 46, was appointed

as our independent non-executive Director on 1 December 2015.

Mr. Wan graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in November 1997 with a bachelor degree in
business administration (accounting). Mr. Wan graduated from
the University of London with a bachelor degree in laws in
August 2003 through distance learning. He further obtained the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in June 2004 from the
University of Hong Kong.Mr. Wan was admitted as a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
January 2002 and a Fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in May 2006. Mr. Wan was also admitted
as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in September
2006.

Prior to joining the legal field, Mr. Wan worked in the financial,
accounting and audit industry, including as a senior associate in
PricewaterhouseCoopers, an accounting and audit firm, during
August 1997 and May 2001; an accounting manager in Wellink
Services Limited, a company engaging in investment business,

during October 2001 and January 2002; and an assistant
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manager in finance in MLC (Hong Kong) Limited, an insurance
company, during April 2002 and September 2003. Since 2004,
Mr. Wan has worked in various local and international law
firms, specializing in the practice of corporate finance
transactions including Hong Kong listings and mergers and
acquisitions. From October 2006 to July 2007 and January 2008
to November 2008, Mr. Wan was a corporate finance lawyer in
Herbert Smith Freehills. He was an assistant solicitor in Reed
Smith Richards Butler from March 2010 to November 2010 and
an associate in Morrison & Foerster from December 2010 to
May 2012. Mr. Wan joined Clifford Chance in May 2012 as a
senior associate and left as a counsel in April 2015. From May
2015 to May 2016, he worked as the partner and head of the
Hong Kong corporate and securities practice of Vivien Teu &
Co in association with Llinks Law Offices (i JJ4Afi 75 ), a
law firm in Hong Kong. In May 2016, Mr. Wan joined King &
Wood Mallesons, as a partner for its corporate and securities
practice. He has been an independent non-executive director of
HM International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8416) since 15
December 2016 and an independent non-executive director of
FDB Holdings Limited (stock code: 1826) since 12 January
2018.

Mr. Zhou Tao (il i%), aged 38, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 1 December 2015.

Mr. Zhou graduated from Peking University (465 K%£%) in the
PRC with a bachelor’s degree in law in July 2005. He is a
qualified practising lawyer in the PRC.

Since July 2005, Mr. Zhou has been working as a lawyer in
Beijing Grandway Law Offices (It BIMEATSE#5FT), a law
firm in the PRC and is currently a partner of Grandway Law
Offices.



MeeE (XBHEEHELT) , 52 &%,
A 2015 4F 12 H 1 HERE AR
P AT E

BSEAER 1991 4E 7 HEZEAFEA
PRt JOCEE B R AR R B, A D
HEAL, A 1997 A 11 HEEEETEH
HH R [ B T B e, EAS T A R
BT,

BICAERA 2014 4 8 AR L
T K A G E B BAT R
. BJAER 2008 4 5 AIET—59%
JE (RFEFHEHBARD) HEF
E, ABRTS BN, HEREEY
HH, JA 2009 4F 7 H % 2010 4 8 H M
AT LI i R T A IR A A
(PEFETG S, SHEEE I ZEH )
AFD MEAEE, AEEREHR, B
2011 4£ 7 H & 2021 5 7 AEEEE
B CRig) SEEHCA R AR 5 S
ITE, BREAEH. BAEYEE
Hh B RS R AT PR A IV 8R 7
B O R RELFE R DY )1 FRRK S A B e
HAERAFEH. A 2015 6 H 2
H i EAT B A A RHEA R A
AT E F A, ARMESS
EHL Y 2019 4 5 HiERETHHLE
HRH A A PR A m] AL HE S . A
2021 4F 1 HiEMIEAE B E EGES
SEFEHRB L CHRAE) M
HEBAN.

2021 FERE

ANNUAL REPORT

Mr. Guan Jian ([##2) (also known as Guan Suzhe (B #£%)),
aged 52, was appointed as our independent non-executive

Director on 1 December 2015.

Mr. Guan graduated from Chinese People’s Liberation Army
University of International Relationships (7] A [ fif i = [
B {R 5T ) with a bachelor degree in English in July 1991 and
from China Europe International Business School (7K B F% 1.
Fi % Bt) in the PRC with a master degree in business

administration in November 1997.

In August 2014, Mr. Guan was appointed as a guest professor by
Shanghai Jiao Tong University Continuing Education School
(B AC K24 AE 20F 24Pt in the PRC. Mr. Guan worked
as a sales director in Yihaodian (—%§)5), a company engaging
in business administration, responsible for marketing, sales and
operational management in May 2008. During the period from
July 2009 to August 2010, he was the vice president of Shanghai
Haolijia Electronics Commerce Limited (347 B 5 & 1 7 7%
HBR/AF]), a company engaging in the business of marketing,
sales and training, responsible for the business management.
During the period from July 2011 to July 2021, he worked as the
chief executive officer of Mankedao (Shanghai) Information
Technology Limited (12 % & (Lig)#&EEHE AR A ),
overseeing the general management. Mr. Guan has been the
consultant of China Telecom Corporation Limited Jiangsu
electronics channel operations centre (H1 5 & {5 3 H PR A F
LR/ TIREZE P L) and the supervisor of Sichuan
Womijia Network Technology Limited* (P )I| 32k K 44& Bl
HIRAF]). Since 2 June 2015, he has been the executive
director and president of Shanghai New Focus Education
Technology Limited ( b ¥ %7 B B B & #H £ H R A #]),
responsible for integrated corporate management. He has been
an independent director of Hubei Forbon Technology Co., Ltd.
(WAL E FRHE R B R A ) since May 2019.Since January
2021, he has been the deacon partner of Shanghai Baidu
Longchang Enterprise Management and Service Center (limited
partnership) ( B # G AEFH KRB0 (ARE
%) ).
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. Zhang Ling (58¥), aged 49, was appointed as the
chairlady of the Board of Supervisors on 25 May 2015.

Ms. Zhang graduated from Beijing Wuzi University (1L 4%
£2:[5¢) in the PRC with a bachelor degree in international trade in
July 1994. She obtained a master degree in industrial economics
from Shantou University (I1EHK%%) in the PRC in June 2005
and a doctorate degree in accounting from Xiamen University
(E K2 in the PRC in December 2009. She obtained the
certificate of Chartered Global Management Accountant
(CGMA) and certificate of member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (ACMA) in December 2017.

From March 2000 to September 2002, Ms. Zhang was the
assistant to general manager in the Company, responsible for
overseeing financial and administrative matters. From January
2010 to April 2019, she was an associate professor in Shantou
University Business School (JIIFHKE:RFE:FE) in the PRC.
Since December 2016, she has been an independent director of
C.K.J Professional Dental Hospital Group Limited* (ZR3I| T &
R BHE B L A FR A 7). Since March 2017, she has been
the chief financial officer and Vice General Manager of Jiangsu
Kunyee Environmental Engineering Technology Co., Ltd. (YL #f
R BR 5 H KT B A FR /A7), responsible for the financial

management of the company.

Mr. Lin Zhijie (PRE ), aged 38, was appointed as our

shareholder’s representative Supervisor on 5 September 2017.

Mr. Lin graduated from the Science and Technology College of
Jiangxi University of Traditional Chinese Medicine* (VL. &
2 B 2 Bt) in the PRC in July 2007, majoring in
pharmaceutics formulation, and obtained a postgraduate
diploma in —@anization and Human Resources Management”
from the School of Professional and Continuing Education of

the University of Hong Kong in May 2019.
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Mr. Lin joined our Group in January 2007. He is currently our
chief logistics officer and is responsible for the logistics
planning and operation of the Group, including the matters such
as logistics budget and cost control, at the same time, Mr. Lin is

also in charge of the Group’s operation support center.

Ms. Zheng Xiyue (¥7#33H), aged 42, was appointed as our

employee representative Supervisor on 25 May 2015.

Ms. Zheng graduated from China Central Radio and TV
University (1 9ERHEEHKE) in the PRC with a bachelor
degree in accounting in July 2009. She has also completed a
course on —ZEKecutive Master of Business Administration
(EMBA) Programme for Executives” in Market Economy
Academy of Peking University (db 50 K2R &I 5022 E5%)
in the PRC in April 2010. In February 2017, she obtained a
graduate diploma in —tegrated Marketing Communications”
(A28 H%) from the Hong Kong University School of

Professional and Continuing Education.

Ms. Zheng joined the Group in July 2001 and held positions
including accounting officer and manager of settlement
department. She is currently the Deputy Chief Marketing
Officer and is responsible for providing assistance to our Chief
Marketing Officer in the operation of our sales centre. She also
acts as the supervisor of Guangdong Charmacy, Zhuhai
Charmacy, Guangzhou Charmacy, Shenzhen Charmacy and

Huizhou Charmacy.

SENIOR MANAGEMENTS

Mr. Yao Chuanglong (Zk£/#E), aged 52, is our Chief Executive
Officer. Biographical details of Mr. Yao are set out in the

paragraph headed —Eecutive Directors” in this section.
Ms. Zheng Yuyan (E{EE), aged 47, is our Chief Marketing

Officer.Biographical details of Ms. Zheng are set out in the

paragraph headed —Eecutive Directors” in this section.
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Mr. Lin Zhixiong™*® (#kE ), aged 52, was our Chief
Financial Officer. Biographical details of Mr. Lin are set out in

the paragraph headed —Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Liu Yingyu (2|#t %), aged 42, was appointed as our
Quality Director on 7 March 2019, and is responsible for the

medicine quality management of the Company.

Ms. Liu graduated from Xinyang Health School of Henan
Province (77 R348 15 P A2 22 8%) in July 2000, majoring in
nursing. She graduated from Shantou University in January
2015 with a major in pharmacy. She graduated from Guangzhou
University of Chinese Medicine in January 2018, majoring in
traditional Chinese medicine. She was awarded the Chinese
Pharmacist Junior Certificate in May 2009, the Pharmacy
Intermediate Certificate in March 2012, and the Licensed

Pharmacist Qualification Certificate in January 2014.

Ms. Liu was the manager of Guangdong Province Kangzhixuan
Chain Co., Ltd. (FEZ #iEFA /A F]) from October 2000 to
March 2004. She served as the quality controller of Shantou
City Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. From April 2004 to
July 2014. From August 2014 to April 2015, she worked as a
quality control manager in Shantou City Xiangyue
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (JlISH T FH#E 8% 3G R A 7). From
April 2015 to March 2019, she worked as a Quality Control

Manager at our Company, responsible for quality control.

Note: With effect from 8 April 2022, Mr. Lin Zhixiong resigned
as the executive director, the company secretary and the chief

financial officer of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important roles of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations. In accordance with the principles set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the -€G Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the —Eisting Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the —Stock Exchange”), the Board sets appropriate
policies and implements corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Company’s
business. The Company had been complying with the code
provisions (the <€ode Provisions”) set out in the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2021, save for the deviation as

stated below:

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 (which has been re-
numbered as Code Provision C.2.1 in the new CG Code (as
defined below)), the responsibilities between the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Yao Chuanglong, our
chief executive officer, is also the chairman of our Board as he
has considerable experience in the pharmaceutical distribution
industry. Our Board believes that vesting the roles of both the
chairman of our Board and the chief executive officer in the
same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within our Group and enables more effective and efficient
overall strategic planning of our Group. The Company considers
that the balance of power and authority under the present
arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will enable
the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and

effectively. The Company will continue to review and consider
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splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account

the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

On 1 January 2022, the amendments to the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
(the New CG Code”) came into effect and the requirements
under the New CG Code will apply to corporate governance
reports for financial year commencing on or after 1 January
2022. The Company will continue to review its corporate
governance practices in order to enhance its corporate
governance standard, to comply with the increasingly tightened
regulatory requirements and to meet the rising expectations of

the shareholders and investors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND

SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct in dealings with securities transaction for the Directors
and Supervisors of the Company. Having made specific
enquiries with all Directors and Supervisors of the Company,
the Company confirmed that all Directors and Supervisors have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Composition

As at 31 December 2021, the Board consisted of seven
Directors, of which three were executive Directors, one was
non-executive Director and three were independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board was as

follows:
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wE R Wi Elii’iﬁ aH/ H%Eé%ﬁ {23

. o Duration of service contract/
Directors Age Position .

letter of appointment
‘ N = TR
ik e 2 2 ERS BUTHEARATEARE 001 45 1y 31 {5 2004 485 30 H
52 Chairman, executive Director and Chief
Mr. Yao Chuanglong Exccutive Officer 31 May 2021 to 30 May 2024
BATE SR RIS A
MEARL L 47 Ex:/jlfi\% irecﬁicj)r \?ce%prefiﬁdent and 2021 %5 7331 HE 2024 % 5 73 30 H
Ms. Zheng Yuyan Chief Marketing Officer 31 May 2021 to 30 May 2024
. (TR, AR A

MEMERAE 55 Eiﬁfﬁ%gi%;ﬁgﬁamw 2021 4E5 H31 H&E 202445 H30 H
Mr. Lin Zhixiong and Chicf Financial Officer 31 May 2021 to 8 April 2022
A 57 FERTES 2021 4F 5 H 31 H#E 2024 45 30 H
Mr. Li Weisheng Non-executive Director 31 May 2021 to 30 May 2024
TR 46 W AFRIT R 2021 455 431 H% 2024 455 A 30 H
Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony Independent non-executive Director 31 May 2021 to 30 May 2024
iR 18 WARITE S 2021 £ 5 H 31 H#E 2024 45 5 30 H
Mr. Zhou Tao Independent non-executive Director 31 May 2021 to 30 May 2024
[BF e 52 W AFRAT R 2021 455 431 H% 2024 455 A 30 H
Mr. Guan Jian Independent non-executive Director 31 May 2021 to 30 May 2024
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BEASA, RQGYBISLARPITE ST
BRSNS KRR
SEEREGHEFNMEIAS =4 BT
HHE, FPITEF R AEMATE S
PRI E 2021 45 5 H 31 HABRIAR
FIEERGHE HlAER, 28—
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The Company elected directors at the annual general meeting of
the third session of the Board held on 31 May 2021, which
include (1) Mr. Yao Chuanglong, Ms. Zheng Yuyan and Mr. Lin
Zhixiong as executive Directors; (2) Mr. Li Weisheng as non-
executive Director; and (3) Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony, Mr.
Zhou Tao and Mr. Guan Jian as independent non- executive
Directors. The Directors of the third session of the Board serve
for a term of three years. The term of office of the executive
Directors, non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors takes effect from the date of approval at the
annual general meeting held on 31 May 2021 until the date of

election of the new session of the Board.

Details for each of the Directors’ profile are set out in the
section —Biogphies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior

Management”.

Save as the relationship disclosed in the section -Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” and the
working relationship in the Company, there is no relationship
among the Directors, Supervisors and senior management
regarding the financial, business, family or other material

aspects.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings shall be convened at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Other Board meetings
shall be convened when necessary for the discussion of the
overall strategy and financial performance of the Company’s
operation. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the

Company convened four Board meetings. Their details are as

follows:
Name Position umber of Meetings Attende
Eligible for Attendance
X A . +*} 4= Mo, ‘%% £ .

Wil G e BRI »
M. Yao Chuanglong airman, executlye rector an 1€

) Executive Officer

Iy Bl 4 3 3 4 G 4 S

8 e ﬂFjL’fT%%x | 4 %Zﬁ:.ﬁél hiith i
Ms. Zheng Yuyan Executive Director, vice president and

’ Chief Marketing Officer

) 4T L ANE RN SR B R AL L

MRS ﬂFjL’fT%% . oy F R AR I S A B i
Mr. Lin Zhixiong Executive Director, company secretary

) and Chief Financial Officer
Pl g S 4
Mr. Li Weisheng Non-executive Director
P T AT R w4
Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony Independent non-executive Director
i 1 T AT R w4
Mr. Zhou Tao Independent non-executive Director
s BT w4
Mr. Guan Jian Independent non-executive Director
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The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
which is more than one-third of the number of Directors in the
Board. Among them, Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony has the

appropriate professional qualification.

Appropriate notification will be sent to each Director in advance
prior to the regular Board meetings and other Board meeting.
Meeting agendas and other relevant information are provided to
the Directors prior to the Board meetings. All Directors would
be inquired for the agenda for Board meetings and other

additional matters.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that the Board

procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The comments made by the Directors at the meetings and both

draft and final versions of the minutes will be sent to all

H, HHFGHRLCHED

1.

R A&

ARZE 2021 4 12 H 31 HikEE, K&

b

of the meetings.

GENERAL MEETING

Directors. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the secretary

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company held

AEFEER 1 RIEFE RS, BB one general meeting. The detail is as follows:

R

H# MBS L

Date Location Meeting
WEETTHEMIE & (L k% 235 5= Mg =

2021 5 H31H 3" Floor, No. 235 Song Shan North Road, Longhu 2020 FEE B FHIEE KRG

31 May 2021 District, Shantou City, Guangdong Province, the 2020 Annual General Meeting

People’s Republic of China

A HE AR P i RO s DL

The attendance of each Director at the general meeting during

T the year is as follows:
i 4z WAL ﬁ%@&/@%&%
Name Position Meetings Attended/
Number of meetings held
. 3 . X4 4= :: /—‘LF ‘%% 5 N,

Bl e ol TR »
Mr. Yao Chuanglong airman, executive Director an ie

' Executive Officer

x4 4= E] 2@‘ \<\ 3 ’1}%'””%%%

EBE?&E‘&:& #}‘L{T%%\ BﬁJquﬁ%mﬁﬁ ] 1/1
Ms. Zheng Yuyan Executive Director, vice president and Chief

‘ Marketing Officer

= WATHEF AnE N A
* AR KE%/_:E E . D d 1 /1
Mr. Lin Zhixiong xecutive 1.rectqr, company secretary an

' Chief Financial Officer
PR EFATEF n
Mr. Li Weisheng Non-executive Director
PR WAL i
Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony Independent non-executive Director
Ji et P L AFRAT 0
Mr. Zhou Tao Independent non-executive Director
Mg MLAE AT H 0

Mr. Guan Jian

Independent non-executive Director
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND

MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for monitoring and
managing the Company’s affairs, including the adoption of
long-term strategies, appointment of and supervision on senior
management, to ensure that the operations of the Group are
conducted in accordance with its own objectives. The Board is
also responsible for determining the Company’s corporate
governance policies which include: (i) the preparation of and
review on the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices; (ii) the review and regulation on the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) the review and regulation on the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; (iv) the review and monitoring of the
Company’s policies and practices regarding the compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and (v) the review on the
Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. The
Board has performed its duties in respect of the corporate

governance function mentioned above during 2021.

While the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees
which have been established by the Board to deal with different
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in
their respective written terms of reference as approved by the
Board, these Board committees are governed by the Company’s
articles of association (the —Articles of Association) as well as
the Board’s policies and practices (in so far as the same are not
in conflict with the provisions contained in the Articles of
Association). With the composition of members of the risk
management committee, nomination committee, remuneration
committee, strategic development committee and the audit

committee, the independent non-executive Directors are able to
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effectively devote their time to perform the duties required by

each of the Board committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the daily operation to the management of the
Company under the leadership of the executive Directors. Clear
guidance has been made as to the matters that should be
reserved to the Board for its decision which include matters on,
inter alia, capital, finance and financial reporting, internal
controls, communication with Shareholders, Board membership,

delegation of authority and corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. The Financial Statements set out on
pages 106 to 122 were prepared on the basis set out in note IV
to the Financial Statements. Financial results of the Group are
announced in a timely manner in accordance with statutory and/
or regulatory requirements. The declaration of reporting
responsibility issued by the external auditor of the Company on
the Company’s Financial Statements is set out in the Auditor’s

Report on page 98.

The Company has no non-compliance with Rules 3.10(1), (2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set

out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL

DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

All Directors have been given relevant guidance materials and
participated related training regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of
interests and business of the Group. Such guidance materials
and relevant overview are provided immediately to the Directors
who are newly appointed. Continuing briefings and professional

development for the Directors are arranged whenever necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all Directors have
provided record of training attendance. The Company
continues to arrange or provide training in accordance with
Code Provision A.6.5 (which has been re-numbered as Code

Provision C.1.4 in the New CG Code).

In the year 2021, continuing professional development

participated by the Directors is summarized as follows:

HE

Directors

FRARER. BERRELIAMMAMEREEENEI

Training in relation to corporate governance, regulatory
developments and other relevant professional topics

PITEF

Executive Directors

BhANEE (FEHD
Yao Chuanglong (Chairman)

B 4
Zheng Yuyan

M
Lin Zhixiong

FEBTES

Non-executive Director

e
Li Weisheng

BVABITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

T
Wan Chi Wai Anthony
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND

DISMISSAL

All non-executive Directors, including independent non-
executive Directors have entered into letters of appointment or
agreements with the Company for a specific term of three years,

subject to re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Directors are
elected at the general meeting with a term of three years from
the effective date of being elected. Directors may offer
themselves for re-election if their terms expire. The chairman is
elected and removed by the majority votes from all Directors,
with a term of three years and may offer himself/herself for re-
election. The removal of any Directors with an unexpired term
is allowed at the general meeting by way of ordinary
resolutions, provided that it is complied with the requirements

of related laws and administrative regulations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The current term of Mr. Li Weisheng, the Company’s incumbent
non-executive Director started on 31 May 2021 and will expire

upon the expiration of the current session of the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

The current term of Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony, Mr. Zhou Tao

and Mr. Guan Jian, the Company’s incumbent independent non-
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executive Directors started on 31 May 2021 and will expire

upon the expiration of the current session of the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
—Nomination Committee”) on 26 November 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision A.5.2
(which has been re-numbered as Code Provision B.3.1 in the
New CG Code). Its terms of reference are available on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on regular
basis; identify individuals qualified to become Board members;
assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and make recommendations to the Board on matters
relating to the appointment or re-election of Directors. As at 31
December 2021, the Nomination Committee comprised three
members, two of them are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zhou Tao (chairman of the Nomination Committee)
and Mr. Guan Jian and one of them is executive Director,

namely Mr. Yao Chuanglong.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee convened a meeting on 26 March 2021 to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and review the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and
nominate candidates for the third board of directors of the
company. All the members of the Nomination Committee,
including Mr. Yao Chuanglong, Mr. Zhou Tao and Mr. Guan

Jian, attended the above meeting.

The Company has adopted the director nomination policy for
the appointment of the members of the Board. Taking into
account of the board diversity policy, the appointment of the

members of the Board will be based on a number of objective
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criteria to consider the candidates suitably qualified to become
board members. The selection criteria used to evaluate
candidates include:

» personal character and integrity;

seducation background and qualifications (including the
professional qualifications, skills and knowledge related to the
Company’s business and corporate strategies);

« willingness and ability to devote sufficient time to perform the
duties of the Directors;

* contribution of different aspects of diversity to the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age, race, cultural and
education background, professional experiences, skills,
knowledge, and terms of services;

* requirements for independent non-executive Directors of the
Board under the Listing Rules; and

* any other conditions determined by the Board from time to

time.

For the purpose of nomination procedure, any Board member
can nominate or invite candidates to hold directorship for the
consideration of the Nomination Committee. When identifying
suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination Committee
will carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, education background, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, and also the Company’s needs and other
relevant laws and statutory requirements and regulations
required for the positions. All candidates must be able to meet
the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director should also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. For the re-
appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee
will review the overall contribution and performance of the
candidates during their terms of services (including the
frequency of attendance at various meetings, the level of

participation and performance of duties). Qualified candidates
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will then be recommended to the Board and the Shareholders’
meeting for approval. The Nomination Committee will review
the director nomination policy in due course to ensure its

effectiveness.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
—Remuneration Committee”) on 26 November 2015 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision
B.1.2 (which has been re-numbered as Code Provision E.1.2 in
the New CG Code). Its terms of reference are available on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors, Supervisors and
senior management of the Group and ensure none of the
Directors determine their own remuneration. The remuneration
of executive Directors are determined based on the skills,
knowledge, individual performance and contributions, the scope
of responsibility and duties of such Directors, taking into
consideration of the Company’s results performance and
prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors is
to ensure that the non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors are adequately compensated for their efforts
and time dedicated to the Company’s affairs including their
participation in respective Board committees. The remuneration
of non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors are determined with reference to their skills,
experience, knowledge, duties and market trends. As at 31
December 2021, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
three members, including two independent non-executive
Directors Mr. Zhou Tao (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony, and the then

executive Director Mr. Lin Zhixiong. Ms. Zheng Yuyan, an
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executive director of the Company, has been appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. Lin

Zhixiong with effect from 8 April 2022.

According to the Code Provision B.1.5 (which has been re-
numbered as Code Provision E.1.5 in the New CG Code), the
remuneration paid to the senior management by the Group based
on the remuneration benchmark for the year ended 31 December

2021 is as follows:

Hi AR

Remuneration benchmark

AB

Number of individuals

AR 50,001 o2 AR 250,000 G
RMB50,001 to RMB250,000

NE# 500,001 & (5 AR 500,001
Above and including RMB500,001
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Details of remuneration of Directors and Supervisors are set out

in note X.(IV).1 to the Financial Statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting on 26 March 2021 to review the
overall remuneration policy for the Directors, Supervisors and
senior management, determine such policies and propose them
to the Board. The meeting was attended by all the members of
the Remuneration Committee, including Mr. Zhou Tao, Mr. Wan

Chi Wai Anthony and Mr. Lin Zhixiong.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the management on the
remuneration of all Directors, Supervisors and senior
management and make recommendation to the Directors. The
Board will have final authority to approve the remuneration

recommendations made by the Remuneration Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the -Audit
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Committee”) on 26 November 2015 with written terms of
reference in compliance with Code Provisions C.3.3 and C.3.7
(which have been re-numbered as Code Provisions D.3.3 and
D.3.7 in the New CG Code). Its terms of reference are available

on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and has held
regular meetings since its establishment to review and make
recommendations to improve the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. Other than that, the primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting and overseas internal
control of the Company. As at 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee consisted of three members who are all independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony
(chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Zhou Tao and Mr. Guan

Jian.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
held two meetings on 26 March 2021 and 21 August 2021. On
both occasions, the Audit Committee reviewed, amongst others,
the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2021,
and believed that the preparation of such results was in
compliance with applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules, in addition to reviewing the changing of the accounting
policies adopted for preparing the Company’s financial
statements and the re-appointment of auditors. The above two
meetings were attended by all the members of the Audit
Committee, including Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony, Mr. Zhou Tao

and Mr. Guan Jian.

The Audit Committee was aware about the Group’s existing

system for risk management and internal control and noted that
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the system would be subject to annual review.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has not taken
a different view from the Audit Committee on the selection,

appointment, designation or dismissal of external auditor.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the management of the Company the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee also discussed and reviewed the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2021 of the Company with the

external auditor of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established a risk management committee (the
—Risk Management Committee”) on 26 November 2015 with
written terms of reference. Its terms of reference are available

on the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
annually review the general goals and fundamental policies of
our risk and compliance management, internal control and risk
management and internal audit functions and made
recommendations to our Board on the same. As at 31 December
2021, the Risk Management Committee comprised three
members, namely Mr. Yao Chuanglong, our Chairman and
executive Director, Mr. Lin Zhixiong, our then executive
Director and Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony, our independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Yao Chuanglong is the chairman of the
Risk Management Committee. Ms. Zheng Yuyan, an executive
director of the Company, has been appointed as a member of the
Risk Management Committee in place of Mr. Lin Zhixiong with

effect from 8 April 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Risk Management
Committee held one meeting on 26 March 2021 where the Risk
Management Committee reviewed the strategy, policy and
guideline of the Company’s risk management, the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
and the adequacy of resources, and considered the risk
management and internal control systems effective and
adequate. The meeting was attended by all the members of the
Risk Management Committee, including Mr. Yao Chuanglong,

Mr. Lin Zhixiong and Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony.

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established a strategic development committee
(the —Strategic Development Committee”) 10 June 2017, and

determined its terms of reference in writing.

The Strategic Development Committee is mainly responsible for
studying the overall development strategies for the Company,
major investment and financing plans, and other material issues
that influence the development of the Company, and making
recommendations to the Board. As at 31 December 2021, the
Strategic Development Committee consisted of three members,
namely Mr. Yao Chuanglong as the Chairman and executive
Director, Ms. Zheng Yuyan as an executive Director, and Mr.
Zhou Tao as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Yao
Chuanglong serves as the Chairman of the Strategic

Development Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Strategic
Development Committee held one meeting on 26 March 2021,
on which the study was carried out on the development
strategies and future development plans of the Company. All the
members of the Strategic Development Committee, including
Mr. Yao Chuanglong, Ms. Zheng Yuyan and Mr. Zhou Tao,

attended the meeting.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the following board diversity policy:

With a view of achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity of the
Board as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All the
appointments made by the Board will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be adequately considered against objective
criteria, together with the benefit to the Board made by the
board diversity policy. Selection of Board members will be
based on a range of board diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on the specific demand for
talents in various stages of the business development and
strategic planning of the Company, and also the merits and
contribution to be made by the selected candidates. The
composition of the Board (including gender, age and length of
service) will be disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report

annually.

Set out below is the Board diversity achieved by the Company
as at 31 December 2021:

e 5
Executive Directors
St} BTN |
Position Non-executive Director
BSLAR TR ,
Independent non-executive Directors
54k )
PR Male
Gender 4k |
Female
30-39 1
il 40-49 2
Age
50-59 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board reviewed the
implementation of the board diversity policy and confirmed its
effectiveness. The Board has complied with the requirement of
gender diversity of the Board as set out in Rule 13.92 of the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged ShineWing Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the external
auditor of the Company. The fees in respect of audit services
provided by ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership) for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to RMBO0.85 million (tax exclusive). No other non-

audit service was provided in addition to the above.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to
prepare accounts of the Group and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and the Company’s
management will provide information and explanation to the
Board to enable it to make informed assessments of the finance

and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt

upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the —Aditors’

Report” contained in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Lin Zhixiong™",
being our company secretary, was primarily responsible for the
company secretarial work of the Group. With effect from 8 April
2022, Ms. Yao Jiexi and Ms. Wong Wai Ling have been
appointed as the joint company secretaries of the Company in

place of Mr. Lin Zhixiong
Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, for the year ended 31

December 2021, Mr. Lin had attended no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training.
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SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the system of
internal control and risk management; the Audit Committee
assists the Board in performing its duty of monitoring and
corporate governance, which covers the finance, operation,
compliance, risk management and internal control of the
Company, as well as performing the function of internal audit.
Assisted by the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee, the Board is responsible for effectively maintaining
the system of internal control and risk management, to
safeguard the Group’s assets and the shareholders’ interests. The
system aims to manage (not eliminate) the risks that may cause
the failure to fulfill business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable (not absolute) assurance against major mistakes,

losses or fraud.

Composed of a robust organisational structure and
comprehensive policies and procedures, the system of internal
control and risk management of the Company covers all its
operating departments, with clear specification of the duties of
all business and functional departments, to ensure effective
checks and balances. The structure of risk management and

internal control of the Company includes the following parts:

The Board

As the ultimate decision-maker on internal control and
management, the Board is responsible for assessing and
determining the nature and extent of the Company’s risks, to
help it deliver its business strategies and achieve its business
objectives. The Board is also responsible for establishing,
improving, and effectively implementing the Company’s system
of internal control and risk management, as well as supervising
the management in its design, implementation and monitoring of

the system.
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The Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee
The Board authorises its Risk Management Committee to
review and approve the risk management policies and guidance
of the Company, make decisions on risk level and preference as
well as relevant resource allocation, and review the
effectiveness and resources of the Group’s internal control

system at least annually.

The Board authorises the Audit Committee to review the
Company’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems at least annually, discuss with the
management on the internal control system, ensure that the
management has performed its duty to establish an effective
internal control system (taking into account, amongst others, the
sufficiency of the Company’s resources, staff qualifications and
experience in auditing and finance, and the sufficiency of staff
training courses and relevant budgets), and review the Group’s

financial and accounting policies and practice.

The Board of Supervisors

As the supervisory body for internal control and management,
the Board of Supervisors is responsible for supervising the
Board and the management in establishing and implementing

internal control.

The Management

The management is responsible for leading the development and
daily operation of the Company’s internal control, as well as its
coordination and management, identifying, assessing and
managing the risks that potentially affects important operational
procedures, timely responding to and following the matters on
risk management and internal control raised by the internal
auditor, and confirming to the Board and the Audit Committee
as to whether the system of risk management and internal

control is effective.

The Company has also established a corresponding mechanism
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for risk management, which provides the framework and scope
of risk management, business objectives, risk assessment

process, and the process of regular assessment and monitoring.

The risk assessment of the Company is mainly composed by
five fundamental processes, namely risk management concepts
and risk acceptance level establishment, goals formulation, risk
identification, risk analysis and risk response. The Company
conducts risk assessment on regular basis and classifies risks
based on different Company’s goals, including strategic
environmental risk, procedural risk (business operation risk,
financial risk, authorization risk, information and technology
risk, and comprehensive risk) and strategic decision information
risk. The Company identifies risks and selects suitable risk
response plan in accordance with the results of risk analysis, and
in consideration of the cause of the risks, through analysing all
kinds of risk. It also identifies and controls the potential risk
acceptance abilities and limits of the Company in a timely
manner during the risk assessment process, assesses the risks
that the Company may expose to, and takes specific
countermeasures so as to enhance the Company’s risk-resisting
ability. By a comparison of risk assessment results, the
Company ranks the priority of its risks and determines its risk
management strategies and internal control procedures, to curb,

prevent or reduce risks.

The Board has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control and risk management for the
year ended 31 December 2021, discovered no material defect in
internal control, and considered the existing system to be
effective and adequate. The Company also had adequate
resources, staff qualifications, training courses and budgets in its

accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has established a policy regarding the disclosure of
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inside information, which sets out the procedures and internal
control measures of the handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner in compliance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The policy and its

effectiveness would be reviewed on a regular basis.

The procedures for handling and publishing inside information
and the internal control measures are as follows:

The Company’s information disclosure is led and managed by
the Board. The chairman of the Board is the first person who
responsible for the implementation of the information disclosure
management system of the Company. The secretary to the
Company is responsible for coordinating and organizing the
specific matters of the Company’s information disclosure under
the leadership of the Board of the Company. The general office
of the Board is the competent authority for daily management of
information disclosure. All functional departments, branches
and subsidiaries of the Company will designate special contact
person for significant information, and report relevant
information disclosure materials to the general office of the

Board.

The Company’s information disclosure documents primarily
include periodic reports, interim reports, and various types of
documents disclosed in accordance with the requirements of
relevant regulatory authorities. The announced information shall
be disclosed in the media designated by the relevant regulatory
authorities. The Company may also disclose information in
other media as required, but it shall ensure that the disclosures
are consistent and the time of disclosure by the designated
media is not later than the non-designated media. Save for the
principle regulation of information disclosure, employees of the
Company shall not receive any interviews related to the

Company without authorisation.

The Board shall take necessary measures to keep the

information insiders within the minimum scope before
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information disclosure. Before the inside information is
disclosed in accordance with laws, any information insider shall
not disclose or divulge the information, use the information for
insider trading, or manipulate the trading prices of the securities
and its derivatives with others. When an employee leaves the
Company, he or she shall hand over the relevant inside
information of the Company and must not disclose the above

information.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders

Two or more Shareholders who jointly hold 10% or more of the
shares carrying rights to vote at the proposed meeting may
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
or class shareholders’ meeting by signing a written requirement
or several copies with the same format and content, and to
illustrate the subject of the meetings. If the Board agrees to
convene an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting, it
shall issue a notice of meeting within 5 days upon making the
Board decision. The Board shall convene an extraordinary
general meeting or class shareholders’ meeting as soon as
possible upon receiving the foresaid written requirement. If the
Board fails to issue a notice of convening such meeting within
30 days from the date of receipt of the aforesaid written
requisition, the Shareholders who raise the requisition may
themselves may convene the meeting within four months from
the date of receipt of the requisition by the Board. The
procedures of convening the meeting shall be similar as those of

convening a general meeting by the Board as far as possible.

Putting forward proposals at the general meeting

The Shareholders solely or aggregately holding more than 3% of
Shares of the Company may make an interim draft resolution to
the convener in writing 10 days before the convening of the

Shareholders’ general meeting. The convener shall, within 2
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days after receipt of the draft resolution, issue a supplementary
notice of Shareholders’ general meeting and announce the

content of such interim draft resolution.

Making enquiry to the Board

Shareholders who request related information or ask for
information shall provide the Company with the written
documents proving their types of Shares and the number of
Shares being held. The Company would provide related
information in accordance with the request of Shareholders after
verifying the identity of Shareholders and receiving reasonable

fees.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned

above to the following:

Address:Joint Company Secretary, Yao Jiexi, No. 235 Song
Shan North Road, Longhu District, Shantou City, Guangdong
Province, PRC (For the attention of Joint Company Secretary)
Fax: 86-0754-82752026

Email: Yaojiexi@charmacy.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address
and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be

disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at 86-0754-88109272 for

any assistance.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Company approved the amendment to the articles of
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association at the annual general meeting for 2020 held on 31
May 2021, amending the business scope so as to the meet the
needs of business development. Apart from the above, there was
no other significant change in the articles of association of the

Company in 2021.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND

COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all Shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company has established the shareholders’ communication
policy and is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its Shareholders and

public investors.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications  including annual reports and  public
announcements. Information about the Company’s business for
the year ended 31 December 2021 has been provided in this
annual report. While the annual general meeting provides a
valuable forum for direct communication between the Board
and the Shareholders, the Company also maintains its website
(http://www.chmyy.com) to  provide an  alternative
communication channel for the public and its Shareholders. All
corporate communication and Company’s latest updates are

available on the Company’s website.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board reviewed the
implementation of the shareholders’ communication policy and

considered the shareholders’ communication policy effective.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of the Company are pleased to present 2021 annual
report together with the Financial Statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS AND BUSINESS

REVIEW

The principal business of the Company is pharmaceutical
products distribution in the PRC. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note VIII of the
Financial Statements. Business review during the Reporting
Period and discussion on the future business development of the
Group are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages of 18 to 26 of this annual report; Performance analysis
of the Group within the year based on key financial performance
indicators are set out in the Management Discussion and

Analysis on pages 26 to 34 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2021 and its financial positions as at 31 December 2021 are set

out in the Financial Statements on pages 106 to 122.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMBO0.2 per share

(tax inclusive)).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or
shares. The distribution of dividends is proposed by the Board in

-071-
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its discretion after the approval of the Shareholders. The policy
on the declaration or payment of any dividends in the future and
the amount of dividends are depended on a number of factors,
including the Company’s operating results, cash flows, financial
positions, operating and capital expenditure requirements,
distributable profits determined in accordance with PRC GAAP,
the Company’s articles of association, the Company Law of the
PRC and any other relevant laws and regulations of the PRC,
and other factors that the Directors of the Company considered

to be relevant.

The profits of the Company after paying relevant taxes are
distributed in the following order: (1) covering the losses; (2)
withdrawing the statutory surplus reserve; (3) withdrawing the
discretionary surplus reserve; and (4) paying the ordinary shares

dividends.

The Company shall withdraw 10% of profit after tax as statutory
surplus reserve. If the accumulated amount of statutory surplus
reserve has reached 50% of the registered capital, it can no
longer be withdrawn. The discretionary surplus reserve is
additionally withdrawn from the Company’s profits after the
withdrawal of statutory surplus reserve in accordance with the

resolution at the general meeting.

The Company shall not distribute dividends or carry out other
distributions in the form of dividends until it has covered the
losses and withdrawn statutory reserve. The Company’s
dividends are not subject to any interest, unless it does not
distribute the relevant dividends to the Shareholders on its

dividend payable date.

RESERVES

The details of changes in reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated

statement of change in equity in this annual report. As of 31
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December, 2021, the distributable reserve of the Company
amounted to about RMB 117.11 million.

LAST FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years ended 31 December 2017 to 31
December 2021 is set out on page 8. This summary does not

form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in share capital of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note VI. 28 to the

Financial Statements.

UNALLOCATED PROFITS AT THE END OF

THE YEAR

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s unallocated profits
amounted to RMB96.03 million. Details of the movements in
the unallocated profits of the Group in 2021 are set out in Note
VI. 31 to the Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(1) Suppliers and the quality of products provided

As a pharmaceutical distributor, the Group has limited or no
control over the operation and quality of products of the
suppliers. The suppliers may not always be able to provide
products which satisfy the quality standard of the Group and

with no defects.
As such, in the case that there are no damage in packaging and

relevant documentation including inspection report are properly

attached, the Group would not be able to know whether there

-073-
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are any problem in the internal quality of the products and hence
could be subject to administrative punishment for selling
interior drugs if the suppliers of the Group fail to supply goods

that meet the quality standard.

Complemented by information system, the Company has
established a stringent verification system for suppliers and
product quality and internal control system for drug quality in
accordance with GSP so as to ensure that the internal control
system could be effectively implemented. Meanwhile, the
Company has entered into an Agreement on Quality Assurance
of Pharmaceutical Products with suppliers, pursuant to which it
was agreed that suppliers shall be responsible for the quality of
products provided by it during the term of the agreement and all

loss arising thereby shall be borne by suppliers.

(2) Low gross profit margin and net profit margin

As a pharmaceutical distributor, the Group has low profit
margins. Any increase in procurement cost or decrease in selling
price would therefore significantly affect our profits. In addition,
we earn purchase discounts directly or indirectly from our
manufacturer suppliers and such purchase discounts are
significant to our gross profit. If there is a decrease in the
amount of purchase discounts received which result in a
decrease in gross profit margin and net profit margin, the results

of operation of the Group may be adversely affected.

The Company increased its gross profit margin continuously
through the following ways: 1) actively expand the terminal
network of retail pharmacy stores, clinics and health centers; 2)
continue to optimize the product structure; strengthen the
cooperation with well-known domestic as well as international
manufacturers; expand the wvariety and scale of primary
distribution products; and obtain higher commercial discounts
from suppliers; 3) in order to strengthen our product portfolio,
continue to introduce quality products which are easy to sell and

has high gross profit margin, including Chinese medical drink



(3) BURMIEA TR A

BRI AT SE R B B AT 36,
RBCRE BB HRBE . w5
. SN ERUMBI R ERR
Ry U5 R EE B RS AT B B AR A
AT SRR TS, SR il e A1 78
flii 7 AL EEE i A AN B E
H0 PSR BEE S BASE T T BOR
AERL . 18 LE BRI ) B R 5
SO TAT SRS TT I SRR A A T 4
Fi R, ARGES . RNESEME
B R AR NN R E TR
59 AR P IR S . BEE
BEEDCEANETIR N, A B B AN
AR RE 2 4k . A =] H Al AL
B S ERAS R AAT R BOR NS4,
FUJAS 24 W) A R AR g0 3 RS Ok 25 A S

fir.

A FRE AN B AEAT SEBCRANE LA
SRENIERE T, AR E A
AVE R, I B 28 AT 3¢ T e S
(IR, 355 A0 BR 5 A 2 W) ) SRS A
#, RETHIGTORFABEHEL, &
T B F] FF A R 5

2021 FERE

ANNUAL REPORT

and pill, healthcare products and medical device; and 4) take the
initiative to wipe off products with low gross profit margin and

inventory turnover.

(3) Risk of adjustments to policies and regulations

The pharmaceutical distribution industry is a strictly regulated
industry and is greatly affected by policies. In order to promote
the healthy development of the industry, the State Council of the
PRC, the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC, the National
Development and Reform Commission, the State Food and
Drug Administration, local food and drug administrations and
other administrative authorities have successively formulated
and promulgated various policies and regulations including
Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products, Two-
Invoice System and separation of pharmacy and medicine. The
implementation of these policies and regulations has profoundly
affected the development direction of the industry and the future
competitive landscape of the market. Enterprises that do not
standardize operations, and do not attach importance to product
quality management and have small service networks and weak
service capabilities, will be gradually eliminated or
consolidated. As the pharmaceutical reform continues to deepen,
the relevant policies and regulations will change accordingly. If
the current business strategy of the Company cannot keep up
with the future changes in industry policies, the Company will

lose its advantageous position in future competition.

The Company will continue to strictly regulate its own
operations and management in the process of continuous
adjustments of industry policies and regulations, and while
adapting itself to the development trend of the pharmaceutical
distribution industry, it will continue to adhere to its strategic
planning, and adjust business focus according to market demand

in order to achieve sustainable development.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the core staff of the Group is the key to
the future development of the Group. The Group is able to
maintain its market competitiveness with their knowledge in the
industry and the understanding of the market as well as their
sincere services. The Group puts great emphasis on individual
ability enhancement and career development of staff and

provides corresponding training courses for the staff.

The Group maintains a close and stable relationship with
existing and potential customers and suppliers. As a bridge
between the pharmaceutical manufacturers and the customers,
the Group is familiar with the market trend and the diversified
demand of customers, which would extend the sales network
coverage for the pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises in a
more cost effective way. Enriched product portfolio can be
provided for satisfying different demand of customers and

ensuring a stable supply in a timely manner.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were 19.92% of the Group’s operating revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2021, and sales to the largest
customer accounted for 5.66% of the Group’s total turnover
during the year thereof. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers were 24.11% of the Group’s
total procurement cost for the year ended 31 December 2021,
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for 11.22% of
the Group’s total procurement cost during the year thereof. The
Group does not rely on any individual customers or suppliers to

have a significant impact on the Group.

The largest supplier of the Group is a subsidiary of Guangzhou
Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited. To the
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knowledge of the Directors, Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Baiyunshan Hong Kong Company Limited, the wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings
Company Limited, owned more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report. Save
for the above, to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of
the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders who own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
beneficial interests in any of the Group’s five largest customers

or suppliers during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in Note VIII to the Financial

Statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of changes in fixed assets of the Group during the year

of 2021 are set out in Note V1.9 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021
are set out in Note VI.16 and 25 to the Financial Statements. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, land use right and inventories with total carrying
amount of approximately RMB753.63 million have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (2020:
approximately RMB770.45 million).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group, with its long-term focus on protecting the
environment, is committed to making contribution to

environmental protection. Apart from its strict compliance with
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the PRC laws and regulations on environmental protection, the
Group tries to minimize its environmental impact during
business operations and remind its staff of following such
minimization practice. Furthermore, the Group has adopted the
diesel vehicles that comply with the National IV emission
standard in pharmaceutical logistics and the control of
electricity and water consumption during operation; the Group
also has other measures in place, such as reducing paper

consumption, to mitigate the environmental impact.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS

As the Company incorporated and operates its business in
mainland China, the operation and management are strictly
regulated by relevant laws and regulations in the mainland.
Meanwhile, as the Company is listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, it is subject to the relevant
regulations. Due to the certain differences in relevant laws and
regulations between two places, the Company could be bound in
various areas such as corporate governance, information
disclosure, dividend policy, merger and acquisition, and related
transactions. The Board is concerned about the policies and
practices to comply with the requirements of laws and
regulations in relation to the Group. The Group has engaged,
legal advisors to PRC and Hong Kong laws to ensure the
transactions and business of the Group are conducted subject to
the applicable laws. The Group has included the related laws
and regulations into the internal management system in order to
supervise the staff to comply on an ongoing basis. The Group
has strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations for the

year ended 31 December 2021.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year

are as follows:

Executive Directors
Yao Chuanglong (Chairman)
Zheng Yuyan
Lin Zhixiong™*
Non-executive Director

Li Weisheng

Independent non-executive Directors
Wan Chi Wai Anthony
Zhou Tao

Guan Jian

Note: With effect from 8 April 2022, Mr. Lin Zhixiong resigned
as the executive director, the company secretary and the chief

financial officer of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from the 31
May 2021 and subject to termination by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 31 May 2021
for a term of three years from 31 May 2021 and subject to
termination by not less than three months’ notice in writing

served by either party on the other.

Mr. Li Weisheng, a non-executive Director, has entered into a

letter of appointment with the Company on 31 May 2021 for a
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term of three years from 31 May 2021 subject to termination by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either

party on the other.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of

them are considered to be independent.

The Supervisors of the Company who held office during the

year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Supervisors

Zhang Ling (Chairlady)
Zheng Xiyue

Lin Zhijie

The Board of Supervisors of the Company held third meetings
during 2021. Details of the meetings and events conducted by
the Board of Supervisors during 2021 are set out in the Board of
Supervisors’ report of this annual report. The employee
representative supervisor of third session of the Board of
Supervisors was re-elected at the representative congress held

on 31 May 2021.

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract on 31
May 2021 with the Company for a term of three years from 31
May 2021 and may be re-elected.

No Supervisor has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS,

SUPERVISORS AND EMPLOYEES

Details of the emoluments of Directors and Supervisors and the
five highest paid individuals of the Company are set out in Note

X.(IV).1 and 2 to the Financial Statements.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and approved by the
Board, as authorized by Shareholders in the annual general
meeting of the Company, having regard to their time
commitment and responsibilities in the Group, the salaries paid
by comparable companies, employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group and performance-based remuneration. No Directors

are involved in deciding their own remuneration.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the
performance of individual employee and on the basis of the
salary trends in PRC, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject to
its profitability, the Group may also distribute discretionary
bonus to its employees as an incentive for their contribution to

the Group. The Group has no long-term incentive plan.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,

ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no material transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company
or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or Supervisor (or its connected entities)
directly or indirectly had a material interest subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.

-081-



2/ NEREBRHRERDD

@ cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

BHEEK

PREHRP G5, B 2021 4, A
ZARE 3 e e R IR [ NN R P PNE |
T L A 3 ) R A ) E R
73 AT B AT 54

=HH. RELARAEHE
& 2

A, B R S A P R
AARFERE IS E 44 H [EH, B
MEERNEBEIRE] — s,

PEBBOR 2 A5 F K

7 ST DR o A B [ G 52 AT AT T AE 35
Fo PRAIRE Sod O BA L R FT AL AN
FRYE, WEAIHEST A T HIEH [ A%
PrRA A w ] A&EE, B T H I A
ZERAT H AR RS e 113 e (i)
W o 7E LB BT $E R A A A DT
30% O FEAT et M s BRGDPEATHE
SN AR BATES, PhAlRE
ARy i A EEBLE PN

() A& EAE R H . 2B oy
AN [ BT SE M5 B A S [ AR ]
REVE 2 AL fr] S5 17 Bl 3 B R] RE 5
FHUEMTSEF, BT & AR THER
BICHE 2t B ) L B (AT o] IR B DA LA
Ji ST B 567

-082-

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or
body corporate to manage the whole or any substantial part of

any business of the Company during 2021.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section headed
—Biogiphies of  Directors, Supervisors and  Senior

Management” on pages 35 to 44 of this annual report.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION BY

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

To better safeguard the Group from any potential competition,
Mr. Yao Chuanglong has entered into the deed of non-
competition with the Company whereby Mr. Yao Chuanglong
irrevocably and unconditionally, undertakes with the Company
that with effect from the Listing Date and for as long as our H
Shares remain listed on the Stock Exchange and (i) Mr. Yao is,
directly or indirectly, interested in not less than 30% of our
Shares in issue; or (ii)) Mr. Yao Chuanglong remains as our
executive Director, Mr. Yao Chuanglong shall, and shall procure

that his associates shall:

(a) not directly or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right
or interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved
in any business in competition with or likely to be in
competition with the existing business activities of the Group or
any business activities which the Group may undertake in the

future;
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(b) not take any direct or indirect action which constitutes an
interference with or a disruption to the business activities of the
Group including, but not limited to, solicitation of customers,

suppliers and staff of the Group;

(c) keep our Board informed of any matter of potential conflicts
of interests between Mr. Yao Chuanglong (including his
associates) and the Group, in particular, a transaction between
Mr. Yao Chuanglong (including his associates) and the Group;

and

(d) provide as soon as practicable upon the Company’s request a
written confirmation in respect of compliance by it with the
terms of the deed of non-competition and their respective
consent to the inclusion of such confirmation in the Company’s
annual report and all such information as may be reasonably

requested by the Company for its review.

In addition, Mr. Yao Chuanglong hereby irrevocably and
unconditionally, undertakes that if any new business opportunity
relating to any products and/or services of the Group (the
—Business Opportunity”) is made available to him or his
associates (other than members of the Group), he will direct or
procure the relevant associate to direct such Business
Opportunity to the Group with such required information to
enable the Group to evaluate the merits of the Business

Opportunity.

Mr. Yao Chuanglong shall provide or procure his associates to
provide all such reasonable assistance to enable the Group to
secure the Business Opportunity. If he (or his associates) plans
to participate or engage in any new activities or new business
which may, directly or indirectly, compete with the existing
business activities of the Group, he shall give the Company a
first right of refusal to participate or engage in the Business
Opportunity and will not participate or engage in these activities

unless with the prior written consent of the Company. None of

-083-



2y BIEREBRHESEIE
#w-cHmer CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.
(RLEFE KRB AFBRIN) BA e 5iE
PR, BRSNS B IR] 7 35 i AL R o ik
R AN T AT R IR Y ZHAS IR
M M 7 AR AT B 8 AN AR [ Ry
HIER MG YR . R 75 1 %5
BYR K CAnahEL) BLSRBREEAE pE 3E
AT T R AR AE . WhAIREL
AR — DN ] S S S A A AR
A (1) 1) AR B3R AL AT A e 7 B2 b
Frdl &GS BT & B — V& Bl K Gi) &
SR Ay T Rl RR I R S CIB ST RZ S K
B o

T AEAS R LU H A (DU R
e ANEHHRAEFR:
() A5 A ) 5 R E Ik A e e A B Bl
LN e ¢7 2o
(b)BRAIRE S K, B HE A AT RF
SEAT IR (B R I HERRAR (ANGm B %
BRI BN O BT IR B H 1)
30%, H. ok A1 56 AR A FE 2 FRAM 3
ITHES; 5
()H A PR AE i 11T

28 RO oR gk B E e A L IRl AR 4 F] T RR
AEE 2021 4F 12 A 31 HIE4EEH
18 AN T S K

RAFBLAFPITEFCOFE ARG
UG, A ORI FHE BB )
WERR, JRMRERRELYE, FER AR A
F P BCR ST AN B R g, Hik
AN F BRI O AR 2w AR Ak

-084-

Mr. Yao Chuanglong and his associates (other than members of
the Group) will pursue the Business Opportunity unless the
Group decides not to pursue the Business Opportunity because
of commercial reasons. Any decision of the Company will have
to be approved by our independent non-executive Directors
taking into consideration the prevailing business and financial
resources of the Group, the financial resources required for the
Business Opportunity and, where necessary, any expert opinion
on the commercial viability of the Business Opportunity. Mr.
Yao Chuanglong further irrevocably and unconditionally
undertakes that he will (i) provide to the Group all information
necessary for the enforcement of the undertakings contained in
the deed of non-competition; and (ii) confirm to the Company
on an annual basis as to whether he complies with such

undertakings.

The deed of non-competition will cease to have any effect on
the earliest of the date on which:

(a) the Company becomes wholly-owned by Mr. Yao
Chuanglong and/or his associates;

(b) the aggregate beneficial shareholding (whether direct or
indirect) of Mr. Yao Chuanglong and/or his associates in the
Shares in issue falls below 30% of the number of Shares in issue
and Mr. Yao Chuanglong shall cease to be our executive
Director; or

(c) the H Shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yao Chuanglong, the controlling shareholder, has confirmed
to the Company of his compliance with the deed of non-
competition provided to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company had
reviewed the status of compliance and received confirmation by
the controlling shareholders of the Company and, on the basis of
such confirmation, are of the view that the controlling

shareholder of the Company has complied with the deed of non-
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competition and such deed of non-competition has been

enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We had not conducted any transactions which constitute non-
exempt continuing connected transactions within the meaning of

the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Details of related party transactions entered into in the ordinary
course of business of the Group during the Reporting Period are
set out in note X.(Il) to the Financial Statements. Save as
disclosed above, no related party transactions set out in note
X.(Il) to the Financial Statements constitute discloseable
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, there is no compliance

issue with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES, AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company, its members
of the Group and/or any of its associated corporations (as
defined in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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The letter £ denotes a person’s long position (as defined under

Part XV of the SFO) in the Shares.

Notes:
(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 80,000,000
domestic shares in issue of the Company as at 31 December
2021.
(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 108,000,000

Shares in issue of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

(3) Mr. Yao Chuanglong, the Chairman and executive Director
of the Company is the spouse of Ms. You Zeyan, and is deemed

to be interested in these Shares under the SFO.

(4) These Shares are held by Shantou Meizhi Investment
Management Limited Partnership (JUZH17 76 51 & & PE 54
EE(HRAF) (“Meizhi Investment”). As Mr. Lin Zhixiong
is the general partner of Meizhi Investment, he is deemed to be
interested in the Shares of the Company held by Meizhi

Investment under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company has
any other interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company, its members of the Group
or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of
the SFO) which have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which he/she is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
are required to be entered in the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which are required

pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS

TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed —iterests or Short
Positions of the Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executives in
the Shares, Underlying Shares, and Debentures”, at no time
during the year 2021, the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and Supervisors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, or any Directors, Supervisors or their
spouses or children under 18 years of age was granted any right
to subscribe for Shares or debentures of the Company or any

other body corporate or exercised any such right.
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS

OF THE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, the

following persons/entities (other than any Directors, Supervisors

or chief executives of the Company) had or deemed to have an

interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of

the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under

the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or

which had entered in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

R HE 2 BCIR
A A B S B AR AR Ak CBAT B A AR R
) ¢ o £ o)
WRHEREI | ey HEAIF S b HEAREREET 3
MR, Nature and Approximate Approximate
. Number and class of . .
Name of shareholder capacity of N shareholding percentage shareholding
. securities .
interest in the relevant class of percentage of the total
Shares issued share capital®
54 44,250,000 JIZ
R e
Interest of o : 55.31% 40.97%
L s e 3) 44,250,000 Domestic
MRt spouse Shares (L)
Ms. You Zeyan
14.750,000 %
2% P24 liy
%:ﬁnféﬁﬁ)\ N (L) . 18.44% 13.66%
Beneficial owner 14.750,000Domestic
Shares (L)
5,400,000 JIZ
SRt TaiEA A WNE (L) 0
. 5.009
Ms. Wu Binhua Beneficial owner 5,400,000 6.75% &
Domestic Shares(L)
5,400,000 fI&
51| == B = 2% o 7R
B Eﬁ‘j: gﬂﬂ.%ﬁ)\ W& ML) 6.75% 5.00%
Ms. Liu Jigui Beneficial owner 5,400,000
Domestic Shares(L)
BEEAZRLEFEBEARA
) 7,906,500 i
Guangzhou. Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ)\ H EIXL(L)“) 28.04% 7320
Pharmaceutical Beneficial owner 7,906,500 H
Baiyunshan Hong Kong Shares (L)@
Company Limited
M E | B dEA 5
PO SURREIE | g | 7906500
WA RAF : 1 @)
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Interest in H (L) 28.24% 7.32%
P}lllarrﬁ;cel?tical}lr{uoldings controlled 7,906,500 H ‘
i 4)
Company Limited corporation Shares (L)
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HASHRABAY | ms o mmm) WA E 5y IR REIR E 43
IR AR, B Nature and Number and class of Approximate Approximate
Name of shareholder capacity of .. shareholding percentage shareholding
. securities .
interest in the relevant class of percentage of the total
Shares issued share capital®
JE M B EEAE P AT BR A 7] A% i PR A 7,906,500 fit
Guangzhou Interest in H &% (@L)@
28.249 329
Pharmaceutical Holdings controlled 7,906,500 H 8.24% 7:32%
Limited corporation Shares (L)
e s 5,534,000 i
. g el [
RAYS Capital Partners H M (@L)®
. Investment 19.76% 5.12%
Limited nvesmen 5,534,000 H ’ ’
& Shares (L)®
SR 5,534,000 i
: 719 (5)
RUAN David Ching Chi Interests in H (@) 19.76% 5.12%
controlled 5,534,000 H
corporation Shares (L)
. . . 5,130,000 Ji%
Asian Equity Special 2% 1 T A(5)
Opportunities Portfolio B A\ H (L) 18.32% 475%
Master Fund Limited Beneficial owner 5,130,000 H
Shares (L)
3,488,000 iz
Tk HaHEA A H f&(L)
12.469 239
Mr. Wang Yonghui Beneficial owner 3,488,000 H 6% 3.23%
Shares (L)
L fts
%ﬁgm@ﬁg@ﬁ@ 2,302,000 Jf
A a7 2% (6)
Kingworld Medicines Bﬁﬁﬁfk H (L) 8.22% 2.13%
Health Management enehcial owner 2,302,000 16{
Limited Shares (L)
N _ SRR 2,302,000 A%
SEEEEMARAT | o T BOO
Kingworld Medicines 8.22% 2.13%
Group Limited controlled 2,302,000 H
corporation Shares (L)

(L] RERZH N LR B A e A
(€ & FL ol 7% W B i ) 5 XV

EIDRE

g

(1) Zal Z IR A 7 2021
12 A 31 HE#EITINERHBEH
80,000,000 R £ FE{T H RAHEH
28,000,000 FZ 772 H

(2) Zal F IR A 7 2021
12 A 31 H & #FTRGAHEH
108,000,000 7 72 »

(3) UFIEHE L AR 2\ a] I
178 FLBIFE LA T, RIEES

The letter —L refers to a person’s long position (as defined

under Part XV of the SFO) in the Shares.

Notes:

(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 80,000,000

domestic shares in issue and the total number of 28,000,000 H

shares in issue of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 108,000,000

Shares in issue of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

(3) Ms. You Zeyan is the spouse of Mr. Yao Chuanglong, the

Chairman and executive Director of the Company, and is
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deemed to be interested in these Shares under the SFO.

(4) These shares are held by Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Baiyunshan Hong Kong Company Limited. As Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Baiyunshan Hong Kong Company Limited is a
wholly-owned  subsidiary  of  Guangzhou  Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited, which in turn is
held by Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited as to
45.23%. Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings
Company Limited and Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited are deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Baiyunshan
Hong Kong Company Limited.

(5) These shares are  held by Asian Equity Special
Opportunities  Portfolio Master Fund Limited. Since Asian
Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of RAYS Capital Partners Limited and
95.24% interest of RAYS Capital Partners Limited is held by Ms.
RUAN David Ching Chi, RAYS Capital Partners Limited and
RUAN David Ching Chi are deemed to be interested in the
Shares of the Company held by Asian Equity Special

Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund Limited.

(6) These shares are held by Kingworld Medicines Health
Management Limited. As Kingworld Medicines Health
Management Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Kingworld Medicines Group Limited, Kingworld Medicines
Group Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Kingworld Medicines Health Management

Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors was aware that any other persons/entities (other than

any Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the Company)
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had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company, its members of the Group or associated
corporations which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which had entered in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITIONS AND CONFLICTS OF

INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, save as disclosed in the
Prospectus, none of the Directors or substantial Shareholders of
the Company or any of their respective associates conducted any
business which competes, or is likely to compete, with the
business of the Group or had any other conflicts of interests with

the Group.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) for the

benefit of the Directors of the Company is currently in force.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company and its
subsidiaries did not enter into any contracts of significance with

any controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance or contract of significance
for provision of services, to which the Company or any of its

subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling
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shareholder or its subsidiaries had a material interest subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the listed

securities of the Company.

TAX RELIEF

Directors were not aware any details concerning the tax relief

due to any Company’s securities held by the Shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the PRC’s law applicable to

the incorporation place of the Company.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information publicly available to the Company
and so far as the Directors are aware, the Company had
maintained the public float stipulated under the Listing Rules as

at the date of this annual report.

CHARITY DONATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company and its
subsidiaries actively participated in charity and public welfare
undertakings, and contributed the money and materials

amounting to RMB 0.07 million to the society.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE

REPORTING PERIOD

You Zeyan, Wu Binhua, Liu Jigui and Wu Wanping, the
domestic shareholders of the Company (collectively referred to
as the Pomestic Shareholders”), entered into a share transfer
agreement with Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Commercial
Operation Co., Ltd.* (JLPEVLH B8 8% r 3618 2 H IR B A A))
(Jiangzhong Yishang”) on 6 January 2022, under which the
Domestic Shareholders agreed to transfer the shares held by
them, representing approximately 26.90% of total share capital
issued by the Company to Jiangzhong Yishang. Jiangzhong

Yishang became the second largest shareholder of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The details of the corporate governance practices of the Group
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 45 to

70 of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the members
of the Company to attend the AGM to be held on 6 June 2022,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 31
May 2022 to 6 June 2022 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
should be lodged for registration with the H share registrar of
the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 pm
on 30 May 2022.
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AGM

The AGM will be held on 6 June 2022. The Shareholders should
refer to the circular to be issued by the Company on 29 April
2022 regarding the details of the AGM and the enclosed AGM

notice and proxy form.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, together with the management of the
Company and the external auditor, had conducted review on the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and the

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITORS

The Company will propose a resolution to re-appoint
ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) as the auditor of the Group for the year of 2022 at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Company has not

changed its auditor in the past three years.

By order of the Board

Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Yao Chuanglong

Chairman and Executive Director

Shantou, PRC, 31 March 2022
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’
REPORT

In 2021, the board of supervisors of the Company (the -Board
of Supervisors”) fully performed its supervisory duties on
members of the Board, managers and other senior management
of the Company as authorised at the general meeting in
accordance with the Company Laws of the PRC (the -€ompany
Law’’) and the Articles.

DAILY WORK OF THE BOARD OF

SUPERVISORS

On 26 March 2021, it considered and approved the resolutions
on the matters including the work report of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company for 2020, the Financial Statements
for 2020, the Results Announcement for 2020 and the Annual
Report for 2020.

On 31 May 2021, it considered and approved the proposal of the
Company on the election of Ms. Zhang Ling as the chairman of

the third session of the Board of Supervisors.

On 20 August 2021, it considered and approved the resolutions
on the matters including the 2021 Interim Financial Statements,
the 2021 Interim Results Announcement and the 2021 Interim

Report.

LAWFUL OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors of the Company attended all meetings
of the Board during the year, and fully performed its supervisory
duties on the lawful production and operation of the Company.
It earnestly performed its duties of supervision and inspection,
and effectively discharged its supervisory duties on the
development strategies and the significant decisions of the

Company on a timely basis, thus exerting its functions in a
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better way and fully delivering its duties in the development of

the Company during the year.

In the opinion of the Board of Supervisors:

1. In 2021, with care and strong support from all the
Shareholders of the Company, as well as the diligent work of all
its staff, the operation of the Company was in compliance with
the Company Law and the Articles, and the procedures for
making decisions on production and operation of the Company
are lawful and normative, thus making satisfactory

achievements in the business.

2. During the Reporting Period, each member of the Board,
manager and other senior management of the Company
diligently performed his/her jobs and duties in the Company
and, for the benefit of the Company, strictly observed relevant
laws, regulations and the Articles, and regulated the work
procedures for operation and management of the Company,
thereby protecting the interest of the Company and its

shareholders.

INSPECTION ON FINANCIAL STATUS OF

THE COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2021 Auditor’s
Report for submission. In the opinion of the Board of
Supervisors, the financial report of the Company completely,
objectively and fairly reflects its financial position and operating
results. The annual operating results of the Company have been
audited by ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership) who has also issued an audit report which

is true, objective and fair.

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE BOARD

OF SUPERVISORS ON CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors is of the view that the Group had no
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connected transaction in 2021 which was subject to the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements as set out in Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules.

REVIEW OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON THE INTERNAL

CONTROL SELF - ASSESSMENT REPORT

The Board of Supervisors has conducted a review on the
Company, and considered that the Company has established an
appropriate internal control system in all important aspects and
the internal control management system has operated
effectively, thus ensuring its consistent implementation and

normal production and operation.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS

PASSED AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS

The members of the Board of Supervisors had no objection to
the contents of resolutions submitted to the general meetings.
The Board of Supervisors supervised the implementation of
resolutions passed at the general meetings, and considered that
the Board was able to implement the relevant resolutions

earnestly.

Being confident of the Company’s development prospects, the
Board of Supervisors will remain consistent in performing its
supervisory function for the operation of the Company and

safeguarding its interest and that of the Shareholders as a whole.

Zhang Ling
Chairlady of the Board of Supervisors
Shantou, PRC, 31 March 2022
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Auditor’s Report

XYZH/2022SZAB10190
TO THE MEMBERS OF CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL
CO.,LD.:

I. AUDIT OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company), which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet and balance sheet of the parent company as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated income statement and
income statement of the parent company, consolidated statement
of cash flow and statement of cash flow of the parent company
and consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
and statement of changes in shareholders’ equity of the parent
company for the year 2021, and relevant notes to the financial

statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
requirements under the Accounting Standards for Enterprises,
which give a fair view of the consolidated financial position and
financial position of the parent company of Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company as at 31 December 2021 and the
consolidated results of operation and cash flows and results of
operation and cash flows of the parent company for the year

2021.
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I1. BASIS FOR FORMING AUDIT

OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with China’s Auditing

Standards for the Certified Public Accountants. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the section headed -€ERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS” in the Auditor’s Report. We are independent
of Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company in accordance with the
Code of Professional Ethics for China’s Certified Public
Accountants and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in respect of professional ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

III. KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of the greatest significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our audit opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1 BB R E F IR
1. Impairment of trade receivables
S 2 T 2 IR FAT PR

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

#ubZ 2021 4 12 A 31 H, WgREEEAFS
BHA B IRE I RE 7S 3 Frid,  JEESCHR kR TH AR A
MANREE 74,518.79 0 SEHR EM &8 2 N IR
2,887.49 B oG, JE KRR AR mEAE A AN RS
71,631.30 E ot HRMEE G E L plim, &
WACHIR A i 42 SR AL [ B3 A0 v AL [ T 2 A= S R 5 3t
WK 5 B A R, A b BRAM A IS AR R 1Y)
TS [ A il s [ S 3 R IE

As set out in the Note VL3 to the consolidated
financial statements of Charmacy Pharmaceutical

AT B EERE PR

1) IR 2 g 7 R AT PR 3 I 5 B R S R ] [
WACHA: A A B PR DA T 42 1

2) 78 A% P IO WSO S AT VA Y B P A A 2
BB, BRSSO E A
AEIEH

3) 3T B R R R A 1 B SR G IR A
TN B S YR A7 A S 4R R A il T AR 9 K
A

4) I B 4 HR S F R R A B T PR AR v
B SCR R,  78 A% J R 4 5 JE S PR R B0
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Company, as of 31 December 2021, trade receivables
balance amounted to RMB745.1879 million,
provision for bad debts amounted to RMB28.8749
million and the carrying amount of trade receivables
amounted to RMB716.3130 million. As the carrying
amount of trade receivables accounts for a relatively
high proportion of assets, there would be a material
impact on the financial statements if the trade
receivables cannot be recovered on schedule or fail
to be recovered. Therefore, we regard the
recoverability of trade receivables as a key audit
matter.

RITEDL E B A1 FJRUBBIR 0 BL A S R AR A IR
DU TR 0 A 45 Al O TEIUME FTHRR A, ik
S BRI A P IRAEL ) 5 R A 5

S)&EE IR mEKIE DR A, FFE A PG S R
fhst PE A &

The main procedures we performed are as follows:

1) tested the management’s internal control relating
to the daily management of trade receivables and
assessment on their recoverability as at the end of the
period;

2) reviewed the relevant consideration and objective
evidence of impairment test on trade receivables by
the management, and attached importance to the
management’s adequate identification of impaired
items;

3) selected samples of trade receivables for which
bad debts was separately provided, and reviewed the
basis and reasonableness of the management’s
estimation on the expected lifetime loss;

4) as for trade receivables with provision made for
bad debts based on credit risk characteristic groups
by management, reviewed the expected credit loss
rate appraised by the management after taking
account of, amongst others, the historical default
profile of trade receivables, current credit risk

exposure and the forecast analysis on future
economic condition, and reviewed the
reasonableness of the provision for credit

impairment of trade receivables accordingly;

5) taking into account the checks on the subsequent
recovery of amounts, evaluated the appropriateness
of the provision for bad debts determined by the
management.

2 BIREEIH

Impairment of inventories

s AT I
Key audit matter

R RS

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BUEZE 2021 £ 12 A 31 H, WngsEge3E N m74
BHA B IRE M FES.7 &R, FERIRMGREEA
ANEHE 51,225.87 Eon, A7 & ERAEMER A N R
31022 &G, fFEBHRMEME A AN R 50,915.65
B0 A7 B AS BT S TR IKE T . B
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ERREH D, e B E R
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FAMBAT I T R TR T

D HEVEHERE SAP RGH T EARUH AN H
PR i (4 AH B A 4 o 5

) WATHENBEERER, MmaEAFENEE R
I

3) WG ERFERERAIEAOER, HEE
R BEAT DT B A ARSI
IEROHAE 180 R WA & A8 HE 7 Bk E 1
s

4) AR A B IAREERENER, WA E
PAE A AT L A YR A
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As set out in the Note VL7 Inventories to the
consolidated financial statements of Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company, as of 31 December 2021,
the Dbalance of inventories amounted to
RMB512.2587 million, the provision for impairment
of inventories amounted to RMB3.1022 million and
the carrying amount of inventories amounted to
RMB509.1565 million. Inventories are measured at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. The
Management  determined the provision for
impairment of inventories based on the stock age and
the level of approaching expiry date, taking into
consideration the actual sales of inventories.

We regard the impairment of inventories as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the amount of
inventories and the involvement of significant

The main audit procedures we performed are as
follows:

1) tested the management’s internal control relating
to the validity period and stock-in time of inventories
in the SAP system;

2) performed the inventory-taking supervision
procedure to check the quantity and condition of
inventories;

3) obtained the list of inventories of year-end stock
age and approaching expiry date, to conduct
analytical review on the inventories in storage for a
longer period of time; checked if the Company made
full provision for impairment of inventories which
will expire within 180 days;

4) obtained the table of subsequent sales
performance of inventories as at the end of period, to

judgment by the management.

test the accuracy of calculation of such provision for
impairment of inventories.

. HAhfs S
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION

The Management of Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company
(hereinafter referred to as the "Management”) is responsible for
the other information. The other information comprises the
information covered in the 2020 annual report of Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company, other than the financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
should there be any material misstatement of the other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

-101-



2/ NEREBRHRERDD

@ cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

h. EHEEAAHEE B
WRERAE

EHE A E RIS g R YRR E
ETLVR R E SRR B $EVAY WU
A REET ~ FRAAT AN A A6 L N A 4%
i, DAEIA B R AN AL 7 2R i 5
S R S B BB R

FE4 B B R Ry, B PR S BN
RISCEER N R MFFEEEE RE S, WGk
BLEFGRACE AR IS IH (Ui AD
N IE R s BRARE B AT
FNVSF AR E AT AR IEIEE B
LA BT

G 5 R B AR EE S A R I
=

7N~ R T R B R
FaH I RAE

A i H AR B P kR B S A
AFAE P 5 B s o0 35 B0 ) B KA ik
BHRCEERRE, WHAUSEFER
AU RIS . AR ORAE R MK MR IR

-102-

V. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE

MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED

WITH GOVERNANCEFOR THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the requirements under the Accounting
Standards for Enterprises, and for the design, performance and
maintenance of necessary internal control which renders the
financial statements free from any material misstatement caused

by fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is
responsible for assessing the ability of Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, the matters relating to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Management either intends to liquidate Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of Charmacy

Pharmaceutical Company.

VI. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS’

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to

issue an auditor’s report that includes our audit opinion.
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Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are generally considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis ofthe financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with the Auditing
Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. Meanwhile, we

also perform the following work:

(1)Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basisfor our audit opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overriding of

internal control.

(2)Obtain an understanding of internal control in relation to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.

(3)Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the Management.

(4)Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use
of the going concern basis of assumption and, based on the
auditevidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists in
relation to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt

on the ability of Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company to

-103-
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continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, the Accounting Standards require us to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the relevant disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
express our qualified opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
available information up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company to cease to continue as a going

concern.

(5)Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

(6)Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company, to express an audit
opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit, and

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
deficiencies worthy of concern in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant professional
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate
with them on all the relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, relevant precautionary measures.

From the matters communicated with those charged with

governance, we determine those matters that were of the
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greatest significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless laws or
regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our audit report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected

to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership)

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Wang Yaming(Project partner)
Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Zhuang linbin

31 March 2022

Beijing, China
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2021
Prepared by: CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

Bir: AR¥t Unit: RMB
—_ e R IR
Items Notes Balance as at the Balance as at the
end of the year beginning of the year
MENEEE :
Current assets:
B A e a1
- ) 630,168,026.51 590,322,268.07
Monetary funds VL1 T T
JRES SR 55 7Na 2
Bills receivables V2 14,947,500.00 20,639,970.00
JREUS R R 7Na 3
Trade receivables VI3 716,312,947.43 717,554,454.07
JESCR IR R 75, 4
N e . 25,799,692.96
Account receivable financing V14
g ~
08 AN 312,160,694.19 253,766,373.02
Prepayments VL5
HoAth RIS R 75, 6
Other receivables VL6 32,249,707.83 12,839,764.71
HaY . 10
wr A 509,156,426.37 585,008,876.72
Inventories VL7
HAhvEEhiE s >
N 75~ 8 23,226,980.50 45,377,379.28
Other current assets VI.8
3 D
BV EBE 2,238,222,282.83 2,251,308,778.83
Total current assets
JEMENK PE
Non-current assets:
[ o & 75+ 9
Fixed assets VIO 334,925,145.94 354,551,660.22
TR T % 75+ 10
.. 1,496,742.97
Construction in progress VI.10
i FIRER P 7Na 11
Right-of-use assets V11 13,511,183.61 16,451,641.00
TG Na 12
A 14 24. 152,191 .
Intangible assets VIL.12 3,033,824.90 52,191,599.87
L /5. 13
Goodwill VL3 6,024,104.16 6,024,104.16
& HAfr 1 2 Na 14
. 19,214,660.88 8,085,530.3
Long-term expenses to be amortized VI.14 9,214, T 7
TR LE P15 FL 8 7N~ 15
Deferred income tax assets VI.15 8,160,319.54 9,292,634.77
3 ; P
ARREBRE SR 524,869,239.03 548,093,913.36
Total non-current assets
S
KM 2,763,091,521.86 2,799,402,692.19
Total assets
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Balance as at the end Balance as at the
Items Notes ..
of the year beginning of the year
RENAHE:
Current liabilities:
R 7. 16
Short-term borrowings V16 668,039,276.07 535,919,072.17
JEAT 5 N. 17
Bills payables VL7 809,768,308.81 938,611,254.96
JEATHRK 7N, 18
Trade payables VLIS 532,860,284.07 569,826,535.10
R AL 75, 19
Contract liabilities VI.19 46,664,141.17 3,013,052.93
AR T 3 T 75+ 20
. 180,138. 19.82
Salaries payable to employees VI1.20 >180,138.03 3,788,619.8
JEAT R 7. 21
Tax payables VIal 44,557,999.46 58,549,342.70
oAt JEEA 3 7NN 22
Other payables V122 11,030,236.31 13,765,328.93
— N AR AR B & 75~ 23
Non-current liabilities due within one year VI.23 34,758,053.67 34,520,568.55
FoAth i Eh A 7NN 24
Other current liabilities VI1.24 6,066,338.36
3 A
IR R AR Cenee 2,158,924,775.95 2,161,993,775.16
Total current liabilities
E| =Y
Non-current liabilities:
RHMEK 75~ 25
. 415.04 1184 44
Long-term borrowings VI1.25 86,867,415.0 8,455,570
T A 7. 26
Lease liabilitics V126 12,489,734.63 15,331,202.41
TEZEW 25 75~ 27
Deferred income VI1.27 304,706.99 761,767.49
TRIE TS AR &4 1 7N~ 15
Deferred income tax liabilities VI.15 402,909.62 311,457.13
3 A
RS E s peres 100,064,766.28 134,859,997.47
Total non-current liabilities
A
AR E'.E‘I‘. . 2,258,989,542.23 2,296,853,772.63
Total liabilities
JB SRR -
Shareholders’ equity:
JEeA 75 28
. 1 . 1 .
Share capital V128 08,000,000.00 08,000,000.00
BARNTH 7N~ 29
N 2 29.04 2 29.04
Capital reserve VI.29 78,990,829.0 78,990,829.0
SR AN e
LR A 75> 30 21,080,432.34 18,439,830.70
Surplus reserve VIL.30
vl 75 31
18.2 118,259.82
Unallocated profits VIL31 96,030,718.25 97,118,259.8
BER AR RREREF
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of 504,101,979.63 502,548,919.56
parent company
DEURRAE R
Minority interests
A
ROR AR & At . 504,101,979.63 502,548,919.56
Total shareholders’ interests
BN B SRR R AR T

Total liabilities and shareholders’ interests

2,763,091,521.86

2,799,402,692.19
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AT REARR

2021 12 A 31 H

Balance Sheet of the Parent Company

31 December 2021

ARt BN BIREEERMERAF

Prepared by: CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

B AR®T Unit: RMB
- - R IR
Ttems Notes Balance as at the Balance as at the
end of the year beginning of the year
MENEPE:
Current assets:
i R
Sidaes 199,227,417.10 239,709,765.10
Monetary funds
E
,‘E‘Wm}% 14,947,500.00 20,639,970.00
Bills receivables
JREUS R R +P0. 1
Trade receivables XIV 1 298,709,722.89 321,717,989.20
T B 7
IR % . 9,677,315.64
Account receivable financing
T2
TR 08 146,363,638.37 91,888,737.10
Prepayments
HoAth ISR +PU. 2
Other recoivables XIV 2 163,479,388.56 34,922,983.93
4
il . 133,994,946.77 179,239,640.35
Inventories
H kv B
Hefthi ) 54 7,790,592.20 18,023,139.49
Other current assets
3 Py
VLB E AT 964,513,205.89 915,820,040.81
Total current assets
JEMENE 2 -
Non-current assets:
B s 4
IR o .3 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24
Long-term investments in equity interest XIV.3
‘{ J Y
B PR . 40,366,284.58 34,810,133.27
Investment properties
P YRS
Eé’% 293,196,906.89 311,448,122.87
Fixed assets
=
E@I& ’ 1,496,742.97
Construction in progress
S VR S
o i A 12,683,101.59 15,383,143.11
Right-of-use assets
WIS e
LA pE 120,534,679.84 132,004,780.13
Intangible assets
W4
R . 18,496,028.24 7,948,414.37
Long-term expenses to be amortized
N =] YR =
j@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ 1,579,871.20 2,147,739.64
Deferred income tax assets
3 : P
AFTER E AT 706,835,724.58 725,217,928.60
Total non-current assets
S
B AR 1,671,348,930.47 1,641,037,969.41
Total assets
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Items Notes Balance as at the Balance as at the
end of the year beginning of the year
RENELE:
Current liabilities
o HE 22
KL . 358,786,271.06 362,876,682.42
Short-term borrowings
+EE
E’Eﬁﬁm?)?% 303,267,964.22 329,206,550.39
Bills payables
T hE 2
MEATIRAK 144,029,763.59 179,510,492.78
Trade payables
A= ks
ARaR 1,133,949.67 1,808,148.58
Contract liabilities
lﬁ’?ﬁﬁﬁci%ﬁ%‘l 3,077,400.16 3,309,534.29
Salaries payable to employees
AR 6,031,470.79 8,411,842.59
Tax payables
H T2
HAIEAT 292,152,010.59 163,935,700.97
Other payables
— N B AR SRR ) A
Non-current liabilities due within one 34,514,203.65 34,396,442.29
year
HAth s & &
Other current liabilities 147,413.46
3 A
B AR N 1,143,140,447.19 1,083,455,394.31
Total current liabilities
E| S EUy=Yi- ¢
Non-current liabilities
H] A 2
A . 86,867,415.04 118,455,570.44
Long-term borrowings
AE =
AL 11,855,407.89 14,447,360.71
Lease liabilities
3 A
IR A AR .y eress 98,722,822.93 132,902,931.15
Total non-current liabilities
A
aft n.m‘. . 1,241,863,270.12 1,216,358,325.46
Total liabilities
R AE 2R :
Shareholders’ equity:
L
e . 108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
Share capital
E A INFE
AR 282,204,487.50 282,204,487.50
Capital reserve
SR YA ==
AR A5 21,080,432.34 18,439,830.70
Surplus reserve
PN 3
ARG 18,200,740.51 16,035,325.75
Unallocated profits
A
iR T ] 429,485,660.35 424,679,643.95
Total shareholders’ interests
L=
FRA e SRR 20 AT 1,671,348,930.47 1,641,037,969.41

Total liabilities and shareholders’ interests
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EHFFER CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
2021 EF For the year 2021
wt AL AISEREERMEIRA A Prepared by: CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
Hfr. AR¥T Unit: RMB
A iy | FEBAER AR
Amount for the Amount for last
Items Note
year year
—, B4 o
: ¥%U\ 73y 32 3,793,617,720.03 |  3,991,710,524.36
I. Total operating revenue VI1.32
R JVUN 7N~ 32
Including: Operating revenue VIL.32 3,793,617,720.03 3,991,710,524.36
—. 4 4
—_ %%%w 3,759,192,653.30 |  3,922,377,617.39
II. Total operating cost
b SR 7. 32
oo . 4.2 1 4
Including: Operating cost VIL.32 3,356,398,664.23 3,751,305,696.45
e KM 75 33
Taxes and surcharges VI.33 8,657,894.86 6,965,203.94
S E /5. 34
Selling expenses V134 103,327,989.46 85,915,907.96
peren TN
EEEE)EH AR 35
Management expenses VL35 48,523,027.84 45,758,488.87
s Bt H 75 36
Finance costs V136 42,285,076.91 32,432,320.17
Horpr AR #EH 7. 36
Including: Interest expenses VL.36 40,609,536.96 30,856,814.90
I§5! 75
ALBBN 73y 36 3,798,241.18 4,021,645.59
Interest income VI1.36
e HAt s 7S. 37
Add: Other gains VI1.37 523,715.09 681,362.66
FeElas (KRR T-] SRIEAD 75~ 38 3.95
Investment income (—" for loss) VI.38 '
fEHMAESRR RKRLL T-] 55351 7N 39
Impairment loss of credit (—" for loss) VIL.39 391,365.51 -15,244,009.95
1R BEY = = > 5} BRI
VIR GO ) 3D | 5. 40 310224954 300180891
Impairment loss of assets (— for loss) VI1.40
BB (BN (-] SR 75 41
L . - - 14 A 18,110.52
Gains on disposal of assets (— for loss) V1.41 9,987.17 8,110.5
=. BENE GERLL T-1 T
2,387,907.91 1,786,561.29
III. Operating profit (—” for loss) 32,387,907 51,786,56
e &AM 7S 42
N . 62,102.23 3,093,405.
Add: Non-operating revenue V1.42 762, ,093,405.99
W BRI 7. 43
. 169,431.00 137,587.54
Less: Non-operating expenses VIL.43 5 7,587
1]yEH 4 4 2T -
M. FREMAR GERAsmUL -] SRs0D 32,980,579.14 54,742,379.74
IV. Total profit (— for total loss)
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Amount for the Amount for last
Items Note
year year
NEB 2= N
e TSRS 75~ 44 9.827.519.07 14,186,414.31
Less: Income tax expense V1.44
T, FAE GRERLL (-] 5550 23,153,060.07 40,555,965.43

V. Net profit (—” for net loss)

(—) HZEB R IE
(1) By continuity of operations

23,153,060.07

40,555,965.43

LA AN GREHELL T-] S-E51D
1.Net profit from continuing operation (— for net
loss)

23,153,060.07

40,555,965.43

2 AR GFRESHRLL [-] SREF)D
2.Net profit from discontinued operation (— for
net loss)

(=) H%Pra R B
(2) By ownership

23,153,060.07

40,555,965.43

1.5 B A BF A R A AR GRS L T -
SRS

1.Net profit attributable to the owners of parent
company (— for net loss)

23,153,060.07

40,555,965.43

2/0UBCRAR S (FESIREL (-] SRIATDD
2.Profit of loss of minority shareholders (— for net
loss)

7N~ AW AR

VI. Total comprehensive income

23,153,060.07

40,555,965.43

) SEPNSINE SiEE e e nEE
Total comprehensive income attributable to the
shareholders of parent company

23,153,060.07

40,555,965.43

S B /D B SR i WAL 2 A A
Total comprehensive income attributable to minority
shareholders

. Sl
VII. Earnings per share

AR RO

Basic and diluted earnings per share

0.2144

0.3755
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2021 FEE
ARt BN BIREEERMERAF
Bfr. AR¥T

Income Statement of the Parent Company

For the year 2021
Prepared by: CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
Unit: RMB

JAH ik Afo?i? fétl)ir%he LERER
Items Note year Amount for last year
—. BEKA +u. 4
. Operating revenue XIV 4 1,576,479,571.62 1,564,204,417.58
I :.%ESZ.ZIS T, 4 1,433,596,717.22 1,445,909,350.55
Less: operating cost XIV.4
Bl B M 5.776.755.69 4,932,225.69
Taxes and surcharges
b
& s i 69,914,695.77 60,257,772.37
Selling expenses
4t
A 25,418,318.13 20,080,536.03
Management expenses
£)
ﬁ?%%ﬁﬂ% 31,664,436.28 19,153,594.47
Finance costs
b, FE
Hrf: . B S 23,053,273.07 17,423,082.89
Including: Interest expenses
Ips!
ﬂ‘“‘q&).\ 1,269,805.33 1,743,623.63
Interest income
e HAbas
Add:  Other gains 61,571.41 190,723.04
% P g Y 208
Bian (RRU—5R50) . s 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
Investment income (—’ for loss) XIV.5
[EABAEIRR (R D=1 1,832,568.66 -1,664,576.60
Impairment loss of credit(—’ for loss)
VR =5k =1 = M __»8
HEREIAR AR D555 -662,970.81 -1,101,839.21
Impairment loss of assets(—’ for loss)
VR 2% = V) 208
RERE RS GRAU-—GHI1) -11,849.35 15,907.80
Gains on disposal of assets(—’ for loss)
. BEFHE (EHEDRESD
29,32 .44 29,311,153.
I1. Operating profit (—” for loss) 9,327,968 9,311,153.50
P
m: & %%W)\. 20,880.42 1,046,299.66
Add: Non-operating revenue
B %%iﬂj. 66,839.43 85,076.69
Less: Non-operating expenses
= YAH 4) 4 M
=, FESHE GEHAEU—RE) 29,282,009.43 30,272,376.47
II1. Total profit (— for total loss)
b A=
e FTABLECH 2,875,993.03 3,200,329.75
Less: Income tax expense
¥ y . M
M. B RO —SRs0) 26,406,016.40 27,072,046.72
IV. Net profit (—” for net loss)
. ‘j;i,‘ﬂf%;‘:,gégw 11 SFETHE D) e
() SFEUEEITAE GPBERL— 930D 26:406.016.40 27072.046.72
1.Net profit from continuing operation (— for net loss)
(=) BB AR GRE R L= 52H1)D
2.Net profit from discontinued operation (—” for net loss)
A 4
I, aRe iR .. 26,406,016.40 27,072,046.72
V. Total comprehensive income
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Bfr: ANR%t Unit: RMB

For the year 2021
Prepared by: CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

2021

FREMRE

ANNUAL REPORT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

HH

Items

FiEE
Note

PN S 8 Y
Amount for the
year

AR
Amount for last
year

— KBEHELNRERE:

I. Cash flow from operating activities:

SR A RS EIEIN B E
Cash received from sales of goods and rendering of
services

3,278,723,811.17

3,176,902,732.21

e FRI A i i

Tax refund received

806,819.59

e I HoAh BRAE 2 TR B B R <

Other cash received relating to operating activities

/—‘\‘ ~ 45
VL45

4,203,978.52

18,279,370.64

RBEHBTEWAN/NGT

Sub-total of cash inflow from operating activities

3,282,927,789.69

3,195,988,922.44

MR 3R B SO B

Cash paid for purchases of goods and receiving services

3,138,089,935.40

2,915,191,621.52

SCAT AR VLK R S A ) B
Cash paid to employees and on behalf of employees

74,923,597.93

67,439,247.36

SCAS A5 THAR B

Cash paid for various taxes

37,421,339.67

27,737,323.51

SO H A BRAS 8 T B B IR <

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

/‘—\ ~ 45
VIL.45

52,036,308.90

54,543,876.30

RBEHTER /NGt

Sub-total of cash outflow from operating activities

3,302,471,181.90

3,064,912,068.69

RBEHELENRESHETH

Net cash flow from operating activities

7N~ 45
VIL.45

-19,543,392.21

131,076,853.75

—. BEREPEENREHRE:

I1. Cash flow from investing activities:

A $5 WA a MAC 81 ) B <

Cash received from investment gains

23.25

7 B 5 A AT AN LAt R Y 8 AL [ ) <
AR

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets

637,638.00

58,285.00

HAr ) F Al BB R TR B A B 0 B <

Other cash received relating to investing activities

75, 45
V145

10,000.00

BRREHHTERA/NGT

Sub-total of cash inflow from investing activities

647,661.25

58,285.00

S A T o R TS S R A AR ST P SO B
Cash paid for acquisition and construction of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

25,039,729.65

51,981,764.22
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= iy | REBER | CEREM
Amount for the Amount for last
Items Note
year year
HRAS 7 w] e oAt 2 5E BT SOAH AR B g AR
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and other 2,856,096.40
business units
P e L X 45 1000000
Other cash paid relating to investing activities V1.45 A
BEFESHRER /Dt
Sub-total of cash outflow from investing activities 25,049,729.65 54,837,860.62
&ﬁ{ﬁﬁ}]}%ﬁiﬁ‘]fﬁﬁﬁ%@%ﬁ Y -24,402,068.40 -54,779,575.62
Net cash flow from investing activities
=, SEFHEANRESRE:
III. Cash flow from financing activities:
4B {2 ;
ol 'T‘AF)TWQE/JL%@ . 957,970,978.42 950,409,374.37
Cash received from borrowings
| HL A B4 NEL 4 3
WQJ’\%“FF%@&@J@E%B@L%& . o 75> 45 1,826,502,238.37 | 1,571,672,200.18
Other cash received relating to financing activities V1.45
%Qﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁ)}d\ﬁf . e 2,784,473,216.79 | 2,522,081,574.55
Sub-total of cash inflow from financing activities
(nlf SO f AT <+
EE{E‘@ P BR 2 820,494,723.40 884,996,917.61
Cash paid for repayment of debts
YR AR AR AT FE BT SR 346
Cash payment for distribution of dividends and profits or 52,493,688.07 56,512,093.20
interest payment
» :H: Eﬁ%? N =l A AN I TN

iﬁ”\m”“_fré{ﬁﬁﬁgjmﬁﬁ L 75> 45 1,837,083,920.55 | 1,583,248,766.98
Other cash paid relating to financing activities V1.45
BE TR RV
Sub-total of cash outflow from financing activities 2,710,072,332.02 | 2,524,757,777.79
HAWIE iﬁ@lﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ . e 74,400,884.77 -2,676,203.24
Net cash flow from financing activities
M. ERBEHHRSRRSFEYNTE
IV. Effect of change in exchange rates on cash and cash 790.46
equivalents
L. RERFSTEREHME 30,455424.16 | 73,621,865.35
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
e IR BB 5 B s
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents for the Vi 45 113,771,300.25 40,149,434.90
period ’
L T e s
VL. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents for the Vi 45 144,226,724.41 113,771,300.25

period
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AR REemER Statement of Cash Flow of the Parent Company
2021 &£ For the year 2021
S EAr: AIEEERMAIRAF Prepared by: CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
BHAr. AR%t Unit: RMB
- REFEERE TEEARE
RH Yt Amount for the Amount for last
Items Note
year year

— KBEHELNRERE:

I. Cash flow from operating activities:

SHE R A RHESS BRI IR
Cash received from sales of goods and rendering of services

1,691,791,268.87

1,651,225,232.24

e 2 HoAth BRAE 2 TR B A B 3R <

Other cash received relating to operating activities

882,371,613.25

469,297,254.59

RBEHBTEWAN/NGT

Sub-total of cash inflow from operating activities

2,574,162,882.12

2,120,522,486.83

MR 2 B SO B

Cash paid for purchases of goods and receiving services

1,558,171,897.86

1,687,975,227.09

SUAT AR T VLR R T SCAS 3R
Cash paid to employees and on behalf of employees

42,887,657.73

40,908,487.74

ST A5 IR 2

Cash paid for various taxes

15,270,815.76

13,779,551.84

SO A BRAS 8 T B B IR <

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

948,399,101.71

451,027,952.16

RBEHTER /DT

Sub-total of cash outflow from operating activities

2,564,729,473.06

2,193,691,218.83

RBEHELENRESHETH

Net cash flow from operating activities

9,433,409.06

-73,168,732.00

—. BEREPEENREHE:

II. Cash flow from investing activities:

A $5 A AL AL B ) B <

Cash received from investment gains

18,000,000.00

18,000,000.00

iz LI E R . T AN LA R S pE WAl 1 3 it
#H

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets

8,500.00

48,500.00

BEFEHTRERA/NaT

Sub-total of cash inflow from investing activities

18,008,500.00

18,048,500.00

ST S A TR A AR S 7 S AT B 4
Cash paid for acquisition and construction of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

22,495,676.24

50,455,494.76

HUAG1 2 ) B ot 8 S BEA A 0 I A

Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and other 3,000,000.00
business units
BB S et 22,495,676.24 53,455,494.76

Sub-total of cash outflow from investing activities
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| AEBEE | LERAM
HH et Amount for the Amount for last
Items Note
year year
BB E A SRR -4,487,176.24 | -35,406,994.76

Net cash flow from investing activities

=, [REFEYPELANBRSHE:

III. Cash flow from financing activities:

B e 2 i 3 <

Cash received from borrowings

456,752,104.00

531,528,128.00

e 1) FL A B S R TR A R 1 B <

Other cash received relating to financing activities

494,108,937.42

504,981,316.80

BREHHSRAN/DaT

Sub-total of cash inflow from financing activities

950,861,041.42

1,036,509,444.80

AR AT B
Cash paid for repayment of debts

455,410,083.40

379,156,276.24

BRI AR SR AT RS ORI B
Cash payment for distribution of dividends and profits or
interest payment

43,847,456.83

45,583,849.73

SO HAR B 28 5 BT B 1 B <

Other cash paid relating to financing activities

501,901,425.90

430,998,336.16

BEFEHH SR/

Sub-total of cash outflow from financing activities

1,001,158,966.13

855,738,462.13

[SREHELENTSHETH

Net cash flow from financing activities

-50,297,924.71

180,770,982.67

M. EXFSHHRFERREFRUNLE

IV. Effect of change in exchange rates on cash and cash 790.46
equivalents
L. FERFESEYEHME -45,351,691.89 72,196,046.37

V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

e IR b B S E Y R AR

Add: Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 109,260,306.20 37,064,259.83
for the period

N IRBR & RREFEHYRE

VI. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents for the 63,908,614.31 109,260,306.20

period
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

N .
Shareholder’s Equity

2021 &£ For the year 2021

At BLAr: AIREERBERAF Prepared by: CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

Bfr. AR®T Unit: RMB

S
For the current year
BRI A RE A B SRR .
IIEES Equity attributable to shareholders of parent company /; gg Hﬁﬁfﬁlﬁﬁ*
otal
A BANTE %%é‘\ﬁ ARG ECFE Nt Minority | shareholders’
Share capital | Capital reserve urplus Unallocated Subtotal | interests equity
reserve profits

o ”%ﬂziﬁ*%ﬁ 108,000,000.00| 278,990,829.04| 18,439,830.70( 97,118,259.82| 502,548,919.56 502,548,919.56
I. Closing balance for last year
e EEBORSEE
Add: changes in accounting policies
Correction of previous errors
A4z N S
Business combinations under
common control
oAty
Others
— zkf:l::ili?g]ﬁg%ﬁ 108,000,000.00| 278,990,829.04| 18,439,830.70( 97,118,259.82| 502,548,919.56 502,548,919.56
I1. Opening balance for the year
= KERBBESE QRDU [-] $E
) 2,640,601.64| -1,087,541.57 1,553,060.07 1,553,060.07

II1. Movement for the year (— for decrease)

(=) KRR AREH
(I) Total comprehensive income

23,153,060.07

23,153,060.07

23,153,060.07

() AN @A
(II) Contribution of shareholders and capital
reduction

LB ARBEN I A IE L

1. Shareholders’ contribution to ordinary shares

2 HAthE A T RFFEHRNEA
2. Capital contribution by holders of other
equity instruments

3Bt SRR NI RHE S B < AR
3. Share-based payment credited to
shareholders’ equity

4.3 A
4. Others

(=) FE
(IIT) Profit allocation

2,640,601.64

24.240,601.64

-21,600,000.00

-21,600,000.00

13RI B A TR

1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

2,640,601.64

-2,640,601.64

2 GRHL— AR A

2. Appropriation of general risk provision

3BBCR A B

3. Allocation to shareholders

-21,600,000.00,

-21,600,000.00

-21,600,000.00

4 HoAth
4. Others

(YD B SRORE 2k PR s
(IV) Transfers within the shareholders’ equity

L AN TS BA

1. Transfer of capital reserve to share capital
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JHH

Items

AR

For the current year

Equity attributable to shareholders of parent company

) SEYNSI &

s

Share capital

BAAHE

Capital reserve

BGAE
Surplus
reserve

R ERNE
Unallocated
profits

/Nat
Subtotal

U 1 d
IR
Minority
interests

R AT
Total
shareholders’
equity

2 J BN T A

2. Transfer of surplus reserve to share capital

3. F B TRl 1R
3. Surplus reserve for making up losses

4.BEE 52 A AT WIS B A A R AR U RS
4. Change in defined benefit plan carried
forward to retained earnings

5 At A Sl g A B AP0
5. Other comprehensive income carried forward
to retained earnings

6.3 Ath
6. Others

(1) HIEfREM

(V) Specific reserve

LASEARHL

1. Appropriation for the year

2AEEAT
2. Use in the year

(%) Feph
(VI) Others

T, AEEERGBER

IV. Closing balance for the year

108,000,000.00

278,990,829.04

21,080,432.34

96,030,718.25

504,101,979.63

504,101,979.63

HH

Items

oS

For the last year

SRR A RO R IR R R

Equity attributable to shareholders of parent company

A

Share capital

BAAR

Capital reserve

BEHATH
Surplus
reserve

b Sy e
Unallocated
profits

at
Subtotal

SER
Wi
Minority
interests

RAEAER AT
Total
shareholders’
equity

— BEERMRE

I. Closing balance for last year

108,000,000.00

278,990,829.04

15,732,626.03

80,869,499.06

483,592,954.13

483,592,954.13

m. fratEcEsE Y
Add: changes in accounting policies

A1 ZZ 85 S8 1

Correction of previous errors

[F—i N RSO
Business combinations under
common control

oAt
Others

= AEEYIRER
II. Opening balance for the year

108,000,000.00

278,990,829.04

15,732,626.03

80,869,499.06

483,592,954.13

483,592,954.13

=, FEMRBHER QRO [-] 3B/E
5

I11. Movement for the year (— for decrease)

2,707,204.67

16,248,760.76

18,955,965.43

18,955,965.43

() FFEUaiaR
(I) Total comprehensive income

40,555,965.43

40,555,965.43

40,555,965.43

(=) BRI A
(IT) Contribution of shareholders and capital
reduction

LR BN A L

1. Shareholders’ contribution to ordinary shares

2 FABRE RS T HAFA BB A
2. Capital contribution by holders of ~other
equity instruments
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HH

Items

ot

For the last year

IR IR A B R R

Equity attributable to shareholders of parent company

s

Share capital

BAAHE

Capital reserve

BEATE
Surplus
reserve

R ERNE
Unallocated
profits

N
Subtotal

U 1 d
IR
Minority
interests

R AR AT
Total
shareholders’
equity

3B A SCATRE NI SR 2 PR <5 R
3. Share-based payment credited to
shareholders’ equity

4. HAth
4. Others

(=) FRESTE
(III) Profit allocation

2,707,204.67

-24,307,204.67

-21,600,000.00

-21,600,000.00

LR B A TR
1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

2,707,204.67

-2,707,204.67

2. R HR i S A

2. Appropriation of general risk provision

3 BRI 2> B

3. Allocation to shareholders

-21,600,000.00

-21,600,000.00

-21,600,000.00

4. HAth
4. Others

(Y JBE SRR 2 P9 B4 i
(IV) Transfers within the shareholders’ equity

1A A T B A
1. Transfer of capital reserve to share capital

2. F R N T A

2. Transfer of surplus reserve to share capital

3. SR T 1R

3. Surplus reserve for making up losses

4.8 2 it S B AN I B AP U S
4. Change in defined benefit plan carried
forward to retained earnings

5. HA A% VA i A T B AP
5. Other comprehensive income carried
forward to retained earnings

6. Atk
6. Others

(I BRI

(V) Specific reserve

LASEHRHL

1. Appropriation for the year

2 A AT
2. Use in the year

(CAPRE N
(VI) Others

M. FEFERBH
IV. Closing balance for the year

108,000,000.00

278,990,829.04

18,439,830.70

97,118,259.82

502,548,919.56

502,548,919.56
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2021 FFF

ARt BN BIREEERMEIRAF

Bhr: AR¥TT

Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity of

the Parent Company

For the year 2021

Prepared by: CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
Unit: RMB

HH

Items

For the current year

ES

&S
Share
capital

BAAH
Capital
reserve

BHATHE
Surplus
reserve

R
Unallocated
profits

RS A
Total
shareholders’
equity

—. HEEEREGRHE

I. Closing balance for last year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

18,439,830.70

16,035,325.75

424,679,643.95

. TR
Add: changes in accounting policies

A1 22 88 56 1E

Correction of previous errors

HoAth
Others

. AEEAIRE
I1. Opening balance for the year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

18,439,830.70

16,035,325.75

424,679,643.95

= KERRBEHEE B
[-1 5235

I11. Movement for the year (— for

decrease)

2,640,601.64

2,165,414.76

4,806,016.40

(—) ZFRaUat48EH
(I) Total comprehensive income

26,406,016.40

26,406,016.40

(=) BB B A
(IT) Contribution of shareholders and
capital reduction

1 TR N 11 3 i
1. Shareholders’ contribution to
ordinary shares

2 HoAbRE RS TR A HERAEA
2. Capital contribution by holders of
other equity instruments

3 BAR SEATRT N SRRE 75 1) <5 4R
3. Share-based payment credited to
shareholders’ equity

4 HoAth
4. Others

(=) A2 H
(IIT) Profit allocation

2,640,601.64

-24,240,601.64

-21,600,000.00

LARHUE AR N R

1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

2,640,601.64

-2,640,601.64

2 B 73 i

2. Allocation to shareholders

-21,600,000.00

-21,600,000.00

3.3t
3. Others

CPYD) e SROAE 2 P9 s 4t
(IV) Transfers within the
shareholders’ equity
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HH

Items

AR

For the current year

A
Share
capital

BAAE
Capital
reserve

B AE
Surplus
reserve

R4 B FE
Unallocated
profits

BRRERERT
Total
shareholders’
equity

LA R A
1. Transfer of capital reserve to
share capital

2 R A TR A
2. Transfer of surplus reserve to
share capital

3. B R B AR 4R
3. Surplus reserve for making up
losses

4.8 32 mi T BB RS 77U

4. Change in defined benefit plan
carried forward to retained earnings

5. Al A WA e A4 A A
5. Other comprehensive income
carried forward to retained earnings

6.3t
6. Others

(1) BUIARH#

(V) Specific reserve

LA
1. Appropriation for the year

2 AT
2. Use in the year

() HoAth
(VI) Others

M. AEERGH
IV. Closing balance for the year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

21,080,432.34

18,200,740.51

429,485,660.35

HH

Items

23

For last year

feA
Share
capital

BANR
Capital
reserve

B AR
Surplus
reserve

b S s |
Unallocated
profits

RS EF
Total
shareholders’
equity

—. LEERGH

I. Closing balance for last year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

15,732,626.03

13,270,483.70

419,207,597.23

e EEBeREEE

Add: Changes in accounting policies

iS22 865 5 IE

Correction of previous errors

HAth
Others

= BEEYRE
II. Opening balance for the year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

15,732,626.03

13,270,483.70

419,207,597.23

= AERREEeE R
[-1 52510
II1. Movement for the year (—”
for decrease)

2,707,204.67

2,764,842.05

5,472,046.72

(—) ZFEat s
(I) Total comprehensive income

27,072,046.72

27,072,046.72
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HH

Items

iatis

For last year

A
Share
capital

BAAE
Capital
reserve

BEHAR
Surplus
reserve

R4 B FE
Unallocated
profits

R AT
Total
shareholders’
equity

(2 RRBAMR G A
(IT) Contribution of shareholders and
capital reduction

W& & NI Bliilll
1. Shareholders’ contribution to
ordinary shares

2 MM R T AR A B HRAAA
2. Capital contribution by holders of
other equity instruments

3By SCAT T N IBEHRRE 2t P < 8
3. Share-based payment credited to
shareholders’ equity

4 HoAth
4. Others

(=) FEsHC
(I11) Profit allocation

2,707,204.67

-24,307,204.67

-21,600,000.00

LA BR A R

1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

2,707,204.67

-2,707,204.67

2. BB R 0 i

2. Allocation to shareholders

-21,600,000.00

-21,600,000.00

3. At
3. Others

(PO A 2l N P A
(IV) Transfers within the
shareholders’ equity

LA ATHEIE A
1. Transfer of capital reserve to share
capital

2. J8 BN TR HE B A
2. Transfer of surplus reserve to
share capital

3. F ko TR 4R
3. Surplus reserve for making up
losses

4558 32 i wt E A B A B AP UL

Bk

4. Change in defined benefit plan
carried forward to retained earnings

5. At 5 WA A A4 B AP A
5. Other comprehensive income
carried forward to retained earnings

6. 54t
6. Others

() BIAGHH

(V) Specific reserve

LASEAR L
1. Appropriation for the year

2 AR
2. Use in the year

(7%) Hfth
(VI) Others

T, AEFERGH
IV. Closing balance for the year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

18,439,830.70

16,035,325.75

424,679,643.95
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE

COMPANY

1.General Information

As approved by Shantou Commission for Restructuring the
Economic Systems, Shantou Economic Committee, Shantou
Finance Bureau and Shantou State-owned Property
Management Office with Circular [2000] No.6 of Shantou
Reform Commission, Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as the -€Company” or —€harmacy
Pharmaceutical Company”, together with its subsidiaries
referred to as the —-Group”) was restructured from —Bantou
Pharmaceutical Trading Development Company (J1l1 55 17 55 £ &
5 85 Je 45 BR /2 @) and established as a limited liability
company by Shantou Medicine (Group) Limited (JIIFH%E &% (4E
[#])/A 7]), Shantou Chuangmei Trading Limited (lIEE T £)3% &
2 A R A]) and Shantou Chuangmei Advertising Limited (il
SETH AL & A TR A 7)) with joint investments in 2000. The
Company obtained the BUSINESS LICENSE OF THE
ENTERPRISE LEGAL PERSON issued by Shantou
Administration for Industry and Commerce on 6 March 2000.
On 28 May 2015, the Company changed its name to Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. The registered address of the Company
is No. 235 Song Shan North Road, Longhu District, Shantou
number  of

City with a uniform social credit

91440500722414635C.

The Company operates in the pharmaceutical distribution
industry and is mainly engaged in the distribution of
pharmaceutical products. The business scope is: pharmaceutical
business; medical device business; distribution of health
products and food; freight transport business; domestic freight
forwarder; third-party pharmaceutical products and medical

devices logistics business; commodity information consultancy;

-123-



2/ DERERHBERDT

% cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

YImiciE RS 15 BEIT IR B
XV WEME; HENBE S &
e E L JHER . WA . i
mm TR S PRI HE A K.
T E M ERILE R RRIN) |« 551%
HammeEeE; B2EEMS. BEn.
A WO TN T, HAHAE:
AT LA 235 98—, . (K
VAL HE R TE H & AH B 0P i v
1277 ] B R4 s )

ARAFRABRNE, HEHE, B
. REHE, ARRTFREH O,
ELEAE 2 S SN /e S NN B il

WAEASM .

2

= AU BRREE

A [0 5 S 55 A S 8 o R
FLERAR AT CLUT R R A
KRAFT)  WIIAIRERAIRA R
(BLT -SRI R AT | By
RISRZESER IR~ v (LU il 76 2R
RIRATE) « BINAIREREARA
" (UMM AR AT KE
MRIREEEAR A (LU A% &
MAIRAF) 5 FEETAH.

-124-

management and planning service for pharmaceutical

enterprises;  logistics  information  consulting  service;
warehousing service; logistics distribution service; information
technology service; advertising business; lease of properties;
distribution of sterilizing and bactericidal equipments and
instruments, disinfectors, sanitary insecticides, cosmetics,
sanitary products, detergent, daily provisions and , chemical
products (excluding hazardous chemicals) and labour protection
appliance; purchasing and initial processing of agricultural by-
products, seafood and local specialties; private warehouses
locating at 1F and 2F No. 235 Song Shan North Road, Shantou

City.

The Company has the General Meeting, the Board of Directors,
the Board of Supervisors and the General Manager. The
Company has functional departments such as marketing centre,
operation and maintenance support centre, logistics centre and

finance department.

II. SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The scope of consolidated financial statements of the Group
covers four five wholly-owned subsidiaries, Guangdong
Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (J& R £|32853EH R A A])
(hereafter referred to as -Guangdong Charmacy Company”),
Shenzhen Charmacy Pharmaceutical Limited (3R 8568434
FR 72 7] ) (hereafter referred to as”Shenzhen Charmacy
Company”), Zhuhai Charmacy Pharmaceutical Limited (¥kif
Bl 3 % 35 H [R A F]) (hereinafter referred to as -Zhuhai
Charmacy Company”) and
Pharmaceutical Limited (&M £I3E843EHR/AF]) (hereafter

referred to as -Guangzhou Charmacy Company”) and

Huizhou. Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (21 £l 5545435

Guangzhou  Charmacy

FR 2~ 7] ) (hereafter referred to as —Huizhou Charmacy

Company”).
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For details was no change in the scope of consolidated financial
statements of the Group during the reporting period. For details,
please refer to the relevant content as set out in —VI.
CHANGES IN SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION” and —VII.
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES” of these notes.

III. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.Preparation basis

The Group prepared its financial statements on the going
concern basis, according to actual transactions and events as
well as such disclosure requirements under the Accounting
Standards for Enterprises ( {{23E&HIHER]) ) issued by the
Ministry of Finance and relevant provisions, the Companies
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange, and based on the
accounting policies and accounting estimates set out in —V.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES” of these notes.

2.Going concern

The Group, having evaluated its ability to continue as a going
concern for the 12 months since 31 December 2021, did not find
any event or condition which may cast significant doubt on the
going concern ability. Hence, the preparation of these financial

statements was based on the assumption of going concern.

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Tips for specific accounting policies and accounting estimates:
The specific accounting policies and accounting estimates
formulated by the Group according to the actual production and
operation characteristics include business cycle, recognition and

measurement of bad debt reserves for receivables, measurement
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of issued inventory, classification and depreciation methods of
fixed assets, amortization of intangible assets, and recognition

and measurement of income.

1.Declaration on compliance with Accounting Standards for
Enterprises

The Company complied with the requirements of Accounting
Standards for Enterprises in preparing its financial statements,
which give a true and full view of the relevant information such
as the financial position, operating results and cash flows of the

Company and the Group.

2.Accounting period
The Group’s accounting period begins on 1 January and ends on

31 December of the calendar year.

3.Business cycle
The Group treats 12 months as a business cycle and the criteria

for classifying the liquidity of assets and liabilities.

4.Functional currency

The Group adopts Renminbi as its functional currency.

5.Accounting methods for business combinations under
common control and business combinations not under
common control

The assets and liabilities obtained by the Group as the merging
party in a business combination are measured at the
combination- date carrying amount of the merged party in the
consolidated statement of ultimate controller. The difference
between the carrying amount of net assets obtained and the
carrying amount of the combination consideration paid shall
adjust additional paid-in capital; if the additional paid-in capital
is not sufficient for offsetting, the retained earnings shall be

adjusted.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
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liabilities obtained in a business combination not under common
control shall be measured at fair value at the acquisition date.
The cost of combination is the sum of the fair value of cash and
non-cash assets paid, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
securities issued by the Group for obtaining control of the
acquiree at the acquisition date and all expenses incurred
directly in the business combination (for the business
combination is achieved in stages through multiple transactions,
its cost of combination is the sum of costs of each single
transaction). Where the cost of combination exceeds the
acquirer’s share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, the difference is recognized as goodwill; where the
cost of combination is less than the acquirer’s share of the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the measurement
of the fair values of all the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities obtained in the business combination and
the fair values of non-cash assets or equity securities issued as
the consideration for combination are firstly reviewed. If, after
that review, the cost of combination is still less than the
acquirer’s share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets in the business combination, the difference shall be
included in the consolidated non-operating revenue for the

period.

6.Preparation methods of consolidated financial statements
The Group includes all subsidiaries controlled by it into the

scope of consolidated financial statements

When preparing consolidated financial statements, if there is
inconsistency on the accounting policies or accounting periods
between the subsidiaries and the Company, necessary
adjustments will be made to the financial statements of the
subsidiaries based on the accounting policies or accounting

periods of the Company.

All significant intra-group transactions, current balances and

unrealized profits within the scope of consolidation shall be
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offset in preparing the consolidated statements. The shares of
owners’ equity in subsidiaries not attributable to the parent
company and the shares of net loss or profit for the period, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income
attributable to minority interests shall be presented in the
consolidated financial statements under the items of —minority
interests, profit or loss of minority shareholders, other
comprehensive income attributable to minority interests and
total comprehensive income attributable to minority interests”,

respectively.

The operating results and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired
from business combination under common control shall be
included in the consolidated financial statements from the
beginning of the period of the combination. When preparing the
comparative consolidated financial statements, relevant items in
the financial statements of the previous year will be adjusted as
if the reporting entity formed after the combination had been in
existence since the time when the ultimate controlling party

gains control.

For equity of an investee under common control acquired in
stages through multiple transactions, which results in business
combination, supplementary disclosure to treatment methods in
consolidated financial statements shall be made in the reporting
period of acquiring the control. For instance, for equity of an
investee under common control acquired in stages through
multiple transactions, which results in business combination, it
shall be adjusted in the preparation of consolidated financial
statements as if it had been in existence as the current status
since the time when the ultimate controlling party obtains the
control. When preparing the comparative statements, relevant
assets and liabilities of the combined party are included in the
comparative statements of consolidated financial statements of
the Group no earlier than the time when the Group and the
combined party are under the common control of the ultimate

controlling party, with the increase in net assets arising from the
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combination being adjusted against the relevant items under
owners’ equity in the comparative statements. In order to avoid
repeated calculation of the value of the net assets of the
combined party, the long-term equity investment held by the
Group before the completion of the combination, as well as the
relevant recognized profit or loss, other comprehensive income
and other changes in net assets from the later of the day of
acquiring the original equity or the day when the Group and the
combined party are under the same ultimate control to the
combination day shall be offset against the retained earnings at
the beginning of the period and the profit or loss for the period

in the comparative statements, respectively.

The operating results and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired
from business combination not under common control shall be
included in the consolidated financial statements since the date
when the Group gains control. When preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the financial statements of the subsidiary
shall be adjusted based on the fair values of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities determined on the

acquisition date.

For equity of an investee not under common control acquired in
stages through multiple transactions, which results in business
combination, supplementary disclosure to the treatment methods
in consolidated financial statements shall be made in the
reporting period of acquiring the control. For instance, for
equity of an investee not under common control acquired in
stages through multiple transactions, which results in business
combination, the equity of the acquiree held before the
acquisition date shall be remeasured at the fair value of the
equity on the acquisition date when preparing the consolidated
financial statements, with the balance between the fair value and
its book value being included in the investment gains for the
period. Except for other comprehensive income arising from
changes as a result of remeasurement of net liabilities or net

assets of the defined benefit plan of the investee, other
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comprehensive income under the equity method involving the
equity of the investee held before the acquisition date and other
changes in owners’ equity excluding net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and profit distribution shall be converted
into investment profit or loss for the period in which the

acquisition date falls.

For the partial disposal of the Group’s long-term equity
investments in a subsidiary without losing control, the balance
between the disposal price and the share of net assets (being
calculated from the acquisition date or combination date) of the
subsidiary enjoyed correspondingly in the disposal of the long-
term equity investment shall be used to adjust the capital
premium or share premium, or the retained earnings if the
capital reserves are not sufficient for offsetting, in the

consolidated financial statements.

Where the Group loses its control over the investee due to the
partial disposal of equity investment or other reasons, the
residual equity will be remeasured at the fair value thereof on
the date when the control is lost in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. The excess of the sum of the
consideration obtained from the equity disposal and the fair
value of the residual equity over the share of the net assets of the
original subsidiaries (being calculated in proportion to the
original shareholding percentage from the acquisition date or
combination date) shall be included in the investment profit or
loss for the period in which the control is lost, with goodwill
being offset simultaneously. Other comprehensive income
relating to the equity investment of the original subsidiaries
shall be transferred to investment profit or loss for the period

when the control is lost.

When the Group disposes of its equity investment in the
subsidiaries in stages through multiple transactions till losing
control, if wvarious transactions for disposing of equity

investment of subsidiaries till losing control belong to a package
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deal, each transaction shall be accounted for as a transaction that
disposes of subsidiary with loss of control; nonetheless, before
the loss of control, the balance between each disposal price and
the share of net assets of such subsidiary enjoyed
correspondingly in investment disposal is recognized as other
comprehensive income in the consolidated financial statements
and transferred to investment profit or loss for the period when

the control is lost.

7.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the cash flow statements of the Group refers to cash on
hand and the deposits ready for payment at any time. Cash
equivalents in the cash flow statements represent the investment
with a term less than 3 months, which are highly liquidated,
easy to be converted into known amounts of cash and subject to

an insignificant risk of change in value.

8.Foreign currency business and translation of financial
statements denominated in foreign currency

(1) Foreign currency transactions

For the Group’s foreign currency-denominated transactions, the
foreign currency amount is converted into RMB amount at the
spot exchange rate on the day when such transactions occur.
Foreign currency monetary items are converted into RMB at the
spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date, and the conversion
differences resulted therefrom, except that those arising from
special foreign currency loans related to the acquisition and
construction or production of assets eligible for capitalisation
should be treated on the capitalisation principle, are all included

in the current profit or loss.

9.Goodwill

The goodwill arising on a business combination shall be
presented separately in the consolidated financial statements and
measured at costs less accumulated provision for impairment.
The goodwill is tested for impairment at least at the end of each

year.
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When conducting the impairment test for goodwill, the goodwill
is tested together with the related asset group or portfolio of
asset group. That is, the carrying amount of goodwill is
reasonably allocated to the related asset group or portfolio of
asset group which benefits from the synergies of the business
combination since the acquisition date. Relevant impairment
loss is recognized if the recoverable amount of asset group or
portfolio of asset group which contains the allocated goodwill is
less than its carrying amount. The amount of impairment loss is
firstly used to offset against the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to that asset group or portfolio of asset group, and then
will be offset against the carrying amount of other assets on a
pro rata basis according to the proportion of carrying amount of
all other assets (other than goodwill) within asset group or

portfolio of asset group.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value of an
asset less costs of disposal and the present value of the future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. The fair value
of asset shall be determined according to the prices stipulated in
a sales agreement in an arm’s length transaction. If there is no
sales agreement but active market for assets, fair value shall be
determined according to the bid price of the asset. If there is no
sales agreement or active market for assets, the fair value of
assets shall be estimated based on the best available
information. Disposal expenses include the legal costs, related
taxes, carriage expenses related to asset disposal and the direct
costs caused by the efforts to prepare the asset for its intended
sales. The present value of expected future cash flows of an
asset shall be determined by discounting the estimated future
cash flows generated from the continuous use and ultimate

disposal of assets at an appropriate discount rate.

The impairment loss of goodwill is charged to the profit or loss
for the period when it incurred and will not be reversed in any

subsequent periods.
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10.Financial assets and financial liabilities
When the Group becomes a party to the financial instrument
contract, a financial asset or financial liability will be

recognized.

(1)Financial assets

1)Classification, recognition and measurement of financial
assets

The Group classifies financial assets into financial assets at
amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss based on its business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets.All gains or losses arising from the
amortization, impairment, exchange loss and derecognition of
such financial assets which are not part of any hedging
relationships with the effective interest method are recorded into
current profit or loss. The financial assets that the Group
classifies into this category are: accounts receivable, notes
receivable, other receivable, notes payable, contractual

liabilities, and other payables.

The Group will classify financial assets that meet the following
conditions into financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income: (D the financial assets are managed
within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
and @ the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on
specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Such financial
assets are initially measured at fair value with related transaction
costs to be included in the initial recognition amount. All gains
or losses arising from the financial assets which are not part of
any hedging relationships, other than credit impairment losses or
gains, exchange gains or losses and interest on such financial

assets calculated using the effective interest method, are
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recognized in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition
of the financial assets, the cumulative gains or losses previously
included in other comprehensive income shall be transferred out
and be included in the profit or loss for the period.The financial
assets that the Group classifies into this category are: account

receivables financing.

The Group recognizes interest income using the effective
interest method. Interest income is calculated and determined by
applying the effective interest rate to the carrying balance of the
financial asset, except: (O for the purchased or internally
generated credit- impaired financial assets, their interest income
is calculated and determined based on amortized cost and credit-
adjusted effective interest rate of such financial assets since the
initial recognition; @) for the purchased or internally generated
financial assets without credit-impairment but subsequently
becoming credit-impaired, their interest income is calculated
and determined based on amortized costs and effective interest

rate of such financial assets in subsequent periods.

The Group designates the investments in equity instruments not
held for trading as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Such designation cannot be revoked
once made. The investments in equity instruments not held for
trading designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income by the Group are initially measured at fair value with
related transaction costs to be included in the initial recognition
amount. Except for any received dividends (excluding those
belonging to the recovery of the investment costs) which are
included in the profit or loss for the period, other related gains
or losses (including exchange gains and losses) are included in
other comprehensive income and may not be transferred to the
profit or loss for the period subsequently. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative gains or losses previously included in other
comprehensive income shall be transferred out and be included

in retained earnings.
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Other than the above financial assets classified as financial
assets measured at amortized cost and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, the Group classifies
its financial assets as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value
with related transaction costs to be directly included in profit or
loss for the period. Gains or losses on such financial assets are

included in profit or loss for the period.

Financial assets arising from contingent consideration
recognized by the Group during the business combination not
under common control, are classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies all impacted financial assets at the time

of changing the business model of managing a financial asset.

2)Recognition and measurement of transfer of financial assets

The Group derecognizes financial assets if one of the following
conditions is satisfied: (D the contractual rights to collect the
cash flows from the financial asset expire; @ the financial
asset has been transferred, and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset; and (@ the financial asset has been transferred,
and the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, and it has

not retained control over such financial asset.

If the transfer of an entire financial asset satisfies the conditions
for derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of
the transferred financial assets and the sum of the consideration
received from the transfer and the accumulative amount of the
changes of the fair value originally included in other

comprehensive income which shall be apportioned to the
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derecognized portion (where the contractual terms of the
financial assets transferred give rise on specific dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding), are included into current profit or

loss.

If the whole transfer of the financial asset meets the conditions
for derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of
the transferred financial asset at the date of derecognition and
the sum of the consideration received for the transfer and the
accumulative amount of fair value changes originally recorded
into other comprehensive income which is relevant to the
portion of derecognition (the transferred financial asset shall
meet all of the following conditions: the Group’s business model
for managing the financial asset is to collect contractual cash
flows; and the contractual terms of the financial asset require
that the cash flow generated on a specific date is only for the

payment of interest based on the principal).

If the transfer of financial asset partially satisfies the conditions
of derecognition, the entire carrying amount of the transferred
financial asset is, between the portion which is derecognized
and the portion which is not, apportioned according to their
respective relative fair value, and the difference between the
sum of the consideration received from the transfer and the
accumulative amount of the changes of the fair value originally
included in other comprehensive income which shall be
apportioned to the derecognized portion (the transferred
financial asset shall meet all of the following conditions: the
Group’s business model for managing the financial asset is to
collect contractual cash flows; and the contractual terms of the
financial asset require that the cash flow generated on a specific
date is only for the payment of interest based on the principal),
and the apportioned entire carrying amount of the said financial

assets are included into current profit or loss.
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(2)Financial liabilities

1)Classification, recognition and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group classifies financial liabilities except the following
items as being measured at amortized cost. Such financial
liabilities are recognized with the effective interest method and

subsequently measured at amortized cost

(DFinancial liabilities (includes derivative instruments that are
financial liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss include
held-for-trading financial liabilities and financial liabilities
designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss at
initial recognition. Such financial liabilities subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value, as well as dividends and interest expenditure related
to such financial liabilities are recorded in profit or loss for the

period.

@financial liabilities arising from financial assets of which the
transfer does not meet the conditions for derecognition or
continuing involvements in the transferred financial assets. The
Group measures such financial liabilities according to the

relevant rules on financial assets transfer.

(®financial guarantee contracts that do not fall within the range
of @ or @ , and loan commitments that do not fall within the
range of above (D and are at a rate less than the market interest
rate. When the Group is the issuer of such financial liabilities,
their value is measured at whichever is higher of the loss reserve
amount determined in accordance with the financial instrument
impairment rules and the balance after subtracting the
accumulated amortization amount determined in accordance
with the income rules from the initially recognized amount, after

initial recognition.

Financial liabilities arising from contingent consideration

recognized by the Group as the purchaser during the business
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combination not under common control, are accounted for at

fair value through profit or loss.

2)Derecognition conditions of financial liabilities

When the present obligation of such financial liability was
wholly or partially discharged, that financial liability or the
discharged obligation shall be derecognised. If the Group and a
creditor enter into an agreement to replace the existing financial
liability with a new financial liability on substantially different
terms, the existing financial liability shall be derecognized,
whereas the new financial liability shall be recognized. Where
the Group made substantial modifications to the terms of the
existing financial liabilities in whole or in part, it derecognizes
the existing financial liability in whole or in part and recognizes
the financial liability with the revised terms as a new financial
liability. The difference between the book value of the
derecognized part of financial liability and the consideration

paid is included in profit or loss for the period.

(3)Recognition methods of fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The Group measures the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities at the price in the principal market, and does
so using the price in the most advantageous market if there is
not a principal market and adopts valuation techniques that are
applicable then and are supported by sufficient available data
and other information. The inputs for fair value measurements
are divided into three levels: Level 1-quoted and unadjusted
prices in active markets obtained for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date; Level 2-directly or indirectly
observable inputs of the relevant assets or liabilities except the
Level 1 inputs; Level 3-unobservable inputs of the related assets
or liabilities. The Group gives top priority to using Level 1
inputs and last priority to using Level 3 inputs. The level to
which the fair value measurement result belongs is subject to the
lowest level of the input that is of great significance to the

overall measurement of fair value.
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The Group’s investments in equity instruments are measured at
fair value. However, in limited circumstances where there is
insufficient recent information available to determine fair value,
or where the distribution range of possible estimates of fair
value is so wide while cost represents the best estimate of fair
value within that range, such cost may appropriately represent

such estimate.

(4)Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
presented separately in the balance sheet and are not offset
against each other. However, they are presented in the balance
sheet in net amounts after offsetting each other if both of the
following conditions are met: (1) the Group has the legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and such legal right is currently
enforceable; and (2) the Group plans to settle on a net basis, or
simultaneously realise the financial asset and settle the financial

liability.

(5)Distinction between and treatment of financial liabilities and
equity instruments

The Group distinguishes between financial liabilities and equity
instruments in accordance with the following principles: (1) A
contractual obligation meets the definition of a financial liability
if the Group cannot unconditionally avoid meeting that
obligation by delivering cash or other financial assets. Some
financial instruments do not explicitly contain terms and
conditions for delivery of cash or other financial asset
obligations, but it is possible that contractual obligations may
arise indirectly through other terms and conditions. (2) If a
financial instrument is required to be, or may be, settled with the
Group’s own equity instruments, it’s needed to take into account

whether the Group’s own equity instruments used to settle the
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instrument in question are intended as a substitute for cash or
other financial assets or are intended to give the holder of the
instrument in question certain residual interest in the assets of
the issuer net of all liabilities. If the former prevails, the
instrument will be treated as a financial liability of the issuer; or
if the latter prevails, the instrument will be treated as an equity
instrument of the issuer. In certain circumstances, a financial
instrument contract requires or allows the Group to settle the
financial instrument with its own equity instruments, where the
amount of the contractual right or contractual obligation is equal
to the number of the Group’s own equity instruments available
for acquisition or required for delivery multiplied by their fair
value at the time of settlement, then the contract is classified as
a financial liability regardless of whether the amount of the
contractual right or obligation is fixed or varies, in whole or in
part, with variables other than the market price of the Group’s
own equity instruments (for example, interest rates, the price of

a commodity or a financial instrument).

When classifying financial instruments (or their components) in
the consolidated statements of operations, the Group takes into
account all terms and conditions agreed between the members of
the Group and holders of financial instruments. An instrument
shall be classified as a financial liability if the Group as a whole
has borne an obligation to deliver cash, other financial assets or
to settle in a manner that otherwise results in the instrument

becoming a financial liability.

Where a financial instrument or its component parts are
financial liabilities, the related interest, dividend, gains or losses
(including those arising from redemption or refinancing) shall

be included in the Group’s profit or loss for the current period.

Where a financial instrument or its components are an equity
instrument, the Group will treat its issuance (including

refinancing), repurchase, sale or cancellation as a change in
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equity and will not recognise changes in the fair value of the

equity instrument.

11.Bills receivables
Bills receivables are divided into different portfolios and the
accounting estimation policies for the expected credit loss

thereof are determined, based on the shared characteristics of

=
% acceptors’ credit risks:
HEDE TG B R ERHlRTEOR
Category of portfolio Accounting estimation policy for expected credit loss

SRAT AR SO SR A
Bank acceptance bill portfolio

B B PR R R AT RS R, — AR S e e

Management evaluates that such payments have low credit risk and

generally do not provide for impairment

BNty
Commercial draft portfolio

IR PRI R FH R E e

Provision for impairment is made based on expected loss rate
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The Group calculates the expected credit loss for bills
receivables on the balance sheet date. If the expected credit loss
is higher than the book value of the current provision for the
impairment of the bills receivables, the Group will recognize
such difference as impairment loss of the bills receivables,
which will be debited to —thpairment loss of credit” and
credited to -Bills receivables — Provision for bad debt”.
Otherwise, the Group will recognize such difference as

impairment gain.

12.Receivables

The Group recognizes the lifetime expected loss for receivables
at the initial recognition by using the simplified approach. The
Group estimates the expected credit loss using the following two
methods based on the customers’ credit ratings, business scales,

historical collections and bad debt losses:

(1)For receivables of significant amounts and involving long-
term cooperative relationships or abnormal situations in the
cooperative relationship, etc., the Group, instead of using the
impairment matrix, recognizes loss provisions for receivables at

the initial recognition at an amount equal to the lifetime
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expected credit loss based on the specific credit risk
characteristics of the receivables, such as customers’ credit
ratings, industry and business characteristics, historical
collections and bad debt losses. At each reporting date, the
Group re-evaluates the changes in the amount of expected credit
losses in the remaining duration of the receivables and adjusts

the loss provisions accordingly.

(2)For other receivables that do not fall into the above
circumstances, the Group divides financial instruments into
different groups based on shared characteristics of credit risks,
and uses the impairment matrix to determine the credit losses of
related financial instruments on a grouping basis. The shared
characteristics of credit risks adopted by the Group include:
credit risk rating, initial recognition date, remaining contract
term, industry of the debtor, type of collateral and value of the

collateral relative to financial assets, etc.

The Group determines the impairment matrix based on the
historically observed default rates over the expected duration of
the receivables on a grouping basis, and makes adjustments in
respect of forward- looking estimates. At each reporting date,
the Group updates the historically observed default rates,
analyzes the changes in forward-looking estimates, adjusts the
impairment matrix according to the changes if the impairment
matrix needs to be adjusted, and make loss provisions

accordingly.

13.Accounts receivable financing

For bills and accounts receivable measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income, the portion with a term of not
more than one year since the day of acquisition is presented as
receivables financing, and the rest is presented as other debt
investments. See —Nte IV. 10 to the Financial Statements:
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” for relevant

accounting policy.
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14.Inventories
The Group’s inventories mainly include goods in stock and

goods in delivery.

The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system, the
inventories are recognized at the actual cost when acquired.
Actual cost is determined using weighted average method when
the inventories are consumed or issued. Low-value consumables

are amortized using one-off write-off method.

The net realisable value of inventories of merchandise held for
direct sale, such as goods in stock, goods sold and materials for
sale, shall be determined as the estimated selling price of the
inventory less estimated selling expenses and related taxes; the
net realisable value of inventories of materials held for
production shall be determined as the estimated selling price of
the finished goods less the estimated costs to be incurred upon

completion, estimated selling expenses and related taxes.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are recognized at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories
is higher than the net realizable value for reasons like the
inventories being damaged, becoming completely or partially
obsolete or being sold at a price lower than cost, the provision
for impairment loss of inventories shall be made at the
difference between the net realizable value of the inventory and

the cost on an item-by-item basis.

The net realizable value is determined based on the estimated
selling price of such inventories after deducting its estimated
selling costs and relevant taxes in the normal production and

operation process of goods in stock.

15. Contractual assets
(1) Methods and criteria for recognition of contractual assets

Contractual assets refer to rights to receive consideration for
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goods that the Group has transferred to clients, and such rights

are dependent on factors other than the passage of time.

(2) Methods for determining expected credit losses on
contractual assets and for related accounting treatment

The methods for determining expected credit losses on
contractual assets are described with reference to 12.

Receivables above.

For accounting purposes, the Group will calculate the expected
credit loss on contractual assets on the balance sheet date. If the
expected credit loss is greater than the current carrying amount
of the provision for impairment of contractual assets, the Group
will recognise the difference as an impairment loss by debiting

“impairment loss on assets” and crediting “provision for
impairment of contractual assets”. Conversely, the Group will
recognise the difference as an impairment gain and make a

reverse accounting entry.

If the Group incurs actual credit losses and the related
contractual assets are deemed uncollectible and are approved for

write-off, the Group will debit “provision for impairment of

”» “ »

contractual assets and credit contractual assets
according to the approved write-off amount. If the write-off
amount is greater than the provision for losses, the difference

will be debited to  “impairment loss on assets” .

16.Long-term equity investment
The long-term equity investment of the Group mainly refers to
the investment in subsidiaries, investment in associates and

investment in joint ventures.

The Group’s basis for judgement in respect of common control
is that all participating parties or a group of participating parties
control such arrangement, and that policies on related business
of such arrangement have to obtain unanimous agreement from
all participating parties that collectively control such

arrangement.

The Group directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries owns
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more than 20% (inclusive) but less than 50% of the voting right
of the investee, which is usually deemed to have significant
influence on the investee. For voting rights of less than 20% in
the investee, significant influence over the investee will be
judged by comprehensively taking into consideration of such
facts and circumstances as dispatching representative to the
Board or similar authority of the investee, or participating in the
formulation process of financial and operation policies of the
investee, or having major transactions with the investee, or
sending management personnel to the investee or providing key

technical information to the investee.

An investee that is under the control of the Group shall be
deemed as a subsidiary of the Group. For long- term equity
investment acquired through business combination under
common control, the share of the book value of net assets of the
combined party in the combined statement of the ultimate
controlling party on the combination date shall be accounted for
as the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment.
If the book value of net assets of the combined party on the
combination date is negative, the cost of the long- term equity

investment is determined as nil.

For equity in an investee under common control obtained in
stages through multiple transactions, which results in business
combination, supplementary disclosure to treatment methods of
the long-term equity investment in the financial statements of
the parent company shall be made in the reporting period of
acquiring the control. For instance, for equity in an investee
under common control obtained in stages through multiple
transactions, which results in business combination, the Group
will conduct accounting treatment on each transaction as one
transaction which obtains control if the transactions belong to a
package deal; if the transactions do not belong to a package
deal, the share of the book value of net assets of the combined
party in the combined financial statements of the ultimate

controlling party upon the combination shall be deemed as the
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initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment on the
combination date. The difference between the initial investment
cost and the sum of the book value of long- term equity
investment before the combination and the book value of newly-
paid consideration for further acquisition of shares on the
combination date shall be applied to adjust capital reserve. If the
capital reserve is insufficient for offsetting, the retained earnings

shall be offset.

For long-term equity investment obtained through business
combination not under common control, combined cost shall be

recognized as initial investment cost.

For equity in an investee not under common control obtained in
stages through multiple transactions, which results in business
combination, supplementary disclosure to treatment methods for
long-term equity investment in financial statements of the parent
company shall be made in the report period for acquiring the
control. For instance, for equity in an investee not under
common control obtained in stages through multiple
transactions, which results in the business combination, the
Group will conduct accounting treatment on each transaction as
one transaction which obtains the control right if the
transactions belong to a package deal. If the transactions do not
belong to a package deal, the sum of the book value of equity
investment held originally and additional investment costs shall
be the initial investment cost whose calculation method is
changed to cost method. If the equity held before the acquisition
date is calculated by equity method, the related other
comprehensive income originally calculated by equity method
shall not be adjusted; and the accounting treatment shall be
conducted as per the same basis as that of directly disposing of
related assets or liabilities of the investee when disposing of the
investment. If the equity held before the acquisition date is a
non-trading equity instrument specified to be measured at fair
value and its changes are included in other comprehensive

income, the accumulative changes in fair value originally
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included in other comprehensive income shall not be transferred

into current profit and loss.

Apart from the long-term equity investments acquired through
business combination mentioned above, for long-term equity
investments acquired by cash payment, the investment cost is
the actual amount of cash paid for the acquisition; for long-term
equity investments acquired by issuing equity securities, the cost
of investment is the fair value of the equity securities issued; for
long-term equity investments invested by the investor, the
investment cost is the agreed consideration under the investment

contract or agreement.

The Group’s investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using
the cost method, and the investments in joint ventures and

associates are accounted for using equity method.

For long-term equity investments for which the subsequent
measurement is accounted for using the cost method, when
additional investment is made, the book value of the long-term
equity investment cost will be added according to the fair value
of cost paid for additional investment and the related expenses
incurred by related transactions. For cash dividend or profit
declared and paid by the investee, it shall be recognized as its
investment income for the period at the amount to which it

entitles.

For long-term equity investment for which the subsequent
measurement is accounted for using the equity method, the book
value of long-term equity investment shall be increased or
decreased accordingly according to the change in the owners’
equity of the investee. In which, the attributable net profit or
loss in the investee is recognized on the basis of the fair value of
various identifiable assets in the investee at the time of
acquisition and in accordance with the accounting policies and
accounting period of the Group, based on the share attributable

to the investor as calculated according to shareholdings, after
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elimination of the profit or loss for intra-group transactions with
associates and joint ventures and after adjustment to the net

profits of the investee.

On disposal of a long-term equity investment, the difference
between the book value and the proceeds actually received shall
be included in investment income for the period. For a long-
term equity investment measured with the equity method, the
related other comprehensive income previously measured with
such method shall be accounted for on the same basis as the
direct disposal of the related assets or liabilities of the investee
upon the termination of the equity method of accounting, and
the owner’s equity recognised as a result of changes in the
owner’s equity of the investee other than net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and profit distribution shall be entirely
transferred to current investment income upon the termination

of the equity method of accounting.

Where the common control or significant influence over the
investee is lost due to the partial disposal of equity investment,
and the residual equity after disposal is accounted as per the
Accounting Standards for Enterprises No. 24: Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments (Accounting [2017] No.
7), the balance between the fair value and book value of such
residual equity on the date when the common control or
significant influence is lost shall be included in profit or loss for
the period. Other comprehensive income recognized as a result
of calculating original equity investment by equity method shall
be accounted for on the same basis as that used by the investee
to directly dispose of the relevant assets or liabilities when
ceasing to use the equity method, and carried forward
proportionately. Owner’s equity recognized as a result of
changes in the owner’s equity of the investee other than net
profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution, shall be transferred to current investment yield on a

proportionate basis.
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When the control over the investee is lost due to the partial
disposal of long-term equity investment, for residual equity
which still has common control or significant influence over the
investee after disposal, it shall be accounted for under the equity
method. Difference between the book value of equity disposed
and the disposal consideration shall be included in investment
income. Such residual equity shall be adjusted assuming that it
is treated as being accounted for under the equity method since
acquisition. For residual equity which cannot exercise common
control or impose significant influence over the investee after
disposal, it shall be accounted for as per the Accounting
Standards  for Enterprises No. 24: Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments (Accounting [2017] No.
7), and the difference between book value of equity disposed
and the disposal consideration shall be included in investment
income, and the difference between fair value and the book
value of residual equity on the date of loss of control shall be

included in profit or loss for the period.

For each transaction where equity is disposed by the Group in
stages until loss of control and which does not belong to a
package transaction, the accounting for each transaction shall be
conducted separately. For the —packge transaction”, the
accounting treatment shall be conducted on each transaction as
the transaction that disposes of subsidiary with loss of control.
However, before loss of control, the difference between disposal
price for each transaction and the book value of corresponding
long-term investment of the equity disposed of, shall be
recognized as other comprehensive income, and, upon loss of
control, shall be transfer to the profit or loss for the period when

the control is lost.

17.Investment property

Investment property refers to those held by the Group for the
purpose of rentals or capital appreciation, or both. Investment
property of the Group includes the rented land use rights and

rented buildings, etc. The Group shall measure the investment
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property by using the cost mode.

The investment property of the Group shall be depreciated or
amortized on straight-line basis. The estimated useful life, net
residual value rate and annual depreciation (amortization) rate

of various investment properties are as follows:
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Fixed assets are tangible assets refer to the following
characteristics at the same time, that are held for use in the
production of goods, supply of labour, rental or operation
management, with a unit value of more than RMB2,000 and

have a useful life of more than one year.

Fixed assets are recognized only when its related economic
benefits are likely to flow into the Group and its cost could be
reliably measured. The Group’s fixed assets include houses and
buildings, machinery, transportation equipment, office

equipment, etc.

For subsequent expenses related to fixed assets, if the economic
benefits related to such fixed assets are likely to flow into the
Group and its cost could be reliably measured, such expenses
are included in the cost of fixed asset, and the book value of the
replaced part will be derecognized. Save for the above, other
subsequent expenses are included in profit or loss for the period

in which they are incurred.

The Group depreciates all fixed assets, except for those that
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have been fully depreciated and continued to be used as well as
land that has been separately stated in the accounts.
Depreciation is recognised using the average service life method
(or other methods). The categorised depreciable service life,
estimated net residual values and depreciation rates of the

Group’s fixed assets are shown as follows:
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The Group shall review the expected useful life, estimated net
residual value and the depreciation method of a fixed asset at the
end of each year, and account for any change as a change in

accounting estimate.

19.Construction in progress

Construction in progress shall be transferred into fixed assets at
the estimated value as per the project budget, construction prices
or actual construction costs from the date when they are ready
for intended use, and be depreciated from the next month and be
adjusted for difference from the original value of fixed asset

after the completion settlement procedures.

20.Borrowing costs

For borrowing costs incurred that are directly attributable to
fixed asset, investment property and inventory which are ready
for their intended use or sale after activities related to their
acquisition, construction or production last for more than one
year, capitalization shall commence when expenditures for the
asset and borrowing costs have been incurred, and activities

relating to the acquisition, construction or production of the
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asset that are necessary for the asset to be ready for its intended
use or sale have begun; and capitalization shall be ceased when
the acquired, constructed or produced qualifying asset for
capitalization is ready for its intended use or sale, and borrowing
costs subsequently incurred shall be recognized in profit or loss
for the period. If acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset for capitalization is interrupted abnormally, and
the interruption lasts for more than 3 months, the capitalization
of borrowing costs shall be suspended until the acquisition,

construction or production activities of the asset are resumed.

Where borrowings are borrowed for a specific purpose, the
actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for the period
less any bank interest earned from depositing the unutilized
borrowed funds in banks or any investment income on the
temporary investment of those borrowings shall be capitalized.
Where borrowings are borrowed for general purpose, the
amount to be capitalized is determined on multiplying the
weighted average of the excess amount of accumulated asset
expense over the amount of specific-purpose borrowings by
capitalization rate of general-purpose borrowings occupied. The
capitalization rate shall be determined based on the weighted
average interest rates applicable to the general-purpose

borrowings.

21.Right-of-use assets
The right-of-use assets are defined as the rights of the Group as

a lessee to use the leased assets in the lease term.

(1) Initial recognition

At the commencement of the lease term, the Group initially
measures the right-of-use assets at cost, which includes the
following: (O the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability; @ any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less the amount of lease incentives
received, if any; 3 any initial direct costs incurred, i.e. the
incremental costs incurred for the execution of the lease; @ the

costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the
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leased asset, restoring the site on which the leased asset is
located or restoring it to the condition as agreed in the terms of
the lease, except those incurred for the production of

inventories.

(2) Subsequent measurement

After the commencement of the lease term, the Group adopts a
cost model for the subsequent measurement of the right-of-use
assets, where the right-of-use assets are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Where the Group re-measures the lease liability in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the lease standards, the book

value of the right-of-use assets shall be adjusted accordingly.

(3) Depreciation of right-of-use assets

The Group provides for the depreciation of the right-of-use
assets from the commencement of the lease term. Right-of-use
assets are usually depreciated from the month in which the lease
term commences. The amount of the provision for depreciation
is included in the cost of the relevant assets or the current profit

or loss according to the use of the right- of-use assets.

When determining the depreciation method of the right-of-use
assets, the Group makes decisions based on the expected
methods of consuming the economic benefits related to the
right-of-use assets, and provides for depreciation for the right-

of-use assets on a straight-line basis.

When determining the depreciation period of the right-of-use
assets, the Group adheres to the following principles: if it is
reasonably certain that the ownership of the leased assets will be
obtained at the end of the lease term, the provision for
depreciation will be made within the remaining useful life of the
leased assets; if it is not reasonably certain that the ownership of
the leased assets will be obtained when the lease term expires,
the provision for depreciation is made during the lease term or
the remaining useful life of the leased assets, whichever is the

shortest.
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(4) Impairment of right-of-use assets
If the right-of-use assets are impaired, the Group will make
subsequent provision for depreciation based on the book value

of the right-of-use assets after deducting the impairment losses.

22.Intangible assets

The Group’s intangible assets include land use right, software
and software license, customer resources , etc. Intangible assets
are measured at the actual costs upon acquisition, of which the
purchased intangible assets, actual paid cost and other relevant
expenses are presented as the actual costs. For intangible assets
invested by investors, the actual costs are determined according
to the values specified in the investment contract or agreement,
for the unfair values agreed in contract or agreement, the actual
costs are determined at the fair value. For the intangible asset
acquired from combination not under common control which is
owned by the acquiree but is not recognized in the financial
statements, it shall be recognized as intangible asset at its fair

value upon the initial recognition of the acquiree’s assets.

The land use right shall be evenly amortized when it is obtained
from the date of transfer. The software and software use rights,
customer resources are amortized evenly by stages over the
shortest of estimated useful life, beneficial term stipulated by
contract and legal effective term. The amortization amount is
credited into relevant asset cost and profit or loss for the period
according to its beneficiaries. The Group reviews the estimated
useful life and amortization method of intangible assets with
limited useful life at the end of each year, and any changes will

be treated as changes on accounting estimates.

23.Impairment of long term assets

The Company reviews items such as long term equity
investments, investment properties, fixed assets, construction in
progress and right-of-use assets measured by the cost model,
intangible assets with definite useful life, etc. on each balance

sheet date. The Group conducts impairment test when there is
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any indication of impairment. Goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life are tested at the end of each year for

impairment, whether indication of impairment exists or not.

If the book value of such asset exceeds its recoverable amount
after impairment test, the difference is recognized as impairment
loss. The above impairment losses shall not be reversed in

subsequent accounting periods once recognized.

24.Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses of the Group include expenses for
building renovation, etc. Such expenses are amortized evenly
over periods in which benefits are derived. If the long-term
deferred expenses are no longer beneficial in subsequent
accounting periods, the amortized value of the unamortized item

is transferred in full to profit or loss for the period.

25.Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities reflect the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. Before the Group transfers goods to a customer, the
customer has already paid the contract consideration, or the
Group has obtained unconditional right to receive the contract
consideration. At the earlier of the date of actual payment from
the customer and the due date of payment, contract liabilities
were recognized in accordance with the amount received or

receivable.

26.Staff remuneration

The Group’s staff remuneration includes short-term
remuneration, post- employment benefits, termination benefits

and other long-term benefits.

Short-term remuneration mainly includes staff salaries, bonuses,

allowances and subsidies, staff welfare payments, social
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insurance premiums including medical insurance premiums,
work injury insurance premiums and maternity insurance
premiums, housing provident fund, labour union expenses and
staff education expenses, short- term paid leaves, short-term
benefits sharing scheme, non-monetary welfare and other short-
term remuneration etc. During the accounting period in which
the employees render services, the Group recognizes the short-
term remuneration actually incurred as a liability and includes it
in the profit or loss or in the cost of the related asset for the

current period, depending on the class of beneficiaries.

The post- employment benefits mainly include basic pension
insurance premiums, enterprise annuity, unemployment
insurance premiums, early retirement benefits and other post-
employment benefits, etc. Defined contribution plans and
defined benefit plans are classified according to the risks and
obligations assumed by the company. Withdrawals from defined
contribution plans are recognised as a liability on the balance
sheet date based on the amount of contributions made to a
separate entity in exchange for services rendered by employees
during the accounting period, and are recognised as current
profit or loss or as cost of related assets, depending on the
beneficiary. If the company has a defined benefit plan, the

specific accounting treatment shall be stated.

Termination benefits is due to the compensation to employees
when the Group terminates the employment relationship with
employees before the expiry of the employment contracts or as
an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary
redundancy. If the Group provides termination benefits to the
employees, the liabilities arising from termination benefits will
be recognized and included in profit or loss for the period at the
carlier of the following dates: O when the Group cannot
unilaterally withdraw termination benefits for the employment
termination plan or the redundancy offer; and @ when the
Group recognizes the costs or expenses related to the

reorganization involving in payment of termination benefits.Of
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these, compensation paid in excess of one year is discounted at a

discount rate and credited to current profit or loss.

Other long-term benefits refer to the employee compensation
mainly include short-term compensation, post-employment

benefits and termination benefits, etc.

27.Lease liabilities

(1)Initial recognition

The Group initially measures lease liabilities based on the
present value of the lease payments that have not been paid at

the commencement date of the lease term.

1)Lease payments

Lease payments are defined as the payments made by the Group
to the lessors related to the rights to use leased assets during the
lease term, including: (O fixed payments and fixed payments in
substance, net of lease incentives, if any; @ variable lease
payments based on indexes or ratios, which are determined at
the initial measurement based on the indexes or ratios on the
commencement date of the lease term; (3 the exercise price of
the purchase option when the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the purchase option; @ the payments required to be
paid for exercising the option to terminate the lease when the
lease term reflects that the Group will exercise the option to
terminate the lease; and (6 the amount expected to be paid
based on the residual value of the guarantee provided by the

Group.

2)Discount rate

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate when it
is unable to determine the interest rate implicit in the lease. The
incremental borrowing interest rate refers to the interest rate
payable by the Group to borrow funds under similar mortgage
conditions in similar periods in order to acquire the assets of an

amount close to the value of the right-of-use assets in a similar
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economic environment.The interest rate is related to the
following: (O the Group’s own situation, that is, the Group’s
solvency and credit status; @) the term of the —baowing”, that
is, the lease term; @ the amount of —baowed” funds, that is,
the amount of lease liabilities; @) —mrtgage conditions”, that
is, the nature and quality of the underlying assets; & the
economic environment, including the jurisdiction in which the
lessee is located, the currency of denomination, and the time of
signing the contract. Based on the long-term bank loan interest
rate, the Group makes adjustments in respect of the above-
mentioned factors to derive the incremental borrowing interest

rate.

(2) Subsequent measurement

After the commencement date of the lease term, the Group
conducts the subsequent measurement of the lease liabilities
according to the following principles: (D increasing the book
value of the lease liabilities when recognizing lease liabilities;
@ reducing the book value of the lease liabilities when making
lease payments; (3 re-measuring the book value of the lease
liabilities in case of any change in the lease payments due to

revaluation or lease variations.

The interest expenses of the lease liabilities in each period of the
lease term are calculated at fixed periodic interest rates and are
included in the profit and loss for the current period, except
those that shall be capitalized. Periodic interest rates refer to the
discount rates used by the Group in the initial measurement of
lease liabilities, or the revised discount rates adopted by the
Group when lease liabilities need to be re-measured at revised
discount rates due to changes in lease payments or lease

variations.

(3) Re-measurement
After the commencement date of the lease term, when the
following circumstances occur, the Group re-measures the lease

liabilities at the present value calculated based on the lease
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payments, and adjusts the book value of the right-of-use assets
accordingly. If the book value of the right-of-use assets has been
reduced to zero, but the lease liabilities still need to be further
reduced, the Group will include the balance in the current profit
and loss. The circumstances include (O any change in the fixed
payment in substance (In this case, the original discount rate is
used); @ any change in the expected payable amount of the
residual value of the guarantee (In this case, the original
discount rate is used); 3 any change in the indexes or ratios
used to determine the lease payments (In this case, the revised
discount rate is used); @ any change in the evaluation result of
the purchase option (In this case, the revised discount rate is
used); & any change in evaluation result or actual exercise of
the option to renew or terminate the lease (In this case, the

revised discount rate is used).

28.Recognition principle and measurement of income
Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies the
performance obligation in the contract by transferring the

control over relevant goods or services to customers.

Where two or more performance obligations are included in a
contract, at the commencement date of the contract, the Group
will allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation on the proportion of the standalone selling prices of
each distinct good or service promised, and measure the revenue
based on the transaction price being allocated to each

performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The transaction price
recognized by the Group shall not exceed the amounts that are
most unlikely to have a significant reversal for accumulated
recognized income when the relevant uncertainties are resolved.

The amount which the Group expects to refund to the customer
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is recognized as liabilities and excluded from transaction price.
Where the contract contains a significant financing component,
the Group determines the transaction price as the amount
payable in cash by a customer when he/she obtains the control
of the goods or services. The difference between the transaction
price and the consideration of the contract is amortized using
effective interest method over the contract term. The Group will
not consider a significant financing component in a contract if it
expects, on the inception date of the contract, that the period
between the obtaining of the control of the goods or services by
a customer and the payment by the customer will be one year or

less.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation over time if one of
the following criteria is met; or otherwise, a performance

obligation is satisfied at a point in time:

The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs; the customer can control the services (or goods)
provided during the Group’s performance; the services (or
goods) provided during the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use and the Group has a right to
payment for performance completed to date in the contract

period.

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the Group
recognizes revenue over time by the progress of the satisfaction
of that performance obligation. When the progress of that
performance obligation cannot be measured reasonably, but the
Group expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the
performance obligation, the Group recognizes revenue as the
costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the

progress of the performance obligation.

For performance obligation satisfied at a point in time, the

Group recognizes revenue at the point in time at which the
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customer obtains the control of relevant goods or services. To
determine whether a customer has obtained the control of goods

or services, the Group considers the following indicators:

The Group has a present right to payment for the goods or
services; the Group has transferred physical possession of the

goods to the customer;

The Group has transferred the legal title of the goods or the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the

customer; the customer has accepted the goods or services.

The rights of the Group to receive consideration from customers
(depending on factors other than the passage of time) for the
transferred goods or services is presented as contract assets
which is provided for impairment on the basis of expected credit
losses. The Group’s unconditional right (only the passage of
time is required) to consideration from customer is presented as
receivables. The Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer is

presented as contract liability.

The income of the Group includes income from the sales of
goods, income from provision of advisory services. The
following is the description of accounting policies regarding

income from its principal activities:

The specific income recognition policy for the Group’s
products: the Group entered into a sales contract with the
customer while the counterparty shall, within 3 days after
receipt of the goods, inspects and accepts according to the
product quality requirements and the GSP acceptance criteria.
Overdue acceptance is deemed to constitute standard product.
The fact that the goods provided are not in conformity with the
order, damage, pollution, expiration, etc., shall be submitted to

the Group within 3 days after the goods have been received, and
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detailed information shall be provided. If the responsibilities rest
with the Company after verification, the return procedures will
commence upon confirmation. Based on the above terms, the
Group recognizes the income 3 days after the goods were
shipped (which shall be deemed to have transferred the control

thereof to the customer) for the sake of prudence.

The specific income recognition policies for the Group’s service
fees: income of the Company’s other business is mainly the
advisory service income from provision of brand promotion,
product marketing, etc. for some pharmaceutical manufacturers
and distributors. The advisory service fee is charged on the
specific service content provided according to the service
agreement signed, which is independent of the product
procurement contract. The income will be recognized by the
Company after the end of the evaluation period of provision of
advisory service to the extent that payment from the customers
is received or it is determined that the amount can be fully

received.

29.Government grants

The government grants of the Group include the government
subsidies related to the assets and the revenue. Of these, asset-
related government subsidies refer to government subsidies
obtained by the Group for the construction or, in other means,
for the formation of long-term assets; revenue-related
government subsidies refer to government subsidies other than
those related to assets. If the targets of the subsidies are not
specified in government documents, the Group shall make
judgments in accordance with the above-mentioned distinction
principles, and where distinctions are difficult to be made, the
subsidies shall be classified as revenue-related government

subsidies as a whole.

If a government grant is in the form of a monetary asset, it is
measured at the amount received; If the grants are allocated in

accordance with fixed quotas, or if there is sufficient evidence at
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the end of the year to show that the entity complies with the
relevant conditions of financial supporting policies and it is
expected to receive financial supporting funds, the grants shall
be measured at the amount receivable; If a government grant is
in the form of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair value,
and if the fair value could not be reliably obtained, it is

measured at its nominal amount (RMBT1).

The government grants related to assets are recognized as
deferred revenue and are amortized equally over the useful life
of the relevant assets and included in the profit or loss for the
period. If the relevant asset is sold, transferred, scrapped or
destroyed before the end of its service life, the unallocated
balance of the relevant deferred gain shall be transferred to

profit or loss in the period in which the asset is disposed of.

When the government grants related to the revenue are used to
make up the relevant expenses or losses incurred in subsequent
periods, they shall be recognized as deferred revenue and shall
be included in the profit or loss for the period during the period
in which relevant expenses are recognized. When the
government grants are used to make up the relevant expenses or
losses incurred, they shall be directly included in the profit or
loss for the period. The government grants related to business
activities of an enterprise are recognized as other income or a
reduction of relevant costs and expenses in the light of the
nature of such business. The government grants non-related to
business activities of an enterprise are recognized as non-

operating income or expense.

The Group accounts for interest subsidies of policy-based
preferential loans it obtains on the following principles and

under two circumstances:

(1)Where the finance allocates the interest subsidy to the
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lending bank and the lending bank loans to the Group at the
policy- based preferential interest rate, the Group records the
amount of loan it actually receives as the entry value of the loan,
and calculates the related borrowing costs based on the principal
amount of the loan and the policy-based preferential interest rate
(or records the fair value of the loan as the entry value of the
loan and calculates the borrowing costs based on the effective
interest rate method; and recognises the difference between the
actual amount received and the fair value of the loan in deferred
income. The deferred income is amortised over the duration of
the loan using the effective interest rate method and is used to

offset the related borrowing costs.)

(2)Where the finance allocates the interest subsidy to the Group
directly, the Group offsets the related borrowing costs with the
subsidy.

When the Group has to return government grants it has already
recognised, such grants are accounted for in the period in which
they are required to be returned under different circumstances:
D)If the carrying value of the related assets is offset upon initial
recognition, the carrying value of the assets is adjusted.

2)If there is related deferred income, the book balance of
deferred income is offset, and the excess is included in the
current profit or loss.

3)In other cases, the returned grants are directly included in the

current profit or loss.

30.Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities of
the Group are calculated and recognized based on the difference
(temporary differences) between tax bases and carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax asset is recognized
for the deductible losses that are deductible against taxable
profit in subsequent years in accordance with the requirements

under tax laws. No deferred tax liability is recognized for
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temporary difference arising from initial recognition of
goodwill. No deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax
liabilities are recognized for a temporary difference arising from
initial recognition of asset or liability due to a transaction other
than a business combination, which affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (or deductible loss). At balance sheet
date, deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates for the period
when the asset is expected to be recovered or the liability is

expected to be settled.

The Group shall recognize the deferred income tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which any deductible temporary difference,

deductible loss or tax deduction can be utilized.

31.Leasing

(1) Identification of lease

Lease refers to a contract in which a lessor assigns the right to
use an asset to a lessee within a certain period of time in
exchange for consideration. On the commencement date of a
contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is a lease or
contains a lease. A contract is a lease or contains a lease if one
party to the contract transfers the right to control the use of one
or more identified assets within a certain period of time in
exchange for consideration. In order to determine whether a
contract transfers the right to control the use of the identified
assets within a certain period of time, the Group assesses
whether the customers in the contract are entitled to receive
almost all of the economic benefits arising from the use of the
identified assets during the period of use and have the right to

direct the use of the identified assets during the period of use.

If a contract contains multiple separate leases, the Group will
split the contract and account for each separate lease. Where a
contract contains both lease and non-lease components, the

Group will account for the lease and non-lease components
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separately.

(2) The Group as a lessee

1) Lease confirmation

At the commencement date of the lease term, the Group
recognizes the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the
lease. For the recognition and measurement of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, see Note 4, —2Right-of-use assets”

and —27Lease liabilities™.

2) Lease variations

Lease variations refer to the variations of the lease scope, lease
consideration and lease duration beyond the original contract
terms, including the addition or termination of the right to use
one or more leased assets, and the extension or shortening of the
lease term stipulated in the contract. The effective date of a lease
variation is the date on which the parties agree on such lease

variation.

When there is a lease variation and the following conditions are
simultaneously met, the Group accounts for the lease variation
as a separate lease: (D the lease variation expands the scope of
the lease or extends the lease term by adding the right to use one
or more leased assets; (@ the additional consideration is equal
to the price of the enlarged part of the lease or the extened part

of the lease term after being adjusted as per the contract.

Where the lease variation is not accounted for as a separate
lease, on the effective date of the lease variation, the Group
allocates the consideration of the contract after the variation in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the lease standards,
and re- determines the lease term after the variation; and re-
measures the lease liabilities by applying the revised discount
rate to discount the lease payments after the variation. When

calculating the present value of lease payments after the
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variation, the Group uses the interest rate implicit in the lease
for the remaining duration of the lease as the discount rate;
where the interest rate implicit in the lease for the remaining
duration of the lease cannot be determined, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate of the lessee on the effective date of
the lease variation as the discount rate. As for the effect of the
aforesaid adjustments to lease liabilities, the Group applies
different accounting treatments according to the following:
where the lease variation reduces the lease scope or lease term,
the lessee shall reduce the book value of the right-of-use assets,
and include the gains or losses resulting from the partial or
complete termination of the lease in the current profit and loss;
@ where the lease liabilities are re-measured due to other lease
variations, the lessee shall adjust the book value of the right-of-

use assets accordingly.

3) Short-term lease and lease of low-value assets

For the short-term leases with a lease term of less than 12
months, and the leases of low-value assets where the single
leased assets are brand new assets, the Group chooses not to
recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. The Group
includes the lease payments for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets in the relevant costs of assets or current profit
or loss using the straight-line method or other systematic and

reasonable methods in each period of the lease term.

(3) The Group as a lessor

On the basis that the contract is a lease or contains a lease as
evaluated in (1), the Group, as a lessor, divides the lease into a
finance lease or operating lease on the commencement date of

the lease.

If a lease transfers almost all of the risks and rewards related to
the ownership of the leased assets in substance, the lessor
classifies the lease as a finance lease and those other than

finance leases as operating leases.
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A lease is generally classified as a finance lease by the Group if
one or more of the following conditions are met: (1 upon the
expiration of the lease term, the ownership of the leased assets is
transferred to the lessee; @ the lessee has the option to
purchase the leased assets, and the purchase price as agreed is
sufficiently low compared to the fair value of the leased assets
when the option is expected to be exercised, so it can be
reasonably determined at the commencement date of the lease
that the lessee will exercise the option; (3 although the
ownership of the assets is not transferred, the lease term
represents most of the useful life of the assets (not less than 75%
of the useful life of the leased assets); @ at the commencement
date of the lease, the present value of the lease receipts is almost
equal to the fair value of the leased assets (not less than 90% of
the fair value of the leased assets); © the leased assets are of a
special nature and can only be used by the lessee with any major
modification. A lease may be classified as a finance lease by the
Group if there are one or more of the following signs: (D if the
lessee cancels the lease, the loss caused to the lessor by the
cancellation of the lease shall be borne by the lessee; @ the
gains or losses resulting from the fluctuations of the fair value of
the residual value of the assets belong to the lessee; @ the
lessee has the ability to continue the lease to the next period at a

rent far below the market level.

1) Accounting of financial leases

Initial recognition

At the commencement date of the lease term, the Group
recognizes finance lease receivables for financial leases and
derecognizes finance lease assets. When performing the initial
measurement of financial lease receivables, the Group accounts

for the finance lease receivables at the net lease investment.

The net lease investment is the sum of the unguaranteed residual
value and the present value of the lease payments that have not
been received at the commencement date of the Ilease,
discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. The lease

receipt refers to the amount that the lessor should collect from
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the lessee for transferring its right to use the leased assets during
the lease term, including: (O the fixed payments and the fixed
payments in substance to be paid by the lessee, net of lease
incentives received, if any; @ variable lease payments
depending on indexes or ratios, which are determined at the
initial measurement based on the indexes or ratios at the
commencement date of the lease; 3 the exercise price of the
purchase option, provided that it is reasonably certain that the
lessee will exercise this option; @ the payments that the lessee
needs to make for exercising the option to terminate the lease,
provided that the lease term reflects that the lessee will exercise
the option to terminate the lease; © the residual value of the
guarantee provided to the lessor by the lessee, a party related to
the lessee and an independent third party with the financial

ability to fulfill the obligation of the guarantee.

Subsequent measurement

The Group calculates and recognizes interest income for each
period of the lease term at a fixed periodic interest rate. The
periodic interest rate refers to the implicit discount rate used to
determine the net lease investment (in the case of a sublease, if
the interest rate implicit in the sublease cannot be determined,
the discount rate of the original lease will be used (as adjusted
based on the initial direct costs relating to the sublease)), or the
revised discount rate as determined according to relevant
requirements when the variation of the financial lease is not
accounted for as a separate lease, and the condition is satisfied
that the lease will be classified as a finance lease if the variation

becomes effective at the commencement date of the lease.

Accounting of lease variations

When there is a variation of the finance lease and the following
conditions are simultaneously met, the Group accounts for the
variation as a separate lease: (1) the variation extends the scope
of the lease by adding the right to use one or more leased assets;
@ the additional consideration is equal to the separate price of

the enlarged scope of the lease as adjusted for the circumstances
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of the contract.

If a variation of a finance lease is not accounted for as a separate
lease, and the condition is satisfied that the lease will be
classified as an operating lease if the variation becomes
effective at the commencement date of the lease, the Group will
account for it as a new lease from the effective date of the lease
variation, and use the net lease investment before the effective

date of the lease variation as the book value of the leased assets.

2) Accounting of operating leases

Accounting of rentals

In each period of the lease term, the Group uses the straight-line
method to recognize lease receipts from operating leases as

rental income.

Incentives provided

Where a rental-free period is provided, the Group allocates the
total rent over the entire lease term without deducting the rent-
free period on a straight-line basis, and recognizes rental income
in the rent-free period. If the Group bears certain expenses of
the lessee, the expenses shall be deducted from the total rental
income, and the balance of the rental income after deduction

shall be allocated during the lease term.

Initial direct costs

The initial direct costs incurred by the Group related to
operating leases shall be capitalized to the costs of the
underlying assets of the lease, and shall be charged to the
current profit and loss in installments over the lease term on the

same basis as the rental income.

Depreciation
For the fixed assets under operating leases, the Group adopts the
depreciation policies for similar assets to provide for

depreciation. For other assets under operating leases, systematic
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A T I T AT IR 1) TEAR A B
Bl — 4 (3) ARG A2 5
Ry I EUE 1T A

BEEFEBURMEEHEETBE

(1) BEGHERET
A A B AR R B
P,

(2) EEEHH
ACHE A S M B R
2.
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and reasonable methods are used for amortization.

Variable lease payments

The variable lease payments received by the Group related to
operating leases and not included in the lease receipts are
included in the current profit and loss when they are actually

incurred.

Variation of operating lease

When there is a variation of an operating lease, the Group will
account for it as a new lease from the effective date of the
variation, and the lease receipts received in advance or
receivable related to the lease before the variation will be treated

as the receipts for the new lease.

32.Discontinued operation

Discontinued operation refers to a component of the Group
which meets one of the following requirements and can be
distinguish separately and has been already disposed of or
classified as held-for-sale: (1) the component represents an
independent major line of business or a major independent
geographical area of operations; (2) the component is part of a
plan for the contemplated disposal of an independent major line
of business or a major independent geographical area of
operations; (3) the component is a subsidiary acquired

exclusively for the purpose of resale.

33.Changes of significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates

(1) Changes of significant accounting policies

There is no change in significant accounting policies of the

Group for the reporting period.

(2) Changes of significant accounting estimates
There is no change in the significant accounting estimates of the

Group for the reporting period.
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h. IR V. TAXATION
1LEERE LR 1.Main types of tax and tax rates
& AT ALK LTS
Type of tax Tax basis Tax rate
HEAH AR JERIN | o 0 0 0 0
VAT Taxable income 0%- 3%, 6% 9% 13%
b g S 7 2L o
I AL L B AT R .
Urban maintenance and 7%
. Amount of actual payable turnover tax
construction tax
FH B M RSN A AR 0
. 3%
Education surcharge Amount of actual payable turnover tax
HTHCE BT RSN AR 0
. 2%
Local education surcharge Amount of actual payable turnover tax
M AE AR i IR SE RN
Tax on land use Land area Fixed rate
A YA, 4 S
Property taxes o ot origimal value ol the properties 1.2% or 12%
or rental income
A SEPTIHAR JREAARRL TS 4

Enterprise income tax

Amount of taxable income

25%

N B BIRREEIER

11p

t R

N ER I AT R R AR, BRI
AL AN, “AER]T RAR 2021 4F 1
H1H, “4K” %245 2021 4 12 H
31 H, “AE” R$5 2021 1 H 1
HZ 12 H 31 H, “L&E” &4
2020 1 H1 HE 12 H31 H, &

VI. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

For data in the financial statements as disclosed below,
—begining of the year” represents 1 January 2021, —endf the
year” represents 31 December 2021, —He year” represents the
period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021, —st year”
represents the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020, and the monetary unit shall be RMB, unless specified

W B 2 MR T otherwise.
1LE¥ES 1.Monetary funds
HH AR AR Balance asﬂjj‘)t]f'e%ﬁﬁéginning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year
the year
JEAF T4
Cash on hand 343,374.54 773,462.50
f= A
ffﬁﬁﬁm 143,883,349.87 112,997,837.75
Cash in bank
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AH AR AR Balance asﬂj?gl?fﬁ inning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
g 15
JUb R 5 485,941,302.10 476,550,967.82
Other monetary funds
a3t
Total 630,168,026.51 590,322,268.07
Horpr: fFIAEBE AN R IHAE AR
Including: the total amount of 365,285.32 377,019.54
money deposited abroad
AT F 52 3 BR ] 1) B o < Use of restricted monetary funds
RH EFARERER Balance asﬂj?tjffﬁﬁe inning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
SRAT AR U SR ORTE 4

HAk PRt <
Bank acceptance draft margin,
borrowing margin

485,941,302.10 476,550,967.82

CEl

485,941,302.10 476,550,967.82
Total
2. R =R 2.Bills receivables
(1) BRI (1) Classification of bills receivables
HH AR Balance asﬂ;f)tjffiﬁe inning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year

BRAT 7K SO R 2
Bank acceptance bills
s X AN ey
PSRRI 5% 15,000,000.00 20,700,000.00
Commercial drafts
it

15,000,000.00 20,700,000.00
Subtotal
T PEARVE M

2 . .

Less: Provision for bad debt 52,500.00 60,030.00
&3t

14,947,500.00 20,639,970.00
Total

(2) AR CHI B SR

(2) Pledged bills receivables as at the end of the year

JHH ERCEHESEE

Items Pledged amount as at the end of the year
57 3 N i)
SRR SLIE 5% 1,400,000.00
Commercial drafts
A
At 1,400,000.00
Total
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(3) FAROLLT T B HAEE &
B H MRS ISR 2

(3) Bills receivables endorsed or discounted as at the end of the

year but not mature at the balance sheet date.

HE FERKRIHER S FEARNEIEFER S
Items Amount derecognised as at Amount not derecognised as at
the end of the year the end of the year
27 PAN =)
ﬁ%g(ﬁ.@m 18,777,327.83 13,600,000.00
Commercial drafts
CEL
Total 18,777,327.83 13,600,000.00

(4) FERRAAER HEENREXI M
s L U R AR ) 52 4

(4) As at the end of the year, no bills were reclassified to trade

receivables due to inability of the issuers to settle the bills.

(5) HEERERFHE L YR (5) Classification by the methods for making provisions for bad

debt
FERGBH
Balance as at the end of the year
Vil FR TET BB BEARYEM
Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt T
EH HB (%) & RHERLLH] (%) Book value
Amount Percentage (%) Amount Provision ratio (%)
T BLIEGT R IR e
Bad debt provision
made on individual
basis
A ETHE R
Bad debt provision 15,000,000.00 100.00 | 52,500.00 035 | 14,947,500.00
made on a collective
basis
Hofre BRERALS 1 15.000.000.00 100.00 | 52,500.00 0.35 | 14,947,500.00
Aging portfolio

I f A &

Low risk portfolio
A
Il:"of:l 15,000,000.00 100.00 | 52,500.00 — | 14,947,500.00

(&) (continued)
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LEAIERER
Balance as at the beginning of the year
- A BRI
Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt HE R
&M Al (%) S AHHELLE (%) Book value
Amount Percentage (%) Amount Provision ratio (%)
i HLIE G SRR e A
Bad debt provision
made on individual
basis
FAH ARt R IIR YA
Bad debt provision 20,700,000.00 100.00 | 60,030.00 029 | 20,639,970.00
made on a collective
basis
. HEEA4H A

it EE%.“ Aa . 20,700,000.00 100.00 60,030.00 0.29 20,639,970.00

Aging portfolio

IO b Al &

Low risk portfolio

a3t
Total 20,700,000.00 100.00 60,030.00 — 20,639,970.00

D AR IR B EIR

1) Bad debt provision for bills receivables made on a collective

basis
FERRE
HRES Balance as at the end of the year
Age S T B B BRAR YA ATIREA] (%)
Book balance Provision for bad debt Provision ratio (%)
! EU\W 15,000,000.00 52,500.00 0.35
Within 1 year
A3t
15,000,000.00 52,500.00 0.35

Total

Ak 1 BRSEARSEA IR S K S b 5
FAFER O BAEE E SRR H RS
B0 T SRR ST B SR 1 e AR A TRES AL
&, 2R IERCRER R FE R KT
SR LGRS BE IR K .

A 20 AR LR REUCEE IR

BEITE | 2N,

(6) AL dilal, & [a] i Bk
R EUR YA

Note 1: For the aging portfolio comprising the amounts of the
commercial drafts held as at the end of the year and the
commercial drafts discounted as at the end of the year but not
mature at the balance sheet date, the impairment losses of credit
are provided for with reference to the expected credit loss rates

for trade receivables.

Note 2: The age of the aforementioned bills receivables of the

Group as at the end of the year was within 1 year.

(6) Provisions for bad debt accrued, recovered and reversed for

bills receivables in the year
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AEEBH SR
a5l Bﬂf@ﬁ%@ﬁ ¢ Changes in the year B?*%%E ¢
alance as a . N alance as a
Category the beginning of =HE LEELT X HAh | the end of the
3 R d Written back
the year Accrued ecovered or ritten back | o year
reversed or written off
e S K S M 5
Commercial 60,030.00 | -7,530.00 52,500.00
drafts
&%t
Total 60,030.00 | -7,530.00 52,500.00
3. YR EK 3.Trade receivables
RH 2R EFARERER Balance a:fj‘)t]fig ﬁ inning of
Name of Items Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
JEE R K

Trade receivables

745,187,896.34

746,721,441.41

M BEHRYER

Less: Provision for bad debt

28,874,948.91

29,166,987.34

B

Net amount

716,312,947.43

717,554,454.07

(1) JEWIR 2 BR T 52 5 1% 70 45

(1) Accounts receivable by the method of provisioning for bad

Bl 7~ debt
FRERER
Balance as at the end of the year
BRI AR AR BREARYEA
gl Book balance Provision for bad debt
Classification k451 SHE BRTH/EAH
&HR (%) &4 (%) Book value
Amount Percentage Amount Provision ratio
(%) (%)

P HLTHE TSR R YE M
Bad debt provision 24,983,111.84 3.35 | 24,182,656.80 96.80 800,455.04
made on individual
basis
TR G ET PR Y E My
Bad debt provision 720,204,784.50 96.65 |  4,692,292.11 0.65 | 715,512,492.39
made on a collective
basis
Hor. FEEALH A
s HE%? Ala . 720,204,784.50 96.65 4,692,292.11 0.65 | 715,512,492.39

Aging portfolio
=
Total 745,187,896.34 100.00 | 28,874,948.91 — | 716,312,947.43
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2021

() (Continued)
EAIRRER
Balance as at the beginning of the year
SR THT &R AR BRARTEH
Lzl Book balance Provision for bad debt
Classification H 451 EHR 5 BT A
&H (%) &H (%) Book value
Amount Percentage Amount Provision ratio
(Y0) (%0)

B I SR AR Y
Bad debt provision 23,094,569.76 3.09 | 23,010,577.26 99.64 83,992.50
made on individual
basis
A AR BRARYE A
Bad debt provision 723,626,871.65 96.91 | 6,156,410.08 0.85 | 717,470,461.57
made on a collective
basis
Hr., ERES4H A
Hofs RS | g3 60687165 96.91 |  6,156,410.08 0.85 | 717,470,461.57

Aging portfolio
&5t
Total 746,721,441.41 100.00 | 29,166,987.34 — | 717,554,454.07

1) 7B IEHR ORI AR

1) Bad debt provision for trade receivables made on individual

basis

FEREGH
Balance as at the end of the year
- Ehezy: souEp v AHR LA
Company name B TH R R o (%) ATiREH
Book balance Provision for Provision Reasons for provision
bad debt .
ratio (%)
AP TR B R e AE
BT RN ZESEA IR 7] 2, HWIGRARE
Huizhou Dachuan 6,436,891.56 | 6,436,891.56 100.00 Default in overdue goods
Pharmacy Co., Ltd. payment, and involvement in a
number of litigations
A 5 i R K IR RE AR
[ R B R ZEH PR A 7 i, TEEAT R
Guangdong Wei’erkang 5,592,584.15 | 5,592,584.15 100.00 Default in overdue goods
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. payment, low expected
recoverability
%% P I R Bk IR R AE
YIRS LE AR A T 2, HWIGRARE
Shenzhen Yuanxin 3,007,101.83 3,007,101.83 100.00 Default in overdue goods
Pharmacy Co., Ltd. payment, and involvement in a
number of litigations
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ERERER
Balance as at the end of the year
B fr 4278 sogpg v AT LB
Company name HR THI B AR C (%) FHRE
Provision for . -
Book balance Provision Reasons for provision
bad debt 5
ratio (%)
A2 P R & s IR e AR
BT R BESEA TR A 7 #, HPIGRLARE
Huizhou Haichen 2,980,987.16 | 2,980,987.16 100.00 Default in overdue goods
Pharmacy Co., Ltd. payment, and involvement in a
number of litigations
e BLO WA (ER 7, At
}Eﬂ@’é FﬂYﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁi%{f EEA LI:I’VEE%{? jz IZITTI‘I&
A EREL (S
.. : 2,010,786.55 | 2,010,786.55 100.00 No cooperation relationship
Fujian Minzhe subsisting, low expected
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. & P
recoverability
RN HENAZE 3E 9% e A IR 2% P R &R IR e 1R
A 2, HPMGFLARE
Shenzhen Kangshun 1,276,999.48 | 1,276,999.48 100.00 Default in overdue goods
Pharmaceutical payment, and involvement in a
Development Co., Ltd. number of litigations
T TP PR R
VRYIT — B S TR ok e )
A - i, HPEmlRE
. 1,176,325.08 588,162.54 50.00 Default in overdue goods
Shenzhen Kind Care ayment, and involvement in a
Medicine Co.,Ltd. payment, and mv
number of litigations
AP TR BRI R B R
3 R B RV ZE S A R A ) 2, H¥MGRARE
Guangdong Guofeng 720,358.21 720,358.21 100.00 Default in overdue goods
Pharmacy Co., Ltd. payment, and involvement in a
number of litigations
3 RS2 bR ST )
AR AT Wiz, HIHEHR
Guangdong Kaizhilin 396,254.17 396,254.17 100.00 Clients involved in litigation,
Medicine Chainstore separate accruals
Co.,Ltd.
. e s 225 P R s IR e fH
RINT 35 REEE A IR A R f )
A T i, THEFA] RS
. 349,400.92 349,400.92 100.00 Default in overdue goods
Shenzhen Jinshoukang avment. low expected
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. pay’ , 10 p
recoverability
S TIT A R B ST B A R A P TR B e R BEAH
AR AT i, FEEA] AR
Ningde Xianghe 271,939.56 271,939.56 100.00 Default in overdue goods
Pharmaceutical Chain Co., payment, low expected
Ltd recoverability
—ha N I ﬁA BNy /E\—‘:‘ n
Al [ PR HR AT
y .. 256,600.00 128,300.00 50.00 No cooperation relationship
Guangzhou Kang’erjian subsisting, low expected
Pharmaceutical Co.,Ltd. & p
recoverability
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FERGRE
Balance as at the end of the year
B 44 E sogpg v aHR A
Company name SR TH] R 4R . (%) ATREH
Provision for . .
Book balance Provision Reasons for provision
bad debt .
ratio (%)
A5 5 I R B e IR RE AR
BT S 2GR A 2, HWGRARE
Huizhou Xinyi 136,077.54 136,077.54 100.00 Default in overdue goods
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. payment, and involvement in a
number of litigations
AP T R B R R REAH
TLPI R R EEH TR A 7 i, FHEAT AR
Jiangxi Jinsheng Medicine 104,626.38 104,626.38 100.00 Default in overdue goods
Limited payment, low expected
recoverability
AP TR R AR e 1H
i B, R A
N 266,179.25 182,186.75 68.45 Default in overdue goods
Others
payment, low expected
recoverability
aFf
H 24,983,111.84 | 24,182,656.80 — —
Total

2) FEAGEHR BRI AR E Ay

2) Bad debt provision for trade receivables made on a collective

basis
ERERER
R Balance as at the end of the year
Age TR K RARYER aHREH (%)
Trade receivables Provision for bad debt Provision ratio (%)

! EE U N 697,043,226.18 2,439,651.30 0.35
Within 1 year
1-2 4 23,125,099.54 2,224,634.58 9.62
1 to 2 years
2-3 4 36,122.01 27,669.46 76.60
2 to 3 years
3fELLL 336.77 336.77 100.00
Over 3 years
A
At 720,204,784.50 4,692,292.11 —
Total

(2) JERORAIEIRES 517

FEARANHN S 5 R, A SR I R
5 B A BUR AR 2 P 45 A
A A E A5 AR . AR [ ) e
J5 1) E AN R A R . 5 P — M

VYA DS ) NS CECR R

DA% il

(2) Accounts receivable by aging

Before accepting new customers, the Group assessed the credit

worthiness of potential clients and set corresponding credit

limits according to the internal credit assessment policies. The

Group applies different credit policies to different customers.

Credit period is generally six months. As for commodity sales,
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RS A i B A 2 EMSOIR A B 7 SR
ARG R, 0 BRIART SRES .

the trade receivables and operating revenue are recognized and

the age of the same is calculated after the control right has been

transferred to the buyers.

ERGH LEAIERER
Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
Rt EL Al . He4 ;
Age BEME | (%) I BT 84 (%) R
Provision for Provision for
Book balance | Percentage Book balance Percentage
bad debt bad debt
(o) (%)

! EEU‘W 698,261,162.04 93.70 3,069,424.63 695,596,183.09 93.15 2,159,815.83
Within 1 year
124 23,963,529.50 3.22 2,934,764.53 29,112,315.62 3.90 6,821,027.12
1 to 2 years
2-3 3,785,724.58 0.51 3,777,272.03 7,754,342.27 1.04 5,927,543.96
2 to 3 years
34D 19,177,480.22 2.57 19,093,487.72 14,258,600.43 1.91 14,258,600.43
More than 3 years
23l
Total 745,187,896.34 100.00 28,874,948.91 746,721,441.41 100.00 29,166,987.34

(3) AR5 RS R SRR T i 1 00

(3) Provisions for bad debts accounts receivable in the year

PR S
EXIEAZR Changes in the year R EREE
Balance as at the . &z [B] BR 4 [A] i gy A Balance as at the
o Atie . HAfth
beginning of the year Recovered or | Written back end of the year
Accrued . Others
reversed or written off
29,166,987.34 -277,601.73 14,400.00 36.70 28,874,948.91

(4) A RENCIR FAZ S 15 100

(4) Write-off of accounts receivable in the year

HH
Item

BAHE

Write—off amount

I B T & M A R 4R =
Haifeng County Pharmaceutical United Corporation thirteen stores of

medicinal materials

36.70

(5) R J5 B 4R I R R R BH AT

A I EOIR R

AR G TT SRR (R R BRER AT 144

JEE W B K BE AR

EHON A/ NRE

160,244,451.08 76, 15 MEWCIRFAE K
BREE A AT LB 21.50%, #HIERT
TRAIEIRVE ff R BRAHPE AR SR AN

L 560,855.58 TG

-180-

(5) Details of top five balances of trade receivables classified by

borrowers as at the end of the year

In 2021, the sum of accounts receivable of five borrowers with

the

largest closing balance of accounts receivable was

RMB160,244,451.08, 21.50% of the total closing balance of

accounts receivable. Accordingly, the bad debt provisions set

aside had a total closing balance of RMB560,855.58.
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4. JEWER AR 4.Accounts receivable financing

HH FEARBRER FHIERE

Item Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
LH 4 SN o E
PRAT AR ST 2 . 25,799,692.96
Bank acceptance bills
&5t

25,799,692.96
Total
5.FHATERIR 5.Prepayments
(1) TR IANRES (1) Aging of prepayments
FRERHR FHIEREE
JHH Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
Items BH Eel (%) &HR HeHl (%)
Amount Proportion(%) Amount Proportion(%)

! iU\W 306,956,890.05 98.33 252,225,722.68 99.39
Within 1 year
1-2 4F 5,143,311.04 1.65 1,395,388.38 0.55
1 to 2 years
234 800.98 0.00 89,754.86 0.04
2 to 3 years
3 UL 59,692.12 0.02 55,507.10 0.02
More than 3 years
a3t
Total 312,160,694.19 100.00 253,766,373.02 100.00

(2) HETAAT B 5 AR 1 4E R ER AR AT

FAA KT G D

AR TEAS B G SRR AR R BH AT 1L
GOVEAT RTERE 48 & FE A N IR
166,627,787.44 G, A5 FEATEKIEE K

(2) Details of top five balances of prepayments classified by

payees as at the end of the year

In 2021, the sum of prepayments from five companies with the
largest closing balance of prepayments by payee was
RMB166,627,787.44, 53.38% of the total closing balance of

EREHG T EU LU 53.38%. prepayments.
6. oAt WK 6.0ther receivables

HH AR Balance asjfj()tjffﬁaeginning of

Items Balance as at the end of the year

the year
JESCFI
Interests receivable
JREUS I A
Dividend receivable
H Eoe
”\@}‘@W?}\ 32,249,707.83 12,839,764.71
Other receivables
a5t
32,249,707.83 12,839,764.71

Total
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6.1 HoAth K

6.1 Other receivables

(1) HAth EBCR R IE 1 73 (1) Classification of other receivables by nature
IR AR Balance asﬂ;?gﬁﬁﬁe inning of
Nature of amounts Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
bR <5z 11,587,520.15 11,698,878.77
Deposit
43w B
FEAGK 20,000,000.00 3,859,961.37
Current accounts
N
fii <52 732,187.68 1,140,885.94
Reserve
HoAth
» 5,898.20 5,898.20
Others ’ ,
a3t
32,325,606.03 16,705,624.28
Total
W EHRVEMS
Less: Provision for bad debt 75,898.20 3,865,859.57
R 32,249,707.83 12,839,764.71
Net amount
(2) HAth BN ISR AT AT I (2) Provisions for bad debt of other receivables
BB HREB F=REB
First stage Second stage Third stage
—— A 2 EREN | REFANENGEAR | RECANENEAR | 4
Provision for bad debt fEHRR RORFEENR TR REHEERETRE) Total
12-month Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
expected credit credit loss (not credit loss (credit-
loss credit-impaired) impaired)
2021 41 /3 1 HERER
Balance on 1 January 2021 3,865,859.57 | - 3,865,859.57
2021 4E1 H 1 H
oAt REWSCR R T R AR A
Book balance of other 3,865,859.57 | 3,865,859.57
receivables on 1 January 2021 in
the year
NS RSB
--Transfer to the second stage
TN = BB
-- Transfer to the third stage
-] 5 R B
-- Reversed to the second stage
- 0] 5 — P B
-- Reversed to the first stage
A
Accrued for the year 70,000.00 70,000.00
Zlgiﬁiii;@ 161,833.78 161,833.78
Reversed in the year
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FRER B_RER H=REB
First stage Second stage Third stage
— fok 2 EATY | BEFEMENERE | EECENERERR | 4
Provision for bad debt ELEEEES ROREESHRE) REHERARE Total
12-month Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
expected credit credit loss (not credit loss (credit-
loss credit-impaired) impaired)
AR
Written off in the year
AENL
Cancelled in the year 3,698,127.59 | 3,698,127.59
Other changes
2021 4F 12 7 31 H&R%
Balance on 31 December 2021 70,000.00 5,898.20 75,898.20
(3) HAthESCGRIZIRES 717 (3) Aging analysis of other receivables
FEAREGRE FEAIEREH
Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
ARle =aii] BRARYEMR =] BEARYEA
Age R TH 8321 (%) Provision AR SR ER (%) Provision
Book balance | Percentage for Book balance | Percentage for
(%) bad debt (%) bad debt
! E U N 20,984,522.41 64.92 70,000.00 6,306,222.66 37.75 | 3,859,961.37
Within 1 year
1-2 4 1,026,193.42 3.17 145,709.62 0.87
1 to 2 years
2-3 4 90,300.00 0.28 1,603,200.00 9.60
2 to 3 years
34ELLE
More than 3 10,224,590.20 31.63 5,898.20 8,650,492.00 51.78 5,898.20
years
a3t
Total 32,325,606.03 100.00 75,898.20 | 16,705,624.28 100.00 | 3,865,859.57

(4) AAFFEEHHE. E CEfia)

(4) Provisions for bad debt accrued, reversed (or recovered) in

R VER S L the year
FEBEEH
SRR Changes in the year ERBE
Balance as at the - Wz [ B i ] i gy A i Balance as at the
beginning of the year ks Recovered or | Written back or ol end of the year
Accrued . Others
reversed written off
3,865,859.57 70,000.00 161,833.78 3,698,127.59 75,898.20
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v A SRR Y A i ] B ] B

Among them, the amount of bad debts that are prepared to be

B recovered or transferred back in the current year is important:
[ TEET e TERES REE T
The amount recovered The method of The reason for the
Company name
or reversed recovery recovery or reversal
TLERHT e A TR A A N T = 5 1
. b Ul o
Changzhou Weilong 161,833.78 bankruptcy liquidation
) Cash recovery o
Pharmaceutical Co.,Ltd. is reimbursed
a3t
- 161,833.78 — —
Total

(5) AF BB AZ S ) At sk

(5) Other receivables actually written off during the year

AT o B B 22
" wumickien | paiem | GRRE | REOBRES SRS
A2 TR The reason The written-off whether they
The nature of The amount of
Company name . . for the procedures arose from
other receivables the write-off .
write-off performed related party
transactions
HMTTE L 2 AR N S s H 35 i
PRI SRR T Py A -
ﬁ PR 2 ﬁ&& =)
MRS . . Current 3,393,805.61 Internal approval
Jilin Xinxian Lingzhi accounts Insolvency rocess No
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. P
TLHRHT B A IR A F] AR N LR e
e
Changzhou Weilong Current 304,321.98 Insolven Internal approval I\?
Pharmaceutical Co.,Ltd. accounts solvency process °
Gl
— 3,698,127.59 — — —
Total

(6) %R J5 i 4R X R R R B AT o

(6) Top 5 other receivables based on balances at the end of the

24 H A EOR R T year by debtors
i FoAth RESCR AR Bk N
AT P
FIEME FERGH (%) FERRE
HAr 5 Nature Balance as at HRi® ° Balance of
Company name of the end of the Age Percentage provision for bad
amounts year of total year-end debts at the end of
balances of other the vear
receivables (%) y
LA 8 A W FEAK .
Shantou Yuedong Pharmaceutical | Current 20,000,000.00 o 61.88 70,000.00
Within 1 year
Co., Ltd accounts
it T 4 W] B 2E AT PR ) e 34ELLE
Zhuhai Jinming Pharmacy Co., A 5,600,000.00 More than 3 17.32
Deposit
Ltd. years
BRI BE B EA TR A T IREYN 3L
Shenzhen Kingworld Medicine S 1,471,200.00 | More than 3 4.55
.S Deposit
Company Limited years
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o oAt RESCRR SR B N
- BRARYEM
A
BORIE | R et RLh paa
k: Xey Nature Balance as at IREE ° Balance of
Company name of the end of the Age Percentage provision for bad
of total year-end
amounts year debts at the end of
balances of other the vear
receivables (%) ¥
j B VST 1] 2% p
ﬁ%%lﬁ%m b S A TR - 34D
o , . e 1,050,000.00 | More than 3 3.25
Taiji Group Chongqing Fuling Deposit cars
Pharmacy Co., Ltd. Y
A S 4 T 2 T e Ve 4 o (e 34ELLE
Fujian Nan’an Lianhuafeng e 1,000,000.00 More than 3 3.09
. Deposit
Pharmaceutical Factory years
a3
— 29,121,200.00 — 90.09 70,000.00
Total
158 7.Inventories
(D fEE&SH (1) Classification of inventories
FREGH EXIERER
Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
RH BB T E B
Items BRI BREH Provision for BRI EAE BRI 8R4 Provision for BRTEEAE
Book balance inventory Book value Book balance inventory Book value
impairment impairment
JERAF T
Goods in 479,288,059.64 3,102,249.84 | 476,185,809.80 | 502,352,990.13 3,001,808.91 | 499,351,181.22
stock
B Lp s O
ettt g dh 32,970,616.57 32,970,616.57 85,657,695.50 85,657,695.50
Goods sold
PN
lT:loil 512,258,676.21 3,102,249.84 | 509,156,426.37 | 588,010,685.63 3,001,808.91 | 585,008,876.72
(2) 17 B EAE (2) Provision for inventory impairment
p—— ARG AR p——
2L Addition for the year Reduction for the year )
HH Balance as at ] R A Balance as at
R -~ o
Items the beginning st HAh Z $4# | the end of the
of the year Accrued Others Reversed or Others year
written back
xa H
Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ.nu 3,001,808.91 3,102,249.84 3,001,808.91 3,102,249.84
Goods in stock
&5t
Total 3,001,808.91 3,102,249.84 3,001,808.91 3,102,249.84

(3) AREMAEERGHEACE

KB E AL

capitalization of borrowing costs.

(3) The Group’s year-end balance of stocks does not include
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S HihREh & E 8.Other current assets
RH AR Balance asﬂj?gﬁiﬁe inning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
V= B VAR
I AR . 22,870,078.17 44,543,885.83
Input tax to be credited
/==
et 356,902.33 833,493.45
Deferred expenses
CEl
23,226,980.50 45,377,379.28
Total
9.FeEE 9.Fixed assets
A AR Balance asﬂjj‘)t]l% ﬁ inning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
=g {/—r
Eé}ﬁ%‘ 334,925,145.94 354,551,660.22
Fixed assets
B AETH I
Liquidation of fixed assets
£t
334,925,145.94 354,551,660.22
Total
9.1 [l & & & 9.1 Fixed assets
(1) [8 e & e B AR (1) Breakdown of fixed assets
HH ERREY AR R AR P
I Buildings and Machinery and Transportation Office o
tems . regs . Total
structures equipment facilities equipment
—. HRIHRAE
1. Original book value
LA ERER
1.Balance as at the beginning of | 329,848,603.45 90,745,331.24 17,809,785.77 | 9,514,035.93 | 447,917,756.39

the year

2 AR N2 B
2. Addition for the year

1,435,513.28 1,316,856.57 809,896.40 3,562,266.25

(D HE
(1) Purchase

1,435,513.28 1,316,856.57 | 809,896.40 |  3,562,266.25

3R> B HR
3. Reduction for the year

140,599.64 33,000.00 2,446,888.30 753,806.82 3,374,294.76

(1) bz B ok e

(1) Disposal or retirement

33,000.00 2,446,888.30 | 753,806.82 |  3,233,695.12

(2) Hpthmisb

. 140,599.64 140.599.64
(2) Other deduction 0,599.6 0,599.6
4 KA

4 Balance as at the end of the | 329,708,003.81 02,147,84452 | 16,679.754.04 | 9.570.125.51 | 448.105.727.88
year

—. REtie
II. Accumulated
depreciation
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HHE

Items

BRERY)

Buildings and
structures

S
Machinery and
equipment

RS
Transportation
facilities

N i)
Office
equipment

£t
Total

1A AR AR
1.Balance as at the beginning of
the year

44,256,892.75

31,778,934.07

8,798,819.24

8,531,450.11

93,366,096.17

QARG IR
2. Addition for the year

10,858,407.33

8,949,882.15

2,260,151.04

553,517.00

22,621,957.52

(D 72
(1) Accrue

10,858,407.33

8,949,882.15

2,260,151.04

553,517.00

22,621,957.52

3R S
3. Reduction for the year

22,843.09

2,049,938.48

734,690.18

2,807,471.75

(1) i B i o

(1) Disposal or retirement

22,843.09

2,049,938.48

734,690.18

2,807,471.75

(2) HoAtygsb
(2) Other deduction

4 R EREH
4 Balance as at the end of the
year

55,115,300.08

40,705,973.13

9,009,031.80

8,350,276.93

113,180,581.94

= R

1. Impairment provision

LAY R
1.Balance as at the beginning of
the year

2 ARG IR
2. Addition for the year

ARG A

3. Reduction for the year

4 EAREREH
4. Balance as at the end of the
year

VY. HRTHEE
IV . Book value

LAERAREEE
1.Book value at the end of the
year

274,592,703.73

51,441,871.39

7,670,722.24

1,219,848.58

334,925,145.94

2R B
2.Book value at the beginning
of the year

285,591,710.70

58,966,397.17

9,010,966.53

982,585.82

354,551,660.22

FE Ol ARG INE REtirE ., A
FHRANRBE 22,621,957.52 6. A

WIRCR

AT B TS A ARG A 1 2 S 2 DB

[ 8,966,138.34 Tt

af 20 [HE B ARSI UL R EES

46.

(2) ARSI AE R Iy PR B[ e

Note 1: Of the increase in accumulated depreciation for the

period, RMB 22,621,957.52 was recognized in the current

period. The decrease in the current period was mainly due to the

disposal of fixed assets. At the end of the period, the original

value of fully depreciated fixed assets still in use was

RMB8,966,138.34.

Note 2: For the fixed assets mortgage, see Note VI. 46.

(2) The Group has no fixed assets that are temporarily idle.
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(3) AEEANAF AL I8 I 48 2 AL B Al
P [ 52

(4) R RERs 11 e & A&

(3) The Group has no fixed assets leased out through operating

leases.

(4) Fixed assets without getting ownership certificate ready

HH

Items

Eiafistic]

Book value

Rz EEFERA
Reason for not getting ownership
certificate ready

BN 4 2 - PRIC I O
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Sorting and
Delivery Centre

135,273,012.92

P RERE
The certificate of right is being processed

£t

Total 135,273,012.92 —
10728 TR 10.Construction in progress

HH AR Balance asﬂj?t]ﬁiﬁeginning of

Item Balance as at the end of the year

the year
1

%Eiﬁjjé. ' 1,496,742.97
Construction in progress
P
kil 1,496,742.97
Total

10.1 7E& TFE
(1) fEETIEE

10.1Construction in progress

(1) Breakdown of construction-in-progress

AR FEHIRER
HE Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
ttems | FRETGRER | ERME | REARE | ey | WERE AR R
Book Provision for Book Provision for
. . Book balance . . Book value
balance impairment value impairment
HAth
1,496,742.97 1,496,742.97
Others
3t
1,496,742.97 1,496,742.97
Total
NEHERE 11.Right-of-use assets
HE BERERY At
Items Buildings and structures Total
— R A

I. Original book value

LAEAIERAR

1.Balance as at the beginning of the year

23,594,134.98

23,594,134.98

2 AN < AR
2. Addition for the year
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IHH

Items

BEEZEY

Buildings and structures

=11
Total

(D A
(1) New lease

3 AR B

3.Reduction for the year

(D EHE
(1) Disposal

4 R ERER

4.Balance as at the end of the year

23,594,134.98

23,594,134.98

. BEHheE

II. Accumulated depreciation

1A R

1.Balance as at the beginning of the year

7,142,493.98

7,142,493.98

2 ARSI N <A
2. Addition for the year

2,940,457.39

2,940,457.39

(1 7Hg
(1) Accrued

2,940,457.39

2,940,457.39

3R R
3.Reduction for the year

(D pHE
(1) Disposal

4 FARERHR

4.Balance as at the end of the year

10,082,951.37

10,082,951.37

= HRTEAE
III . Book value

LAE R AR THE (E
1.Book value at the end of the year

13,511,183.61

13,511,183.61

2 AR TR AE

2.Book value at the beginning of the year

16,451,641.00

16,451,641.00

1R.EREE
(1) M AN

12.Intangible assets
(1) Details of intangible assets

THH et fsE P

Items Land use rights

AT EMER

Computer
software

EF&IR
Customer
resources

3t
Total

— FRm R

L. Original book value

LW ERER
1.Balance as at the
beginning of the year

164,253,763.65

18,799,442.16 5,398,773.56

188,451,979.37

2 ARG N4 EH
2. Addition for the year

15,486.73

15,486.73

(O E
(1) Purchase

15,486.73

15,486.73

3ARAER D R
3. Reduction for the
year

2,700,943.40

2,700,943.40
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JHH

Items

et fak P

Land use rights

HES LG

Computer
software

EFE&IR
Customer
resources

L)
Total

(1) HoAthsb
(1) Other reduction

2,700,943.40

2,700,943.40

4R
4.Balance as at the end
of the year

164,253,763.65

18,814,928.89

2,697,830.16

185,766,522.70

. RETHEEH
II. Accumulated
amortization

1LAEHIEREA
1.Balance as at the
beginning of the year

28,781,188.09

7,422,838.42

56,352.99

36,260,379.50

2 A < A
2. Addition for the year

4,320,279.33

1,904,763.82

247,275.15

6,472,318.30

(1) FHE
(1) Accrued

4,320,279.33

1,904,763.82

247,275.15

6,472,318.30

R I N2 B R R
3. Reduction for the
year

(1) HoAthsb
(1) Other reduction

4 R ER%A
4 Balance as at the end
of the year

33,101,467.42

9,327,602.24

303,628.14

42,732,697.80

= DRI
III. Impairment
provision

1A ERER
1.Balance as at the
beginning of the year

2 A < AR
2. Addition for the year

R I N o R
3. Reduction for the
year

4 R EREA
4 .Balance as at the end
of the year

Vg, ARMEME
IV. Book value

LAERBRTEEE
1.Book value at the
end of the year

131,152,296.23

9,487,326.65

2,394,202.02

143,033,824.90

2 YRR EEAE
2.Book value at the
beginning of the year

135,472,575.56

11,376,603.74

5,342,420.57

152,191,599.87
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FF 1: 2020 4 11 H 26 H, ALK
A5 gt ) B SR R, B R
MHEZESER IR AR CRR “MafE” D
B L E () “BF &
V7 AHBH SIS AT P R e
ek 44 & T T 2%k P B IR 5
EA% R NS 4,716,981.13 JT. 2021
T R M FT SR AL % P B TR AL 5
wEEE. A S MG K TEM,
TR, EREEM AR, &
E R KT S HEAXRANRE
2,016,037.73 JT. AHE[HAH JE 5 AR
TR PEMIRIEM, FRESHRAR
5 2,700,943.40 7T

AE 2 A 2021 12 H 31 H, &
B B R A7 AE N ST 35 T B T B
FE o

At 3: METRE A HRATE U EE AN
46,

2021 FERE
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Note 1: On 26 November 2020, the Group entered into an asset
transfer agreement with Guangdong Baiye Pharmaceutical
Com., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as —Baje”) in relation to the
acquisition of Baiye’s operating assets (i.e. the —abnt
resources”) based on an appraisal report issued by Chungrui
Worldunion. The agreement specifies that the trading price of
the client resources is RMB 4,716,981.13. In 2021, as the
number of trading clients and monthly tax-inclusive sales of the
client resources provided by Baiye were not as expected, the
parties negotiated and re-signed a supplemental agreement,
agreeing that the final would be
RMB2,016,037.73. The Group adjusted the carrying value of
the intangible assets accordingly to RMB2,700,943.40.

transaction  price

Note 2: As at 31 December 2021, no intangible asset arose

through the internal research and development of the Group.

Note 3: For the pledge of intangible assets, please refer to Note
VI. 46.

13.F % 13.Goodwill
(1) FE (1) Original value of goodwill
YE />
AR Redi?;ﬂ&f;r the
SENIRRRE Addition for the period period SEREEE
PREEA 2 Balance as at Balance as at
. - PEEHIERK
Name of the investee | the beginning - the end of the
of the year As a result of HAh BE HoAth year
business Others | Disposal | Others
combination

B AIR ATFRE 1
Zhuhai Charmacy 4,567,297.19 4,567,297.19
Company Notel
MBS A A EE 1
Guangzhou 26,328.12 26,328.12
Charmacy Company
Notel
BB AR GE 1
Huizhou Charmacy 2,896,416.16 2,896,416.16
Company Notel
at 7,490,041.47 7,490,041.47
Total e O
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(2) PR Al

(2) Provision for impairment of goodwill

< JH 38 2 B>
N IR Addition for the Addition for the AR AR
W B B2 TR Balance as at the period period Balance as at
Name of the investee beginning of the = the end of the
e SR | Rt | mE | Kfe e
Accrued Others Disposal Others
BRI RIS A
Zhuhai Charmacy Company 1,465,937.31 1,465,937.31
Ji N A6 A ]
Guangzhou Charmacy
Company
BN A AT
Huizhou Charmacy Company
23l
1,465,937.31 1,465,937.31
Total

Af: AFEIA 2017 42 . 2017 4 6
H. 2020 4E 7 H oy Wi Bk A&
AT BEMBIEATF . BEMEIEAF
PIHE, IR T NRE 456.73 #
T, ANER® 263 o, NR#
289.64 EITIMRTE. MBENEE
A BLRA T B AR AR IR R — 3. A
SRR AR B R AT 1B AL, &
R, A EAEERAE I

Note: The Company acquired Zhuhai Charmacy Company,
Guangzhou Charmacy Company and Huizhou Charmacy
Company in February 2017, June 2017 and July 2020
respectively, resulting in a goodwill of RMB4.5673 million,
RMBO0.0263 million and RMB 2.8964 million. The asset group
a goodwill belongs to is the same with that at initial recognition
of the goodwill. The Group carried out an impairment test of
goodwill at the end of the year, finding no impairment in the

year.

14. 588 E A 14.Long-term expenses to be amortized
FUGE | kemwm | kemm | degews | TREE
IHH Balance as at the e N . Balance as at
.. Addition for Amortization Other reduction
Item beginning of the the end of the
the year for the year for the year
year year
A
%L%).ﬂ 8,085,530.37 12,857,595.63 1,728,465.12 19,214,660.88
Renovation costs
&t
Total 8,085,530.37 | 12,857,595.63 1,728,465.12 19,214,660.88

AE 1: 2021 4F, AEE[E SR R A M
T E AT T 8518, g
S 4 1,200.00 5T,
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Note 1: In 2021, the Group renovated its office building in
Nansha District, Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, with

additional renovation costs of approximately RMB12.0 million.
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and deferred income tax

B liabilities
(1) ARESHEEN R ST P 150 3 2 (1) Deferred income tax assets not offset
LEREREH EVIRRER
HH Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
Ltomms BEFEREE A R R BEFAREE GG R
Deferred income Deductible temporary Deferred income Deductible temporary
tax assets differences tax assets differences
G U Y
Provision for asset 8,026,399.26 32,105,596.95 9,023,671.47 36,094,685.82
Impairment
B B, 76,176.75 304,706.99 190,441.87 761,767.49
Government grants
ﬂ?ﬁﬁ?ﬂ}éﬁ}ﬁ 57,743.53 230,974.12 78,521.43 314,085.71
Deductible losses
e
Total 8,160,319.54 32,641,278.06 9,292,634.77 37,170,539.02

(2) RAEHRSHHIELE Frg it A fE

(2) Deferred income tax liabilities not offset

FERGBH IR
HH Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
Lo BEFERAR | BARTRIEZER | BEAARAR | EARTEEER
Deferred income Taxable temporary Deferred income Taxable temporary
tax liabilities differences tax liabilities differences
R TR N HSH E R 2
Unrealized internal sales 390,019.44 1,560,077.77 298,566.95 1,194,267.80
gains and losses
e —EH RGO E
RN
Asset assessment gains 12,890.18 51,560.69 12,890.18 51,560.69
arising from business
combinations not under
common control
it
Total 402,909.62 1,611,638.46 311,457.13 1,245,828.49

(3) RHIERIEIEFTAFHE 2 B4

(3) Breakdown of unrecognised deferred income tax assets

RH PR Balance asﬂ:f)gffiﬁeginning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year
the year
AR AT Ry 22 52
Deductible temporary differences
RELSLEES 10, 395, 716. 74 4,682, 981. 44
Deductible losses
5t
10, 395, 716. 74 4,682, 981. 44

Total
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(4) AR 58 IR SE P 45 B 8 1) Ml 31K

PG HEHS I LA 52 2 21 ]

(4) Deductible losses of unrecognised deferred income tax

assets will become due in the following years

Fh FREH FHIEH et
Year Year-end amount Year-beginning amount | Additional information
2022 4
2022
2023 4
2023
2024 4
2004 3,130,920.09 3,130,920.09
2025 4
2025 1,552,061.35 1,552,061.35
2026 4F
2026 5,712,735.30
&3t
10,395,716.74 4,682,981.44 —
Total
16. 553582 16.Short-term borrowings
(1) LM 7 H (1) Types of borrowings
e R IR
. Balance as at the beginning of
Types of borrowings Balance as at the end of the year
the year
(EVEREEN

Credit borrowings

60,115,981.25

89,266,365.10

TREE AL

Guaranteed borrowings

265,327,763.35

202,852,488.75

TR
FRAfEEK ' 138,710,365.07 148,594,522.04
Secured borrowings

J57

e 70,266,291.68 76,721,056.28
Pledged borrowings

JRE ST SR U T K
Borrowings from discounted bills
receivables

133,618,874.72

18,484,640.00

£
Total

668,039,276.07

535,919,072.17

(2) AR FERRAAE DR

(2) The Group had no overdue short-term borrowings at the end

18 B R A 3K of the year.
17.JBfTEE 17.Bills payables
IR PR Balance asﬂj?t]ff l%;Ee inning of
Classification of bills Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year

LH 4 AN HE
SATASTRER 809,768,308.81 938,611,254.96
Bank acceptance bills
&5

809,768,308.81 938,611,254.96
Total
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Note: As at the end of the year, the age of the aforementioned

bills payables of the Group was within 1 year.

18. JEATERZR 18.Trade payables
(1) JEfTHEREK (1) Trade payables
A H AR Balance a:f?t:ffiﬁeginning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year
the year
B
7 525,003,330.09 550,254,913.32
Loans
=)L (L
nﬂﬁiw\ 7,856,953.98 13,371,029.16
Equipment costs
R By
A R K 6,200,592.62
Transfer of assets
&Rt
532,860,284.07 569,826,535.10

Total

(2) JEAHHIRAIRES 70 BT

A 2021 4 12 A 31 H, JEAHRRIE

A2 oy H IR E A n 1 -

(2) Aging analysis of trade payables

Below is an aging analysis of trade payables based on

transaction date as at 31 December 2021:

A FARERER Balance asﬂj?tjffiﬁe inning of
Age Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
! %EI./J‘I)\J 530,047,558.14 567,810,738.30
Within 1 year
1-2 4 2,040,818.31 890,901.02
1 to 2 years
23 % 308,387.62 757,753.60
2 to 3 years
3 4EELE 463,520.00 367,142.18
More than 3 years
aat
532,860,284.07 569,826,535.10

Total

Al AR R 6 B — A 10 AT IR

Note: Accounts payable aged over one year of the Group are

mainly unsettled trade payables.
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196 F&E 19.Contract liabilities
(D FFRAFT (1) Contract liabilities
RH AR Balance asﬂjﬁﬁiﬁeginning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year
the year
A L
Sk 46,664,141.17 5,013,052.93
Payment for goods
ot
46,664,141.17 5,013,052.93

Total

SEe A 2021 4FE 12 A 31 H, A&EH
MARES S 1| FULEWEREGRA

contract liabilities aged over 1 year.

Note: As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant

.
20.Salaries payable to employees
20. & AT B8 T 5 B (1) Classification of salaries payable to employees
(1) ML T3 7> 5
IR KA KERD AU
HH Balance as at the o . Balance as at
.. Addition for the Reduction for
Items beginning of the the end of the
year the year
year year
T "
RSN . 5,788,619.82 69,658,853.25 70,267,335.04 5,180,138.03
Short-term remuneration
BIEIAZ AR A -0 E SR A7 AT 1
Post-employment benefits — 5,335,677.44 5,335,677.44
Defined contribution plan
R IR AR A
Termination benefits
A N B A AR A
Other benefits due within
one year
CE
Total 5,788,619.82 74,994,530.69 75,603,012.48 5,180,138.03
(2) %5 335 T (2) Short-term remuneration
E s B e HEEWD R
.. Addition for the Reduction for | Balance as at the
Items beginning of the
year the year end of the year
year
T&. 884, RIS
Salaries, bonuses, 5,730,367.82 59,331,560.86 59,938,417.01 5,123,511.67
allowances and subsidies
Rk T 35
L il 5% 5,580,067.27 5,580,067.27
Staff welfare payments
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Items beginning of the Addition for the Reduction for Balance as at the
g g year the year end of the year
year
- (R 2
t > {%E“ = . 2,403,179.49 2,403,179.49
Social insurance premiums
Hrp: Bm{rbn &
Of which: medical 2,062,633.65 2,062,633.65
insurance premium
TR
In dustrial injury 23,596.89 23,596.89
insurance premium
A B PR b
Maternity insurance 316,948.95 316,948.95
premium
A
L5 A 1,601,603.00 1,601,603.00
Housing provident fund
TER M LA H
Labor union expenses and 58,252.00 713,681.28 715,306.92 56,626.36
staff education expenses
JoL I i i
Short-term paid absences
LRI St
Short-term profit sharing
program
HoAth
- 28,761.35 28,761.35
Others ’ ’
a3t
Total 5,788,619.82 69,658,853.25 70,267,335.04 5,180,138.03

(3) e Pesrt#l

AN B2 E 2 INBUR RS RO 1AL
ERbEEE RIEET ), AL
T HBUG AT Bl M€ 170 R S5t Ay
B Br aRsier B AN, AREREA
PRI D3 8. BRSO
JA S AR IR R TN S HR 2 R ) A
Ao ASEEALELE T 1 A 2 DR EE
REEORFRET BT BT AR -

(3) Defined contribution plan

The Group participated in social insurance plans operated by the
government authorities according to the regulations. Pursuant to
the plans, the Group made contributions to those plans in
compliance with the relevant provisions of local government
authorities. Apart from the aforesaid contributions, the Group
assumed no further payment obligations. The corresponding
expenses shall be credited to the profit or loss for the period or
the cost of related assets when incurred. The Group’s
contributions payable to pension insurance plan and
unemployment insurance plan for the year are respectively as

follows:
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A IR AL AR ERBR
A Balance as at the Addition for the | Reduction for the | Balance as at the
Items o .
beginning of the year year year end of the year
BN A
Basic pension 5,264,869.11 5,264,869.11
insurance
R E R R
Unemployment 70,808.33 70,808.33
insurance premium
CE
5,335,677.44 5,335,677.44
Total

AE 1e AR B ) 2 B R OE
A # B B OH AR K
5,335,677.44 Jt. Ji* 2021 4 12 H 31
H, AEEGHSENT%EE R ATL
SEIRB LA AR S A e 5

BE 2. FAERE 2021 4 12 A 31 Hik
TEIE, RS A TUE ARG #ITE TR 1)
B IR AR B2 R B a4
LR AT FT # R 2D AT A S

e A7

PRI AT KT

Note 1: The Group’s contribution payable to the defined
contribution plan that the Group participated in amounted to
RMB5,335,677.44. The pension insurance and unemployment

insurance ,which was fully paid as at 31 December 2021.

Note 2: For the year end 31 December 2021, the Group has no
forfeited contribution (for employers on behalf of employees
who leave the plan before fully attributing the contribution)

under the defined contribution plan are available to the Group to

reduce the existing level of contributions

21 B & 21.Tax payables
HHE FARGHR FHIREE
Items Balance as at the end of the year | Balance as at the beginning of the year
BIER 37,521,680.24 43,642,419.74
VAT b b b b
A R E
JL%FE&& 6,407,752.76 14,284,219.38
Enterprise income tax
=i
M8\t £ 83,035.55 76,116.86
Individual income tax
VR 34,695.43 90,529.94
Property taxes
EIAER 373,372.52 313,317.87
Stamp duty
Il T A R A
Urban maintenance and 79,444.38 82,651.86
construction tax
'Z‘:\‘ N
A H EHN 56,968.58 59,037.05
Education surcharge
H AR . 1,050.00 1,050.00
Local education surcharge
&3t
44,557,999.46 58,549,342.70
Total
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22 HAh EATER 22.0ther payables
H R IR
Balance as at the beginning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year the year
JEATHILE
Interest payables
JEA A
Dividend payables
H S
HARIERT 11,030,236.31 13,765,328.93
Other payables
PN
et 11,030,236.31 13,765,328.93
Total

22.1 HAw AT K
(1) HoAth A A2 R TE & o 45

22.1. Other payables

(1) Classification of other payables by nature of payment

ETe R ERE
Balance as at the beginning of
Nature of payment Balance as at the end of the year
the year
27¢ A
bt 52 5,293,212.78 7,851,287.63
Margin
PN
S 4,386,817.89 4,193,008.98
Intermediary expenses
EE 207,748.72 824,694.99
Transportation costs
3 i 2o 2
e R 3K 407,535.18 468,852.24
Equity transfers
FoAt
734,921.74 427,485.09
Others
£t
11,030,236.31 13,765,328.93
Total
(2) PRHES AR 1 4 () B A AT K (2) Significant other payables aged over 1 year
8 B B TR SR

- Ehey

Name of entity

ARG

Balance as at the
end of the year

Reasons for not
being repaid or
carried forward

59T B R AT 2 % P Mol A1 ) 5 A R

. 3,393,009.00 R
Squire Patton Boggs Settlement period is not yet due
R LESE T A R A ) N

{% LA 7

Kangze Pharmaceutical Chains 2,250,000.00 D = it
Co., Ltd. epos
VAR N B gE (ERD B AR
INE 27y
anl , 650,000.00 B
Guangxi Wuzhou Pharmaceutical Deposit

(Group) Co., Ltd.
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B4

Name of entity

RAE 1B B A R A
EAREGRER Reasons for not
being repaid or
carried forward

Balance as at the
end of the year

ISE T R 22 B G5 A TR 7]

N TR
Shantou Qiaoyin Great Pharmacy 450,000.00 Denosit
Chain Co., Ltd. P
SRIETE 407.535.18 MR IR
Yin Lihua AR Settlement period is not yet due
=L
" 7,150,544.18 —
Total

23.—F RN IERE) A &

23.Non-current liabilities due within one year

HH AR Balance asﬂjj‘)t]l%ﬁ inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
— AR N EI )RR
Long-term borrowings due within 31,783,826.75 31,835,266.89
one year
—HENEIHIRAEE A
Lease liabilities due within one 2,974,226.92 2,685,301.66
year
=
34,758,053.67 34,520,568.55

Total

at: AEMBEEABERHE TN Note: The closing book value of the Group’s lease liabilities due

P E T LIS E A E A E M RR for settlement within one year from the balance sheet date is
HEME, &£ “—FERNBEIERE & reflected in the item “Non-current liabilities due within one
&7 THH k. year” .
24 FHADFRENAE 24. Other current liabilities

HH AR Balance asﬂj?tjli% ?;Eé inning of

Item Balance as at the end of the year g g

the year

RPHE B TH Fi 45
The amount of tax to be reselled 6,066,338.36
aat 6,066,338.36
Total T
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(1) Classification of long-term borrowings

ferE KA R
. Balance as at the beginning of
Types of borrowings Balance as at the end of the year
the year

4L f
KA ik . 118,651,241.79 150,290,837.33
Secured borrowings
it 118,651,241.79 150,290,837.33
Subtotal

W N REER
Less: long-term borrowings due
within one year

31,783,826.75

31,835,266.89

A5t
Total

86,867,415.04

118,455,570.44

RE: 2018 4E 8 H 15 H, A2
A PR A =) B ] TR SRAT I A PR
AT FE R E W E 5 e S v AT 5
F (e B EMRERD) , WaRAE

B & 1 2R M D 7 PRI 1A

L IH H 2R

(2) RIPHEREBH 7347

Note: On 15 August 2018, Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
signed the Fixed Assets Loan Contract {( [&E & EME KA
[7]) ) with the Nansha Branch in Guangdong Pilot Free Trade
Zone of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited. The

loan funds agreed in the agreement are mainly used for the

construction of Guangzhou Nansha Sorting and Delivery Centre

project.

(2) Analysis of long-term borrowings’ maturity date

THH

Items

FREH

Balance as at the end of the year

YIS

Balance as at the beginning of
the year

HEARKRHE FN
Within one year after the balance
sheet date

31,783,826.75

31,835,266.89

HE AR NREE—F, HA
A i T

Over one year but not more than
two years after the balance sheet
date

31,588,152.92

31,588,152.92

& AR R EIE RS, HA
e T4

Over two years but not more than
five years after the balance sheet
date

55,279,262.12

86,867,417.52

B AR DRI T
Over five years after the balance
sheet date
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HH AR Balance asﬂ;t*)t]lfﬁ inning of
Items Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year

W WENABIE T PR —F N E
HA (4 e
HIHIRIR C o 31,783,826.75 31,835,266.89
Less: Current liabilities due within
one year
R E) & EIE T FrasakIR
Amounts shown under non- 86,867,415.04 118,455,570.44
current liabilities
ab: NI RIS R CE S Note: The long-term borrowings due within one year have been
2 CFENFNAEREIARK” , 2 reclassified to —noscurrent liabilities due within one year” as
FARBEES. 23, shown in Note VI. 23.
26 HHE AR 26.Lease liabilities

HH AR Balance asﬂ;?t]lf ﬁﬁe inning of

Items Balance as at the end of the year g g

the year
BE AR HRE 18
First year after the balance sheet 3,726,243.13 3,592,344.76
date
B E AR HRE 2 8
Second year after the balance sheet 3,736,689.52 3,722,741.39
date
B AR HARY 3 4F
Third year after the balance sheet 3,300,800.04 3,736,689.52
date
UM 6,900,760.13 10,072,302.76
Subsequent years
2 A

%ﬂi&iﬁjﬁﬁ HERART 17,664,492.82 21,124,078.43
Total minimum lease payments
e 277 iy 7
e AHERR S . 2,200,531.27 3,107,574.36
Less: finance costs not recognized
BRARH S FHAEFIE
Present value of minimum lease 15,463,961.55 18,016,504.07
payments
Hrr: — BN E &6
Including: lease liabilities due 2,974,226.92 2,685,301.66
within one year
—FR BB E A H
Lease liabilities due after one 12,489,734.63 15,331,202.41
year

B —ENEEIMEE A O E S Note: The lease liabilities due within one year have been

FC—ENFNAEREIARK” , 2 reclassified to —noscurrent liabilities due within one year” as
FAREESS, 23 shown in Note VI1.23.
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27 BFEY AR 27.Deferred income
(1) IRAEY 25 53 %5 (1) Classification of deferred income
Tl Ammm | kmws | BB m e
HH Balance as at o . Balance as at
s . Addition for Reduction for Reason for
Item the beginning the end of the .
the year the year formation
of the year year
BURA#H B B 5 2 AH Il
Government 761,767.49 457,060.50 304,706.99 Related to
grants assets
CE
761,767.49 457,060.50 304,706.99 —
Total
(2) BUNHEBLIEH (2) Government grant program
a2 AEEMIR
=1 W < /
g |20 EEEOER | st | A s | e |
BUF#EEIIRE | Balance as at o - e | &4
G .. | Addition | Included in . #a) Balance at Asset-
overnment |the beginning . Included in | Amount
of grant | Non-operating . Other |[the end of the| related/
grant program of the P . other income | of costs
or the income .. |changes year Revenue-
year for the year | offset in
year for the year the year related
VAR EALIHH
BUR Al B ;
Government B AR A
grants for 761,767.49 457,060.50 304,706.99 | Related to
logistics assets
standardization
program
a3t
761,767.49 457,060.50 304,706.99 —
Total
28.Jf A= 28.Share capital
AEBEIGR (+. -
EX R Increase/decrease in the year (+, -) HEREREE
HH Balance as at | FTHK B ATBELE Balance as at
Item thefbeginning Issuance | o Shares transferred | At /Nt the end of the
of the year of new honus from surplus Others | Subtotal year
shares shares reserve
e 4 HH
Total number of shares 108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
&t 108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
Total T U

Ak 2021 4F, WhAIRE o Eds e A
1 13.66% Al 3% 8& 3£ | [ i HE
(14,750,000.00 %) HHREAGTIFE
+ (bR LR , R
AL A ARG (. -

He

ASN

Note: In 2021, Mr. Yao Chuanglong transferred his 13.66%
equity interest in Charmacy Pharmaceutical. (14,750,000.00

shares) to Ms. You Zeyan (the spouse of Mr. Yao Chuanglong).

equity capital —icrease/decrease in the year(+, -)”.

There are no impact of the equity transfer transaction on the
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29. & A NTR 29.Capital reserve
AR K4 KD SR AR
IRH Balance as at the .. .
. . Addition for Reduction for Balance as at the
Items beginning of the
year the year the year end of the year
s Ny il
WA 278,001,901.04 278,001,901.04
Share premium
HAE AR ANTE
Other capital 988,928.00 988,928.00
reserve
£
Total 278,990,829.04 278,990,829.04
30. B A 30.Surplus reserve
AR K48 KERD SR
IHH Balance as at the o .
Item beginning of the Addition for the Reduction for the Balance as at the
year year year end of the year
e B ATE
Statutory surplus 18,439,830.70 2,640,601.64 21,080,432.34
reserve
A%t
Total 18,439,830.70 2,640,601.64 21,080,432.34

Al AEEREHNNINVE E B 0k A TR IR
AEEFEREA AN 10%51 2.

Note: Additional statutory surplus reserve for the year was

accrued by 10% of net profit of parent company for the year.

31 K45 EERE 31.Undistributed profits
= FERER R
Amount for the Amount for last
Items
year year
LR AR 97,118,259.82 80,869,499.06
Balance at the end of last year
1 P 2% 1 B S I3
Add: Adjustment to the balance of undistributed profit at the
beginning of the year
AR 97,118,259.82 80,869,499.06

Balance at the beginning of the year

TN AR SRR A BE A B B 2 VR
Add: Net profit attributable to the owners of the parent company

for the year

23,153,060.07

40,555,965.43

W RMUEE BER AT

Less: Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve

2,640,601.64

2,707,204.67
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REZERH B
Amount for the Amount for last
year year

A 3

(Note)

21,600,000.00

21,600,000.00

Dividends payable on ordinary shares

MR A [0 3 3 s P )

Dividends on ordinary shares converted to share capital

AR R R

Balance at the end of the year

96,030,718.25 97,118,259.82

AE: AT SR BRI IRAT A R
()i SR g I

(a)B % 2020 4F 12 f 31 HiE4FRE
R 2020 4F 5 H 24 HABMRI#EE
2019 4 12 H 31 HIEFEEBRHE K
FREE, BARRERIREREAN
R 02 o (FHD LSRR
HIR 2019 FARBKE, GaFHAR
W 2,160.00 T

(b) #&ZE 2021 4F 12 H 31 H LR
MR 2021 42 5 H 31 HABMR#EZE
2020 4= 12 H 31 HIEEERBHR K
TFREE, BARIRERIREREAN
RMs 0.2 o6 (EHD MHEMER LR H
HIR 2020 FARBKE, GEFRAR
1 2,160.00 0.

2BRWAN. BEHL
(1) 83O SE AR L

Note: See below for details of dividends announced to distribute
and distributed and to be distributed in relevant periods:

(a) For the year ended 31 December 2020

As per the resolution adopted at the Annual General Meeting for
2019 which was held on 24 May 2020, your company
announced to distribute dividends for the year 2019 to your
shareholders at RMBO0.2 (before tax) per share, totalling at
RMB21.6 million.

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2021

As per the resolution adopted at the Annual General Meeting for
2020 which was held on 31 May 2021, your company
announced to distribute dividends for the year 2020 to your
shareholders at RMBO0.2 (before tax) per share, totalling at
RMB21.6 million.

32.0perating revenue and operating cost

(1)Basic information on business revenue and business expenses

AFEHAR AR
IEH Amount for the year Amount for last year
Items LON A LON BRA
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
S . 3,763,064,314.48 3,556,398,664.23 3,962,210,247.45 3,751,305,696.45
Principal businesses
oA 275
“mj‘;'@ﬁ. 30,553,405.55 29,500,276.91
Other businesses
aat
Total 3,793,617,720.03 3,556,398,664.23 3,991,710,524.36 3,751,305,696.45
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(2) &Rl E LN BT D

(2) Information on revenue generated from contracts

EHE>E AR LB
Contract classification Amount in current year Amount in prior year
[GLE St
Types of products

b ZERLEHE RN
Where:Revenue from
pharmaceutical sales

3,763,064,314.48

3,962,210,247.45

At st AR B WO
Revenue from consultancy
services

27,582,773.03

28,020,948.77

FH=TrYN
Revenue from third-party
logistics

2,970,632.52

1,479,328.14

BREBEME R

By region of operation

Horp: 3w Hh
Where: South China

3,720,809,040.94

3,949,913,920.07

HEH b [
East China

48,066,657.34

21,213,187.08

Fofd bl

Other regions

24,742,021.75

20,583,417.21

HHEEESS

By sales channel

Hp, AR THE
Where: Offline sales

3,686,362,090.33

3,877,683,190.20

%J:%% 107,255,629.70 114,027,334.16
Online sales
GE
3,793,617,720.03 3,991,710,524.36
Total
33808 K n 33.Taxes and surcharges
HH IR AR
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year
PR 3,966,857.22 3,056,170.96
Property tax
EIAER 2,942,114.15 2,088,220.79
Stamp duty
BT S S AN
Urban maintenance and 815,671.04 854,025.29
construction tax
'Z‘:\‘ 5|
AR %Mﬂm 583,795.68 610,018.02
Education surcharge
A A 328,159.54 328,159.54

Tax on land use
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THH A FARR LR
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year
AR
Vehicle and vessel tax 17,097.23 24,409.34
i 2
SABER AR : 4,200.00 4,200.00
Environment protection tax
Rt
" 8,657,894.86 6,965,203.94
Total
3438 EH 34.Selling expenses
THH AR FARE AR
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year
il . 52,784,750.09 48,691,485.10
Staff remuneration
N VAN
Tk 14,821,976.80 12,732,772.78
Transportation costs
B 0 5
ek \g&.ﬂ% . 19,462,963.85 11,450,650.89
Depreciation and amortization
XY
Promotion and advertising 9,097,556.65 3,767,940.85
expenses
e /N
ks 5,399,769.38 8,077,144.57
Office expenses
Ny k7 477 4
%E%.Tuﬁgz . 622,474.32 340,853.15
Business entertainment expenses
Ste M
EMRE 277,874.55 302,650.71
Travelling expenses
FoAt
860,623.82 552,409.91
Others
it
103,327,989.46 85,915,907.96
Total
5. EHER 35.Management expenses
THH AR AR
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year
ML M . 22,209,780.60 19,800,935.51
Staff remuneration
2 B
TS \ﬁﬁ.ﬂ% o 13,592,900.60 13,759,854.44
Depreciation and amortization
i I\
o 7,330,010.38 6,608,969.23
Office expenses
HEEE A b &
Expenses on engaging 2,732,491.74 3,365,881.69

intermediary agencies
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HH FEEFRAERR AR
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year
Forbre AT
Of which: Auditor’s remuneration 850,000.00 800,000.00
S B
_%”1‘5&?% = 850,000.00 800,000.00
— Audit service expenses
Poopns]
ﬁgj’a% 2,202,709.34 1,872,364.75
Loss on inventory
2k 177 4t
%ﬁ}hﬁ% . 147,391.48 86,917.18
Business entertainment expenses
B
Promotion and advertising 120,841.29 58,946.32
expenses
%ﬁ’ﬁﬁ 110,327.71 131,373.04
Travelling expenses
HoAth
76,574.70 73,246.71
Others
£
48,523,027.84 45,758,488.87
Total
36. 4% EH 36.Finance costs
THH FEEFHAERR hEEFARR
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year
|JS!
M3 40,609,536.96 30,856,814.90
Interest expenses
W FE
e AR WA 3,798,241.18 4,021,645.59
Less: Interest income
e BESEAE R
- -1 15. -16,477.44
Add: Loss on foreign exchange 39,015.35 6,477
hn: FHEE
Add: Handling fees 4,705,476.86 4,731,031.39
. MEAEHNE
Add: Interest on lease liabilities 907,519.62 882,596.91
a3t
42,285,076.91 32,432,320.17
Total
37. KA 37.0Other gains
JEH FEEFRAERR iyt 2|
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year

Yo AL TH H BUR B

Government grants for logistics 457,060.50 457,060.50
standardization program
N > 4 4 4 B 05 m

(AT N\ T B P4 i 66,654.59 224302.16
Individual income tax fee refund
=

523,715.09 681,362.66
Total
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38 B 38. Return on investment
HH A EEBHAR
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
52 oy 1 < R E AE 45 A 39T 10
Bt
Return on investment in a trading 23.25
financial asset during the period
of holding
et
[=R=]
Total 23.25
395 HREIR R 39.Impairment loss of credit
THH FEEFHAERR AR
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year

TS SR BRI AR R

Loss of bad debts in bills -7,530.00 15,457.00
receivable
JEW R AR %
Loss of bad debts in accounts -292,001.73 11,368,591.58
receivable
HoAth EWCRIEIR IR 2R
Loss of bad debts in bills -91,833.78 3,859,961.37
receivable in other receivables
a3t
-391,365.51 15,244,009.95
Total
40.3% EJREER R 40.Impairment loss of assets
THH AR AR hEEFHARE
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
Faa =
17 EE%E%E%E% ' ' 3,102,249.84 3,001,808.91
Loss on impairment of inventories
a3t
3,102,249.84 3,001,808.91
Total
. BERERRT 41.Gains on disposal of assets
EE AEFAEHR AR IR IR T IR A &HR
I Amount for the | Amount for last | Amount charged to non-recurring
tems
year year profit or loss for the year
FERED A A i B WA
Gains on disposal of 149,987.17 18,110.52 149,987.17
noncurrent assets
Hr: R#EID HFHRER
JEVRENE £ R BN 149,987.17 18,110.52 149,987.17
Of which: Gains on disposal of

-209-



2/ NEREBRHRERDD

@ cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

EH REZER AR AR FEIERE BRI EER
Ttems Amount for the | Amount for last | Amount charged to non-recurring
year year profit or loss for the year
non-current assets
that are not classified
as held for sale
52 W4 7 L 2
Gains on disposal of 149,987.17 18,110.52 149,987.17
fixed assets
a3t
Total 149,987.17 18,110.52 149,987.17
Q283N 42.Non-operating revenue
(1) & 3EAMNBHAT (1) Breakdown of non-operating income
SRR R PR
HH KRR FERAR Lo BEs
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year mounts Included m

non-recurring profit
and loss for the year

BUR A )

Government grants

733,039.15

2,992,821.89

733,039.15

HAth
Others

29,063.08

100,584.10

29,063.08

a3t
Total

762,102.23

3,093,405.99

762,102.23

(2) FENEFHR BUN B

(2) The government subsidies that are included in the profit and

loss for the year

MERTHEY | o oren A/
BHRA | g L WY AERESE beghem | SN
METHE £33 e Reason Whether the . Relevant to
. N . Type and . Whether it’s | Amount for | Amount for
Subsidy Issuing entity for subsidy affects the . assets/
. nature special current year last year
issuance profit and loss for Relevant to
allowance
the year revenue
MRBTEREOR | TR RIS
NEMFEFEE | EEEEGE
JRIRFF B G F /NS
Enterprise General Office of FFEH s Bl 2%

; ; S S SR 25 AR
Sustainable Party and R BorrmR 5| & G 400,000.00 Relevant to
Development Government Subsidy JEE SR No No revenue
Support Fund of Affairs, Zumiao B BT
the Financing Street, Chancheng TR )

Office of Zumiao District, Foshan Y
. Subsidies
Street City .
- received for
REREIE (N compliance
£ e [T, ith local
FO BBt with loca
IR R OCEITTE BT
Programme for Financing Bureau po]‘1c1es such sz
supporting policies | ¢ Guanggzhou s %S Investment 7 7 SRS R AH
and incentives to . . |promotion by 184,000.00 250,000.00 | Relevant to
Nansha Economic | Incentive |} . No No
promote the and Technological revenue
development of governments
Development
the trade and Zone
commerce sector
(domestic trade)
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RERBHEE BT SR A/
. X . Type and yhiether the Whether it’s | Amount for | Amount for elevant to
Subsidy Issuing entity for nature subsidy affects the special current year last year assets/
issuance profit and loss for P Relevant to
the year allowance revenue
TR T 1L i
WEFHEBEE  |[BRETEMEN
PR BIAE 4 R y
Special funds of Bureau of o~ = = BRUS ZAH B
X THHG 5 5
Xiangzhou Commerce, - 80,916.52 Relevant to
o8 . . Subsidy No No
District, Zhuhai Xiangzhou revenue
City for promoting |District, Zhuhai
e-commerce City
development
o L TR
WAAERIEAN | IR R
B ORA G e J=y N
Social security Human Resources Fn x5 = SR 2 AR
subsidy f(_>r hiring  |and ngal Subsidy No No 22,526.40 Relevant to
people with Security Bureau revenue
employment of Chancheng
difficulties District, Foshan
City
BT R SE TRRR
€ 1 AL HS
Shantou City JEAETHR = . B 2%
subsidy for ISRATA B WA & i PLlicE
Financing Bureau . 10,759.22 Relevant to
unemployment £ Shantou Cit Subsidy No No
insurance and ot Shantou LAty revenue
employment
stabilization
AR I £ AL R
BRI R T N
A Al L VAR 2 4
Subsidy for AR L R
resumption of Bureau of o
work and Economic and s on on SRS 5 AR
groductiofn by the ]S):(l)irqlgtfiign Subsidy No No 1,100,000.00 Riﬂ\e}\;l;teto
ureau o )
Economic and Chancheng
Scientific District, Foshan
Promotion, City
Chancheng
District
ULV T 1
BUR T
WENJIE IR
g ORER R
Financing Bureau
L TARHIE  |of Longhu " = = BRI 26
Work-for-training | District, Shantou - % N N 10,500.00 | 1,155,000.00 | Relevant to
subsidy City and ubsidy ° ° revenue
Human Resources
and Social
Security Bureau
of Chancheng
District, Foshan
City
1L T R A
2019 " H A4 /ﬁ*uﬂrﬁd&ﬁ%
7 e s Bureau of
a;é‘a j@gﬁﬁ Economic and S5 ) S 75 SR AR
ompetition Scientific : o o 200,000.00 | Relevant to
among of Promotion Incentive No No revenue
En'tergr(;iegs First” Chanchené
nze District, Foshan
City
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RERBHEE RERT B AN/
BRI FERE bidvevicl |
TENTHE B Reason R Whether the s . AERESR EERESE Relevant to
. N . Type and . Whether it’s | Amount for | Amount for
Subsidy Issuing entity for nature subsidy affects the special current year last year assets/
issuance profit and loss for allg wance y ¥ Relevant to
the year revenue
., L T R 3
g |0 IR
TRE o DL AR Y WS R
Foshan City Human Resources . - - SRR AH
subsidy for . Hili ih i
and Social . 5,953.43 54,767.56 | Relevant to
unemployment . Subsidy No No
insurance and Security Bureau revenue
employment of Chancheng
D Oym! District, Foshan
stabilization .
City
TEAREN M
Lhe second batch 1y sgijip - ” = Sl A
oAdre urned 1n ° | Financing Bureau S bs}d I\‘IJO Illdo 43,156.00 | Relevant to
:ner:']purrilslg;pti of Shantou City ubsidy revenue
stabilize
employment
5 IR 3 PN T R V0 [
I
[0 U - . . e 25 A
E . |Financing Bureau ] ] S 30,000.00 | Rel
ntrepreneurship . ,U00. elevant to
of Nansha Subsidy No No
led employment District revenue
subsidy Guangzhou City
YT E L
, I 5 )
FERMBRUL g g
i il N
Social security Financing Bureau A % 7 25 868,08 RS 7 AH B
subsidy and job of Nansha Subsidy No No 5,868. Relevant to
subsidy for District revenue
stabilizing . Guangzhou City
employment in
Nansha District
CHINGE S PN
MRk | F R e
A 5] e
General post Human Resources RS x5 & B 25 A
subsidy by the and Social Subs\i dy No No 18,500.00 | Relevant to
Human Resources  |Security Bureau revenue
and Social of Chancheng
Security Bureau District, Foshan
City
R AACE 52
i Bl R R W P = SR 25 AH B
= Taxation Bureau . . 18,000.00 | Relevant to
Tax preference for . Subsidy No No
veterans of Foshan City revenue
L R 5 ‘
FET kA (Bl A
AR BIRANE . .
i et B 87
One-time b e Bt AR )
livelihood subsidy ~|Human Resources WA o Aj S = 7= SR a5 AR
for newl, and Social VAT T o o 17,600.00 | Relevant to
y Subsidy No No
recruited Security Bureau PR BT revenue
employees in of Chancheng TEAS AR B
Chancheng District, Foshan Subsidies
District, Foshan City received for
City compliance
B LT with local
2020 5 —HLAE %g%;ﬁﬁ;{% support
WM T BN e - = policies such
Subsidy for the e as investment il 2%
first batch of Human Resources Wil [promotion by 7 = 1273300 /R\Llliﬁﬁ*tﬁtﬁa
delayed and Social Subsidy |local No No o gievant fo
production Security Bureau governments revenue
s of Chancheng
resumption 1n District. Fosh
2020 istrict, Foshan

City
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WERTHER BT SR A/
BERE | g | RS Wi RERESE bepeew TGN
FEIEE L3/ € Reason Whether the . Relevant to
. X X Type and . Whether it’s | Amount for | Amount for
Subsidy Issuing entity for nature subsidy affects the ial current vear last vear assets/
issuance profit and loss for spect y y Relevant to
allowance
the year revenue
SRR gy e i
Zhuhai City EEHAT L
bsidy f Social Insurance P o= o= BRI s AH
subsidy for Fund p H o 2,165.94 12,713.38 | Relevant to
unemployment Subsidy No No
insurance and Management ) revenue
Centre of Zhuhai
employment Cit
stabilization y
B K S .
BN e e gt
&€ b AL ARG P \
G ; FEEEH AL
uangzhou City . Bl 3%
bsidy fi Social Insurance o == = LA 35 AH B
subsidy for Fund H H & 3,217.64 10,337.98 | Relevant to
unemployment M Subsidy No No
. anagement revenue
insurance and
employment Centre of
stabilization Guangzhou City
wepittr g | BLITRORE A
B | TR
gjjb idv fi Human Resources TR 75 F Sl 28 A
ubsidy tor and Social ' - 10,000.00 | Relevant to
employment of . Subsidy No No
. Security Bureau revenue
poverty-stricken
- of Chancheng
labourers with due A
registration District, Foshan
egistratiol City
BN T Vb — ;
o . JEH T R 0 [
VHERRRE | gm
One-time . . —_— == = BRI 25 AH
. Financing Bureau Tl & 5
recruitment . 7,500.00 8,500.00 | Relevant to
. of Nansha Subsidy No No
subsidy of Nansha . revenue
L District,
District, Guangzhou Cit
Guangzhou City & Y
NSRS BT AT AR
PERANFSERAG | AL e RS -
One-time Human Resources L P P B 5 4
employment and Social Subsid I\? o I\? o 1,000.00 Relevant to
subsidy for small, |Security Bureau y revenue
medium and micro |of Guangzhou
enterprises City
WA A 2 AT
oSy TR b S
WG A — IR
WA 0 SE AT
One-time
employment
subsidy for o i
enterprises T A B Fr 7 75 SRS 2 A
engaged in Financing Bureau Sub;i 4 I\']:'O I\']:'O 7,000.00 | Relevant to
producing and of Shantou City Y revenue
distributing
materials urgently
needed for
pandemic
prevention and
control in Shantou
City
Bl B 2
il K LT R 75 SR
Subsidy for the Bureau of Tl i & s
purchase of Commerce, Subsidy No No 6,000.00 | SU& AT
National VI Foshan City
Standard vehicles
RBRESRE |FNTEYEY
il 5 Sz
o BR - " " B2
Associating Financing Bureau Tl &) &) 5.169.00 | Relevant to
subsidy for of Nansha Subsidy No No e
L revenue
employment District,
stability funds Guangzhou City
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WERTHER RERT SR AR B/
HER | gy | FEE Wi RERESH Lo KA
TENTHE B Reason Whether the iy Relevant to
. N 3 Type and . Whether it’s | Amount for | Amount for
Subsidy Issuing entity for nature subsidy affects the special current vear last vear assets/
issuance profit and loss for allp an y y Relevant to
the year owance revenue
i T A I
SEANES T B
ARMIBAL |BR - . . S5 A
A Financing Bureau A & )
. . . 3,716.89 | Relevant to
Labour subsidy of |of Xiangzhou Subsidy No No revenue
Zhuhai City District, Zhuhai
City
, : ¥ P
S E e e N
il Fi oo B Tl il - . RS 3 AH B
On-duty incentives Inancing bureau Ei o o 2,000.00 | Relevant to
. of Xiangzhou . No No
and recruitment o . Subsidy revenue
. District, Zhuhai
subsidy .
City
JEN T BV R
RSN S EHR
T%ﬁﬂll——l j:)% EP L Eil LI& 2%

; i . - = = SRS 2 AH B
Subsidy for Social Affairs i 8 8 4,500.00 1,760.00 | Relevant to
recruitment by Service Centre, Subsidy No No revenue
enterprises in Dongyong Town,

Dongyong Town Nansha District,
Guangzhou City
At
H — — — — — 733,039.15 | 2,992,821.89 —
Total
(3) WU BB 4R (3) Breakdown of government subsidies
AT | LERER B3R A AR/ B R AR
HH Amount for | Amount for HRIRR i . Relevant to assets/
Items Source and basis
current year last year Relevant to revenue
Cffls Ll T AR N RBURT IR 2> 25 B S48 00 L ] 4 st
SEFWT TR IR 2 M 28 PG SR A 38 B E SRR AN IR BUR R
FLEEAT)  CHRAEUFI (20200 3 58D o (flLL TR
(N B TEURT 0 2 2 B 77 B0 3 o L 7 460300 1 S R T 3 et
TR LA 2 RO SRR AR IR RO AN CHB AT
V. N (2020) 8 5%) Akt

g N 4
T Li%iflﬂl#)# A ARSI Notice of the Office of the People"s Government of|
%Eﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ . 4 Chancheng District, Foshan City on Six Policy Opinions on BRI 35 4H B
Enterprise Sustainable 00,000.00 Supporting the Unswerving Development of Enterprises by| Relevant to revenue
Development Support Fund of the Actively Responding to the COVID-19  Pandemic in
Financing Office of Zumiao Street Chancheng District (Fo-Chan-Fu-Ban [2020] No. 3), Notice

of the Olffice of the People"s Government of Chancheng
District, Foshan City on the Issuance of Support Measures
for Stable Development and ~ Production Resumption in the
Industrial and Wholesale Industries in Chancheng District,
Foshan City (Fo-Chan-Fu-Ban [2020] No. 8) ) and other
instructions
TERERE (NE) BREFEE
o = . . e A A e — s
e B 2021 46 7 B3 SOV 4 L AR I A S
rogramme 10T Supporting poticies 184,000.00|  250,000.00|Notice on the Announcement of the Evaluation Results of -
and incentives to promote the . Relevant to revenue
the 2021 Business Awards for the Trade Industry
development of the trade and
commerce sector (domestic trade)
SR A I L T
Eghid BG4 NN B - S JETEN
ik S o it 1725 R T o S TR M) —
pecia’ funds ot Zangzhou 80,916.52 Measures of Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai City for Promoting - 5

District, Zhuhai City for
promoting e-commerce
development

e-Commerce Development

Relevant to revenue
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REFER | REREH ; B A B/ B B AR
RH Amount for | Amount for HIAV R . Relevant to assets/
Items Source and basis
current year last year Relevant to revenue

R A SE IR N R A R A

CRITA RSB R 3R E A IR ) (A
3 (2015) 54 5% . (BTAME—DIF R SERIE S
e 6B e 1 AL T B R R ) (BN R
(2015) 1812 %%

Social se(furity subsidy for hiring 22,526.40 Opinions on  Unemployment Insurance Support for SRS g A I
pgople Wlth employment Employment Stabilization among Enterprises (Yue-Ren-She-| ~ Relevant to revenue
difficulties Fa [2015] No. 54) and Notice on Issues Relating to Further
Improving ~ Unemployment  Insurance — Support  for
Employment Stabilization among Enterprises (Yue-Ren-She-
Han [2015] No. 1812)
, v g AT 2020 45 K R IRMTR I ZIE (SerEIE) I
SR 2 3 A 2 Eﬁ;ﬂh i) R ERIBREMIRIE (RERI=) 1
Shantou City subsidy for ) . . B 2 AH
unemployment insurance and 1075922 ;\nnouncemen{; oré Sh'imtou CltySS%bls} dy .for Unenzlg;%ym;l ' Relevant to revenue
employment stabilization nsurance and Emp oyment Stabilization 1n (No
Application Required)
WA (2020) 38 5% CHHAM G DL AR T AR (¥
PACARHN A RS & SRS 25 A )
s . 10,500.00| 1,155,000.00 .
Work-for-training subsidy Yue-Ren-She-Gui [2020] No. 38, Notice on Effectively| Relevant to revenue
Performing the Work-for-Training Program
JEH T R PP — DA A GRS BN 3 g 0 [ — IR AR H A 51 fad ) B 25 A
One-time recruitment subsidy of 7,500.00 8,500.00|Notice on the Issuance of Guidelines for the Declaration of| Rele/ \ant to revenue
Nansha District, Guangzhou City One-time Recruitment Subsidy in Nansha District v venu
1L T 4k SE CRBRREE 18 iz A MAAL (2016) 165 4% (B i A J7 G WAL & fR s
Foshan City subsidy for 5.953.43 5476756 AR BRI 25 AH B
unemployment insurance and T > 777 |Fo-Ren-She [2016] No. 165, File of the Human Resources| Relevant to revenue
employment stabilization and Social Security Bureau, Foshan City
B AR N SR i R 8 o 17 S 408 T 7 o
JBEH T 2R SE (R FRRS 5 1 s A BORMEADY (B AL (2021) 28 58
Guangzhou City subsidy for 3217.64 1033798 Notice of the Guangdong Provincial Department of| BT 2 AH
unemployment insurance and " 7" |Human Resources and Social Security on the Continuation| —Relevant to revenue
employment stabilization of the Policy on the Stabilization and Expansion of the
Workforce (Yue-Ren-She-Fa [2021] No. 28)
; N B e it o R AL (2015) 312 5 7 1l ORI SRR A TR
SR 17 2 2 5 BB o ig&ﬁm@m S8 (BRI M % SE ORI ST R £ 36 18 ‘
Zhuhai City subsidy for 2,165.94|  12,713.38|Zhu-Ren-She-[2015] No. 312, Notice on Effectively i
unemployment insurance and ) ’ Relevant to revenue
employment stabilization Handling the Unemployment Insurance to Support
Employment Stabilization among Enterprises
VA AN S . S AL . .
RO SEE LSS5 LA 45 2020 45 HET AL S FT TR 0388 0 o
Subsidy for recruitment and ; L . . B i AH B
o 4,500.00 1,760.00| Notice on the Application for the Subsidy for Recruitment
employment by enterprises in o . Relevant to revenue
and Employment by Enterprises in Dongyong Town in 2020
Dongyong Town
PN . NI AT B VAL R s B A BN (i3 —
NG S IR R AR A S A " OGN = N
DR A VPR S R ). 3T o
One-time employment subsidy for 1,000.00 Notice of Guangzhou Human Resources and Social Security B i AH B

small, medium and micro
enterprises

Bureau on the Issuance of —Procedures for Claiming One-
time Employment Subsidy for Small and Medium-sized
Enterprises”

Relevant to revenue

WA A 2 . BUR R i 2
B AR 3 — PR AN A A
i

One-time employment subsidy for
enterprises engaged in producing
and distributing materials urgently
needed for pandemic prevention
and control in Shantou City

7,000.00

CRTA BT 2 2 . BUIEPE TS B2 S R B A S i 4 —
AR AASE R AR GEIUD )
Announcement on the Application for One-time Employment
Subsidy for Enterprises Engaged in Producing and
Distributing Materials Urgently Needed for Pandemic
Prevention and Control in Shantou City (Ninth Batch)

SRS 2 A

Relevant to revenue

T E A IR R RE
The second batch of rebatement to
aid municipal enterprises to
stabilize employment

43,156.00

(R 2019 4R BT HARSES — AR ATRMIRIEII AR
Announcement on the Second Batch of Rebatement to Aid
Municipal Enterprises to Stabilize Employment

B 25 A0 R

Relevant to revenue

2020 4F 55— HIEHIE TAIB
Subsidy for the first batch of
delayed production resumption in
2020

10,914.00

€2020 4 Ll T AR AR N ) R ERESER B A 4T
ST T AR B H SRR A3 4 B AR
Announcement of Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau of Chancheng District, Foshan City on the List of)
Enterprises Eligible for Delayed Production Resumption in
2020

B 25 A0 R

Relevant to revenue
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HH AERER | LERER I S 2 B B A
mount for | Amount for . Relevant to assets/
Items Source and basis
current year last year Relevant to revenue
NI BE G P 43 £ T BN I
) SRR TR R AALEE (20200 5 9% (R EE 36 B T30 S

On-duty incentives and
recruitment subsidy

2,000.00

BAY . BRANAEEE (2020) 5 5 (RBAA E BRI
(2020) 11 ST 55 % B T Al e 108 (¥d 1)
Zhu-Ren-She-Fa [2020] No. 5,

S 2 A

Relevant to revenue

BT o5 B LA
Labour subsidy of Zhuhai City

3,716.89

RAAREE (2020) 5 8% (R EMERT (20200 11 5%
AU 5% 1 FE Al 5 A fa e )

Zhu-Ren-She-Han [2020] No. 5, Notice on the
Implementation of File Zhu-Fu No. 11 for Effectively
Conducting the Work on Labour Subsidy for Enterprises

S 2 A

Relevant to revenue

Al L TR TR B Tk
A A

One-time livelihood subsidy for
newly recruited employees in
Chancheng District, Foshan City

17,600.00

Cfl LT AR IR N 3 VR AN AL O e Jo T A R R 360
B LAV R R S 4 B A R)
Announcement of the Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau of Chancheng District, Foshan City on the List of|
Enterprises Eligible for the One-off Livelihood Subsidy for
Newly Recruited Employees of Enterprises

S 2 A

Relevant to revenue

2019 4FJE—F1 4 Fe e BEN S
“Competition among Hundreds
of Enterprises” Prize 2019

200,000.00

AT (2020) 4 5% CH L TTRRIRIE N REUMFIFA =
BEL 7 B0 Sl L L T AR (1 < 1 £ oS BE DS (2019
SEASRT) I AN

Fo-Chan-Fu-Ban [2020] No. 4, Office of the People's
Government of Chancheng District, Foshan City on the
Issuance of the Incentive Measures of Chancheng District
\for  Promoting , Cbmpetition among Hundreds of|
Enterprises " Prize (Revised in 2019)

Sl 2 AR

Relevant to revenue

R AT EE A A

Tax preference for veterans

18,000.00

AR (2019) 21 5% (ABCHRACEE A SRR AE — P Hid
EER: e SE SRS e LEl e P

Cai Shui [2019] No. 21, Notice of the Veterans " Department
of the Ministry of Finance on Further Supporting the Tax
Policies Relating to the Entrepreneurship and Employment
of Self-Employed Veterans

S i 2 AR

Relevant to revenue

RIS KA R (I SR L
7 G

Subsidy for resumption of work
and production by the Bureau of
Economic and Scientific
Promotion, Chancheng District

1,100,000.00

BRARATIE (2020) 8 5% (L ARIRIE N REUMIFA =
[ 7% B0 S5 A% L) T AR SR T3 e S S TR R
SERIPERE RGBS |« BRI (2020) 24 5F
L TR N DRSSO 30 2 2 [ 7% B0 S5 A L 7T A 1 S eF
T3 T A 35 364 AR 7 R E 35 R I PRAF i il 7o 1 e
FRIE 1)

Fo-Chan-Fu-Ban [2020] No. 8, Notice of the Office of the
People'sGovernment of Chancheng District, Foshan City on
the Issuance of Support Measures for Stable Development
and  Production Resumption in the Industrial and
Wholesale Industries in Chancheng District, Foshan City
and Fo-Chan-Fu-Ban [2020] No. 24, Notice of the Office of|
the People's Government of Chancheng District, Foshan
City on the Issuance of Supplementary Provisions for
Support Measures for Stable Development and  Production
Resumption in the Industrial and Wholesale Industries in
Chancheng District, Foshan City

S 2 A

Relevant to revenue

PRI AL R R 2020 55 —HEAE
JIRE T H B

1,819.00

AL (20200 47 5% CHb LT RE R B 2 90 ) £ A G I
SR ETEAR (IERTRED )

Fo-Ren-She [2020] No. 47, Rules for Implementing the
Policy of Supporting Enterprises to Stabilize Employment
during the Pandemic Prevention and Control Period in
Foshan City (Revised Version)

Sl 25 AR

Relevant to revenue

s 28] 7 E A 2
Subsidy for the purchase of
National VI Standard vehicles

6,000.00

AT (2020) 3 5% B ulmis N RRBUR 2 2R B 9%
By ol TR M PR T B s i GRUATD) M
)

Fo-Fu-Ban [2020] No. 3, Notice of the Office of the People's
Government of Foshan City on the Issuance of Several
Measures to Promote Consumption and Upgrading of the
Automobile Market in Foshan City (Trial)

Sl 25 AR

Relevant to revenue

AL SR P o Ao Aol
General post subsidy by the

K T7 FR S — AR i (S AR HS PO A 7R G )

Human Resources and Social 18,500.00 gaiichj on Application for General Post Subsidy (Second R AR
Security Bureau are
. 20 . BRI (2020) 5 5% B LT N BBUR B B AR 2 R
4 2 ki N o e N N
AR RIS R A AN RO ) N
Fo-Fu [2020] No. 5, Opinions of Foshan Municipal People'$ SRS A AH B

Subsidy for employment of
poverty-stricken labourers with
due registration

10,000.00

Government on Implementing Several Policy Measures of
Guangdong Province to Further Stabilize and Promote

Employment

Relevant to revenue
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- FEREE | LERER [ SR M R AT
Items mount for mount for Source and basis elevant to assets,
current year last year Relevant to revenue
«%J‘I*I FﬁAﬁ BRI AL B LR ) B 7 B B T i — 28

Entrepreneurship-led employment
subsidy

30.000.00|Notice of the Guangzhou City Human Resources and Social
’ Security Bureau on the Issuance of the Application
Procedures for Further Employment Promotion Subsidy in
Guangzhou

B A

Relevant to revenue

P VD IR A8 F AL CR ARG
foRiif:i

Social security subsidy and job
subsidy for stabilizing
employment in Nansha District

CEEABHE 2019 4R R4 (2019 4F 4 A& 9 A) Bb
U B8 5 FH) T R F T 57 Ak Bt P 4 AR 3L 00 )
25,868.08|Notice on the Application for Social Security Subsidy and
Job Subsidy for Stabilizing Employment in Nansha District
\for the Second Half of 2019 (April to September 2019)

Bl A

Relevant to revenue

T < O
Associating subsidy under the
employment stability funds

CREVDIR T G BRI AR AR 51D
5,169.00|Guidelines on the Application for Associating Subsidy under
the Employment Stability Funds in Nansha District

B A

Relevant to revenue

£t

Total 733,039.15| 2,992,821.89|— —
43. 234 T H 43.Non-operating expenses
KEEALR AR ATAREIRREH IR S HR
THH . . X
Amount for the | Amount for last | Amounts included in non-recurring
Items
year year profit and loss for the year
ARREN B PE BRI B L
Loss of non-current assets due 11,929.13 11,929.13
to destruction and scrapping
A =
SIMAE . 66,839.42 116,443.95 66,839.42
External donation
oAt
90,662.45 21,143.59 90,662.45

Others
£t

" 169,431.00 137,587.54 169,431.00
Total
4. T8 EH 44.Income tax expenses

(1) Frfsss g i (1) Income tax expenses
THH AR EEEFEAER
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year

FLRL I AR R S A A

Current income tax calculated according to the tax law

and related regulations

8,603,751.35

17,166,327.46

- B K A SE A AR

Corporate income tax in the Chinese

mainland

8,603,751.35

17,166,327.46

- B A RS

Profit tax in Hong Kong, PRC

TEAE PS4 B

Deferred income tax expenses

1,223,767.72

-2,979,913.15

a3t
Total

9,827,519.07

14,186,414.31
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H A A B S 47 B U FE 2 s 28 AR A
WO, Ol AT AL

(2) &R ST A5 A5 2 A o 0t

The Group had no Hong Kong income tax, since it had no

taxable income in Hong Kong during the year.

(2) Reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax

(i expenses
THH AFRAERR
Items Amount for the year
AR A AR A 32,980,579.14
Combined total profit for the year
58 T R S TS A B H 8,245,144.79
Income tax expenses calculated at statutory/applicable tax rate
T F I A R R A R
The impact of different tax rates applied to subsidiaries
AR DL S0 ] P A R ) R
Adjust the impact of income taxes for previous periods
FEERIN 2
Impact of non-taxable income
AT RA . B AR 22747706
Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses and losses T
A5 Y I ST AR R 0 OB A i 19 A5 4 2 00 P IR S R ) S
Use of deductible losses that have not been previously confirmed for deferred EIT
assets
AR R R AE T A0 3 2 PO P AR R W 7 S BT AR R A R
Effect of deductible temporary differences or deductible losses on deferred income 1,354,897.22
tax assets not recognized in the current year
PR 9,827,519.07
Income tax expenses
S BRERBERIEH 45.Items of the Statement of Cash Flows
C1) B/ SZAS G oA BRAS 2 /3 i / (1) Other cash received/paid relating to operating / investing /
BEIEEA B B4 financing activities

1) WO f FEAth B AL 28 V5 Bl B 1) 350

N

1) Other cash received relating to operating activities

=
HE AR LA
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year
| =1= B AP/ End
BT AGK 1,052,000.10 11,607,974.42
Inter-company current accounts
U i BN 733,039.15 2,974,821.89
Government grant
1p5!
al MLI&U.\ 135,663.42 216,989.31
Interest income
= S
B T4 31,000.00 453,622.30
Staff reserves
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THH A FARR LR
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year
H
A 2,252,275.85 3,025,962.72
Others
&t 4,203,978.52 18,279,370.64
Total = e
2D SCAS I HAh B 2 U B A B AR 3R 2) Other cash paid relating to investing activities
4
HH KRR AR
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year
N VAN
i 5 . 15,190,932.46 12,264,241.21
Transportation costs
2% e
:'ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ 8,252,819.97 2,803,969.11
Marketing expenses
T IAN
e 7,915,388.83 8,156,882.82
Office expenses
==
AL 4,795,921.45 6,138,723 47
Utilities
FHE &
Handling fees 4,208,012.81 4,506,769.81
Hopa N e dhs
SLGLAEACSK 3,583,447.50 10,386,178.09
Inter-company current accounts
M2 A
W BRAR L . 1,507,071.51 3,087,587.24
Expenses on engaging agencies
k. 4
M. MR 1,445,287.99 1,529,968.45
Repair and Maintenance expenses
S f22 57
CSEAT 1,246,779.52 762,251.19
Telecommunication fees
=AY
Promotion and advertising 943,888.90 520,620.00
expenses
BT fi
RLfask 620,808.20 1,992,747.85
Staff borrowings
S S8y
EHMAR 447,200.39 294,004.05
Business entertainment expenses
o
EMRE 360,674.45 372,783.82
Travelling expenses
H
A 1,518,074.92 1,727,149.19
Others
P
At 52,036,308.90 54,543,876.30
Total
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3) B F At BB G B A B 1 B

N

3) Other cash received relating to investing activities

=
TRH AR LB
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year

SRAT BRIV E it i [e]

Recovery of bank financial 10,000.00

products

PN

Frit 10,000.00

Total

4) SRR At BB I B A B A 3R
&

4) Other cash paid relating to investing activities

IHH

Item

AEEFAIR

Amount for the year

EERAR

Amount for last year

SRAT BRI E AR

Investment in bank financial 10,000.00
products

Py

Uil 10,000.00
Total

5 WAL EIf) HL At B 35 B 35 B AT B 1) B

&

5) Other cash received relating to financing activities

HH

Items

FEEFER

Amount for the year

LB

Amount for last year

WAL e SRAT AR S8 R % <2
Receipt of bank acceptance margin

1,806,779,749.49

1,560,651,851.86

L s (11 27 A
WETE"A%Mﬁ . . 16,059,911.12 7,215,692.04
Receipt of borrowing margin
Eentills,
B EABEN . 3,662,577.76 3,804,656.28
Interest income on margin
a3
1,826,502,238.37 1,571,672,200.18

Total
6) ST HAth B 2 VR B A BE 1 B 6) Other cash paid relating to financing activities
%

JEH IR AR

Items Amount for the year Amount for last year

A5 H SRAT AR SO R %
Payment of bank acceptance
margin

1,830,371,994.92

1,575,994,493.98

AT ==
HEAfsdy 3,612,740.16 3,632,762.00
Payment of lease Liabilities
B (1 27 A
fEAR R 2,250,000.00 2,265,000.00

Borrowing margin
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THH FEEFRAERR AR
Items Amount for the year Amount for last year
RN T
Handling fees for financing 849,185.47 1,356,511.00
L
Total 1,837,083,920.55 1,583,248,766.98

(2) AHF B ERM ARG

(2) Supplementary information to the Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows

=

Items

HESH

Amount for the year

EESHE

Amount for last year

LR A REE TSR E:

1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from

operating activities:

AT
Net profit

23,153,060.07

40,555,965.43

e B A e

Add: Provision for impairment on assets 3,102,249.84 3,001,808.91
o P e A
fe il R IR AR -391,365.51 15,244,009.95

Impairment loss of credit assets

e B EYTE . MEEESTIE. BEEEMEEN
2

=]

Depreciation of fixed assets, depletion of petroleum
and natural gas properties, depreciation of productive

biological assets

22,621,957.52

15,498,937.00

P HER T 8,

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

2,940,457.39

2,758,711.50

T 5 5

Amortization of intangible assets

6,472,318.30

6,294,770.89

T 2 P 5

Amortization of long-term expenses to be amortized

1,728,465.12

812,687.27

Ji B[ W AR B A A R E 4R K

(Wil T-1 3551

Loss on disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and

other long-term assets ("-" for gain)

-149,987.17

-18,110.52

I A i BRRR (et Bl T-1 3531

Loss on scrapped fixed assets ("-" for gain)

11,929.13

N EE e (aibh (-] 5D

loss arising from changes in fair value (—’ for gain)

B B (s d (-] 383D

Finance costs (—’ for gain)

38,703,464.29

29,291,266.53

gL (atbh [-1 551D

Investment loss (—’ for gain)

-23.25

TEIEFT AR A > (BEEL -1 3531

Decrease in deferred income tax assets (—’ for

increase)

1,132,315.23

-3,265,564.04
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JHH

Items

FESH

Amount for the year

EESH

Amount for last year

WRIEFTFAL AR G EL -1 3HE1))D
Increase in deferred income tax liabilities (—’ for
decrease)

91,452.49

285,650.89

R (BIEL -1 351D

Decrease in inventories (—’ for increase)

75,752,009.42

-69,823,623.33

AL TR BOHE H > BB T-1 3551
Decrease in receivables from operating activities (—’
for increase)

-54,810,666.11

-158,029,003.56

KOBPEIEA TR H R G BL T-1 35510)
Increase in payables from operating activities (— for
decrease)

-139,901,028.97

248,469,346.83

HAthy
Others

REFRHELENR SR ETHE

Net cash flow from operating activities

-19,543,392.21

131,076,853.75

LAY RGBS ERBENBEEIEED:
2. Non-cash significant investing and financing
activities:

R /AR

Conversion of debt into capital

—EE N B T A F {2

Convertible corporate bonds due within one year

R AN [ 2 8

Fixed assets under finance lease

3.5 KBS EFEEE:

3. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

W MR ERER

Cash balance as at the end of the year

144,226,724.41

113,771,300.25

W B AR ERER

Less: cash balance as at the beginning of the year

113,771,300.25

40,149,434.90

e RS EYR R AR
Add: balance of cash equivalents as at the end of the
year

W B ED AT ERER
Less: balance of cash equivalents as at the beginning of
the year

Wi B e A G I

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

30,455,424.16

73,621,865.35

ab: 2021 4FFE K 2020 B, A% Note: In 2021 and 2020, by discounting its commercial drafts,
BRI el FH 7 26 7 S Bl S B B A 38 S 1) the Group raised RMB35.98 million and RMB59.96 million,

SRR A 3,598.00 EEIG. 5,996.00 respectively.

T
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(3) BREMBREEFEY (3) Cash and cash equivalents
SEIRER
JEH AR Balance as at the
Balance as at the ..
Items beginning of the
end of the year
year
I
Hisw 343,374.54 773,462.50
Cash
Hih. N
Ak PSS 343,374.54 773,462.50

Of which: cash on hand

] Fig g A SCAT R SR AT 473K

Bank deposits readily available for payment

143,883,349.87

112,997,837.75

AT PRy A SO A oA B W 5 <

Other monetary funds readily available for payment

Bl

Cash equivalents

Horp = NRIHIR BB

Of which: bonds investment due within three months

FARRENREFRYEHE

Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year

144,226,724.41

113,771,300.25

Forpre BEOA) AR B N 722 ) A5 32 B A1) £ 253 < A 3
BEEEY)

Of which: Restricted cash and cash equivalents used by
the parent company or the subsidiaries of the Group

46. BT A FE RS FIHE 32 B PR ) 10 3 46.Assets with restricted ownership and rights of use
JHH FEARRRMEEE R REH
Items Book value at the end of the year Reasons of Restriction
T 485.941.302.10 BATRRE RS S . ke
Monetary funds T Bank acceptance bills deposits, borrowing deposits
IR 4 eV E S SE)
o . 14,947,500.00 - M .
Bills receivables Pledge and bills discounting
1
R 350,000,000.00 AR
Inventories Security
2o YR
FE R 272,476,921.19 AR
Fixed assets Security
A ¢
"“ﬁ/%}% 131,152,296.23 ﬂ&ﬁ
Intangible assets Security
&t 1,254,518,019.52 —
Total T
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475 BB HETHH 47 Monetary items in foreign currencies
FRMEERIR FRFFANRB R
HH Balance in foreign HEER Equivalent RMB
Items currency at the end of Exchange rate | balance at the end of the
the year year
BRaEe
Monetary funds 361,198.22
Horpr: s
Of which: Hong Kong Dollars 441,778.64 0.8176 361,198.22

48. BURHEBY 48.Government grants
(D) BUNH B EE A I (1) Basic information about government grants
=L\ A £
i &M P H AN BRI 2R
Type Amount Item reported Amount included in profit
yp P and loss for the period
8 A AT TR R B .
.. /\/ﬁij;['l&ml
the government subsidies 457,060.50 . 457,060.50
Other gains
related to the assets
SRS 2 A 8 ) R Aok By 25 3
the government subsidies 733,039.15 = %%W)\ 733,039.15
Non-operating revenue
related to the revenue
3t
1,190,099.65 — 1,190,099.65
Total

(2) AR B[ A SF FE WU A0l Bl IR [2]

. AU RS

AN [ A A R R S A P 4 R AL 1Y
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(2) There were no returns of government subsidies in the Group

VII. CHANGES IN SCOPE OF

CONSOLIDATION

during the year.

There were no changes in the scope of the merger in the Group
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VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

1.Interests in subsidiaries

(1) Composition of the corporation

= P ek FRIBCEEB (%)
?/L\\ ‘ﬂ Ig% =3 N =3 .
ot B REM | AR | gmbE l;fﬂﬁ%d Proportion of B AR
Name of Place of Place of Type Nature of ggal[s)igf shareholding (%) Method of
. principal | registration | of legal business (RMB) BHE i5iE= acquisition
subsidiary operation status Direct | Indirect
JEE A —
- = e " 15,000.00 S
I R mammam | 00 R
Pearl il AT . H T )
Guangdong . S Pharmaceutical 100.00 Established by
River Foshan Limited o 150.00 .
Charmacy S distribution o investment
Delta liability million
Company
s ARl ) T A
A
Bﬁﬁ@% BR=A 221 Bvgn
Zhuhai ear O =~ Pharmaceutical T 100.00 Business
Ch River Zhuhai Limited distribution 360 million combination not
armacy Delta liability i under common
Company
control
= A
woeE | TEIF— ] T £
wa | BEACL R mmas | 20000 %A
Guangzhou Pearl il HE Pharmaceutical 70 100.00 Business
ch g River Guangzhou | [imited distribution 20.00 combination
o armacy Delta liability million not under common
ompany control
TINBISE .
= L " 2,080.00 e AL
IS I A . AR mmansm | 20 e
earl bS]l BT . T )
Shenzhen . C. Pharmaceutical 100.00 Established by
Ch River Shenzhen | Limited distribution 20.80 investment
armacy | pejta liability million
Company
] £ AR 42 T A A
“}/[\'%'J% = AR | g g | 1,50000 o
HA h Pearl %J‘H HAF Pharmaceutical BT 100.00 Business
Chatnae River Huizhou | Limited | = gistribution 15.00 combination
armacy Delta liability million not under common
Company control

S~ ERE R T B B AR

AL EE e TR JE
Yo IE L B ARIH . 25 e E
A RoVEER AR, BIRERT
FIRRAIE DR U AN RE N . BliE
sl THAR AR, DA EHE
0 PR IS L o i R PR L o 7 B
SRR g o A [ 2 05 18
W L 11 AT ERAN B s DA O Lo
JE B s i £ R 52 R 8 2 I

IX. RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s major financial instruments include borrowings,

receivables, payables, financial assets held for trading, financial

liabilities held for trading, etc. Details of these financial

instruments are set out in Note VI. The risks associated with

these financial instruments and the risk management policies

adopted by the Group on how to mitigate these risks are set out

below. The management of the Group manages and monitors

these exposures to ensure such risks are contained within a

prescribed scope.
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1.4 A e 1 B AN BUR

AR [ 1 L i /8T HH A H A R A L
FI B 2 P A8 o 1)~ 4, ok B
A B 48 48 SE A 1Y) AT 5 R B
ARKHE, (H R L e E A
MR 26 B Kb . FER sz ml ks & ¥ H
0, AR [ R P ) A TR S A
€ 173 At AN £ (28] B v B o 4% e
B T T 1) R B R A JEC AR I 3 AT JEL B
B, W A PRy ] S R A A L B AT
BEEL, R TR B 4 ) AR BR e 1 0 B 2
N o

(1)l 35 JE

1) [ 26

AN JE G 2 i il T 2L A AR (B R
R AR T 497 B[R] e REE e S ) 52 A
WEENR R . ASEE 5 K 52 R P
LEEM AR, BRAEM H KS5E
B H RSO R B b oy i A A
U R AT BUS Y B A, AR
FoAth 3 B TE B DL R W 5HE 45
o A 2021 512 H 31 H, &R
R VR s T 5 AR R S A R e 6
SR A IR A P B BUR AR B 4 U
SEE) )RR AN AR I I AR S A AR
=,

1.0bjective and policies of various risks management

The Group engages in risk management with the aim of
achieving an appropriate balance between risk and return, where
the negative effects of risks against the operating results of the
Group are minimized, and to maximize the interest of
Shareholders and other stakeholders. Based on such risk
management objectives, the fundamental strategy of risk
management of the Group is to ascertain and analyse all types of
risk exposures of the Group, establish appropriate risk tolerance
thresholds, carry out risk management procedures and perform
risk monitoring on all kinds of risks in a timely and reliable
manner, thus containing risk exposures within a prescribed

scope.

(1) Market risk

1) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk arising from changes in fair
value or future cash flows of financial instrument resulted from
changes in exchange rate. The Group’s foreign exchange risk
relates mainly to Hong Kong Dollars. Except for the proceeds
from the H Share offering, payment of H Share dividends and
minor expenses incurred in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, other main business activities of the
Group are settled in RMB. As at 31 December 2021, the
changes in the fair value or future cash flows from the assets
and liabilities of the balance of the account denominated in
HKS$ due to changes in exchange rates may have impact on the

Group’s operating results as set out in the following table:

ERBE FrEARE)

FYREE e ARW)

Il
ItEeE Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of
(RMB equivalent) the year (RMB equivalent)
1 iR R A Nk ik
B F 361,198.22 372,691.25

Monetary fund — HKS$

A5 [ U) B B A S B A R [ 1

W
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AR B R R A At RSO A5 5 1k
SR, AT SRR

()15 FH Ak

J* 2021 4 12 A 31 H, #JRESEA
B [ A 548 R 1 e KA R 1 32
LR ARG 51— 77 RAEFEAT 25
ARG R AR RR, B
ERORAE

A OFE E AR O SRl
IRRTE & 8H; B AR oA RN B
S TR, AR EE R 1 R
i, AL AR RO R B, Hof
R J g S 1 3R il 5 R 2 2 SR AR ML AR 3
GAEE

Ay BRARAR PR B, A B [ B T B TR
FI6fEE (5 AR L . MEAT (5 A att,
AT H e B AR AR e DA OR PRI B 1Y
e P OB IR . eAh, AR
R E AR HF A HIREL
AR, DURE DR AL [ W Y
FOAFHR R KRR . Rk, A
0 [ B R A AN SR I R 4 45
JE B CLAE R R PR

A5 [ PO A0 Bl B <A A A FH R
e ERAT, WA EN B e A R
.
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2) Interest rate risk
The major liabilities of the Group with interest rate risk include
short-term borrowings and long- term borrowings. The Group

has no foreign currency borrowings.

3) Other price risks
The Group holds no other debt investments and trading financial

assets, and it has no such price risk.

(2) Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021, the maximum credit risk exposure that
might incur financial losses to the Group was mainly
attributable to the losses of financial assets due to a contractual
failure of counterparty to perform its obligations. Specifically,

such losses include:

The carrying amount of financial assets recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet. For financial assets at fair value, the
carrying amount reflects the risk exposure, but not the
maximum risk exposure, which will vary with the changes in

future fair value.

In order to mitigate credit risk, the Group established special
departments to determine credit limits and perform credit
approval, and carries out other monitoring procedures to ensure
necessary measures are taken to collect overdue debts. Besides,
the Group reassesses the recovery of each receivable items on
an individual basis at each balance sheet date, so as to ensure
sufficient provision for doubtful debts is made for amounts that
are not recoverable. As such, the management of the Group
believes that the credit risks assumed by the Group has been

significantly mitigated.

The Group’s liquidity is deposited in banks with higher credit

rating, so the credit risk of the liquidity is lower.
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R P EA B IFE Hac k.

() B A

TRE R 2 AR B 7E 2 B kB AT
H A H S RS . AR HA )
P U 1) 7 VR OR A R SR S
BV AR JBAT B ES,  HAS RRIE
AN 52 (4R B A S5 15 B A
Fo AR E B A T G A R R
PR, DAHECRA mARME S . REFEE
T S SRAT il 3 PR A P A AT B 4%
NZIAVSESRET a7 Iy
FEEATRUERER, LURFE— @ MRS
BERE, DRARILE I U .

AR B RFAT (10 el 5 28 AN < R %
ARAT B A [F) B 1 B YIBR 20 Hr

The Group has adopted necessary policies to ensure that all the

trade customers have good credit history.

(3) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations at maturity. The Group manages
liquidity risk by ensuring that it has ample liquidity to meet its
obligations as they fall due without incurring unacceptable
losses or causing damage to its reputation. The Group regularly
analyses the structure and maturity of its liabilities to ensure that
sufficient funds are available. The Group’s management
monitors the use of bank loans and ensures compliance with
loan agreements. It also negotiates with financial institutions on
financing to maintain a certain credit limit and reduce liquidity

risk.

Analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group

by maturity of undiscounted contractual cash flows is set out as

. follows:
IHH R EAE 14ERAA 1-5 4 54U E aat
Items Book value | Within 1 year | 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
1 e A
B i 630,168,026.51 630,168,026.51 630,168,026.51
Monetary funds
I i)
%q&mﬁ% 14,947,500.00 14,947,500.00 14,947,500.00
Bills receivables
f
HE AR . 716,312,947.43 716,312,947.43 716,312,947.43
Trade receivables
Exd
ﬁ;ﬂ"@}ﬁfq&,ﬁ\ 32,249,707.83 32,249,707.83 32,249,707.83
Other receivables
H A vz &
HoA i) ¥ 23,226,980.50 23,226,980.50 23,226,980.50
Other current assets
T H 2
T K _ 668,039,276.07 |  668,039,276.07 668,039,276.07
Short-term borrowings
i A+ B
5;412“92 809,768,308.81 |  809,768,308.81 809,768,308.81
Bills payables
S Exd
JEATHRK 532,860,284.07 532,860,284.07 532,860,284.07
Trade payables
A= =28
E‘Eﬂfaﬁa, . 46,664,141.17 46,664,141.17 46,664,141.17
Contract liabilities
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JHH giati=Cisl 14ELAR 1-5 4 5EUE CEi
Items Book value | Within 1 year | 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
JEEASY B 5 T
Salaries payable to 5,180,138.03 5,180,138.03 5,180,138.03
employees
H e
S AT 11,030,236.31 11,030,236.31 11,030,236.31
Other payables
—E NI E
AR

. 34,758,053.67
Non-current liabilities

due within one year

34,758,053.67 34,758,053.67

R

. 86,867,415.04
Long-term borrowings

86,867,415.04 86,867,415.04

2ARMEME
S lE E SR AE N A R EAERE
NI VR E :

FA BRI S R A A7 A 3 B T 3
<z 8 2 ik AR 2 SRR AEL
31| S BEAT I 1) 3% i 11 35 BAT (B 3
AT EARNEE 5

HoAth <z fh B 2 K e AR (SR AT
A TR SRR TR AR Bl &
AT B A T A8 P R A 2
BRI TR K 3RAT T35 58 5 TR AR T

%

=2
At 3

TR TR e B AR IR i B T 45 1
O B R TELREE

REBE WG R %, R i
RIAGT R A LR AR
MR P R R S5 B I BRI A e
TR fE-

2.Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is

determined in accordance with the following methods:

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and in active markets are
determined by reference to the prevailing bid and ask prices in

the corresponding active market;

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than derivative instruments) are determined by the
general pricing model based on the discounted future cash flow
method or recognized by observable current market transaction

prices;

The fair value of the derivative instruments is determined by

quoted price in active markets.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost in the financial statements approximate to the

fair value of such assets and liabilities.
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T BT KRB 5

(—) BRETT BR
1A% B i AR R e A )
(1) PR A B et A 1 7

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED

PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(D). Relationship with related parties

1. Controlling shareholder and ultimate controller

(1) Controlling shareholder and ultimate controller

A \ = \ =
RMBREBEERTER | | SEATmSREAC) | HAARMRIELE)
e . . Percentage of shareholding | Percentage of voting rights
shareholder and ultimate Nationality in the Company(%) in the Company(%)
controller
Lyl oK
Yao Chuanglong Chinese 40.97 54.63

Ak 2021 4F, BhAIRES A AR A
1) 13. 66% 8155 2 3¢ 2> 7] 1) i fE i e
Ur R L PR AIRE Je R
B, BRAIRE A A AR RIHELL
B (54.63%) By H B 5 B HEHE 23
(40.97%) FIFCAEMERS (13.66%) .

(2) PR A AR A R L b

Note: In 2021, Mr. Yao Chuanglong transferred his 13.66%

equity interest in Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company to Ms.

You Zeyan (Spouse of Mr. Yao Chuanglong), and Mr. Yao

Chuanglong's proportion of voting rights in the Company

(54.63%) was his own equity interest (40.97%) and spouse

interest (13.66%).

(2) Registered capital of controlling shareholder and its changes

el d FEYIRER A EEHE N A FARERER
Controlling Balance at the Increase in Decrease in Balance as at the
shareholder beginning of the year this year this year end of the year
Wesiliie 59,000,000.00 14,750,000.00 44,250,000.00
Yao Chuanglong

(30 4 JBe B S 0 P A7 BSOHEE 2 %

(3) Shares or interests held by controlling shareholder and its

HAEL changes
B EHR FRBCELB) (%)
Shareholding amount Percentage of shareholding(%
ﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁ : FEYIRHE 5 @*ﬂgt([ﬁ;;

Controlling AERERAR Balan N . R HH Percent .
shareholder Balance as at the alance as a Percentage at the ereentage a
end of the year the beginning end of the year the begining

of the year of the year

Wegliie 44,250,000.00 59,000,000.00 40.97 54.63
Yao Chuanglong
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2.Subsidiaries
For details of subsidiaries, please see —VIII. 1. (1) Composition

of the corporation” under these notes.

3.0ther related parties

F At o B 77 4 7B

Name of other related parties

BANF R
Relationship with the Company

WBET AR B A B AE CHIRGE
Youran Investment

FAA AR 157%BHE, &b AF B TR T &
Holding 1.57% equity interest in the Company, a shareholding platform
that is mainly consisted of employees of the Company

WEET AR A E A AE CHIRE®)

Zhichuang Investment

FrA AT 1L.67T%HE, REE AR 8 THEIIRRT &
Holding 1.67% equity interest in the Company, a shareholding platform
that is mainly consisted of employees of the Company

IWEET R A EHEHAE CHIRE®)

Meizhi Investment

FE AT 296%KHE, ZEHEbAw 8 THRIFR-Fa, HA8ir
#HH, FHEGHE . WHARKESEEEEE M ANRE

Holding 2.96% equity interest in the Company, a shareholding platform
that is mainly consisted of employees of the Company and an enterprise in
which Lin Zhixiong, our executive Director, secretary of the Company and
Chief Financial Officer, serves as a general partner

FEM A E LB EEEE IR AR AR (BUF &R
Kl ML TRER T AR REEA

AlRE

Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings

Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as "Baiyunshan"

and its holding subsidiaries and joint ventures Note

BEAZLFEBERAR (LLFEE-HZLEE) FE4ALF H K
790.65 E, MGARAFRAMEE 7.32%, HAHAOZ LG NEAH,
AN IS A . HAA N A B A RIS ML N R AR AR
B S, HARHI A AR A A R R LB 5%, H
2 2017 SRR ERR T E SR A R ERE AR RR, A
O A BB S LN R AR R M E 7 A R R E A AR O ) B
Ji

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Baiyunshan Hong Kong Company Limited
(hereinafter referred to as —Baiyunshan Hong Kong”), a subsidiary of
Baiyunshan and a strategic investor of the Company, holds 7,906,500 H
shares of the Company, representing 7.32% of the total share capital of the
Company. Due to the close business association between the Company and
Baiyunshan and its subsidiaries, the shareholding percentage of
Baiyunshan Hong Kong controlled by it in the Company has exceeded 5%,
and it has appointed a Director, Li Weisheng in 2017 to the Company.
Based on the principle of substance over form, the Company deemed
Baiyunshan and its holding subsidiaries and joint ventures as related parties
of the Company

JEEE A R TA PR A
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Baiyunshan Macau

FEHATERESHEEETERERNAE
An enterprise in which Li Weisheng, the non-executive Director, serves as
the chairman of the board

FREERIE (PRSP dE AR IR AT
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical (Zhuhai Hengqin)
TCM Industry Co., Ltd.

AT E R R R A3
An enterprise in which our non-executive Director Li Weisheng serves as a
supervisor

EEE (BRiFHEE) e A RRA R AR
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical (Zhuhai
Industrial Park Co., Ltd.

Hengqin)

FEPITEF SR ER RS
An enterprise in which our non-executive Director Li Weisheng serves as a
supervisor

R e MREME. BEA. FPEME. HRE. W
B RS ERAEIA. ARG, BpE

Zheng Yuyan, Lin Zhixiong, Li Weisheng, Wan Chi
Wai Anthony, Zhou Tao, Guan Jian, Zhang Ling,
Zheng Xiyue, Lin Zhijie, Liu Yingyu

NEER, BELRMERAR

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company

SeyEdE, B E
Wu Binhua, Liu Jigui

HAERFA AT 5% UL BB 1 E RN R
Natural person shareholders directly holding more than 5% of the
Company’s shares
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HA R 2

Name of other related parties

S F BAR
Relationship with the Company

YT L5 3 B BA R AR
Shenzhen Lafang Investment Management Co.,
Ltd.

FEIE 5% AL Ji R SR v e AR AR A B ) £ 3
An enterprise in which Wu Binhua, a shareholder holding more than 5% of
Shares, serves as general manager

BT R A AR AT
Shenzhen Yijing Investment Co., Ltd.

FEI 5% UA L SR S i HE AR AR AR TR 0 £ 38
An enterprise in which Wu Binhua, a shareholder holding more than 5% of
Shares, serves as general manager

JemC T At A A S

B AFPATHE R F B RIBE SR AR
An enterprise in which Wan Chi Wai Anthony, the independent non-

King & Wood Mallesons executive Director, serves as partner

Ty VRTS8 N
e A B AFTEFIEREEE A ER .
Grandway Law Offices enterprise in which Zhou Tao, the independent non-executive Director,

serves as partner

HM International Holdings Limited

PSRBT HE S T MR PR S A E T R A 3
An enterprise in which Wan Chi Wai Anthony, the independent non-
executive Director, serves as the independent non-executive Director

SRR AR A
FDB HOLDINGS LIMITED

PN AEAT B R ST AR AT R R A 3E
An enterprise in which Wan Chi Wai Anthony, the independent non-
executive Director, serves as the independent non-executive director

TRYIITH 25 R At v R4 B A PR 2 7]
C.K.J Professional Dental Hospital Group Limited

BRI PHEM AR PIT I F MRS
An enterprise in which Zhang Ling, the Supervisor, serves as the
independent non-executive director

TL BRI ZE BR BT BT B 0 A B 2 ]
Jiangsu Kunyee Environmental Technology Co.,Ltd

B ORI B A B £ 38
An enterprise in which Zhang Ling, the Supervisor, serves as the chief
financial officer

A B B R IR

FSLARSAT HEF R BRI T0% BT A SEVE N 38

Shanghai New Focus Education Technology | An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent non-executive Director,

Limited holds 70% of shares and serves as the legal representative of the enterprise
3k LEL AN S A =2 Oy ANy 4

Loy RS R E TL CHIRERD gy it e I 99% A LT 20 A MO 3

Man ag ement  and Servic% C{i ter (ligi ted An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent non-executive Director,

partnegrship) holds 99% of shares and serves as the general partner

BxE (L) AAHARA R
Man Ke Dao (Shanghai) Network Technology Co.,
Ltd.

P ARSAT B R 100%E AR SEE NI 3E (2021 48 7 H
AEEH)

An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent non-executive Director,
holds 100% of shares and serves as the legal representative of the
enterprise (Sold in July 2021)

WAL & R B AR A PR A 7]
Hubei Forbon Technology Co., Ltd.

P L AR AT B SR AR B AR AT S I AR 3
An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent non-executive Director,
serves as an independent non-executive director

afb: BOM AL B EEEM R A IR A
" (LU fiRE “AZ Lk O k3
TEEB T A7 G AT T E AT
Tk Fsi 7 ol {2 B 4«

Note: The details of the relationship among Guangzhou
Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
referred to as —Baiunshan™) and its holding subsidiaries and

joint ventures are as follows:

AT TE SESINC ) page fr
Company name Related party relationships with
MR Z MEESE A IR A 7] SESIp ol @A
Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
JE M ik R EE A TR A W] SEIip ol N
Guangzhou Jianmin Pharmaceutical Company Limited A holding company of Baiyunshan
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Company name Related party relationships with
PR Z B LER TR A 7 HEILZ IR AT
Guangzhou Caizhilin Medicine Co. Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
B P SR 2 AR [ NGB AN R
EUIIKZW%@E’%]ZEA E,l:”:ﬁj(ﬁ)% E—lgmz%—fﬂi/éx\ﬁj

Guangzhou Caizhilin Traditional Chinese Medical Hall Co., Ltd.
Beishang Pharmacy

A holding company of Baiyunshan

BT AR B 7 B A 1 T 853 1
Guangzhou Caizhilin Traditional Chinese Medical Center Co., Ltd.
Huadiwan Branch

SEIEZ Ny
A holding company of Baiyunshan

JEE PR 2R [ B A A PR ) SR PG 73 I
Guangzhou Caizhilin Traditional Chinese Medical Center Co., Ltd. East
China West Branch

HELZ B A A
A holding company of Baiyunshan

3 M o B A AT PR 23 ) KRR B B B 2 8 W)

= BN T
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Da Zhong Pharmaceutical Sales H= LU.Z?IHX A~ .
A holding company of Baiyunshan
Branch
PR g G B EE A B A A HE L2 B A A
Zhuhai Guang Yao Kangming Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
JE M BE 2K EE i A R F] Az A
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Pharmacy Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
W re e R IE B AR A A HELZ R AF
Hainan GP Chenfei Pharmaceutical Company Limited A holding company of Baiyunshan
JEE M [ 22 BE A TR A 7] HELZ R AF
Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
s B 7% A= 7
Eﬁ%é*ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁé\ a%@%%% ' E%E’LLJZEHQ/L\\ET
Guangdong Province Mei County Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Yuedong . .
. . A holding company of Baiyunshan
Bianmin Pharmacy
A 7 g R R A AT R A ] HE Lz KA F
Fujian GuangYao Jieda Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
il LU TIT R AR PR B 2 A TR A W] HE Iz ERAH
Foshan GPC Jianze Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
JE M BEEE A A IR A 7] HE L2 ERA A
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
VRN 0 e B A TR A Al g2 A
Shenzhen Guangyao Liankang Pharmaceutical Company Limited A holding company of Baiyunshan
JEE& U iR B 85 AT TR 2 7] HE iz #KAFH
Guangzhou Xin Te Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
BEM AZ LA —gEEF R A H Az 5 5A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Zhong Yi Pharmaceutical Company Limited A holding company of Baiyunshan
JEN T8 5 gL E A A IR A #] Az 5 5A
Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
N T2 7 KA A PR A F Az 5 5A
Guangzhou wang lao ji great health enterprise development co., Itd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
BEMAZILRERE (335 BREHRAR HE iz #A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Xing Qun Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
REVE A= RS TR A HE iz #A

Guangxi Baiyunshan Yingkang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd

A holding company of Baiyunshan
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A ATE SESIC )i page EES
Company name Related party relationships with
B A E D HERZER A A IR AW HEILZ IR AT
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Guang Hua Pharmacy Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
BN A E LB A IR A F HE L ZZER A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Marketing Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
M 3 E L% = B EESE R A TR 7] HE L ZZER A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pan Gao Shou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
RN 125 L B EE A [ AR A R 2 ) 3 2% e 7 2 1 2 i Sl e —
: ) ) HE L ZZR A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Co., Ltd. Guangzhou A holding company of Baivunshan
Baiyunshan He Ji Gong Pharmaceutical Factory g company yu
JiE M 2R LR 207 2 g A PR ) HEILZ AT
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chen Li Ji Pharmaceutical Factory Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
M LR O BEE AR IR A 7 HEILZ AT
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Tian Xin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
B A E LT RS IR A HEILZ AT
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Qi Xing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
JEE M B EEIE A PR A HEZZR AT
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import and Export Company Limited A holding company of Baiyunshan
FEIM 9 LS B ZESE A IR A 7] HEZZR AT
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Jing Xiu Tang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A holding company of Baiyunshan
B A E 1L P EE R R A IR A HEILZ AT
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chinese Medicine Tablets Co., Ltd A holding company of Baiyunshan
B A Z L AIRC sl TP gE A TR A W HEILZ &8
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Hutchison Whampoa Chinese Medicine Co., Ltd. | A joint venture of Baiyunshan
JBE P8 ot B K S A R A ] HELz &8 a3
Guangzhou Shennong Caotang Pharmacy Co., Ltd A joint venture of Baiyunshan
FEPH 2 1L R 3 e A R A HEILZ &8 E3E
Hutchison Whampoa Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. A joint venture of Baiyunshan
MRS — LR BB I A EEIEa s
Hainan Hongxiang Yi Xin Tang Pharmaceutical Chain Co., Ltd. An associate of Baiyunshan
R Y B A TR A BRI a3
Guangdong Baiyuantang Medicine Chainstore Co.,Ltd. An associate of Baiyunshan
FEVEIRF — LA A IR AR AW SEAIPA i SiE S

Guangxi Hongxiang Yi Xin Tang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

An associate of Baiyunshan

01— 5 5 S PR ]
Sichuan Yi Xin Tang Gurative Gatenation Co.,Ltd.

SEAIIPE (Ee S
An associate of Baiyunshan

o B S [ AR AT BR A )
Yixintang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.

RENTEA S
An associate of Baiyunshan

af: 2021 SEAFE B BT 1) 44 A6 5 44
MfEde, Hr “ MR ZMAL 4441
ARAT” THER MR ZMEELE
AIRATET,  “BEMTEEN 7] gk
BRI SEAL Ry BN A R L EE R
FARAR” .

Co., Ltd ™.
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Corporation Chinese Medical Drink and Pill Factory” will be
renamed —@angzhou Baiyunshan Chinese Medicine Tablets
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1.Details of related party transactions

WE s | PSR RRR
SRR
e B 77 4 R Tﬁﬂ ¢ Pricing method and 2021 B 2020 EF
Name of related party relaﬁ)(;s (z)ar decision making 2021 2020
p: ty procedure for related
transactions .
party transactions
1. SEEELRMUES T
1.Sales and rendering of services
SN AR T R e
i N 8 BE Ty A R > S R b Determined after 12.760.537.73
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Sales of goods negotiation by reference o
to market rates
o é} =] ;iii 77 75 p
B R B ) R e i
Guangzhou Jianmin Pharmaceutical Company s M 9,339,362.69 |  7,764,131.82
Limited Sales of goods negotiation by reference
to market rates
; , L s o 2 I B toh e e o
S — L B A - S
Hainan Hongxiang Yi Xin Tang U o 3,850,127.82 |  3,742,539.22
. . Sales of goods negotiation by reference
Pharmaceutical Chain Co., Ltd. to market rates
Sz e e é} iEI ;iii 7 s P
T B AT T I el
Guangdong Baiyuantang Medicine Chainstore U . 3,740,481.55 3,149,654.79
Co.Ltd Sales of goods negotiation by reference
T to market rates
, N e — 2 I B Yoh e e o
PP — 2 AT IR A ] - S
Guangxi Hongxiang Yi Xin Tang e . 2,852,021.04 2,851,531.02
. Sales of goods negotiation by reference
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. to market rates
SETTIGEM R T E
ol LTI 2 B (T B A R A ) SHEE T ah Determined after 2.044.826.55
Foshan GPC Jianze Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd Sales of goods negotiation by reference T
to market rates
. 2% T B E R T
Ui 2 BT B - EE
Sichuan Yi Xin Tang Gurative Gatenation SV i 519,952.29 661,306.12
Co.Ltd Sales of goods negotiation by reference
’ to market rates
N— 2 SR tih s T o
B £ 25 1 B 2 A PR A 7] P /ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ??fﬁ
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chen Li Ji S elermined atte 325,825.02
. Sales of goods negotiation by reference
Pharmaceutical Factory Co., Ltd. to market rates
S5 T 35 TEUA i R R 2
— Lo i B SE R P A A R A SR ah Determined after
.. . S 254,156.2 274,429.
Yixintang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. Sales of goods negotiation by reference >4,156.29 74,429.03
to market rates
Y N~ e i’% H_fuE 77 e ﬁ P
BRI R 8 G BE B A TR A 7] S g - %Dﬁ]#:?rii\:%?ﬂ?rﬁm
Zhuhai Guang Yao Kangming Pharmaceutical e e cdalte 233,364.88 198,657.44
Co.. Ltd Sales of goods negotiation by reference
" ’ to market rates
e é’% =Vl 57 7 ﬁ .
Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., e C 161,699.12 32,339.83
Lid Sales of goods negotiation by reference
) to market rates
N ] o ;} H frE 7 e i e
MR AR 6 R 7L K U el
Guangzhou Caizhilin Traditional Chinese S o 134,618.14
Sales of goods negotiation by reference

Medical Hall Co., Ltd. Beishang Pharmacy

to market rates
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WAy | PR BE U RAH
SRR
BB 5 A PR Tﬁgg , Pricing method and 2021 $F% 2020 R
Name of related party relai](l:;s (:‘r ¢ decision making 2021 2020
transaclt)ionz procedure for related
party transactions
B A A PR e | o R
Guangzhou Caizhilin Traditional Chinese Sa‘l,es:(]) fu zz ds e thie;firglgei:ff:;nce 117,306.40 122,042.12
Medical Center Co., Ltd. Huadiwan Branch g g y
to market rates
J3E MBS EE A AT PR A W] R REE L SH B 0 A S22 T35 FEUA 177 i e
) SHAE T Determined after 7775573 267.966.28
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Da Sales of goods negotiation by reference RN e
Zhong Pharmaceutical Sales Branch to market rates
e - R2ET Y i Wi 2
N 2 B B8 8 B A 0 1 M 3 1 | 2T R R REE
C . . SHE T Determined after
Guangzhou Caizhilin Traditional Chinese Sales of 200ds neeofiation by reference 7,483.19
Medical Center Co., Ltd. Huadiwan Branch & & Y
to market rates
TR o K3 AR . 2% VR R E HEE
- SHE T Determined after
Guangzhou Shennong Caotang Pharmacy Co., e 4,966.01
Ltd Sales of goods negotiation by reference
to market rates
PRI B B 4 A , 2 B
o . . SHE T Determined after
Shenzhen Guangyao Liankang Pharmaceutical les of L f 4,371.68
Company Limited Sales of goods negotiation by reference
to market rates
o EENiE i fifk 7€
MR R B AT B S 431 W B S I
. . SHE T Determined after
Shenzhen Guangyao Liankang Pharmaceutical e 3,100.88
Company Limited Sales of goods negotiation by reference
to market rates
B » S22 T 35 EAR T v T
BT M g 5% 2o H $HES Ia] An etermined after
B2 B B B R Determined af 458 £24.97
Guangzhou Caizhilin Medicine Co. Ltd. Sales of goods negotiation by reference T
to market rates
i S R B A IR A 7 . AR TR REE
o ) . PR Determined after
Hainan GP Chenfei Pharmaceutical Company e 54,601.77
Limited Sales of goods negotiation by reference
to market rates
3§ TR A i B e B A PR ) L R (R 4 S22 T 35 EAR 1 v T
Guangdong Province Mei County SHEE Determined after 1.875.30
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Yuedong Bianmin Sales of goods negotiation by reference T
Pharmacy to market rates
A R B AL A , 8 IR i
L : . PR Determined after
Fujian GuangYao Jieda Pharmaceutical Co., . 196.46
Lid Sales of goods negotiation by reference
) to market rates
BEM R PRSI 24 71 wemn | © AR
Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., SR Determined after -4,517,194.96 | 22,638,136.10
Lid Sales of goods negotiation by reference
) to market rates
2. RBHEZSE
2.Procurement and acceptance of services
) S22 T 15 FE 1o s Tk
JE I B EE A A R A7) e Determined after
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Procuz)e(;gﬁsmt of negotiation by reference 91,172,159.12 | 211,975,445.64
& to market rates
_ & e A= el 7 P
1152 L S O LA wmig | 2B
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pan Gao Shou Procurement of tiation by reft 61,437,303.38 | 32,396,279.24
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. goods fiegotiation by rererence

to market rates
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wE
LR Tﬁﬂ ¢ Pricing method and 2021 FE 2020 F£fF
Name of related party relaﬁ,)(;s (:lr " decision making 2021 2020
transac[t)ionz] procedure for related
party transactions
B (212 Ly B S AR 24 7 wipg | 5 AR R
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Procurement of D§te.r mined after 60,742,153.06 40,395,068.93
Marketing Co., Ltd goods negotiation by reference
N ’ to market rates
£ 1 f - >
B (412 Ly o — SR ATIR A 7 g | 28 IR T
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Zhong Yi Procurement of e ot?afir(l)ﬁlge r:fe::nce 58,210,234.87 76,002,640.52
Pharmaceutical Company Limited goods g v
to market rates
B T 4 M A R 7 T I
Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji Pharmaceutical Co., Procurement of gte.r mined atter 37,207,204.78 44,456,693.31
Ltd g0ods negotiation by reference
) to market rates
B é/% = foE ) 75 .
B EEWRE GEE) B HIRAT i, | U SBRRTE
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Xing Qun Procurement of necotiation by reference 30,916,494.23 42,168,162.06
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. goods ot Y
to market rates
B =L BB R A IR A R A 2= 1L B S TS R T
(B TNGHIE PRI = Determined after
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Procurementof | by reference 23,357,280.27 | 14,283,078.02
Holdings Co., Ltd. Guangzhou Baiyunshan He goods 8 to marke}t/ rates
Ji Gong Pharmaceutical Factory
5 1 fm 77 B Tk P
B 1 L RS R A wg, | O AR
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chen Li Ji Procurement of . ot'ationlb reference 14,197,712.60 13,885,470.38
Pharmaceutical Factory Co., Ltd. goods fegon y refen
to market rates
9/%6 =i 77 s =1
B 15 L1 B A WA ) T I
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Tian Xin Procurement of cootiation by reference 14,146,841.05 13,027,075.90
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. goods fegon y reen
to market rates
g =g F7 B P
B B A L ) g | O AR
Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., Procurement of . 12,244,050.31 15,146,970.40
Ltd g0ods negotiation by reference
) to market rates
. % =i F7 B P
B 1 LR S A A ) g | O SRR
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Hutchison Whampoa Procurement of cootiation by reference 10,816,241.52 9,642,781.95
Chinese Medicine Co., Ltd. goods negot y r
to market rates
SRR 2217 5 TR b i e
N IR B BE A PR A ] S Determined after
Guangzhou Xin Te Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Procuze(?;:nt of negotiation by reference 8,390,458.24 5,310,005.51
g to market rates
X 1 fili LA 17 >
B L A AR A i | O SRR
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Qi Xing Procurement of N t? (:irmnlrge raf irn 4,783,913.59 5,265,974.38
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. goods cgotiation by reference
to market rates
‘ SRR S22 T 355 (FUR 1 18 i 52
Ll T R (e P B A TR A ] Proctirement of Determined after 2.637.897.36 696.893.12
Foshan GPC Jianze Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd oods negotiation by reference B T
g to market rates
X 1 fii LAy 17 >
B 12 B A g, | 28 IR R
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Guang Hua Pharmacy Procurement of C £ 1,914,159.27 1,008,823.00
Co.. Ltd g00ds negotiation by reference
’ ) to market rates
B 4 AL AR A WA 7 g, | O or AR
Hutchison Whampoa Guangzhou Baiyunshan Procurement of ne og:jir;?llge r:feer:::nce 578,672.57 310,274.34
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. goods & Y

to market rates
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Wacs | WOREEIARR
BB 5 45 RE Tﬁgg , Pricing method and 2021 SEJ¥ 2020 F5E
Name of related party 1 i’p(;:s 0 " decision making 2021 2020
l;i;n:aclt)i?;lz procedure for related
party transactions
2t 3 o SETYH i Wi 72
T 1 L B A A g, | 2SR E
Guangxi Baiyunshan Yingkang Procurement of e 148,318.59
. negotiation by reference
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd goods
to market rates
— e e . ,);é = E Eai 7 ﬁ ~
BEMI R 2 A M g, | 2SR ENE
Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., Procurement of ation by ref 141,404.06 41,709,724.20
Lid g00ds negotiation by reference
) to market rates
N B, B B AR e e
i S BT IR A ) wmig | O BT
Fujian GuangYao Jieda Pharmaceutical Co., Procurement of ation by ref 1,285,164.15
Lid g00ds negotiation by reference
) to market rates
b . 5.;% =} 77 > ==
B S 1 L w2 BT
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import and Export | Procurement of L 350,442.48
. negotiation by reference
Company Limited goods

to market rates

i IR BRI R A < AR BR LU R

f s BRI A

(=) BB ERERER

Note :The above amount of procurement excludes rebates from

the upstream manufacturers and suppliers.

(IIT).Related party balances

HH

Item

the year

FRGH

Balance as at the end of

FHIRE

Balance as at the
begining of the year

FE s Bk

Trade receivables

JEEPH B GE i AT PR 24 7]

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

4,413,990.00

JE i E B GE AT BR 2 )

Guangzhou Jianmin Pharmaceutical Company Limited

2,568,068.79

1,251,073.59

MR IR — O BT IR A R

Hainan Hongxiang Yi Xin Tang Pharmaceutical Chain Co., Ltd.

1,157,755.79

1,194,146.09

FEVG IR — B S IR PR AR

Guangxi Hongxiang Yi Xin Tang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

292,368.77

470,746.27

DU 1| 8 B B A R 2 )

Sichuan Yi Xin Tang Gurative Gatenation Co.,Ltd

172,648.92

182,083.37

JEM 1 3R 1l IR 2 T 4 i A PR 2 ]

Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chen Li Ji Pharmaceutical Factory Co., Ltd.

59,759.76

Bl o B RRNG B R AT IR A+

Zhuhai Guang Yao Kangming Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

30,305.06

16,864.49

JRM B BE A AT BR 2 ) KSR ZE A S > 7

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Da Zhong Pharmaceutical Sales

Branch

20,176.02

JR 8 BB D AT PR A )

Guangzhou Caizhilin Traditional Chinese Medical Center Co., Ltd.

Huadiwan Branch

15,818.80

26,748.52

VI S B A A TR A )

Shenzhen Guangyao Liankang Pharmaceutical Company Limited

4,940.00

J Ao f B KB AT B )

Guangzhou Shennong Caotang Pharmacy Co., Ltd

2,790.40
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Balance as at the end of
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G

Balance as at the
begining of the year

3T U e A R AR

Guangdong Baiyuantang Medicine Chainstore Co.,Ltd. PSS
R PH R 28 A R4 ) 39,043.00
Guangzhou Caizhilin Medicine Co. Ltd T
R 2 7 INF]

Ui BE S AR [ A AT PR 24 ) 36,789.91

Yixintang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.

FRATRER

Prepayments

BN A Z L A IR AR
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Marketing Co., Ltd.

31,878,186.23

23,402,805.15

BN A ZLh— 23 A IR AR
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Zhong Yi Pharmaceutical Company Limited

27,871,665.77

18,799,888.07

&N B = L e AL S AR A W
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pan Gao Shou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

12,062,351.00

12,026,725.74

EYAESEASE =i xE] YA
Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

4,690,897.56

21,332,793.75

FEPH 22 1L e A R A A PR A ) P 25 e 7 1) 4 i
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Co., Ltd. Guangzhou
Baiyunshan He Ji Gong Pharmaceutical Factory

3,379,982.57

3,838,365.44

B M 1 25 L A 7 B A PR )
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chen Li Ji Pharmaceutical Factory Co., Ltd.

2,926,876.18

1,893,962.10

BMBEZILERE (330 KRMARAR
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Xing Qun Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

2,731,484.86

JEIH 2R LG HE BB A A TR 7]
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Guang Hua Pharmacy Co., Ltd.

1,324,500.00

665,339.73

BN A Z LA REESEA R AT
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Qi Xing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

1,271,810.47

700,167.06

R PH 8 B B 3 A7 BR 2 ]

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

294,438.07

135,094.02

FRM EE T KA A S R AT IR 2 7

Guangzhou wang lao ji great health enterprise development co., Itd.

57,800.00

EPAISESIIPRIVEE i) e o)A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Tian Xin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

57,097.70

JEE M L AR I R TR A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Hutchison Whampoa Chinese Medicine Co.,
Ltd.

50,872.22

754,344.42

BN E Z LA B e A IR A
Hutchison Whampoa Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

17,601.76

BMEAEILERE (38 A RA A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Xing Qun Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

8,607,258.01

Fofth K

Other receivables

JE N 2275 4 S B A B A )
Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

100,000.00

20,000.00

JEPH 125 LA B S A BR 2 ]
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Jing Xiu Tang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

20,000.00

20,000.00

BN A Z LA F# T 2 IR A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Hutchison Whampoa Chinese Medicine Co.,
Ltd.

20,000.00
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HE AR FHIRIR
Balance as at the end of Balance as at the
Item . .
the year begining of the year
JEE PN B A BR 2 7]
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 150,000.00
JEAT R
Bill payables
M= || B e INF
P 25 LRSS A I8 47,474,429.69 23,193,717.61

Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Marketing Co., Ltd.

BN E R L — AR AT
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Zhong Yi Pharmaceutical Company Limited

32,423,661.70

46,705,561.50

JEIN 5 1L v S SE I A R A ]
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pan Gao Shou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

30,000,000.00

13,300,000.00

JE M E 2 RS RA A BR A F
Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

12,177,439.20

37,419,703.93

JRE N B ZE B A B 2 ]

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

11,026,897.06

28,358,180.21

BEINEELER (B3R BRhERAR
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Xing Qun Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

8,300,466.92

11,115,347.09

JEIN 125 1L B AR R BLAR A PR 2 =] 1 5 e 7 A 1) 4 i
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Co., Ltd. Guangzhou
Baiyunshan He Ji Gong Pharmaceutical Factory

7,998,346.41

7,747,810.02

EMEZE L RO EE R IR A E]
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Tian Xin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

5,831,912.90

7,807,931.60

JREPH 25 L R 2 7 i A IR A )
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chen Li Ji Pharmaceutical Factory Co., Ltd.

4,584,827.70

4,509,967.60

i 01 [ 5 B 2 A IR A
Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

3,306,715.40

2,730,395.79

BN A Z AL S T A TR A R
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Hutchison Whampoa Chinese Medicine Co.,
Ltd.

1,660,240.00

4,382,298.00

M A E LAy R EEEA R A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Qi Xing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

1,538,503.30

5,081,291.74

BEM K ZMEEE A RAF]
Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

1,351,412.80

13,149,686.69

JEH RS B8 4547 BR 24 7]
Guangzhou Xin Te Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

858,000.00

3,446,060.00

il LT B BRI B SR TR A A
Foshan GPC Jianze Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd

178,734.00

BN F 1Lt B L AR A IR A )
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Guang Hua Pharmacy Co., Ltd.

823,760.50

JEIH B LA B AR PR A
Hutchison Whampoa Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

117,000.00

JE M e A3t tH VA BR A W

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import and Export Company Limited

87,398.00

JEATHRER
Trade payables

R B BE A AT B 22 )

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

28,683,243.47

72,229,454.24

R B8 i S A R A )
Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

3,361,254.24

5,107,761.10

JEEH RS B 45 A BR 22 7]
Guangzhou Xin Te Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

1,927,866.20

1,270,082.69
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M B LR B BE A TR 7]
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Tian Xin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

560,550.91

294,189.91

o Ly T S B fe s B A R )
Foshan GPC Jianze Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd

427,284.00

542,850.00

JEIH R ZIREESEA TR 7
Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

4.31

17,026,907.88

BN A ZLh 28O A IR A
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chinese Medicine Tablets Co., Ltd

1,846.80

HRARK

Contract liabilities

3§ ARV B SR S A R A )
Guangdong Baiyuantang Medicine Chainstore Co.,Ltd.

7,332.67

3 M B 7 % 2 A B A )
Guangzhou Guo Ying Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

0.16

— ik B SE AR I A A PR A 7]
Yixintang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.

0.07

JEIH R ZIREESEA TR ]
Guangzhou Cai Zhi Lin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

282,786.40

JREPH B8 B B 00 AT BR 2 ] KSR 4 i 45 7 A W)

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Da Zhong Pharmaceutical Sales

Branch

62,227.98

() EH. BEEBIHMN

L3EH R BRI s R

(IV).DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

1. Details of the emoluments of directors and supervisors are as

follows:
; HERE. EEEER
& SCEERh . JA AT P
THH : BARE ®e aat
Salaries and . . Share-based
Items Social insurance,housing | Bonuses Total
allowances . payment
fund and pension
AR FEAEHR
Amount for the year
PITESF
Executive Directors
Wealie 646,200.00 32,563.20 678,763.20
Yao Chuanglong
T n

%'Dtﬁ. . 481,800.00 21,983.42 503,783.42
Lin Zhixiong
HE A 485,800.00 26,931.66 512,731.66
Zheng Yuyan
/Mt

1,613,800.00 81,478.28 1,695,278.28
Subtotal
BE
Supervisors
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HH

Items

& KRk
Salaries and
allowances

HERE. EEEER
BRE
Social insurance,housing
fund and pension

Be

Bonuses

AR A
Share-based
payment

ot
Total

LSSz
Zheng Xiyue

159,080.00

15,182.42

174,262.42

G
Lin Zhijie

396,680.00

27,981.66

424,661.66

RFE
Zhang Ling

40,000.00

40,000.00

/et
Subtotal

595,760.00

43,164.08

638,924.08

BIAFPITESR
Independent non-
executive directors

TR MR
Wan Chi Wai,
Anthony

119,280.00

119,280.00

o 5

Guan Jian

50,000.00

50,000.00

Ji
Zhou Tao

50,000.00

50,000.00

/et
Subtotal

219,280.00

219,280.00

&t
Total

2,428,840.00

124,642.36

2,553,482.36

EEERAR

Amount for last
year

PUTESF

Executive Directors

LIyl
Yao Chuanglong

648,900.00

36,072.35

684,972.35

PR E M
Lin Zhixiong

482,951.52

26,676.62

509,628.14

3 e
Zheng Yuyan

485,800.00

26,115.15

511,915.15

/Nt
Subtotal

1,617,651.52

88,864.12

1,706,515.64

BE

Supervisors

K4 A
Zheng Xiyue

158,199.96

18,505.35

176,705.31

PR
Lin Zhijie

399,380.00

20,112.39

419,492.39

R
Zhang Ling

40,000.00

40,000.00

/Nt
Subtotal

597,579.96

38,617.74

636,197.70
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Fappy | TR EREEER BHLR | e
IHH : Bk R®e At
Items Salaries and Social i housi Bonuses Share-based Total
allowances ocial insurance,housing u payment
fund and pension

BOLEBATES
Independent non-
executive directors
FHE e
Wan Chi Wai, 121,196.16 121,196.16
Anthony
st . 50,000.00 50,000.00
Guan Jian
VRt
Zhou Tao 50,000.00 50,000.00
/Nat
Subtotal 221,196.16 221,196.16
Ll

2,436,427.64 127,481.86 2,563,909.50
Total
PSRRI A N 2.Five individuals with the highest emoluments

AN H M iR = K AT T b rp 3 AR
HOCEFE: 3 A0, HIEHERHH
HORBEEE “ (). (1) 7 FHMC
SRR HEH R B AHT . b 2

i CEFERE: 2460 BT

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three were
directors (last year: three) for the year, and the emoluments of
the directors among them set out in Note —X. (IV). (1)”

emoluments reflected in the emoluments of directors and

supervisors. The emolument of other two individuals (last year:

two) was as follows:

HH REFAERR EERARR
Items Amount for the year | Amount for last year
N
oz SRS 577,560.00 570,260.00
Salaries and allowances
o RM . (E5E G SR S A 42.765.08 13.652.47
Social insurance, housing fund and relevant pension cost T T
e
Bonuses
CEl
620,325.08 603,912.47
Total
7 T o [« Scope of emoluments:
THH AENB NCYN ¢
Item Number of people for the year Number of people for last year

1,000,000 JGLAN (AR
Within RMB1,000,000

N

5N
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3AN G AR [ ok 2 43 AR S AR R R
T A Ath 8 = 2 B R R R B AT AT
i, DAMEAERCERIY, AA AR
RS B A s A+
SCAHEARTHTN,  AE AP 51 1% S5 N BK
AN A =] IRs ) 8% B Bl 4 742 Bl e At

i

4. 2 T T i
FEEHE T CRAE AT KEE
H.,BFELASRERENEE) W
T

3.No other directors of the Group waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year except Mr. Li Weisheng waived his
emoluments. During the Track Record Period, no emoluments
were paid by the Company to any directors, supervisors or the
five highest paid individuals as inducements to join or upon

joining the Company or as a compensation for loss of office.

4.Major management’s emoluments
The emoluments of major management (including the amount
paid and payable to directors, supervisors and senior

management) were as follows:

HH KEFHAER AR

Items Amount for the year | Amount for last year
IS
%ﬁi&{i’ﬁ‘ﬁ 2,609,720.00 2,607,307.64
Salaries and allowances
HERE. ERESIMMEBRERE 139,425.78 141,021.94
Social insurance, housing fund and relevant pension cost
Be
Bonuses
3t

2,749,145.78 2,748,329.58

Total
+—. WEFIE XI. CONTINGENCIES

LAKBEERGH A NERERLT
T (B B -

1.The Group’s internal guarantees during the reporting

period are as follows (Unit: RMB0°000):

BRELTOK
BAT e
BRI 5 Wi lRIT 4B RS BIAH et 3] ‘Whether the B!
Names of Guarantee | Commencement Release .
Names of Guarantees Guarantee has | Explanation
Guarantors Amount Date Date
been fully
performed
BILEER N BER
RIREERENT | AISEAF Bl HRAH
Charmacy Charmacy 38.000.00 20198 A2 H 2023 47 F 10 H @ Chattel
Pharmaceutical |Pharmaceutical ©T72019-08-02 2023-07-10 No
mortgage
Company Company,Guangdong
Charmacy Company
BILEER N BER
BISREESENT]  |AIEAF] [ BE AR
Charmacy Charmacy 38.000.00/2019 F8H2H (202448 H2H 7 Building
Pharmaceutical |Pharmaceutical TT(2019-08-02 2024-08-02 No property
Company Company,Guangdong mortgage
Charmacy Company
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BT
W2 MBS 4R BREE G H ﬁ@l‘% H#A Wh:glje"r the 205
Names of Names of Guarantees Guarantee Comn]l)entcement Rl(; ::?ese Guarantee has | Explanation
Guarantors Amount ate been fully
performed
Ziz 2 /N o
ﬁﬁrﬁgf A PORAIR 2 v 20.000.00[2020 ¥F 2 3 21 B |2021 %£2 73 20 H 2
Pharmaceutical g“angd"“g Charmacy S 12020-02-21 2021-02-20 Yes
ompany
Company
A N N\ =
ﬁﬁiﬁff : PORAIR 2 v 18.000.00/2021 F2H22H 20222 H21 H 4
Pharmaceutical g“angd"“g Charmacy 120210222 2022-02-21 No
ompany
Company
B 2 2 N
éif‘rzfac%yA T o 12.000.00[2020 F 10 4 28 1 [2025 4 12 A 31 %
Pharmaceutical g“angd"“g Charmacy T 12020-10-28 2025-12-31 No
ompany
Company
Bl 257 2 /N
ﬁﬁi;y;iA h FORAIR A A 11.000.00/2018 FI12H3H [2021F12 A27H 2=
Pharmaceutical g“angdong Charmacy 2018-12-03 2021-12-27 Yes
ompany
Company
A ;E’z‘ /\4
ﬁii?;c%f k BRAIR A 6.000.00/2019 £ 12 H 27 H 202343 H 15 H i
Pharmaceutical g“angdong Charmacy E2019-12-27 2023-03-15 No
ompany
Company
ﬁﬁii&a FORAIR A 201949 H18H |31 5
Pharmaceutical g‘“angdo“g Charmacy 5:500.001419.09-18 Note 1 No
ompany
Company
A ‘E’Z‘ /\4
ﬁiéni;c%yAE FORAISR 2 5.500.00[2021 £ 9 A 8 H 2023 47 J§ 31 H 5
Pharmaceutical g“angd(’“g Charmacy > 12021-09-08 2023-07-31 No
ompany
Company
a2 N
ﬁﬁfﬁz D paa 2020454 F 16 0[5 1 B
Pharmaceutical guangdong Charmacy 5,500.00 2020-04-16 Note 1 Yes
ompany
Company
B a2 N
ﬁﬁgﬁiA D paa 5 500002020 E 8 A 13 F1 [2022 4.7 A 31 H 2
Pharmaceutical |0 u2n8dong Charmacy > 2020-08-13 2022-07-31 Yes
Company
Company
B a2 N
f:fn;féf T e 4.000.00/2019 4F 11 325 H 2022 4 12 H 31 H &
Pharmaceutical g“a”gd"“g Charmacy 20191125 2022-12-31 No
ompany
Company
2 Ziz 2 /N o
f:ﬁni;iL U e 3000002020 6 423 H 2023 4 6 1§ 23 H &
Pharmaceutical g“a”gd"“g Charmacy S 12020-06-23 2023-06-23 No
ompany
Company
2 Ziz 2 /N o
f:ﬁni;iL U e 3000002021 FE7 H 6 H 2022 4F 6 1§ 24 H &
Pharmaceutical g“a”gd"“g Charmacy T 12021-07-06 2022-06-24 No
ompany
Company
2 P A=
ﬁiiﬁ‘ i FORAIR A A 3000002020 4F5 H8 H 2021 44 H 9 [ &
Pharmaceutical g“angd"“g Charmacy S 12020-05-08 2021-04-09 Yes
ompany
Company
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WRET OAR
R 4T WREW | R EL Rz
W tR T 48 Whether the L]
Names of Guarantee | Commencement Release .
Guarantors Names of Guarantees Amount Date Date Guarantee has | Explanation
been fully
performed
AIREEA AL R
BERAISE AT RIS AH B HEAT
Guangdong Charmacy 26.000.00 2018 4F7 /310 H 12023 47 1 10 H f Chattel
Charmacy Pharmaceutical »7772018-07-10 2023-07-10 No
mortgage
Company Company,Guangdong
Charmacy Company
BERAIR AT | AISREESE AR
Guangdong Charmacy 54.000.00[2020 2 H 21 H (2025422 [ 20 =
Charmacy Pharmaceutical 7TT2020-02-21 2025-02-20 Yes
Company Company
3| PSYNCIEIE S & A
Guangdong Charmacy 21.000.00/2020 F£2H21H 202142 H20H =&
Charmacy Pharmaceutical 7TT2020-02-21 2021-02-20 Yes
Company Company
FERAIR AT |AISREESE A F]
Guangdong Charmacy 20.000.00/2017 F11 H20H 2022411 H 19 H i
Charmacy Pharmaceutical »TTT2017-11-20 2022-11-19 No
Company Company
FERAIR AT |AISREESE A F]
Guangdong Charmacy 20.000.00[2021 F2H2H 202242 H21H &
Charmacy Pharmaceutical TTTTTTT2021-02-22 2022-02-21 No
Company Company
FERAIR AT |AISREESE LT
Guangdong Charmacy 18.000.00[2018 F£8HISH |2025F8 A 15 H 5
Charmacy Pharmaceutical »TTT12018-08-15 2025-08-15 No
Company Company
FERAIR AT |AISREESE LT
Guangdong Charmacy 13.000.00/2018 FI12H3H 2021 F12 A27H =
Charmacy Pharmaceutical 7TTTT2018-12-03 2021-12-27 Yes
Company Company
FERAIR AT |AISREESE N T
Guangdong Charmacy 13.000.00/2019 FI12H27H|2023F3 H15H 5
Charmacy Pharmaceutical TTTT2019-12-27 2023-03-15 No
Company Company
FRAIEAT | AIEEEA
Guangdong Charmacy 9.600.00/2020 10 A 13 H [20254 10 A 12 H 4
Charmacy Pharmaceutical 7TT72020-10-13 2025-10-12 No
Company Company
FRAIFEAT | AIEEEA
Guangdong Charmacy 5.500.00/2019 FE9OHI8H |FE1 5
Charmacy Pharmaceutical TTTT12019-09-18 Note 1 No
Company Company
JERAIL AT |BIREEEANT]
Guangdong Charmacy 5.500.002021 F£9H8H |202247H31H 5
Charmacy Pharmaceutical TTTTT2021-09-08 2022-07-31 No
Company Company
ERAIENT | BILEEE AT
Guangdong Charmacy 5.500.00 20208 A 13 H [202247 A 31 H =
Charmacy Pharmaceutical TT7(2020-08-13 2022-07-31 Yes
Company Company
ERAIENT | BILEEE AT
Guangdong Charmacy 3.000.00 20203 A 25 H (202343 A 24 H 7
Charmacy Pharmaceutical 7T7(2020-03-25 2023-03-24 No
Company Company
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RETER | ywpam | BREE R BEREH | Whether the | 87
Names of Guarantee | Commencement Release .
Names of Guarantees Guarantee has | Explanation
Guarantors Amount Date Date been fully
performed

FERAIRAT  |AISREESE AR
Guangdong Charmacy 3.000.00[2021 “F3 H 19 H 2024 44 H 30 H 15
Charmacy Pharmaceutical 7T 12021-03-19 2024-04-30 No
Company Company
FERAIEAT |AISKLESE AT
Guangdong Charmacy 3.000.00202! £7H19H (202347 H 19 H 4
Charmacy Pharmaceutical »TTT12021-07-19 2023-07-19 No
Company Company
FERAISE AT |AIREESE AT
Guangdong Charmacy 2 970.00|2021 FE5HI12H [2024FE5 13 H i
Charmacy Pharmaceutical 7 T2021-05-12 2024-05-13 No
Company Company
FERAISE AT |AIRESE AT
Guangdong Charmacy 1.500.00/2020 F3H25H |2023F3 H24 H 2=
Charmacy Pharmaceutical T T712020-03-25 2023-03-24 Yes
Company Company
FEIMAISE AT |BIELESE AT
Guangzhou Charmacy 24.000.00[2020 F2H21H |2025F2H20H 2=
Charmacy Pharmaceutical »TTTTT2020-02-21 2025-02-20 Yes
Company Company
FEIMAISE AT |BIELESE AT
Guangzhou Charmacy 13.000.0012019 FI12H27H|2023F3H15H 5
Charmacy Pharmaceutical »TTTTT2019-12-27 2023-03-15 No
Company Company
FEIMAISE AT |RIELESE AT
Guangzhou Charmacy 9.600.00/2020 F10H 13 H 2025410 H 12 H e
Charmacy Pharmaceutical 77TT12020-10-13 2025-10-12 No
Company Company
BMAIZEAR | MEEEAT
Guangzhou Charmacy 3.000.00|2020 F£3H25H 202343 H24 H i
Charmacy Pharmaceutical > 7TT12020-03-25 2023-03-24 No
Company Company
FOHAE AT |AIREEA
Guangzhou Charmacy 3.000.00|2921 FT7HI19H 202347 H19H i
Charmacy Pharmaceutical »T2021-07-19 2023-07-19 No
Company Company
FOHAE AT |AIREEA
Guangzhou Charmacy 1.500.00 202043 A 25 H |2023 43 H 24 H &
Charmacy Pharmaceutical TT72020-03-25 2023-03-24 Yes
Company Company
HRIGAIEA T |AIREEAT
Zhuhai Charmacy 9.600.002021 F10 A 13 H (2025410 A 12 H 4
Charmacy Pharmaceutical »TTT2021-10-13 2025-10-12 No
Company Company
HRIGAIEA T |AIREEAT
Zhuhai Charmacy 3.000.00/2020 F3H25H |2023F3 A24 H 5
Charmacy Pharmaceutical »TT2020-03-25 2023-03-24 No
Company Company
TRiFRIE AT |RIELESE AT
Zhuhai Charmacy 1.500.00/2020 F3 H 25 H 2023 43 H 24 1 b
Charmacy Pharmaceutical TTTT2020-03-25 2023-03-24 Yes
Company Company

BE 1 ERFE 201949 H 18 H

Note 1: The guarantee obligation became effective from 18
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BA, EHIEREBREITERZ
Hi# 60 8 H .

2RAFE ERWEFIRSN, AEEE
HAh TR E A HIR.

=, AeEHIR

HE 2021 £ 12 H 31 H, KEEAN
AFAE T3 B 7N 5 (1) B B R S I

T=. BERERHREIHR

AN N A I R UG S T
R H L RICTA 2022 £ 1 H 6 H
BT VL B E B A IR BT A
A OC [YLHBR] ) %8 g
i HFRA AR AT TR
A 26.90% A7 R4S VT B R
ESSERINGEE TP NN N4
He

T BAFRMBHREEE
IR H R

September 2019 for a term of 60 months from the expiration of

the performance period of the guarantee obligation.

2. Apart from the above disclosures, no other contingencies

of the Group need to be disclosed.

XII.COMMITMENTS

By December 31, 2021, the Group had no important

commitment which must be disclosed.

XIIL.EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE

SHEET DATE

You Zeyan, Wu Binhua, Liu Jigui and Wu Wanping, the
domestic shareholders of the Company (collectively referred to
as the Pomestic Shareholders”), entered into a share transfer
agreement with Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Commercial
Operation Co., Ltd.* (VLPEYLH B84 618 2 A IR HAE A F])
(—Jiangzhong Yishang™) on 6 January 2022, under which the
Domestic Shareholders agreed to transfer the shares held by
them, representing approximately 26.90% of total share capital
issued by the Company to Jiangzhong Yishang. Jiangzhong

Yishang became the second largest shareholder of the Company.

XIV. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT

COMPANY
1. JEKER 2 1.Trade receivables
TAH AR AR AR Balance asﬂ:ﬁ)t]ff Ig;ﬁé inning of
Name of item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
JEEWS R

Trade receivables

304,238,736.86 329,142,078.53

W BEIR A

Less:Provision for bad debt 3,329,013.97 7,424,089.33
ik 298,709,722.89 321,717,989.20
Net amount

-248-



(1) JEWIR 2 BIR FT 5 5 1% 70

2021

FREMRE

ANNUAL REPORT

(1) Accounts receivable by the method of provisioning for bad

VN debt
EREREH
Balance as at the end of the year
R HRTHI SR AR BHRYER
Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt T
0,
& L0 | e SHRHA (%) Book value
Amount g Amount Provision ratio (%)
(%)
T ELIEGHE IR M
Bad debt provision made on 2,873,666.59 0.94 | 2,873,666.59 100.00
individual basis
A G RHE R
Bad debt provision made ona | 301,365,070.27 99.06 | 2,655,347.38 0.88 | 298,709,722.89
collective basis
HRESAH A
. . 301,365,070.27 99.06 | 2,655,347.38 0.88 | 298,709,722.89
Aging portfolio
IO B A&
Low risk portfolio
e
Total 304,238,736.86 100.00 | 5,529,013.97 — | 298,709,722.89
(&) (continued)
SEVIERIR
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Rl R TH B BH BERYEM
Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt R ER A
o,
& L %) 1 e SHRHH] (%) Book value
Amount g Amount Provision ratio (%)
(%)
P BLIHEHR IR A
Bad debt provision made on 2,436,214.20 0.74 2,436,214.20 100.00
individual basis
TG R ER
Bad debt provision made ona | 326,705,864.33 99.26 4,987,875.13 1.53 | 321,717,989.20
collective basis
HRESHH A
. . 326,705,864.33 99.26 4,987,875.13 1.53 | 321,717,989.20
Aging portfolio
R FE A&
Low risk portfolio
et
Total 329,142,078.53 100.00 7,424,089.33 — | 321,717,989.20
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1) 45 B I RSO R

1)Bad debt provision for trade receivables made on individual

basis
ERGH
Balance as at the end of the year
H . AT
Company name IO SRR (%) EIR et
Trade Provision for . .
receivables bad debt Provision Reasons for provision
ratio (%)
T T R A R AT fﬁﬂﬁﬁé\?ﬁ%ﬁ%, i EICIL P QEIRER (3
= ) K
l . . . 2,010,786.55 2,010,786.55 100.00 | No cooperation relationship
Fujian Minzhe Pharmaceutical tine. |
Co.. Ltd subs1st1ng3 lower expected
v recoverability
R BRI PR S I B A7 . B
o W, W
Guﬁngdong Kaizhilin Medicine 396,254.17 396,254.17 100.00 | Clients involved in litigation, separate
Chainstore Co.,Ltd. accruals
BRI AE R B A S A IR A P TR B GE IR RE A 1R, TR
INE = J
E_L‘ B . 271,939.56 271,939.56 100.00 ”Tﬁ@q_& PEA
Ningde Xianghe Default in overdue goods payment,
Pharmaceutical Chain Co., Ltd. low expected recoverability
VT P4 BB 45 TR A A2 PR EAGE IR BE I, TR
EOS = j
Jiangxi Jinsheng Medicine 104,626.38 104,626.38 100.00 A [l LI& PEAIG
Limited Default in overdue goods payment,
low expected recoverability
WO S ERAR, THET AT iR
St [ o
Others 90,059.93 90,059.93 100.00 | No cooperation relationship
subsisting, lower expected
recoverability
&Rt
2,873,666.59 2,873,666.59 — —
Total

2) fEA A EHRENR

AR YEA

2) Bad debt provision for trade receivables made on group basis

ARG
HE# Balance as at the end of the year
Age JEWCHR 2K BRERYER SHEEH (%)
trade receivables Provision for bad debt Provision ratio (%)
! E U\ N 284,284,347.40 994,995.21 0.35
Within 1 year
1-2 4 17,055,063.52 1,640,697.11 9.62
1 to 2 years
2-3 4 25,659.35 19,655.06 76.60
2 to 3 years
a3
301,365,070.27 2,655,347.38 —

Total

(2) EHBCRFALIRE 517
FEIRANBNZ P 2R, AR I T
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worthiness of potential clients and set corresponding credit

limits according to the internal credit assessment policies. The

Group applies different credit policies to different customers.

Credit period is generally six months. As for commodity sales,

the trade receivables and operating revenue are recognized and

the age of the same is calculated after the control right has been

transferred to the buyers.

FEARBRER FHIRE
Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
R =aii] . Ee1 y
age | mmsE | o | PR mmeng |y | JUREA
Provision for Provision for
Book balance | Percentage Book balance | Percentage
bad debt bad debt
(%) (%)
1 LA
W, . 284,297,098.50 93.45 1,007,746.32 | 298,626,861.99 90.73 866,017.90
Within 1
year
1-2 4
1to?2 17,476,346.95 5.74 2,061,980.53 | 25,292,250.49 7.68 3,062,891.53
years
2-3 4F
2to3 25,659.35 0.01 19,655.06 2,786,751.85 0.85 1,058,965.70
years
3 LU
i
More 2,439,632.06 0.80 2,439,632.06 2,436,214.20 0.74 2,436,214.20
than 3
years
a3t
Total 304,238,736.86 100.00 5,529,013.97 | 329,142,078.53 100.00 7,424,089.33
(3) ARFEEEFHE. #E Bk ED (3) Provision for bad debts accrued and reversed (or recovered)
1)1 B YA 1000 in the year
- KAEBEN G AR
Bal el ¢ th Changes in the year FERGHE
alance as at the 5 o
beginning of the st WAL ] g i ] BESH EA% B Balance as at the
Recovered or Written back or end of the year
year Accrued .
reversed written off
7,424,089.33 -1,895,038.66 36.70 5,529,013.97
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(4) AL T IR EOIR K

(4) Trade receivables actually written off during the year

HH

Items

B S

Write-off amount

i SRR A S AR A A M+ =

Haifeng County Pharmaceutical United Corporation 36.70

thirteen stores of medicinal materials

(5) R 5 B 4R I SR R R BE AT T
A4 1 JEUSIR K 1 D

(5) Details of top five balances of trade receivables classified by

borrowers as at the end of the year

ARG R B I AE R BR R AT T4

In 2021, the sum of accounts receivable of five borrowers with

JE WOBR Bk OB A & B ON RO the largest closing balance of accounts receivable was

115,122,316.61 JG, 45 EUIRRER
EREA G TR LE ) 37.84%, AHIERT
FERE AR E M FOR AR AHIE B S BN IR

& 402,928.11 7t

RMB115,122,316.61, 37.84% of the total closing balance of
accounts receivable. Accordingly, the bad debt provisions set
aside had a total closing balance of RMB402,928.11.

2. FoAih EEUACER 2.0ther receivables

JAH ARG Balance asﬂ;?t]ff ?;Ee inning of

Items Balance as at the end of the year g g

the year
JEWF S
Interests receivable
JREUS JIE A
Dividend receivable
W S
,\1"@1,@%(;:/\ 163,479,388.56 34,922,983.93
Other receivables
A%t
163,479,388.56 34,922,983.93

Total

2.1 HAt IR

2.1 Other receivables

THE 4

Name of item

ARG

Balance as at the end of the year

FHIRHR

Balance as at the beginning of
the year

HoA YK

Other receivables

163,554,388.56

34,927,983.93

W BREA

Less:Provision for bad debt 75,000.00 3,000.00
R 163,479,388.56 34,922,983.93
Net amount
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(1) HAh @K%k IE P (1) Classification of other receivables by fund nature
HEM T SRR TH R AR FYIRRHE ARER
Book balance at the end of the Book balance at the beginning of
Fund nature
year the year
£ e 2
PR 155,596,124.01 26,539,650.05
Money transfers
a7
Ptz . 7,594,516.00 7,704,516.00
Cash deposit
i 358,748.55 678,817.88
Imprest fund
FoAt
Others 5,000.00 5,000.00
)
163,554,388.56 34,927,983.93
Total
(2) HAth BB ISR A ARSI (2) Provisions for bad debt of other receivables
12 E_FER FE=FEB
First stage Second stage Third stage
) R 12 E | BEFFNAFY | BEFSHTE s
SRR ATEER | BRERGREE | BRARCSEE | B
Provision for bad debt Hk 15 FIAE) (SR E) Total
12-month | Lifetime expected | Lifetime expected
expected credit loss (not credit loss (credit-
credit loss credit-impaired) impaired)

202141 H 1 HEREE

5,000.00 5,000.00
Balance on 1 January 2021

2021 4F 1 A 1 HHAhEIGKIR T
BREATE AR

0 5,000.00
Book balance of other receivables on
1 January 2021 in the year

5,000.00

=N

—Transferred to the second stage

TN = RSB
—Transferred to the third stage

T

—Reversed to the second stage

i [ 5 — [ B

—Reversed to the first stage

ARG

Accrued for the year 70,000.00 70,000.00

A ]

Reversed in the year

AR
Written off in the year

AR

Cancelled in the year
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HPER g a2 =B
First stage Second stage Third stage
‘ ARA12ME | BEFEWTEN | BEFEHEY s
BRI ATRER | BRERCGREE | BRBEXCSEE | BF
Provision for bad debt B%k 12 FIRIE) 12 FIRIE) Total
12-month | Lifetime expected | Lifetime expected
expected credit loss (not credit loss (credit-
credit loss credit-impaired) impaired)
T
Other changes
2021 4F 12 H 31 HER%HH
Balance on 31 December 2021 70,000.00 5,000.00 | 75,000.00

(3) HAt EWGRERES 70 A (3) Aging analysis of other receivables
FRERHR FHIEREE
REE Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
Ago mEam | BP0 | EEEE | .. | BB (%) | R
Book baiance Percentage | Provision for Book baiance Percentage | Provision for
(%) bad debt (%) bad debt
1N
Within 1 156,178,924.39 95.49 70,000.00 | 27,667,310.21 79.21
year
1-2 4F
l1to2 173,012.17 0.11 28,221.72 0.08
years
23 4
2to3 80,000.00 0.23
years
34ERLE
More than 7,202,452.00 4.40 5,000.00 | 7,152,452.00 20.48 5,000.00
3 years
£t
Total 163,554,388.56 100.00 75,000.00 | 34,927,983.93 100.00 5,000.00

(4) AAFFEEHHE. R Caiila))

(4) Provision for bad debts accrued and reversed (or recovered)

IR YER T L in the year

TR FEBHESH

Bal 2l b Changes in the year FERGHE
aance as at the N Az [ g e [ BESH EA% B Balance as at the
beginning of the =R
Recovered or Written back or end of the year
year Accrued .
reversed written off
5,000.00 70,000.00 75,000.00

(5) ANEFE AR ATFAE A% B 1) A i

AIE DL
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(6) Details of top five balances of other receivables classified by

A 1) A JE SO borrowers as at the end of the year
A oAb R R R AR SR AR AR YA
. KA e BRIBEIHHE (%) FERGHR
k: Rey AREe Percentage in Balance of
Nature of Balance as at the . .
Company name amounts end of the vear Age the total closing provision for bad
y balance of other debts at the end
receivables (%) of the year
JE N B R ZE A PR A F] AR 1A
Guangzhou Charmacy Current 99,052,970.36 | Within 1 60.56
Pharmaceutical Limited accounts year
it AR LEREA IR A A 1IN
Zhuhai Charmacy Current 20,906,369.56 | Within 1 12.78
Pharmaceutical Limited accounts year
T R EE S A IR A AR 1LY
Shantou Yuedong Current 20,000,000.00 | Within 1 12.23 70,000.00
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd accounts year
EINAISRZE SRR AT A 1A
Zhuhai Charmacy Current 12,751,328.22 |  Within 1 7.80
Pharmaceutical Limited accounts year
BT & B EEA IR A W R 3ELLLE
Zhuhai Jinming Medicine D\M it 5,600,000.00 | More than 3.42
Co., Ltd. pos 3 years
231
- 158,310,668.14 - 96.79 70,000.00
Total
RN ERE 3.Long-term equity investments
(D RHARHERE 5 ¥ (1) Classification of long-term equity investments
FRGH FEHIRE
EH Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
Ttem wmg | PR mmwe | owmem | BENE
Book balance . . Book value Book balance . . Book value
impairment impairment
ENSEZ
Investment in 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24 | 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24
the subsidiaries
Ll
Total 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24 | 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24
(2) HrAFRIKE (2) Investment in the subsidiaries
» FRRRIE | R | g, | kmm | TR SRR
& AL Balance as at | Addition L. Balance as at .. ..
Lo . Reduction in Provision for provision
Investees the beginning in the end of the . . for i .
of the year the year the year year impairment for or impairment at
the year the end of the year
JE AT ]
Guangdong 150,000,000.00 150,000,000.00
Charmacy
Company
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L | ke, | skem | PTERE ) RETECTES
B E AL Balance as at Addition R .. Balance as at . . ..
s . eduction in Provision for provision
Investees the beginning in the end of the . . . .
of the year the year the year year impairment for for impairment at
the year the end of the year
BRI RIS A
Zhuhai 25,710,000.00 25,710,000.00
Charmacy
Company
Ji N A6 A ]
Guangzhou 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Charmacy
Company
RINAIZE 2 ]
Shenzhen 20,800,000.00 20,800,000.00
Charmacy
Company
HMBIZE AT
Huizhou 3,468,852.24 3,468,852.24
Charmacy
Company
it 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24
Total T o
4.BERANMBERA 4.0perating revenue and operating cost
(1) WA SERAE N (1)Basic information on business revenue and business expenses
REEFFAER AR
IAH Amount for the year Amount for last year
Items LN 5% LN B
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
ER-¢ 375
S . 1,502,291,335.20 1,432,162,194.03 1,510,750,853.59 1,438,565,398.02
Principal businesses
Al 27
”‘Wj%&. 74,188,236.42 1,434,523.19 53,453,563.99 7,343,952.53
Other businesses
a3t
Total 1,576,479,571.62 1,433,596,717.22 1,564,204,417.58 1,445,909,350.55

(2) & RZEA PN O

(2) Information on revenue generated from contracts

R AEEFEAERR AR
Contract classification Amount in current year Amount in prior year
[T
Types of products
Horpre ZEEEHE R

Where: Revenue from pharmaceutical
sales

1,502,291,335.20

1,510,750,853.59

Al R AR TSN

. 2,987,279.98 5,275,234.68
Revenue from consultancy services
Aefy —= 325
B =T7MRAN 71,200,956.44 48,178,329.31

Revenue from third-party logistics
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Claizies] AEEFEAERR AR
Contract classification Amount in current year Amount in prior year
ARG R 5

By region of operation

Horr: w5
Where: South China

1,575,536,743.68

1,562,480,710.95

HE T [
East China

74,751.15

168,766.36

FoAt =

Other regions

868,076.79

1,554,940.27

BB REN IR

By sales channel

Hrr: 4 THE
Where: Offline sales

1,518,697,652.08

1,501,772,994.54

ap s

Online sales

57,781,919.54

62,431,423.04

CEl
1,576,479,571.62 1,564,204,417.58
Total
SEEW R S.Investment income
THH AR TR AR
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year

FRAS AL SR R P ik

Long-term equity investment income
accounted for using the cost method

18,000,000.00

18,000,000.00

&t
Total

18,000,000.00

18,000,000.00

1. MRS

AMAFEIRE L 2022 43 A 31 HiliA

NEEH AR .

XV. APPROVAL FOR FINANCIAL REPORT

The financial report was approved and published by the Board

of the Company on 31 March 2022.
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B IRR AR ER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1LAFIERE HEE AR 1.Details of non-recurring profit or loss for the year

HH

Item

FESH

Amount for
the year

#EA

Explanation

ARED B B B R

Gains and losses from disposal of non-current assets

138,058.04

TSOREE 77 1t o A 1 S SO B AR S R RO AR SR IR . IR B
Tax refunds and relief of ultra vires or without formal approval or incidental
tax refunds or relief

FAINE YR BUNR ) CRABSEEREVIME, ZBEREG R E
FHELE B 232 IBUF A B R Sh)

Government grants included in the profit or loss for the period (except for the
government grants closely related to the corporate businesses and granted at a
fixed amount or quantity in accordance with national uniform standards)

1,190,099.65

AT\ E AR G 03 < R A SR e T
Funds utilisation fees collected from non-financial enterprises included in the
profit or loss for the period

ERSTAA . B AL EE A ERNRE AN ARG E R E =
ARG HAT A R RRVR A Fo B AR A AR A

Gains from the excess of the fair value of identifiable net assets of the investee
attributable to the enterprise at acquisition over the investment costs for the
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

FEE Witk i A R Al

Gains and losses from the exchange of non-monetary assets

Zerbith NBUE 8IS B e 1R T

Gains and losses from investments on trust or asset management

23.25

PIATTHUAIRER, Qi 32 F AR ST T 4R 0 75 TH 7 vl L Y A
Provision for impairment of assets as a result of force majeure factors, such as
natural disasters

B E AR

Gains and losses from debt restructuring

EEME, MEEBITASCH . BaHAE
Costs for enterprise reorganization, such as the expenses for the placement of
workers, and integration cost

AT G ERG BRR > FO AT By 7 A R 3 o SO BB B0 40 )48 2
Gains and losses from the excess of transaction without fair transaction price
over the fair value

] — 42 T 4 36 & 0F AL 0 7 A AR R R A OF H K E 1R R

Net gains or losses for the period of subsidiaries arising from business
combination under common control from the beginning of the year to the date
of combination

By ) 15 A7 S0 A B 10 B ST AR O FR A
Gains and losses arising from contingent matters not related to the normal
operation of the Company
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JAH

Item

FESH

Amount for
the year

St

Explanation

B [ 24 =) D A8 SE B AR AT B I RME S 5 00, PR X o ME i
AL AT E. THEEAR. TEem A ELR A REEE
iR, UNRERZ SHMEREE. AT EemEE. Lo MEeR AR,
AT2E e SR AR R S BE I

Investment income derived from the holding of financial assets held for
trading and derivative financial assets, gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value of financial liabilities held for trading and derivative financial
liabilities and disposal of financial assets held for trading, derivative financial
assets, financial liabilities held for trading, derivative financial liabilities and
other debt investment (excluding the effective hedging activities related to the
normal operation of the Company)

AP AT R (B A R R SCER T L B () 8 DA Y A e [
Reversal of impairment provision of receivables and contract assets tested on
individual basis

176,233.78

BN RFT RIS 4R i

Gains and losses from external entrusted loan

R Se R E AR OB AT R BT B BRI 5 b e 2 fo fEE S Eh 2 A 148

Gains and losses from the changes of fair value of investment properties
measured by fair value model subsequently

MRER . EatSFE . R B R A W A AT — AR E
b hnli) 2

Effect of one-off adjustment in profit or loss for the period according to the
laws and regulations regarding taxation and accounting

SRS IS IR BN

Entrust fee income from entrusted operation

P 13 %% THZ AP HoAth 2 SE NN S H

Other non-operating income and expenditures apart from the above

-61,784.20

FAl T & AR ACH MR 2 AR TR H
Other items of profit and loss meeting the definition of non-recurring profit
and loss

/NEE
Sub-total

1,442,630.52

W TR

Less: Effect of income tax

363,196.09

U R S R B (AR
Effect of minority shareholders’ equity (after tax)

a3t
Total

1,079,434.43

2 E EW R R KRR 2.Return on net assets and earning per share
IR BE R EHEEE T (A In accordance with the requirements of the —Preparation Rules
FEAT RS I ) MG B R A R R 5 for Information Disclosures by Companies Offering Shares to
9 FE—VFE A YA FR AN I A R the Public No.9 - Calculations and Disclosures for Return on
R EE (2010 FEE) ) KM Net Assets and Earnings Per Share (Revisedin 2010)”  {( 2
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B, AEE 2021 FEEMEELRE
EWEE R FEAEE R USSR R B
s

BT MAFAME RGN 9 98 - HEEW
ot TR IS 2 R AT B S B (2010 4FA2RT ) ) issued by
the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the weighted
average return on net assets, basic earnings per share and diluted

earnings per share of the Group for 2021 are as follows:

DR X 2 et
5 o Earnings per share
SR G (%)
Profit for the reporting period Weighted average RATREE R
return on net assets Basic earnings Diluted earnings
(%) per share per share
5 JBB A IR O ) JE B AR R i 4.62 0.2144 0.2144
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of parent company ’ ’ ’
FHBR A AL HE P48 2 12 i o IS B 2 ) B SR P A
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of parent company 4.40 0.2044 0.2044
(excluding non-recurring profit and loss)

A SEEEER A A TR A A
O THEZH=+—H
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